
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. § 38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD A
MEETING AT THE GILA COUNTY COURTHOUSE, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ HEARING ROOM, 1400 EAST
ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING
BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV).  THE MEETING IS
ALSO TELEVISED TO THE GILA COUNTY TOMMIE CLINE MARTIN COMPLEX, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS'
CONFERENCE ROOM, 707 S. COLCORD ROAD, PAYSON, ARIZONA.  

NOTE:  Per the most recent guidelines from the federal government regarding COVID-19 and
to protect citizens, no citizens will be allowed in the Board of Supervisors' hearing room at
the Globe Courthouse or at the County Complex, Board of Supervisors' conference room in
Payson.  The only exception to this statement is for public hearings.  Citizens may attend the
public hearing in person, one at a time, in Globe or in Payson to provide comments.  A face
mask must be worn while in the building; however, it may be removed while addressing the
Board of Supervisors.

Citizens may watch the Board meeting live-streamed at:  
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCkCHWVqrI5AmJKbvYbO-k2A/live

Citizens may submit written comments related to the September 20th Regular
Meeting agenda by no later than 5 p.m. on Monday, September 19th, by emailing to the Chief
Deputy Clerk of the Board at mhenderson@gilacountyaz.gov or calling 928-402-4390. 
Citizens may also submit written comments during the meeting through YouTube.  Please
include the meeting date, agenda item number, your name, and your residence address in the
email.

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 20, 2022 - 10:00
A.M.

             
1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE -

INVOCATION
 

 

2. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to consider a liquor license
application (County No. LL-22-05) submitted by Sagan
Lynn Simonis for the transfer of a Series 6 Bar License with
an interim permit to operate at the Stage Coach Bar & Grill,
Highway 188 and Main in Roosevelt; and issue a
recommendation to the Arizona Department of Liquor
Licenses and Control whether the license should be
granted. (Melissa Henderson)

 

3. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCkCHWVqrI5AmJKbvYbO-k2A/live


A.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Superior
Courts' submission of the FY23 "Fill the Gap" Grant
Application to the Administrative Office of the Courts for
enhanced criminal case scanning in the amount of
$5,653.69. (Cassie Ornelas)

 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No.
2 to Contract No. CTR055335 - Gila County - Healthy
People Healthy Communities in the amount of $395,063
beginning July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2023, with the Arizona
Department of Health Services. (Josh Beck)

 

C.   Information/Discussion/Action for the Board Chairman to
electronically sign Arizona Criminal Justice Commission FY
2023 Drug, Gang, and Crime Control Grant Agreement No.
DC-23-023 in the amount of $91,758.81 for the period of
July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2023. (Jessica Scibelli)

 

D.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve
Intergovernmental Agreement No. 08302022 with Central
Arizona Governments to fund the Regional Public
Transportation Authority Project in the amount of
$33,279.78. (Mary Springer)

 

E.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve the USDA Forest
Service Road Project Agreement No. 22-RO-11031200-232
for the cooperation in the Four Forest Restoration Initiative
Control Road Surfacing in the amount of $1,500,000. (Steve
Sanders)

 

F.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No.
22-09-06 for the extinguishment of that sixteen-foot wide
utility easement shown on the map of Alhambra Heights,
Official Map Number 333, Gila County Records. (Steve
Sanders)

 

G.   Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted



G.   Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted
for Invitation for Bids No. 060322 for On-Call Pavement
Marking; award contract to the lowest, most responsive,
responsible, and qualified bidder to Traffic Safety, Inc. for a
not to exceed the amount of $90,000 for a period of one
year with the option of three one-year renewals. (Steve
Sanders)

 

H.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the
advertisement of Invitation for Bids No. 082122 for the
purchase of One (1) new Ford F350 Super Cab 4x4 Cab and
Chassis. (David LaForge)

 

I.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the
advertisement of Invitation for Bid No. 082222 to purchase
One (1) New Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 with Transfer
Tank Toolbox combo and snowplow as outlined in the
solicitation. (David LaForge)

 

J.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the
advertisement of Invitation for Bid No. 082322 to purchase
One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Duty XL 4x4 Chassis and
Cab with a Dump Bed, spreader, and snowplow as outlined
in the solicitation. (David LaForge)

 

K.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the
advertisement of Invitation for Bids No. 082422 to purchase
Two (2) New Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 6.2L as
outlined in the solicitation. (David LaForge)

 

4. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS: (Any matter on the
Consent Agenda will be removed from the Consent
Agenda and discussed and voted upon as a regular
agenda item upon the request of any member of the
Board of Supervisors.)

 

 

A.   Adoption of an Order to cancel November 8, 2022,



A.   Adoption of an Order to cancel November 8, 2022,
governing board elections for certain fire districts, water,
and wastewater improvement districts, sanitary districts,
vocational technology districts, school districts, and
provisional college districts; and appoint governing board
members to those districts as listed on Attachments A
through E of the Order.

 

B.   Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Service Agreement No.
07052022 to Convenient Mobile Services, LLC in the
amount of $810, increasing the total amount of the
agreement to $89,019 for the hauling of fill material and
sand, the ground preparation, and portable arena
installation at the Gila County Fairgrounds.

 

C.   Approval to renew Agile Fleet Inc. Customer Purchase
Agreement under Sourcewell Contract No. 020221-AAC in
the amount of $53,281.97.

 

D.   Approval of FY 2023 Victims' Rights Program Award
Agreement No. AG No. 2023-004 between the Gila County
Attorney's Office and the Arizona Attorney General's Office
in the amount of $19,000 to cover the existing salary and
employee-related expenses for a full-time advocate for the
period July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2023.

 

E.   Acknowledgment of the 2021-2022 Annual Immunization
Reports submitted by Gila County Health Department per
Arizona Administrative Code R9-10-1004 for licensing rules
and regulations.

 

F.   Approval of the Board of Supervisors' August 2, 2022,
August 15, 2022, and August 30, 2022, meeting minutes.

 

G.   Approval of the monthly activity reports submitted by the
Human Resources Department for August 2022. 

 

 



H.   Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the
reporting period of August 1, 2022, through August 31,
2022.

 

I.   Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have
been approved by the County Manager for the month of
August 2022.

 

5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:   A call to the public is held for
public benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of
Supervisors on any issue within the jurisdiction of the
Board of Supervisors. Board members may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the agenda.
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute
§38-431.01(H), at the conclusion of an open call to the
public, individual members of the Board of Supervisors may
respond to criticism made by those who have addressed the
Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and
decision at a future date.

 

 

6. At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S.
§38-431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and
the County Manager may present a brief summary of
current events.  No action may be taken on the information
presented.

 

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928)
425-3231 AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL
7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO
(928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING
LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3).

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE
MEETING.



   
ARF-7504   Public Hearing     2. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/20/2022  
Submitted For: Melissa Henderson, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board 
Submitted By: Melissa Henderson, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Liquor License Application (County No. LL-22-05) - Sagan Lynn Simonis -
Stage Coach Bar & Grill

Background Information
Sagan Lynn Simonis submitted an application to the Arizona Department
of Liquor Licenses and Control (DLLC) for the transfer of a Series 6 Bar
License at Stage Coach Bar & Grill (formally known as the Roosevelt
Resort) located at Highway 188 & Main in Roosevelt. There is an existing
liquor license at the location of which the DLLC has issued Ms. Simonis
an interim permit to use the license to operate the location.

Per A.R.S. § 4-201(B), the DLLC has forwarded the application to the
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors. The notice of hearing before the Board
of Supervisors and the license application were posted "in a conspicuous
place on the front of the premises where the business is proposed to be
conducted, with a statement requiring any natural person who is a bona
fide resident residing or owning or leasing property within a one-mile
radius from the premises proposed to be licensed, and who is in favor of
or opposed to the issuance of the license, to file written arguments in
favor of or opposed to the issuance of the license with the Clerk of the
Board within twenty days after the posting..." The notice also outlines the
process whereby a bona fide resident may file a written protest to the
State Liquor Board and or request information regarding procedures
before the State Liquor Board and a notice of any State Liquor Board
hearings regarding this application. To date, the Clerk of the Board of
Supervisors has not received any written arguments on this application.

Evaluation
The notice of hearing before the Board of Supervisors and application was



The notice of hearing before the Board of Supervisors and application was
posted by a Gila County Sheriff's Deputy on August 17, 2022, and
removed on September 8, 2022. The Affidavit of Posting is on file at the
Clerk of the Board's office. An internal review has been conducted by the
Planning and Zoning Department, Health and Emergency Management
Department, and the Treasurer's Office. The department heads and
elected officials have confirmed that there are no pending issues relevant
to their area of responsibility.

Conclusion
The application has been reviewed by various Gila County departments
and the Gila County Treasurer; there are no pending County issues. The
Clerk of the Board did not receive written arguments from any of the bona
fide residents who reside or own or lease property within a one-mile radius
from the premises proposed to be licensed within twenty days after the
posting. The Board of Supervisors should proceed with a hearing to hear
from any of the bona fide residents residing or owning or leasing property
within a one-mile radius from the premises proposed to be licensed and
then recommend to the DLLC whether the DLLC should grant or deny the
license.

Recommendation
The Clerk of the Board of Supervisors recommends that the Board of
Supervisors proceed with the hearing on this application and then
recommend to the DLLC whether the Board should approve or deny the
license.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to consider a liquor license application
(County No. LL-22-05) submitted by Sagan Lynn Simonis for the transfer
of a Series 6 Bar License with an interim permit to operate at the Stage
Coach Bar & Grill, Highway 188 and Main in Roosevelt; and issue a
recommendation to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and
Control whether the license should be granted. (Melissa Henderson)

Attachments
Stage Coach Bar & Grill - Recommendation
Stage Coach Bar & Grill - Application
Stage Coach Bar & Grill-Affidavit of Posting
Stage Coach Bar & Grill - Com Service Response
Stage Coach Bar & Grill - H&E Response



Stage Coach Bar & Grill - Treasurer Response



Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control 
800 W Washington 5th Floor 

Phoenix, AZ  85007-2934 
www.azliquor.gov 

(602) 542-5141 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Local Governing Body Recommendation 
A.R.S. § 4-201(C) 

 
 
 
 
 

1. City or Town of: __________________________________________ Liquor License Application #:_______________________________ 
          (Circle one)                                                                                                                                                                                                                             (Arizona application #) 
 
2. County of: _______________________________________________ City/Town/County #: ______________________________________ 
 
3. If licensed establishment will operate within an “entertainment district” as described in A.R.S. §4-207(D)(2), 
 
______________________________________________________                   ______________________________________________________           
                                           (Name of entertainment district)                                                                                                (Date of resolution to create the entertainment district) 
 
A boundary map of entertainment district must be attached. 

4. The ___________________________________ at a ________________________________ meeting held on the __________________ of 
                                            (Governing body)                                                                     (Regular or special)                                                                                                    (Day) 
  
_____________________, ____________ considered the application of _______________________________________________________ 
                   (Month)                                 (Year)                                                                                                                                                   (Name of applicant) 
 
for a license to sell spirituous liquor at the premises described in application ______________________________________________, 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                          (Arizona liquor license application #) 
 
for the license series #: type ________________________________________________________________ as provided by A.R.S §4-201. 
                                                                                                                   (i.e.: series #10: beer & wine store) 

ORDER OF APPROVAL/DISAPPROVAL 
 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that the license APPLICATION OF __________________________________________________ 
                                                                                                                                          (Name of applicant) 

 
to sell spirituous liquor of the class and in the manner designated in the application, is hereby recommended   

 
for _____________________________________________________. 

     (Approval, disapproval, or no recommendation) 

TRANSMISSION OF ORDER TO STATE 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that a certified copy of this order be immediately transmitted to the State Department 

of Liquor, License Division, 800 W Washington, 5th Floor, Phoenix, Arizona. 
 

Dated at _______________________ on ________________, _________________, __________. 
                                                                              (Location)                                                (Day)                                  (Month)                           (Year) 
 
      ____________________________________________                       ___________________________________________ 
                             (Printed name of city, town or county clerk)                                                                                     (Signature of city, town or county clerk) 

   8/21/2015                                                                                     Page 1 of 1 
Individuals requiring ADA accommodations please call (602)542-9027 



• •
State of Arizona

Department of Liquor Licenses and Control

Created 08/05/2022 @ 10:24:37 AM

Local Governing Body Report

LICENSE

Number:
Name:
State:
Issue Date:
Original Issue Date:
Location:

Mailing Address:

Phone:
Alt. Phone:
Email:

06040023 Type:
STAGE COACH BAR & GRILL
Pending

Expiration Date:
09/14/1982

HWY 188 & MAIN
ROOSEVELT, AZ 85545
USA
126 S DIAMOND KEY COURT
GILBERT, AZ 85233
USA
(602)568-3215
(520)553-5180
SAGANSIMONIS@YAHOO.COM

Currently, this license has pending applications.

006 BAR

06/30/2023

AGENT

Name:
Gender:
Correspondence Address:

Phone:
Alt. Phone:
Email:

SAGAN LYNN SIMONIS
Female
126 S DIAMOND KEY COURT
GILBERT, AZ 85233
USA
(602)568-3215
(520)553-5180
SAGANSIMONIS@YAHOO.COM

OWNER

Name:
Contact Name:
Type:
AZ CC File Number:
Incorporation Date:
Correspondence Address:

Phone:
Alt. Phone:
Email:

Officers / Stockholders

ZORROB LLC
S.AGAN LYNN S1MONIS
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
2391725
07/02/2022
126 S DIAMOND KEY COURT
GILBERT, AZ 85233
USA
(520)553-5180

State of Incorporation: AZ

SAGANSIMONIWYAHOO.COM

Page 1 o14



•

Name: Title: % Interest:

SAGAN LYNN SIMONIS Managing Member 100.00

ZORROB LLC - Managing Member
Name: SAGAN LYNN S1MONIS
Gender: Female
Correspondence Address: 126 S DIAMOND KEY COURT

GILBERT, AZ 85233
USA

Phone: (602)568-3215
Alt. Phone: (520)553-5180
Email: SAGANSIMONIS@YAHOO.COM

Page 2 of 4



APPLICATION INFORMATION

Application Number: 204968
Application Type: Owner Transfer
Created Date: 08/03/2022

QUESTIONS & ANSWERS

006 Bar

1) Are you applying for an Interim Permit (INP)?
Yes
A Document of type INTERIM PERMIT (INP) NOTARY PAGE is required.

4) Does the Business location address have a street address for a City or Town but is actually in the
boundaries of another City, Town or Tribal Reservation?

No

8) Did the Premises phone number change?
Yes
What is the new phone number?
602-568-3215

10) Provide name, address, and distance of nearest school and church. (If less than one (1) mile note
footage)

CHARLES BEJERANO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 4635 S RAGUS RD. GLOBE, AZ 85501
30 MILES

ROOSEVELET BAPTIST CHURCH AZ -188 ROOSEVELT, AZ 85545 2 MILES
11) Are you one of the following? Please indicate below.

Property Tenant
Sub -tenant
Property Owner
Property Purchaser
Property Management Company

PROPERTY TENANT
12) Is there a penalty if lease is not fulfilled?

Yes
What is the penalty?
$3,500.00

13) What is the total money borrowed for the business not including the lease?
Please list lenders/people owed money for the business.

ZERO
14) Is there a drive through window on the premises?

No
15) If there is a patio please indicate contiguous or non-contiguous within 30 feet.

CONTIGUOUS PATIO
16) Is your licensed premises now closed due to construction, renovation or redesign or rebuild?

No
23) Total Price paid for Series 6 Bar, Series 7 Beer & Wine Bar or Series 9 Liquor Store (license only)

$30,000

Page 3 of 4



• •

- Incident Date

- Fine

- Fine Payment ($250.00)

Case Closed

Counts

COMPLIANCE ACTIONS

000323-20
05/08/2020
06/24/2020
07/09/2020

07/09/2020 -
Violations

Statute
4-202.0

6/8/2020 Incident date
6/24/2020 Mail In Consent issued/mailed, $250.00 Penalty fine assessed
7/8/2020 Signed Mail In Consent received
7/9/2020 $250.00 Fine paid, Receipt #R42022

Description
No managers agreement form on file

Page 4 of 4



•
State of Arizona

Department of Liquor Licenses and Control

Created 08/05/2022 @ 10:24:22 AM

Local Governing Body Report

(R

LICENSE

Number:
Name:
State:
Issue Date:
Original Issue Date:
Location:

Mailing Address:

Phone:
Alt. Phone:
Email:

INP040019588 Type:
STAGE COACH BAR & GRILL
Active
08/05/2022
08/05/2022
HWY 188 & MAIN

ROOSEVELT, AZ 85545
USA
126 S DIAMOND KEY COURT
GILBERT, AZ 85233
USA
(602)568-3215
(520)553-5180
SAGANSIMONIS@YAHOO.COM

INP INTERIM PERMIT

Expiration Date: 11/18/2022

AGENT

Name: SAGAN LYNN SIMONIS
Gender: Female
Correspondence Address: 126 S DIAMOND KEY COURT

GILBERT, AZ 85233
USA
(602)568-3215
(520)553-5180
SAGANSIMONIS@YAHOO.COM

Phone:
Alt. Phone:
Email:

OWNER
Name:
Contact Name:
Type:
AZ CC File Number:
In Date:
Correspondence Address:

Phone:
Alt. Phone:
Emai

Officers / Stockholders

ZORROB LLC
SAGAN LYNN S1MONIS
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
2391725 State of Incorporation: AZ
07/02/2022
126 S DIAMOND KEY COURT
GILBERT, AZ 85233
USA
(520)553-5180

SAGANSIMONIS@YAHOO.COM

Page 1 of 2



• •
Name: Title: % Interest:
SAGAN LYNN SIMON1S Managing Member 100.00

ZORROB LLC - Managing Member
Name: SAGAN LYNN SIMONIS
Gender: Female
Correspondence Address: 126 S DIAMOND KEY COURT

GILBERT, AZ 85233
USA
(602)568-3215
(520)553-5180
SAGANSIMONIS@YAHOO.COM

Phone:
Alt. Phone:
Email:

APPLICATION INFORMATION

Application Number: 204969
Application Type: New Application
Created Date: 08/03/2022

QUESTIONS & ANSWERS

INP Interim Permit

1) Enter License Number currently at location

2) Is the license currently in use? \te-5

4 6(040023

3) Will you please submit section 5, page 6, of the license application when you reach the upload page?

Page 2 of 2



4 6 - -

• 4 4 - _ t ; S I S e

0 - . 22 R 3 LicrSicia 2 14

IJ I I
tc—p ,

,
A

... L i 1 1 V i

t— :---,- - - - ' -- ‘'-' /.---c f

,

st- -sc
-14:4

1.-

\ (--

4 / 1
t ; A )

/4-4 -
A,4D

„
'c6 i-7 N -....c,

--:- -44.--:

7 )

,

L. ..
/ f



'03 p PM- - •

Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control
800 W Washington 5th Floor

Phoenix, AZ 85007-2934
www.azliquor.gov

(602) 542-5141

QUESTIONNAIRE
A.R.S.§4-202, 4-210

Type or Print with Black Ink

The fees allowed by R19-1-102 will be charged for all dishonored checks.

ATTENTION APPLICANT: This is a legally binding document. Please type or print in black ink. An investigation of your
background will be conducted. Incomplete applications will not be accepted. False or misleading answers may result in the
denial or revocation of a license or permit and could result in criminal prosecution.

Attention local governments: Social security and birth date information is confidential. This information may be given to law
enforcement agencies for background checks only.

QUESTIONNAIRE IS TO BE COMPLETED BY EACH CONTROLLING PERSON, AGENT AND MANAGER BEING DISCLOSED TO THE DEPARTMENT. EACH
PERSON COMPLETING THIS FORM MUST SUBMIT A BLUE OR BLACK LINED FINGERPRINT CARD ALONG WITH A $22 FEE. FINGERPRINTS MUST BE DONE
BY A LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY OR BONA FIDE FINGERPRINT SERVICE. FOR AN ADDITIONAL $13 FEE, FINGERPRINTS MAY BE DONE AT THE
DEPARTMENT OF LIQUOR WHEN ACCOMPANIED BY A COMPLETED APPLICATION.

1. Check the
Appropriate
Box

Liquor License#: go to w
aConirolling Person gent Premises Manager

(complete all questions except #12)
,

2. Name: -- .) I ' ( 1\ t‘ 5aeyvv t tri A B i r t h  D a t e : i m p
Last First '

013. Social Security #: )river License#: State: (t-e(70 ,
4. Place of birth: i\W3Pt

1\2- (..Ae ft z in#
Height: 3 . 1 Weight: I L 5 Eyes: 8 I- Hair: ?P

City State COUNTRY (not county)

5. Name of current/most recent spouse: Birth Date:
First (NOT a public record)

-
/

/
6. Are you a bona fide resident of Arizona? Ekes IThlo If yes, what is your date of residency: Ot- i i t

/ el
(
/ c - C 7

0

S535 ,  „ C ,̂
7. Daytime telephone number:po.) 5 35-1 8-a E-mail address: ggitto iienuniWIC

Aid
nA8. Business Name: artai ' " 'Business Phone:VOZ/SZer iD

9. Business Location Address:

Last Middle

it!Su_
Sheet (do not use PO Box) City State

)005,LL,1,1-
County Zip

10. List your employment or type of business during the past five (5) years. If unemployed, retired, or student, list residence address.
FROM ' TO DESCRIBE POSITION OR BUSINESS EMPLOYERS NAME OR NAME OF BUSINESS

Month/Year Month/Year (Street Address, City, State & Zip)

/ C

,

13.i ( L 7 i 1-46(11
le

CURRENT ( 27p1 f a (  i _ oryt e l 1 4 1 f ? 0  ( \ g•. 0 ( h i e l l . M N
/ 1 0 0206

(

0 1 020,4 1 ke-5 fro L, x•A-1-- 1I f
11

r P nt__ iv 060( L
a t( A r A avulc-tf csa.x(7 ; lenc 6013 9 1 ,101 h--,-/ C

g i aoick y i , sr--0-..ctpa,tjuilbev4--4 . r - 5061--tda,l-e ,1 ey(1
914 tio ( ci1' A61 S' . Mia.( i

, Alt,
cC IIrld-P I Plre)V1 (71 G t

11,

(ATTACH ADDITIONAL SHEET IF NECESSARY) ) r e P T C

Co
P I A Z

viit gait!
La 02,

y515
9301 c-tvic-rff(4

1/11/2018 Page 1 of 2
Individuals requiring ADA accommodations please call (602)542-2999



11. Provide your residence address information for the last five (51 years: A.R.S. 64-202(D) L L Li Mffiiri

FROM
Month/Year

TO
Month/Year RESIDENTIAL Street Address

CURRENT
V 6 4)\ 5 LI / S+ plice ,r\ 1(-̀z

(ATTACH ADDITIONAL SHEET IF NECESSARY)

12. As a Controlling Person or Agent, will you be physically present and operating the licensed premises?
If you answered YES, then answer #13 below. If NO, skip to #14.

13. Have you attended a DLLC approved Basic & Management Liquor Law Training Course within the past 3
years?

14. Have you been cited, arrested, indicted, convicted, or summoned into court for violation of ANY criminal
law or ordinance, regardless of the disposition, even if dismissed or expunged, within the past five (5) years?

15. Are there ANY administrative law citations, compliance actions or consents, criminal arrests, indictments or
summonses pending against you? (Do not include civil traffic tickets.) A.R.S.§4-202,4-210

EtYesEI\Jo

X e s 0 N o

ElY eA3r1 o

OYesAlo

16. Has anyone EVER obtained a judgement against you the subject of which involved fraud or misrepresentation? j ir-Ive s A o

17. Have you had a liquor application or license rejected, denied, revoked or suspended in or outside of Arizona
within the last five years? A.R.S.§4-202(D)

18. Has an entity in which you are or have been a controlling person had an application or license rejected,
denied, revoked or suspended in or outside of Arizona within the last five years? A.R.S.§4-202(D)

Dye

ElYesalo

If you answered "YES" to any Question 14 through 18 YOU MUST attach a signed statement.
Give complete details including dates, agencies involved and dispositions.

CHANGES TO QUESTIONS 14-18 MAY NOT BE ACCEPTED

I (Print Full Name)

Premises Manag
correct and

Signature:

f4tIngyis applic
ete, to the best

NOTARY

1.,e1/ 4 -hereby declare that I am the Agent/ Controlling Person /
Ion. I have\.caeci this dorelument and verify the contents and all statements are true,
t my knowledge.

AA/( y\_•,, v -
My Commission Expires on: _ ' I

4:„.5,-,, .s--.....1- '_Joi6LI iitill
l c , . . I No4ry Public -stateotArizorier4, -q - MAR1COPA COMM(

- -. .it, c.--1--- •:'..ssion tt Fr1- 9')
r toj _ 1

MN

State of 1 r t County of
The foregoilfig instrument was acknowle

Day

s

ged before me this

Signaturesof Notary

Year

t/
The Licensee has authorized the person named on this questionnaire to act as manager for the above License.

PRINT NAME: SIGNATURE:

1/H/2018 Page 2 of 2
Individuals requiring ADA accommodations please call (602)542-2999



Os ()\-1 ‘.k\r/• 0-<-3, -tkva---Lksrets-,„ _ (-)% a 5L(
_ao\<c noo-en ‹ Az (8-c3oLc

CC)

- 9

rt.3

U I



• •
State of Arizona

Department of Liquor Licenses and Control
800 W. Washington 5th Floor

Phoenix, AZ 85007
(602) 542-5141

ARIZONA STATEMENT OF CITIZENSHIP
OR ALIEN STATUS FOR STATE PUBLIC BENEFITS

7,r3 n '71: L1qr,cid1nP!i 5 5e

Title IV of the federal Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act of 1996 (the "Act"), 8 U.S.C. § 1621,
provides that, with certain exceptions, only United States citizens, United States non -citizen nationals, non-exempt "qualified
aliens" (and sometimes only particular categories of qualified aliens), nonimmigrant, and certain aliens paroled into the
United States are eligible to receive state, or local public benefits. With certain exceptions, a professional license and
commercial license issued by a State agency is a State public benefit.

Arizona Revised Statutes § 41-1080 requires, in general, that a person applying for a license must submit documentation to
the license agency that satisfactorily demonstrates the applicant's presence in the United States is authorized under federal
law.

Directions: All applicants must complete Sections I, II, and IV. Applicants who are not U.S. citizens or nationals must also
complete Section III.

Submit this completed form and a copy of one or more document(s) from the attached "Evidence of U.S. Citizenship, U.S.
National Status, or Alien Status" with your application for license or renewal. If the document you submit does not contain a
photograph, you must also provide a government issued document that contains your photograph. You must submit
supporting legal documentation (i.e. marriage certificate) if the name on your evidence is not the same as your current
legal name.

SECTION I — APPLICANT INFORMATION

INDIVIDUAL OWNER/AGENT NAME (Print or type)
3ftc.)

ek-K, n loll tS

SECTION ll - CITIZENSHIP OR NATIONAL STATUS DECLARATION

Are you a citizen or national of the United States?

If Yes, indicate place of birth:

City PIA•t'S A

YiYes FIN°

State (or equivalent) Country or Territory tk.s

If you answered Yes, 1) Attach a legible copy of a document from the attached list.

2) Name of document: :6)0 N -R . 170 )( t
GoGo to Section IV.

If you answered No, you must complete Section III and IV.

9/17/2018 Page 1 of 3
Individuals reduirinq ADA accommodations please call (6021542-9027



SECTION III - ALIEN STATUS DECLARATION - _ • -

To be completed by applicants who are not citizens or nationals of the United States. Please indicate alien status by
checking the appropriate box. Attach a legible copy of a document from the attached list or other document as
evidence of your status.

P\--R V112-1Gizt,s
Name ofof document provided

Qualified Alien Status (8 U.S.C. §§ 1621 (a) (1),-1641(b) and (c))

El1. An alien lawfully admitted for permanent residence under the Immigration and Nationality Act (INA)

n  2 . An alien who is granted asylum under Section 208 of the INA.

n 3. A refugee admitted to the United States under Section 207 of the INA.

0 4. An alien paroled into the United States for at least one year under Section 212(d)(5) of the INA.

El 5. An alien whose deportation is being withheld under Section 243(h) of the INA.

El 6. An alien granted conditional entry under Section 203(a) (7) of the INA as in effect prior to April 1,1980.

E l 7. An alien who is a Cuban/Haitian entrant.

1- 18. An alien who has, or whose child or child's parent is a "battered alien" or an alien subject to extreme cruelty in

the United States.

Nonimmigrant Status (8 U.S.C. § 1621 (a) (2))

r i 9. A nonimmigrant under the Immigration and Nationality Act [8 U.S.0 § 1101 et seq.] Non immigrants are persons
who have temporary status for a specific purpose. See 8 U.S.0 § 1101(0)(15).

Alien Paroled into the United States for Less Than One Year (8 U.S.C. § 1621(a) (3))

T710. An alien paroled into the United States for less than one year under Section 212(d) (5) of the INA

Other Persons (8 U.S.0 § 1621 (c) (2) (A) and (C)

r i 11. A nonimmigrant whose visa for entry is related to employment in the United States, or

El 12. A citizen of a freely associated state, if section 141 of the applicable compact of free association approved in
Public Law 99-239 or 99-658 (or a successor provision) is in effect [Freely Associated States include the Republic
of the Marshall Islands, Republic of Palau and the Federate States of Micronesia, 48 U.S.C. § 1901 etseq.j;

1- 113. A foreign national not physically present in the United States.

Otherwise Lawfully Present

El 14. A person not described in categories 1-13 who is otherwise lawfully present in the United States.

PLEASE NOTE: The federal Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act
may make persons who fall into this category ineligible for licensure. See 8 U.S.C. § 1621(a).

9/17/2018 Page 2 of 3
Individuals reauirind ADA accommodations please call (6021542-9027



SECTION IV - DECLARATION '72 i i. Li9rildjA1ri PM ? F-6

All applicants must complete this section.
I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the state of Arizona that the answers and evidence I have given are
true and correct to the best of my knowledge.

Ptyk-iv is
Individual O r/Agent Printed Name

E1A1 ti
I /.1  • EN

I OifThfliArigncW

EVIDENCE OF U.S. CITIZENSHIP, U.S. NATIONAL STATUS, OR ALIEN STATUS

You must submit supporting legal documentation (i.e. marriage certificate) if the
name on your evidence is not the same as your current legal name.

Evidence showing authorized presence in the United State includes the following:

1. An Arizona driver license issued after 1996 or an Arizona non -operating identification card.

2. A driver license issued by a state that verifies lawful presence in the United States.

3. A birth certificate or delayed birth certificate showing birth in one of the 50 states, the District of Columbia,

Puerto Rico (on or after January 13, 1941), Guam, the U.S. Virgin Islands (on or after January 17, 1917),

American Samoa, or the Northern Mariana Islands (on or after November 4, 1986, Northern Mariana Islands

local time)

4. A United States certificate of birth abroad.

5. A United States passport. ***Passport must be signed***

6. A foreign passport with a United States visa.

7. An 1-94 form with a photograph.

8. A United States citizenship and immigration services employment authorization document or refugee travel

document.

9. A United States certificate of naturalization.

10. A United States certificate of citizenship.

11. A tribal certificate of Indian blood.

12. A tribal or bureau of Indian affairs affidavit of birth.

13. Any other license that is issued by the federal government, any other state government, an agency of this

state or a political subdivision of this state that requires proof of citizenship or lawful alien status before issuing

the license.

9/17/2018 Page 3 of 3
Individuals requiring ADA accommodations please call (602)542-9027



•
7 0 0 •—tL0 L Licr.ildloin PM 2 55

DRIVER LICENSE USA

NOT FOR FEDERAL IDENTIFICATION

CLASS D,.ENDNONE
12 REST NONE

1 MONIS
2 SAGAN LYNN
3 6812 S 41ST ST

PHOENIX, AZ 85042-5111

lb UP 06/29/2053 4a !SS 09/21:1/2019
is SEX F 16EYES BLU
16 HOT 5%09" 19 HAIR BLN
17 WGT 165 lb

5 DC 4016MV610S1108S8

jr1111111111111111E1111111111111111111111111111

CLASS: D -Operator
ENDORSEMENTS: RESTRICTIONS:
None None

Rev 02/14/2014

You Most Report a
Change of Address
Within 10 Days

FiViNitt,im l



Certificate # AZB-0N-23386
• •

.3.7j Q 7 1 q r i n P M

Certificate of Completion
For

Title 4 BASIC Liquor Law Training

IE] On -sale

El Off -sale

CI On- and off -sale

A Certificate of Completion must be on a form provided by the Arizona Department of Liquor. Certificates are completed by a state-
approved training provider and, when issued, the Certificate is signed by the course participant.

The State requires BASIC Title 4 training only as a prerequisite for MANAGEMENT Title 4 training or as a result of a liquor law violation. Persons
required to have BASIC Title 4 training are listed at the base of this Certificate. Licensees sometimes require BASIC Title 4 Training a condition of
employment.

A replacement Certificate of Completion for Title 4 training must be available through the training provider for two years after the training
completion date.

Student Information

Sagan
Full Name/

Siofn a

imonis

10/07/1,0191 10/06/2022
Training Completion Date Certificate Expiration Date

(three years from completion date)

Training Provider Information

360training.com Inc.
Company Name

6801 N Capital of Texas Hwy, Bldg I, Suite 250, Austin, TX 78731

Mailing Address

(877) 881-2235
Daytime Contact Phone Number

Samantha Montalbano , certify that the above named individual did successfully complete
Instructor Name (please print)

Title 4 BASIC Training in accordance with A.R.S. §4-112(G)(2) and Arizona Administrative Code (A.A.C.)R19-1-103
using training course content and materials approved by the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control.
I understand that misuse of this Certificate of Completion can result in the revocation of State -approval for the Title
4 Training Provider named in this section as provided by A.A.C. R19 -1-103(E) and (F).

Instructor Signatre
10/07/2019

Day Mo Year

Persons required to complete BASIC & MANAGEMENT Title 4 training: 1) owner(s) actively involved in the daily business operations of a liquor-
licensed business of a series listed below

2) licensees, agents and managers actively involved in the daily business
operations of a liquor -licensed business of a series listed below

In -state Microbrewery (series 3)
Conveyance (series 8)
Restaurant (series 12)

Government (series 5)
Liquor Store (series 9)
In -state Farm Winery (series 13)

Bar (series 6)
Private Club (series 14)

Beer & Wine Bar (series 7)
Hotel/Motel w/restaurant (series 11)
Beer & Wine Store (series 10)

Liquor license applications (initial and renewal) are not complete until valid Certificates of Completion for all required persons have been
submitted to the Department of Liquor.

The questionnaire (which designates a manager to a location) and the agent change form (which assigns a new agent to active liquor
licenses) are not complete until valid Certificates of Completion for all required persons have been submitted to the Department of Liquor.

July 11,2013



, •
22 8 3 LicrAdmin PM 7 ;54

BILL OF SALE
IN CONSIDERATION OF THE SUM OF:

***TEN DOLLARS AND NO CENTS***lawful currency of the United States of America, and other valuable
consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged.

This BILL OF SALE (this "Agreement"), dated as of July 14, 2022 is by and among Roosevelt Resort LLC,
an Arizona Limited Liability Company (Seller), and Zorrob LLC, an Arizona Limited Liability Company
(Buyer).

RECITALS

A. Seller and Buyer are parties to an Asset Purchase Agreement executed June 29, 2022
(the "Purchase Agreement"), pursuant to which, among other things, Buyer has agreed to purchase
certain assets of Seller upon the terms and conditions specified therein.

B. This Agreement is being executed and delivered in order to affect the transfer to Buyer of
such assets as set forth in the Purchase Agreement.

AGREEMENTS

In consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants and agreements set forth in the
Purchase Agreement, the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used in this Agreement and not otherwise defined herein shall
have the meaning ascribed thereto in the Purchase Agreement.

2. Sale of Assets. Seller, in accordance with and subject to the terms of the Purchase Agreement,
hereby sells, conveys, assigns, transfers and delivers to Buyer, and Buyer, in accordance with and
subject to the Purchase Agreement, hereby purchases and acquires from Seller, all of Seller's right, title
and interest of every kind and nature, that certain business known as Roosevelt Lake Restaurant/Bar,
presently located at 358 Stagecoach Trail, Roosevelt, AZ 85545, including that State of Arizona
Liquor License #06040023 and that certain equipment per the attached Exhibit "A", which exhibit
is incorporated herein by reference. FURTHERMORE, Seller warrants that he, she or they are the
lawful owner of said personal property and hereby certifies, under oath, that he, she or they have good
right to sell the same as aforesaid, and that the above described property is free and clear of all claims,
liens and other encumbrances whatsoever, EXCEPT, as specified herein. Seller further agrees to
warrant and defend same against the lawful claims and demands of all persons whomsoever.

3. Counterparts. This Agreement is executed pursuant to the Purchase Agreement and may be
executed in two counterparts, each of which as so executed shall be deemed to be an original but both of
which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. A facsimile signature shall be acceptable
as an original for all purposes.

4. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon Buyer and
Seller, and their respective successors and assigns, but shall not create any right of subrogation or other
right on the part of any other person.

5. Amendment, Waiver or Termination. This Agreement cannot be amended, waived or
terminated except by a writing signed by the parties hereto.

6. Governing Law. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
LAWS OF THE STATE OF ARIZONA.

File No.: 1754910 Page 1 of 2



s •
7-1 LigrAdmin Pt1? 54

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Buyer and Seller have caused this Bill of Sale to be executed
individually or in their respective corporate names by their respective proper officers thereunto duly
authorized, as of the date first written above.

Dated: July 14, 2022

The effective date of this Bill Of Sale shall be July 15, 2022.

SELLER:

Roosevelt Resort LLC, an Arizona Limited
Liability Company
r—DocuSigned by:

VW. akt,SIMAI-
A31.T4DA70314F1

Dean Chesnut, Manager

State of Arizona

County of Maricopa

BUYER:

Zorrob
Comp

Sagan

an Arizona Limited Liability

V A i

J A

ZPir

•••

On 14th day of July, 2022, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, personally appeared Sagan Lynn
Simonis, Manager, of Zorrob LLC, an Arizona Limited Liability Company personally known to me (or
proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed
to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their
authorized capacity(ies) and that his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the Berfon(s) or the entity
upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. / 7  / /

6frP4sii,4

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

My Commission Expires: /

AMY JO BOEHNKE
Notary Public- State of Arizona

MAR ICOPA COUNTY
Commission 0 584084
Expires July 30, 2024

File No.: 1754910 Page 2 of 2



EXHIBIT "A' RoanPR Lake Restaurant & Bar - Equipment List

Dining
2 6ft pool tables
33 Tables
3 Large circular tables
90 Green chairs
8 Wooden chairs
2 Childs high chairs
12 Wooden cushioned chairs
10 High top bar stools

Bar
2 SANYO 50" TVs
1 SOMY 40" TV
1 Single door glass refrigerator
1 SS 3 compartment sink
1 Two door top slide refrigerator
1 SS jockey box

Single door refrigerator

Kitchen
SS hand sink

1 VULCAN flat top grill w/ oven
1 IMPERIAL 4 burner w/ oven
1 PITCO deep fryer
1 AVANTCO deep fryer
1 WOLF flat top grill
1 8ft hood w/ ansel — (Landlord Fixture)
1 4ft hood w/ ansel — (Landlord Fixture)
1 AVANTCO 3 door sandwich prep
1 SS 3 compartment sink w overhead sprayer
1 PEPSI soda machine
1 CURTIS coffee/tea maker
1 OSTER microwave
1 M3 3 door upright refrigerator
1 TRUE single door upright freezer
1 SS 4 compartment sink
1 ICE 0 MAT1C ice machine
1 Meat slicer
1 15x10 walk in refrigerator — (Landlord Fixture)

Patio
6 Patio tables
8 Green chairs
20 Metal patio chairs

Fire pit
1 TRAEGER smoker/grill
1 CAMP CHEF smoker/grill

Disclaimer: The information contained herein was provided at the time of listing this business for
sale and may change during the regular course of operations, therefore, is not guaranteed
accurate. Potential buyers are hereby advised to independently verify this information as part of
the due diligence process.

DS

icir,41foin Hi











   
ARF-7512   Regular Agenda Item     3. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/20/2022  
Submitted For: Jonathan Bearup, Court Administrator 
Submitted By: Cassie Ornelas, Deputy Court Administrator
Department: Superior Court Division: Superior Court Administration

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of the Superior Court FY23 "Fill the Gap" Grant Application

Background Information
In 2015, the Court Administration and limited jurisdiction courts of Gila
County developed an approach to proactively begin the movement towards
digital case management. The Fill the Gap grant funding has been utilized
for the past seven years to operate the "Enhanced Scanning Program" in
which limited jurisdiction courts were provided with additional scanning
stations.

Evaluation
During the seven-year course of the program, the limited jurisdiction
courts of the County (Globe Justice Court, Miami Magistrate Court,
Winkelman Magistrate Court, Hayden Magistrate Court, Globe Magistrate
Court, Payson Justice Court, Payson Municipal Court, and Star Valley
Magistrate Court) all received funding for supplemental scanners on an
annual basis and initiated "paperless" business processes. In August
2019, the limited jurisdiction courts received the new digital case
management system, Arizona Judicial Automated Case System (AJACS).
The Enhanced Scanning Program has allowed Gila County courts to
develop a substantial digital case library. The courts would like to
continue with this grant-funded program as the additional scanning
devices greatly increase capacity and have become integral to digital case
processing.

Conclusion
In order to continue advancing automated court operations, and to
maintain the current level of digital data entry, Court Administration
believes it is in the best interest of the County to continue operating a
supplemental digital scanning program in all limited jurisdiction courts.



Recommendation
The Superior Court recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve
the grant application which would allow the scanning efforts to continue.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Superior Courts'
submission of the FY23 "Fill the Gap" Grant Application to the
Administrative Office of the Courts for enhanced criminal case scanning
in the amount of $5,653.69. (Cassie Ornelas)

Attachments
FY23 Fill the Gap Application















   

ARF-7489   Regular Agenda Item     3. B.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/20/2022  

Submitted For: Michael O'Driscoll, Director 
Submitted By: Kayle Lathrop, Health Equity Manager
Department: Health & Emergency Management Division: Prevention Services

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of Amendment No. 2 of Contract No. CTR055335 - Gila County - Healthy
People Healthy Communities

Background Information
The Arizona Department of Health Services (ADHS) has integrated multiple grants into
one Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) titled Healthy People Healthy Communities.
Implementation of this IGA was completed in three (3) phases.

Phase 1: The Tobacco Free, Chronic Disease, and Health in Arizona Policy Initiative
(HAPI) grants were integrated and implemented on July 1, 2015.

Phase 2: The Public Health Services block grants were integrated and implemented on
October 1, 2015.

Phase 3: The Teen Pregnancy Prevention, Family Planning, and Maternal and Child
Health grants were integrated and completed on June 30, 2016.

The original Contract No. ADHS15-094962 was signed by the Board of Supervisors on
June 9, 2015, and then due to a system change at the Arizona Department of Health
Services, the contract number was changed to No. ADHS16-098369 and approved by
the Board of Supervisors on September 15, 2015, under Amendment No. 1. The
Arizona Department of Health Services integrated the Phase 3 grants into one contract
entitled "Healthy People Healthy Communities."

In previous years, the Healthy People Healthy Communities Intergovernmental
Agreement included Tobacco Free Environments, Teen Pregnancy Prevention, Youth
Mental Health First Aid Initiative, Health in Arizona Policy Initiative, Public Health
Improvement, and Suicide Mortality Review. This fiscal year, Public Health
Improvement will move to another block grant Intergovernmental Agreement, the
Maternal Child Health, Healthy Arizona Families Intergovernmental Agreement. This
Healthy People Healthy Communities Intergovernmental Agreement is for the amount
of $395,063 for FY23.

Evaluation
The Gila County Health and Emergency Management Department will implement



The Gila County Health and Emergency Management Department will implement
evidence-based strategies at the local community level that: 

Promote and implement healthy communities’ interventions that target policy,
system, and environmental approaches that will shape the communities in which
we live, learn, work, and play; and
Promote and implement healthy people interventions that target individual
behavior and support making healthy choices.

Conclusion
Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. CTR055335 - Gila County - Healthy
People Healthy Communities will further efforts to impact policy, system, and
environmental change at the community, organizational, individual, and policy levels
in order to promote county-wide health changes so that public health impact will be
maximized.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Health and Emergency Management Department
Director that the Board of Supervisors approves Amendment No. 2 to Contract No.
CTR055335 - Gila County - Healthy People Healthy Communities. This will further our
efforts to impact policy, system, and environmental change at the community,
organizational, individual, and policy levels in order to promote county-wide health
changes so that public health impact will be maximized.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 2 to Contract No.
CTR055335 - Gila County - Healthy People Healthy Communities in the amount of
$395,063 beginning July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2023, with the Arizona Department of
Health Services. (Josh Beck)

Attachments
CTR055335 Gila A2
CTR055335 Gila A1 Executed



 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

 

Amendment  

 
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH SERVICES 
150 18th Ave Suite 530 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

 

Contract No.: CTR055335 Amendment No: 2 Procurement Officer: 
Kristine Newton 

 

1 
 

Healthy People Healthy Communities 
 

It is mutually agreed that the Intergovernmental Agreement referenced is amended as follows: 
 

1. Pursuant to Terms and Conditions, Provision Six (6) Contract Changes, Section 6.1 Amendments, Purchase Orders and 
Change Orders, the following changes are made under this Amendment Two (2): 
 
1.1. The Scope of Work is revised and replaced by the Scope of Work of this Amendment Two (2); 

 
1.2. The Price Sheet is revised and replaced by the Price Sheet of this Amendment Two (2). In APP, the “Price List” Tab 

of the Contract will be revised to reflect the revised pricing upon execution of this Amendment Two (2); and 
 

1.3. Exhibit A, B, C, D and E are revised and replaced by the Exhibits included in this Amendment Two (2). 
 

ALL CHANGES ARE REFLECTED IN RED 
 

All other provisions of this agreement remain unchanged. 
   
Contractor Name: Gila County  Authorized Signature 

5515 South Apache Avenue   
Address:   Print Name 

Globe AZ 85501   
City State Zip  Title 

 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952, the undersigned public agency attorney has 
determined that this Intergovernmental Agreement is in proper form and is 
within the powers and authority granted under the laws of Arizona 

This Intergovernmental Agreement Amendment shall be 
effective the date indicated.  The Public Agency is hereby 
cautioned not to commence any billable work or provide 
any material, service or construction under this IGA until 
the IGA has been executed by an authorized ADHS 
signatory.  
 
State of Arizona 

Signature Date  
Signed this                         day of                              
20              . 

  
Print Name  

Procurement Officer 
  

Contract No.: CTR055335, which is an Agreement between public agencies, 
has been reviewed pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952 by the undersigned Assistant 
Attorney, who has determined that it is in proper form and is within the powers 
and authority granted under the laws of the State of Arizona.  

 
 

 

Signature Date 

 Assistant Attorney General 
Print Name 



 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

 

Amendment  

 
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH SERVICES 
150 18th Ave Suite 530 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

 

Contract No.: CTR055335 Amendment No: 2 Procurement Officer: 
Kristine Newton 

 

2 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 

1. Background 
 
1.1. The vision of the Arizona Department of Health Services (ADHS) is “Health and Wellness for all Arizonans.” 

In December of 2013, ADHS completed a State Health Assessment (SHA). The SHA utilized Community 
Health Assessments conducted by local county health departments to assess the needs and capacity of 
public health in Arizona. This work resulted in the identification of fifteen (15) leading public health issues 
affecting the health of our communities. With stakeholder input, the Arizona State Health Improvement Plan 
(AzHIP) created a roadmap to improve the health of Arizonans over the next five (5) years through the 
development of partnerships and resources to work collectively on shared health improvement goals and 
strategies. This is how the original Healthy People Healthy Communities Intergovernmental Agreement 
(HPHC IGA) was born. 

 
1.2. These goals and strategies were accomplished through a collaborative approach that engages local, state 

and national partners to improve the health and well-being of Arizonans. Collectively, evidence-based 
preventative health strategies were implemented, designed to impact health through health policy, system 
and environmental change initiatives, health promotion and education for individuals and communities, and 
enhancement of the public health infrastructure. 
 

1.3. Implementation of the original IGA was completed in three (3) phases that occurred in the first year of the 
IGA to accommodate funding cycles. Phase I included Tobacco, Chronic Disease, and the Health in Arizona 
Policy Initiative (HAPI), and began in July 2015. Phase II included the Public Health and Health Services 
Block Grant/Accreditation and began in October 2015. Phase III included Teen Pregnancy Prevention, Family 
Planning, and Maternal and Child Health, and began in January 2016. All three (3) phases were operational 
and fully implemented in years two (2) through five (5) with annual start dates of July 1st. 
 

1.4. In July 2020, the original HPHC IGA was split apart and two (2) separate IGAs were formed; a fixed price 
contract and a cost-based reimbursement contract. The programs to be included in this fixed price contract 
are: Tobacco Cessation and Prevention, Teen Pregnancy Prevention and its Youth Mental Health First Aid 
Initiative, Health in Arizona Policy Initiative (HAPI), Public Health Improvement, Healthy Arizona Worksite, 
and the Suicide Mortality Review Programs. 
 

1.5. The Suicide Mortality Review Program is administered by ADHS, who will develop a suicide mortalities data 
collection system, encourage and assist in the development of local suicide mortality review teams, and 
provide training and technical assistance to those teams.  
 

1.6. Beginning in July 2022, the Public Health Improvement Program, which is funded by the Preventive Health 
and Health Services Block Grant, will move from the HPHC IGA to the Maternal and Child Health (MCH) 
Healthy Arizona Families (HAF) IGA. 

 
2. Purpose  

 
The purpose of this IGA is to leverage multiple public health funding sources to support implementation of health 
priorities identified in the AzHIP (2021- 2026) and the County Health Improvement Plans (CHIP). This IGA is 
intended to provide flexibility to the County Health Departments to best meet the needs of their local communities 
through high impact strategies that realize the agreed upon outcomes. The IGA provides a pathway to improved 
coordination of multiple prevention programs and the Suicide Mortality Review Program, while streamlining the 
administrative functions for the programs that were previously administered separately.  



 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

 

Amendment  

 
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH SERVICES 
150 18th Ave Suite 530 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

 

Contract No.: CTR055335 Amendment No: 2 Procurement Officer: 
Kristine Newton 

 

3 
 

3. Objective 
 
The County Contractor will implement evidence-based strategies at the local community level that: 

 
3.1 Promote and implement healthy communities’ interventions that target policy, system and environmental 

approaches that will shape the communities in which we live, learn, work, and play; and 
 

3.2 Promote and implement healthy people interventions that target individual behavior and support making 
healthy choices. 

 
4. Scope of Service 
 

This IGA offers a variety of evidence-based strategies designed to impact policy, system, and environmental 
change at the community, organizational, individual, and policy levels in order to promote county-wide health 
changes so that public health impact will be maximized. Contingent upon available funding, Counties are expected 
to implement at multiple levels, in accordance with local community needs, and should emphasize complementary 
policy, environmental, programmatic, and infrastructure activities that integrate and build on each other to optimize 
the health improvements of the community.  
 
Counties must select from a menu of evidence-based strategies, found in Exhibits A-E that influence individual 
behaviors, policy, organizational practices, systems, and environments though the following specific program 
areas: 
 
4.1 Exhibit A – Tobacco; 
 
4.2 Exhibit B – Health in Arizona Policy Initiative (HAPI); 

 
4.3 Exhibit C – Teen Pregnancy Prevention and Youth Mental Health First Aid Initiative; 
 
4.4 Exhibit D – Suicide Mortality Review; and 

 
4.5 Exhibit E – Supporting Documentation. 
 

5. Evaluation: 
 

Performance measures and evaluations allow the counties and ADHS to collaboratively track progress, process 
indicators, outcomes measures, and impacts. As part of the local evaluation plan, the counties will be responsible 
for measuring the short term, and intermediate outcomes. Monitoring progress on short-term outcomes provides an 
opportunity for the Local Health Departments to adjust strategies to ensure increased long-term impact. ADHS in 
coordination with the Counties will be responsible for measuring the long-term and impact outcomes. Process 
indicators, outcomes measures, and impacts must clearly relate to the selected strategies and activities identified 
within each County’s Annual Action Plan. 

 
6. Approvals:  
 

6.1. The quarterly reports, yearly action plans, yearly budget templates, and supporting documentation shall be 
approved by ADHS; 
 

6.2. Once the Action Plan has been approved, any changes to the approved activities, or strategies must be 
approved again, by ADHS prior to implementation; 

 
6.3. Capital Equipment (Single item purchase of $5,000 or more) purchased for the program: A written request 

shall be submitted to ADHS for review and approval prior to any purchase on a case-by-case basis. The 
written request shall include details of how the proposed purchase supports current approved scope of work 



 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

 

Amendment  

 
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH SERVICES 
150 18th Ave Suite 530 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

 

Contract No.: CTR055335 Amendment No: 2 Procurement Officer: 
Kristine Newton 

 

4 
 

and annual action plan. Ownership will be retained by the Contractor for continued use in the objectives of 
the Action Plan; 

 
6.4. All marketing materials (the use of ADHS logo, brochures, posters, public service announcements, paid 

media, videos, etc.) which have been developed, written, published, or recorded by the Counties and paid for 
with funds from this award must be first approved by ADHS prior to the dissemination of such materials or 
airing or use of such announcements; 
 

6.5. All County local emerging issues and related supporting documentation must be approved by ADHS prior to 
implementation. The approval process document will be provided to all Counties and must be followed in 
order for the proposed local emerging issue to be worked on; 

 
6.6. Contractors will be required to attend ADHS Suicide Mortality Review quarterly training and technical 

sessions, submit quarterly Suicide data using the ADHS Data Collection Tool and the ADHS report template 
to the Suicide Mortality Review Program Manager prior to payment; 

 
6.7. The quarterly Contractor’s Expenditure Report (CER/Invoice) and any supporting documentation, when 

submitted, shall be approved by ADHS prior to payment; and 
 
6.8. All evaluation components that involve human subjects.  

 
7. Tasks 

 
The County Contractor shall for the overall IGA: 
 
7.1 Develop and implement a 3-year Action Plan and a Budget Plan within the first forty-five (45) days of each 

budget period; 
 
7.2 Participate in all calls (monthly, bi-monthly, quarterly), technical assistance calls and/or webinars, meetings 

and trainings; 
 

7.3 Implement the approved strategies;  
 

7.4 Participate in the development of a shared comprehensive evaluation plan and report out on any performance 
measures related to the implementation of their activities (process and/or intermediate), or as defined by the 
funding sources; and 
 

7.5 Provide supporting documentation that supports the completion of the defined deliverables within the 
approved annual action plan to the ADHS IGA Program Administrator. Examples of acceptable supporting 
documentation can be found in Exhibit E. Further guidance will be provided by specific ADHS Program 
Managers, as needed.   

 
ADHS shall for the overall IGA: 
 
7.6 Review, provide feedback, and approve the Annual Action Plan(s), Annual Budgets, and Supporting 

Documentation within thirty (30) days of submission; 
 
7.7 Provide evidence-based strategies and supporting resources; 

 
7.8 Provide a Quarterly Reporting Template; 

 
7.9 Provide the Annual Action Plan Template; 

 
7.10 Provide a Budget Plan and CER Template; 
 



 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

 

Amendment  

 
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH SERVICES 
150 18th Ave Suite 530 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

 

Contract No.: CTR055335 Amendment No: 2 Procurement Officer: 
Kristine Newton 

 

5 
 

 
7.11 Collaborate and work with the County to develop a comprehensive Logic Model Template; 

 
7.12 Host TPP Youth Mental Health First Aid Certification Training annually, if needed; 

 
7.13 Provide Outcome Measures and examples of process, or intermediate performance measures, as needed; 

 
7.14 Provide a Financial Guidance Document (if applicable); 

 
7.15 Provide feedback, technical assistance, and training to support the approved Annual Action Plan(s), Annual 

Budget, Quarterly Reporting, and Supporting Documentation; 
 

7.16 Provide access to virtual technical assistance and guidance from ADHS staff, local Health Department 
peers/mentors, and subject matter experts related to the strategy for which the County has received funding; 
and 
 

7.17 Coordinate and conduct Contractor site visits. Note: If not yearly, at least every two (2) years a site visit will 
be conducted. 

 
8. Requirements 

 
The County Contractor shall meet the requirements listed below: 
 
8.1 All revisions to the Annual Action Plan strategies, goals, objectives, and timelines will require joint review and 

approval from ADHS staff; 
 

8.2 All staffing and programmatic changes will be reported to the specific ADHS Program Manager and the ADHS 
IGA Program Administrator within fifteen (15) days. Once someone is hired for a job vacancy, an email 
containing the new hire’s full name, contact information, start date, areas of the IGA that she/he will work in, 
and a resume will be submitted to the specific ADHS Program Administrator and the ADHS IGA Program 
Manager within fifteen (15) days; 

 
8.3 All requests for a single item of capital equipment at or above the purchase price of five thousand dollars 

($5,000.00) will be requested in writing and submitted to the specific ADHS Program Administrator and the 
ADHS IGA Program Manager for approval; 

 
8.4 Food and/or beverages served at events/meetings are not to be paid for with State funds per the State of 

Arizona Accounting Manual (SAAM) policy, found here: 
https://gao.az.gov/sites/default/files/8010%20Food%20and%20Beverages%20at%20State-
sponsored%20Events%20181113.pdf. 

 
8.5 Comply with all State reporting requirements; 

 
8.6 At least one Program Manager, or coordinator from each HPHC IGA program must be in attendance of the 

Annual HPHC IGA Summit; 
 

8.7 Funds cannot be used for any lobbying activities, including the preparation, distribution, or use of any kit, 
pamphlet, booklet, publication, electronic communication, radio, television, or video presentation designed to 
support or defeat any proposed or pending regulation, administrative action, or order issued by the executive 
branch of any State or local government; 
 

9. Deliverables and Delivery Schedule 
 

The County Contractor shall submit the deliverables listed below to the ADHS IGA Program Administrator: 

https://gao.az.gov/sites/default/files/8010%20Food%20and%20Beverages%20at%20State-sponsored%20Events%20181113.pdf
https://gao.az.gov/sites/default/files/8010%20Food%20and%20Beverages%20at%20State-sponsored%20Events%20181113.pdf


 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

 

Amendment  

 
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH SERVICES 
150 18th Ave Suite 530 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

 

Contract No.: CTR055335 Amendment No: 2 Procurement Officer: 
Kristine Newton 

 

6 
 

9.1 Contractor Expenditure Report (CER) to ADHS, due thirty (30) days after each quarter end (Q1: July – 
September; Q2: October – December; Q3: January – March; and Q4: April – June); Supporting 
Documentation is to also be submitted. Counties will select from a menu of acceptable forms of Supporting 
Documentation found in Exhibit E; 
 

9.2 A written Quarterly Report, due thirty (30) days after each quarter end (Q1: July – September; Q2: October – 
December; Q3: January – March; and Q4: April – June); 

 
9.3 A final CER invoice not later than forty-five (45) days following the end of each Agreement year; 

 
9.4 Provide the name, email address and phone numbers of all program staff funded under this Agreement within 

thirty (30) days of hire; 
 

9.5 Notify ADHS IGA Program Administrator of any change in program staff under this Agreement within fifteen 
(15) days of the change. If there is a new employee, include the new hire’s work contact information (i.e. 
email and phone number), and resume within the fifteen (15) days window period; 

 
9.6 Collaborate and participate with ADHS on the development of a logic model; 

 
9.7 Submit an Annual Action Plan by August 15th; 

 
9.8 Submit an Annual Budget Plan by August 15th; 

 
9.9 Submit a written request to use the ADHS Logo in any print, web documents, publications and video 

recordings prior to use; and 
 

9.10 Submit a written request for the development of brochures, posters, public service announcements, paid 
media, videos, sponsorships, etc., to be paid for with funds from this Agreement prior to development. 

 
10. Notices, Correspondence, and Reports 
 

10.1 Notices, correspondence, reports and invoices/CERs from the County contractor to ADHS shall be sent to: 
 

For Overall Fixed Price IGA: 
 
Healthy People Healthy Communities (HPHC) IGA Program Administrator 
Bureau of Chronic Disease and Health Promotions 
Arizona Department of Health Services 
150 N. 18th Avenue, Suite 310 
Phoenix, AZ 85007 
Office: 602-364-3603| Email: Constance.Washington@azdhs.gov  

 
10.2 Notices, correspondence, and reports (and payments if sent to same address) from ADHS to the contractor 

shall be sent to: 
 

Gila County 
Attn: Josh Beck 
5515 South Apache Avenue  
Globe, AZ 85501 
Phone: 928-200-4406 | Email: jbeck@gilacountyaz.gov    



 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

 

Amendment  

 
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH SERVICES 
150 18th Ave Suite 530 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

 

Contract No.: CTR055335 Amendment No: 2 Procurement Officer: 
Kristine Newton 

 

7 
 

Price Sheet 
 

Healthy People Healthy Communities  
 

July 1, 2022 – June 30, 2023 
 

ACTION PLAN 
ITEM/SERVICE DESCRIPTION UNIT OF 

MEASURE 
NUMBER 
OF UNITS UNIT RATE TOTAL 

Upon approval of the following Action 
Plans: 
Tobacco Prop 200 = $6,279.00 
Chronic Disease Prop 303 =$54.00 
WIC Lottery = $7,700.00 
Teen Pregnancy = $38,342.00 

EA 1 $52,375.00 $52,375.00 

 
TOBACCO PROGRAM 

ITEM/SERVICE DESCRIPTION UNIT OF 
MEASURE 

NUMBER 
OF UNITS UNIT RATE TOTAL 

Upon completion of tasks for each specific 
service strategy after approval of quarterly 
reports. See SOW for Specific Service 
Strategies (i.e. Prevention, Cessation, 
Secondhand Smoke, Enforcement) 

QTR 4 $29,818.00 $119,272.00 

 
HEALTH IN ARIZONA POLICY INITIATIVE PROGRAM 

ITEM/SERVICE DESCRIPTION UNIT OF 
MEASURE 

NUMBER 
OF UNITS UNIT RATE TOTAL 

Upon completion of tasks for each 
specific service strategy after approval of 
quarterly reports. See SOW for Specific 
Service Strategies (i.e. Alzheimer’s, 
Chronic Pulmonary Disease, 
Hypertension, Self-Management, 
Procurement, Healthy Community Design, 
School Health, Worksite Wellness, and 
Clinical Care) 
Funding Per Quarter includes:  
Chronic Disease Prop 303 = $1,687.00 
WIC Lottery = $8,075.00 

QTR 4 $9,762.00 $39,048.00 

 
TEEN PREGNANCY PREVENTION PROGRAM 

ITEM/SERVICE DESCRIPTION UNIT OF 
MEASURE 

NUMBER 
OF UNITS UNIT RATE TOTAL 

Upon completion of tasks for each 
specific service strategy after approval of 
quarterly reports. See SOW for Specific 
Service Strategies 

QTR 4 $38,342.00 $153,368.00 



 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

 

Amendment  

 
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH SERVICES 
150 18th Ave Suite 530 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

 

Contract No.: CTR055335 Amendment No: 2 Procurement Officer: 
Kristine Newton 

 

8 
 

 
TEEN PREGNANCY PREVENTION PROGRAM – YOUTH MENTAL HEALTH FIRST AID INITIATIVE 

ITEM/SERVICE DESCRIPTION UNIT OF 
MEASURE 

MAX # OF 
UNITS PER 

YR 
UNIT RATE TOTAL 

Upon completion of tasks for each. See 
SOW for Specific Service Strategies Training 6 $1,000.00 $6,000.00 

 
SUICIDE MORTALITY REVIEW PROGRAM 

ITEM/SERVICE DESCRIPTION UNIT OF 
MEASURE 

NUMBER OF 
UNITS UNIT RATE TOTAL 

Upon completion of tasks for each specific 
service strategy after approval of quarterly 
reports. See SOW for Specific Service 
Strategies  

QTR 4 $6,250.00 $25,000.00 

 
TOTAL 

ITEM/SERVICE DESCRIPTION TOTAL 
GRAND TOTAL $395,063.00 

 
 



 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

 

Amendment  

 
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH SERVICES 
150 18th Ave Suite 530 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

 

Contract No.: CTR055335 Amendment No: 2 Procurement Officer: 
Kristine Newton 

 

9 
 

Exhibit A 
 

EVIDENCE-BASED STRATEGIES FOR TOBACCO 
 

The Office of Tobacco Prevention and Cessation (“Office of Tobacco”) within the Bureau of Chronic Disease and Health 
Promotion (“BCDHP”) at Arizona Department of Health Services (ADHS) has historically supported evidence-based 
programs and system level changes that assist smokers in disparate or high-risk populations with tobacco prevention 
and cessation services. In Arizona, there are populations that are disproportionately impacted by tobacco use. Currently, 
priority populations identified by the Office of Tobacco are:  1) youth, 2) the justice-involved, and 3) those enrolled in 
the Arizona Healthcare Cost Containment System (AHCCCS). 
 
County health department partners are required to identify three (3) populations that are disproportionately impacted 
by tobacco use in their communities, which may include the three populations identified above or with other populations 
which may be identified based on county-level data. Counties will provide the selected population groups with targeted 
evidence-based programs and activities for two components: 1) Tobacco Prevention and 2) Tobacco Cessation. In 
addition, counties will participate in three ADHS-led work groups that will explore innovative approaches to tobacco 
programming that address 1) Youth; 2) Secondhand Smoke (SHS); and 3) Emerging Issues. Counties will also engage 
in in-person and virtual meetings as identified by ADHS. 
 
The strategies within the Healthy People Healthy Communities (HPHC) Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) are 
population-based approaches that will require collaboration and support from key community partners, as well as 
promote health system level changes within healthcare systems and employers. These tobacco prevention and 
cessation strategies align with the U.S. Surgeon General’s Report on Smoking Cessation 2020, the Centers for Disease 
Control (CDC) National Comprehensive Tobacco Control Program (NTCP), and Arizona Health Improvement Plan 
(AzHIP) 2021-2025. 
 
The Tobacco component of the HPHC IGA is funded by Proposition 200, which states that tobacco tax dollars under 
the Health Education Account (HEA) requires monies be spent on “programs for the prevention and reduction of tobacco 
use.” Arizona Revised Statute (A.R.S. § 36-772) authorizes four types of expenditures by the HEA: contracts with county 
health departments and other local partners, administrative expenses, advertising, and evaluation of programs. 
Spending these monies for lobbying for political campaigns is expressly prohibited. 
 
The County Contractor must select one (1) or more strategies from this strategic area. 
 
This Exhibit defines the Program Strategy/s within each Strategic Area: 

 
1. Strategic Area: Tobacco 

 
1.1 Reduce tobacco-related disparities among target populations. Counties will select populations based on local 

available data, including tobacco prevalence rates (BRFSS, AYS, YRBSS), CHIP, and CHA data, to inform 
programming; 

 
1.1.1 Prevent the initiation of tobacco use (including emerging products and e-cigarettes) among youth and 

young adults (required), 
 

1.1.1.1 Maintain current peer-to-peer youth programming to empower youth leadership and 
engagement;  

 
1.1.1.2 Support the ADHS-selected contractor with recruiting youth participants for statewide 

Enforcement efforts; and 
 

1.1.1.3 Facilitate and conduct in their county the AGO Arizona Retailer Tobacco Training Program 
with retailers and clerks that have been cited for selling tobacco to underage youth 

 
1.1.1.4 Collaborate with schools in their counties by: 



 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

 

Amendment  

 
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH SERVICES 
150 18th Ave Suite 530 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

 

Contract No.: CTR055335 Amendment No: 2 Procurement Officer: 
Kristine Newton 

 

10 
 

1.1.1.4.1 Offering the American Lung Association’s INDEPTH: An Alternative to Teen 
Nicotine Suspension or Citation, and 

 
1.1.1.4.2 Establishing a Task Force with school districts, school administrators, or 

superintendents to identify current needs in youth prevention. Task Force 
efforts must include the development of a work plan, evaluation plan, and 
identified evidence-based strategies. 

 
1.2 Implement evidence-based, culturally appropriate community interventions to promote quitting 

among adults and youth. 
 

1.2.1 Counties will identify and eliminate tobacco-related disparities among two additional population 
groups: 
 
1.2.1.1 Individuals involved or at-risk for involvement with the criminal justice system, including 

jails, prisons, probation, parole, or specialty court; 
 
1.2.1.2 People of low socioeconomic status; 
 
1.2.1.3 Individuals with behavioral health conditions (including mental health conditions and 

substance use disorders); and/or 
 
1.2.1.4 Other priority populations not listed and pre-approved by ADHS. Counties will submit a 

proposal to ADHS that will include surveillance and evaluation data to justify the 
population selection, 

 
1.2.2 Engage communities, partners, and community-based organizations to strengthen capacity. 

Counties will identify and select community partners that may include: 
 

1.2.2.1 Employers; and 
 
1.2.2.2 Healthcare systems, including: 

 
1.2.2.2.1  Federally Qualified Community Health Centers (FQHCs) or FQHC Look-

Alikes; 
 
1.2.2.2.2 Hospitals; 
 
1.2.2.2.3 Community clinics; 
 
1.2.2.2.4 Private practices; 
 
1.2.2.2.5 Behavioral Health Clinics; and/or 

 
1.2.2.2.6 Substance Abuse Centers 

 
1.3 Participate in at least one ADHS-led Tobacco Work Group that addresses one of the following priority 

issues: 
 

1.3.1 Youth, 
 
1.3.2 Secondhand Smoke, and 
 
1.3.3 Emerging Issues; 
 



 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

 

Amendment  

 
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH SERVICES 
150 18th Ave Suite 530 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

 

Contract No.: CTR055335 Amendment No: 2 Procurement Officer: 
Kristine Newton 

 

11 
 

1.4 Participate in required ADHS Office of Tobacco update conference calls, virtual meetings, and in-
person meetings, including (but not limited to): 
 
1.4.1 1:1 Calls, 
 
1.4.2 Group monthly conference calls, 
 
1.4.3 Annual HPHC IGA Summit, and 
 
1.4.4 In-person semi-annual statewide partner meetings, to occur: 

 
1.4.4.1 Spring (March/April); and 
 
1.4.4.2 Fall (September/October); 
 

1.5 Obtain ADHS approval on all county-level tobacco marketing or communications initiatives. 
 

1.5.1 All marketing materials (the use of the ADHS logo, brochures, posters, public service 
announcements, paid media, videos, etc.) which have been developed, written, published, or 
recorded by the Grantee and paid for with funds from this grant award must be first approved by 
ADHS prior to the dissemination of such materials or airing or use of such announcements. 

 
1.6 Obtain ADHS approval to attend conferences whether they are in-state or out-of-state. Contractors 

shall follow the following guidelines; 
 

1.6.1 Travel is limited to two (2) Tobacco program staff persons, 
 
1.6.2 A completed HPHC IGA Tobacco Program: Conference Attendance/Travel Request Form must be 

submitted to the HPHC IGA Program Administrator and the HPHC IGA Tobacco Program Manager 
90 days prior to conference/travel, to allow for review and approval, and 

 
1.6.3 Contractors are required to follow guidance and rates established by the ADOA-GAO SAAM.  

 
 
 

 

https://gao.az.gov/sites/default/files/5095%20Reimbursement%20Rates%20%20210929.pdf


 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

 

Amendment  

 
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH SERVICES 
150 18th Ave Suite 530 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

 

Contract No.: CTR055335 Amendment No: 2 Procurement Officer: 
Kristine Newton 

 

12 
 

Exhibit B 
 

EVIDENCE-BASED STRATEGIES FOR HEALTH IN ARIZONA POLICY INITIATIVE (HAPI) 
 

The Health in Arizona Policy Initiative (HAPI) utilizes evidence-based approaches to address population health needs 
including the Health in All Policy Framework, Health Impact Pyramid, and National Prevention Strategy. In January 
2012, ADHS began the process of establishing contracts with local health departments to address health policy. ADHS 
has established contracts with thirteen (13) of the fifteen (15) local health departments (Apache, Cochise, Coconino, 
Gila, Graham, Greenlee, Maricopa, Mohave, Navajo, Pinal, Pima, Yavapai and Yuma), and the Town of Parker. The 
contracted health departments and/or town will provide their communities with evidence-based programs and activities 
concentrated on one or more of the HAPI focus areas: Healthy Worksites, School Health, Community Design/Healthy 
Communities, Chronic Disease, Healthy Aging, Clinical Care, or Procurement.  
 
The overall goal of the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) was established to increase local capacity to implement 
preventative health policy, system and environmental (PSE) changes/ public health approaches through defined 
strategic areas. 

 
The five (5) year IGA action plan(s) and activity/activities developed by the local health department will address the 
following funding priorities: 

 
1) The four (4) leading chronic disease deaths, as reported by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) 

per ARS 36-770 (Proposition 303 Tobacco Tax), and 
 

2) WIC participants and their families per WIC Health Lottery Revenue. 
 

The County Contractor must select one (1) or more strategies from this strategic area. 
 

This Exhibit defines the Program Strategy/s within each Strategic Area: 
 

2. Strategic Area: Health in Arizona Policy Initiative (HAPI) 
 

2.1 Social Determinants of Health (SDOH) / Health in All Policies (HiAP) 
 
2.1.1 Assess and identify gaps in addressing public health and social determinants of health (SDOH), 

with consideration of the 4 leading causes of chronic disease death, at-or-high risk populations, 
co-morbidities, and / or health risks, and 

 
2.1.2 Develop and implement an action plan that includes policy, systems or environmental (PSE) / 

public health, and / or Health in All Policies (HiAP) approaches to address the gaps in addressing 
public health and social determinants of health (SDOH), with consideration of the 4 leading 
causes of chronic disease death, at-or-high risk populations, co-morbidities, and/or health risks; 

 
2.2 Community Engagement 

 
2.2.1 Increase community engagement of partners, with consideration of the four (4) leading causes of 

chronic disease death, at-or-high risk populations, co-morbidities, and/or health risks, 
 
2.2.2 Develop, create and/or participate in coalitions, with consideration of the four (4) leading causes of 

chronic disease death, at-or-high risk populations, co-morbidities, and /or health risks, 
 
2.2.3 Develop and implement a coalition action plan, with consideration of the four (4) leading causes of 

chronic disease death, at-or-high risk populations, co-morbidities, and/or health risks, and 

https://www.azleg.gov/viewdocument/?docName=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.azleg.gov%2Fars%2F36%2F00770.htm
https://www.azleg.gov/ars/5/00572.htm


 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

 

Amendment  

 
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH SERVICES 
150 18th Ave Suite 530 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

 

Contract No.: CTR055335 Amendment No: 2 Procurement Officer: 
Kristine Newton 

 

13 
 

 
2.2.4 Develop coalition capacity to support advocacy, with consideration of the four (4) leading causes 

of chronic disease death, at-or-high risk populations, co-morbidities, and/or health risks. 
 

2.3 Systems Change 
 
2.3.1 Assess and identify gaps in addressing “Little p” system changes, with consideration of the 4 

leading causes of chronic disease death, at-or-high risk populations, co-morbidities, and/or health 
risks, and 

 
2.3.2 Develop and implement an action plan that addresses the gaps in addressing “Little p” systems 

changes, with consideration of the 4 leading causes of chronic disease death, at-or-high risk 
populations, co-morbidities, and/or health risks; 

 
2.4 Emerging Issues 

 
2.4.1 Assess and identify emerging issues with community partners that align with local, state or national 

level emerging issues, with consideration of the 4 leading causes of chronic disease death, at-or-
high risk populations, co-morbidities, and/or health risks, and 

 
2.4.2 Develop and implement action/ breakthrough plans to address emerging issues, with consideration 

of the 4 leading causes of chronic disease death, at-or-high risk populations, co-morbidities, and/or 
health risks; 

 
2.5 Workforce Capacity Building/Professional Development 

 
2.5.1 Increase knowledge of staff and community partners through professional development and 

workforce capacity building, with consideration of the 4 leading causes of chronic disease death, 
at-or-high risk populations, co-morbidities, and/or health risks; and 

 
2.6 Evidence Based / Evidence Informed / Promising Practices or Public Health Approaches 

 
2.6.1 Implement Evidence Based / Evidence Informed / Promising Practices or Public Health 

Approaches, with consideration of the 4 leading causes of chronic disease death, at-or-high risk 
populations, co-morbidities, and /or health risks. 

 
 



 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

 

Amendment  

 
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH SERVICES 
150 18th Ave Suite 530 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

 

Contract No.: CTR055335 Amendment No: 2 Procurement Officer: 
Kristine Newton 

 

14 
 

Exhibit C 
 

EVIDENCE-BASED STRATEGIES FOR TEEN PREGNANCY PREVENTION 
 

The Teen Pregnancy Program offers strategic approaches to improve the health and social well-being of youth through 
the reduction of teen pregnancies and sexually transmitted infections/diseases, and the awareness of healthy 
relationships and life skills, including financial literacy and educational and career success.  The program provides youth 
with knowledge and skills that can be applied throughout their lives. Program models are evidence-based, age 
appropriate, medically accurate, and culturally relevant and incorporate a positive youth development approach. 
 
The teen pregnancy prevention programs also offer a Parent/Youth Communication Education component which can 
give parents the tools to actively engage in meaningful communication with their teens on a variety of topics including 
sexual health issues. Parents, grandparents and guardians of a teen are welcome and encouraged to participate in 
these educational sessions.  
 
Proposition 203, The Healthy Arizona Initiative, was passed by Arizona voters in November 1995, authorizing the use 
of lottery funds when available to be utilized for teen pregnancy prevention programs.  The funds from the lottery 
became available in July 2005.  The Arizona Department of Health Services (ADHS), Bureau of Women’s and Children’s 
Health (BWCH), Teen Pregnancy Prevention Program, is charged with the implementation of these funds.   
 
Proposition 207, The Smart and Safe Act, was passed by Arizona voters in November 2020, authorizing the legal use 
of recreational marijuana. The funds from this act will be available on July 1, 2021. The Arizona Department of Health 
Services (ADHS), Bureau of Women’s and Children’s Health (BWCH), is charged with the implementation of a portion 
of these funds. 
 
The County Contractor must select one (1) or more strategies from this strategic area. 
 
This Exhibit defines the Program Strategy/s within each Strategic Area: 

 
3. Strategic Area: Teen Pregnancy Prevention 

 
3.1 Implement with fidelity, abstinence plus evidence-based program models, through curriculum delivery to 

youth ages eleven to nineteen (11-19) and implement core curricula that are on the ADHS TPP approved 
curriculum list incorporating a positive youth development approach. 
 
3.1.1 Program models shall be evidence-based, culturally relevant, medically accurate, and age 

appropriate. Programs for youth shall be inclusive of at least three (3) of five (5) Adulthood 
Preparation Subjects -Healthy Relationships, Healthy Life Skills, Adolescent Development, 
Educational/Career Success, and/or Financial Literacy. Optionally, to parents/caregivers of youth 
eleven to nineteen (11-19) years of age, 
 

3.1.2 Program management, services, requirements, deliverables, etc. shall be in accordance with the 
TPP Policy and Procedures Manual, and 
 

3.1.3 Program tasks include but are not limited to: 
 
3.1.3.1  Delivery of curriculum in a variety of settings – in school, after school, community-based, 

juvenile detention/probation, foster care group homes, etc.; 
 
3.1.3.2  Educating youth on both abstinence and contraception for the prevention of teen 

pregnancy and sexually transmitted diseases/infections; 
 
3.1.3.3  Obtaining active parental consent forms for youth participation in programming and 

evaluation; 
 



 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

 

Amendment  

 
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH SERVICES 
150 18th Ave Suite 530 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

 

Contract No.: CTR055335 Amendment No: 2 Procurement Officer: 
Kristine Newton 

 

15 
 

3.1.3.4  Maintaining up-to-date attendance records; 
 
3.1.3.5  Administering pre and post surveys to youth, and submitting completed surveys to 

ADHS; 
 
3.1.3.6  Ensuring the number of youths proposed is served and that eighty percent (80%) of youth 

participating in the curriculum complete at least seventy-five (75%) of curriculum dosage; 
 
3.1.3.7  Completion of fidelity monitoring logs following each session delivered; 
 
3.1.3.8  Submitting monthly unduplicated counts of youth served; 
 
3.1.3.9  Submitting annual Forms A-D of reporting total unduplicated count of youth served, 

program hours received, and type of programs received; 
 
3.1.3.10 Attending meetings and/or calls, i.e., semi-annual contractor meetings, mid-year budget 

review and youth served calls, Wyman Teen Outreach Program® review calls (if 
applicable), summer professional development, etc.; and/or 

 
3.1.3.11 Navigating the TPP SharePoint for entry of reporting data, program announcements, 

discussion boards, and obtaining program forms. 
 
4. Strategic Area: Teen Pregnancy Prevention Youth Mental Health First Aid Initiative 

 
4.1 Certify staff in TPP Youth Mental Health First Aid Training with prior approval from ADHS; 

 
4.1.1 Complete the National Council for Behavioral Health (NCBH) “Coordinator Access” form to grant 

ADHS staff viewer rights to pre and post training survey data from organizations trained: 
 
4.1.1.1 Participate in technical assistance meetings and/or phone calls to be hosted by ADHS. 

 
4.2 Certified trainer must deliver at minimum three (3) trainings per year to maintain active certification in 

YMHFA; 
 
4.3 Trainers may co-facilitate and each facilitator can count co-facilitations towards their required three (3) 

training(s) per year, for certification purposes; 
 
4.4 Co-facilitated training(s) will only count as one training for payment of stipends; 
 
4.5 Training events must follow the training outline identified by the National Council of Behavioral Health 

(NCBH) Youth Mental Health First Aid; 
 
4.6 During the pandemic, if in-person training is prohibited, training to youth serving organizations can be 

conducted virtually;  
 
4.7 Once pandemic restrictions are lifted and in-person training and travel are allowed, training to youth serving 

organizations shall be conducted in one (1) of two (2) options: In-person or blended learning; 
 
4.8 Each training shall consist of no less than five (5) participants and no more than thirty (30) and include 

participant training materials; and 
 
4.9 Course materials must be ordered for all training participants as this is a required component. 
 
4.10 For the TPP Youth Mental Health First Aid Training, programs will submit the following with their quarterly 

CERs: 



 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

 

Amendment  

 
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH SERVICES 
150 18th Ave Suite 530 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

 

Contract No.: CTR055335 Amendment No: 2 Procurement Officer: 
Kristine Newton 

 

16 
 

 
4.10.1 Participant sign-in sheet (if in person) that includes organization’s name, date, and name of the 

educator, or 
 

4.10.2 “Chat Box” sign-in sheet (if virtual) that includes the organization's name, date, and name of the 
educator. 

 
Please note: Stipends can only be billed for training(s) conducted during the quarter. 

 
 



 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

 

Amendment  

 
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH SERVICES 
150 18th Ave Suite 530 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

 

Contract No.: CTR055335 Amendment No: 2 Procurement Officer: 
Kristine Newton 

 

17 
 

Exhibit D 
 

EVIDENCE-BASED STRATEGIES FOR SUICIDE MORTALITY REVIEW 
 

In Arizona, both the number and rate of suicides continues to rise. Arizona’s rate of suicide per 100,000 people was 
24% higher than that of the United States in 2017. In 2018, suicide ranked 8th among the leading causes of death but 
contributed substantially to premature mortality. Yet, suicide is preventable. Pursuant to A.R.S. § 36-199 and § 36-
199.01, ADHS is establishing a Suicide Mortality Review Team in the Department of Health Services. The program will 
conduct an annual analysis on the incidences and causes of suicides in the state during the preceding fiscal year. This 
analysis will help to inform what changes are needed to decrease the incidence of preventable suicides, and as 
appropriate, take steps to implement these changes. ADHS will fund, encourage and assist in the development of local 
county health department Suicide Mortality Review Teams in their local jurisdiction and to develop suicide prevention 
recommendations for their communities.  
 
On March 3, 2020 Governor Doug Ducey joined mental health advocates, legislators and family members affected by 
suicide to sign Senate Bill 1523, also known as Jake's Law. The bill is named in honor of Jake Machovsky, an Arizona 
teen who lost his life to suicide in 2016 after battling mental health issues. The law requires insurance companies to 
cover mental health treatment and creates the Children's Behavioral Health Services Fund and provides $8 million for 
behavioral health services for children who are uninsured or underinsured. The law prohibits insurance companies from 
denying coverage for services that are covered by the plan simply because they are delivered in an educational setting. 
This law also establishes a mental health parity advisory committee to ensure that all parties including families, 
providers, advocacy organizations, and insurers have a voice at the table, creates a suicide mortality review team to 
review deaths by suicide and provide policymakers with improved data and recommendations, and helps increase 
follow-up services for patients at risk for suicide.  

 
Proposition 207, The Smart and Safe Act, was passed by Arizona voters in November 2020, authorizing the legal use 
of recreational marijuana. The funds from this act will be available on July 1, 2021. The Arizona Department of Health 
Services (ADHS), Bureau of Women’s and Children’s Health (BWCH), is charged with the implementation of a portion 
of these funds. 

 
This Exhibit defines the Program Strategy/s within each Strategic Area: 
 

5. Strategic Area: Suicide Mortality Review 
5.1 Promote and implement healthy communities' interventions that target policy, system and environmental 

approaches that will shape the communities in which we live, learn, work, and play; 
 
5.2 Attend ADHS training and technical assistance sessions on standards and protocols for local suicide 

mortality review teams; 
 

5.3 Bring together local community agencies in a formal process to systematically share information on 
suicide events for persons over the age of eighteen (18) years old, identify risk factors in those deaths, 
and provide prevention recommendations. Program tasks include but are not limited to: 
 
5.3.1 The County Contractor shall for the Suicide Mortality Review Program: 
 

5.3.1.1 Attend scheduled training sessions with ADHS on Suicide Mortality Review Policies and 
Procedures; 
 

5.3.1.2 With guidance from ADHS Suicide Mortality Program Manager, establish a local Suicide 
Mortality Review team roster and submit to ADHS for review; 
 

5.3.1.3 Provide orientation to all members and consultants which include, at a minimum, the 
following topics: 



 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

 

Amendment  

 
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH SERVICES 
150 18th Ave Suite 530 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

 

Contract No.: CTR055335 Amendment No: 2 Procurement Officer: 
Kristine Newton 

 

18 
 

 
5.3.1.3.1 Instruction regarding confidentiality, 

 
5.3.1.3.2 Use of the data forms, 

 
5.3.1.3.3 Public access to team information, 

 
5.3.1.3.4 Responsibilities and limitations of team membership; Process and goals of 

fatality review, 
 

5.3.1.3.5 The promotion of culturally diverse and competent approaches in case 
reviews, using Suicide Mortality Review materials provided by the State Team, 
 

5.3.1.3.6 The promotion of culturally diverse and competent approaches in case 
reviews, and 
 

5.3.1.3.7 Review materials provided by the State Team. 
 
5.3.1.4 Establish procedures for access to the following records related to the circumstances 

surrounding suicide:  
 

5.3.1.4.1 Death Certificates, 
 

5.3.1.4.2 Birth Certificates, 
 

5.3.1.4.3 Law enforcement Reports, 
 

5.3.1.4.4 Medical Examiner's Reports, 
 

5.3.1.4.5 Medical Records, 
 

5.3.1.4.6 Child Protective Services' Reports, and 
 

5.3.1.4.7 Other Records as Needed. 
 

5.3.1.5 Establish procedures to track fatalities requiring review by the Local Team and completion 
of Reviews; 
 

5.3.1.6 Prepare quarterly reports and data for the ADHS Suicide Mortality Review Program, cases 
reviewed, and obstacles to completion of reviews; 
 

5.3.1.7 Convene team meetings, at a frequency sufficient to review all fatalities within the 
identified scope of work. If the State Suicide Mortality Review Team will be reviewing 
records for your jurisdiction, you shall send a representative when the review is 
conducted; 
 

5.3.1.8 Enter data for each case reviewed using ADHS Suicide Mortality Review Data Collection 
Tool to include demographic and prevention recommendation data. Data for cases shall 
be entered by an employee of the County Contractor following completion of each case 
review meeting and shall be submitted to the Suicide Mortality Review Program Manager 
on a quarterly basis; and 
 

5.3.1.9 Conduct an annual analysis on the incidences and causes of suicides in the local 
community during the preceding fiscal year. 

 



 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

 

Amendment  

 
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH SERVICES 
150 18th Ave Suite 530 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

 

Contract No.: CTR055335 Amendment No: 2 Procurement Officer: 
Kristine Newton 

 

19 
 

5.3.2 For the Suicide Mortality Review Program, ADHS will: 
 

5.3.2.1 Establish a State Suicide Mortality Review Team; 
 

5.3.2.2 Provide a Policies and Procedure Manual; 
 

5.3.2.3 Develop standards and protocols for local suicide mortality review teams and provide 
training and technical assistance to these teams; 
 

5.3.2.4 Provide a Quarterly Reporting Template; 
 

5.3.2.5 Provide a Suicide Mortality Data Collection Tool; 
 

5.3.2.6 Provide documentation requirements for quarterly payment; 
 

5.3.2.7 Provide Quarterly Meeting for contractors to:  
 

5.3.2.7.1 Provide training and technical assistance on suicide review process; 
 

5.3.2.7.2 Provide access to virtual technical assistance and guidance from ADHS staff, 
Local Health Department peers/mentors and subject matter experts related to 
the strategy for which the County has received funding; 

 
 



 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

 

Amendment  

 
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH SERVICES 
150 18th Ave Suite 530 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

 

Contract No.: CTR055335 Amendment No: 2 Procurement Officer: 
Kristine Newton 

 

20 
 

Exhibit E 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 
 

Please provide documentation that supports the work that you have outlined on your Action Plan and quarterly reports. 
Note: Supporting Documentation will be due in the second (2nd) and forth (4th) quarters. The following are approved 
types of supporting documentation that can be submitted. Counties are expected to keep supporting documentation on 
hand for all quarters and to provide to ADHS upon request. This information can also be found on the new Quarterly 
Report + Supporting Documentation Template. 
 
Required Documentation: 
 
For each program of the IGA, provide documentation of evidence of work performed. Approved examples are below 
by program: 

 
Tobacco 

 
Youth Prevention: Anti-Tobacco Coalition: The following are acceptable submissions for documentation of work 
completed. 

 
● Recruitment: Copies of flyers pertaining to events for recruitment and expanding youth membership, as submission 

of coalition roster form, 
● Youth Coalition Action Plan: Copy of the coalition action plan developed by the youth members, 
● Coalition Meetings: Copies of meeting agenda along with a sign-in sheet of those attending the meeting, 
● Peer to Peer Education/Community Education: The Office of Tobacco has created the following event form for 

partners to fill out and submit for each of their coalition events: Youth Coalition Event Form. The coalition can also 
include pictures from events, and 

● Presentation to Community Leadership (Board of Supervisors, City Councils, or any other governing body): Partners 
can utilize the Youth Coalition Event Form for this activity as well. 

 
AGO/FDA Inspection Recruitment & Arizona Retail Tobacco Training: 

 
● The number of recruitment events held: Date of event, youth recruited, completed paperwork submitted, 
● Dates of inspections and how many youths participated in inspections, and 
● ARTT: Copy of flyer advertising training, dates of training and sign-in sheet for attendees. Evaluation forms sent to 

Tracy Lenartz. 
 

Cessation: ASHLine Outreach/Group Cessation Meetings- The following documents are acceptable submission for 
documentation of work.  

 
● ASHLine Outreach: The County should provide a copy of ASHLine Cessation Referral report covering the 

documentation period. ASHLine & county partners will develop a report that partners can utilize to track referrals 
for cessation for their county. This report, once developed, will be sent to county partners for their utilization in 
monitoring location referrals and for contract reporting and documentation, 

● County Partners Cessation Referral Trainings and Presentations: The Office of Tobacco has created the following 
form for partners to fill out and submit for each of cessation referral training and presentations: County Cessation 
Training & Presentation Form, and 

● Group Cessation Meetings: Copy of flyers regarding meetings, date(s) of meetings, number of participants in 
training, name are not required due to HIPPA. Are any of the participants enrolled in group classes as well as 
ASHLine. 

 



 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

 

Amendment  

 
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH SERVICES 
150 18th Ave Suite 530 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

 

Contract No.: CTR055335 Amendment No: 2 Procurement Officer: 
Kristine Newton 

 

21 
 

Priority Population Initiative:  
 
If a task group/work group is created to address the chosen population please provide the following information: 
 
● Copies of meeting agenda along with sign-in sheet, 
● Action plan or work plan for addressing issues with the work group, and  
● Evaluation Plan that will assess the success/status of the goal. 

 
Health in Arizona Policy Initiative (HAPI)  

 
● Sign-in sheet for a training, meeting or wellness activity (should include date, time, and name of training/meeting, 

etc.); Event flyer or meeting/training agendas (should include date, time and name of training/meeting, etc.); activity 
log (should include date, time, name of training/meeting/activity and a brief description of each, etc.) 

● Certificate of Completion; 
● Documentation of participation in coalition/advisory boards, etc. such as an agenda, minutes from the meeting, 

membership letter; 
● Final Reports of activity; 
● Photographs (i.e. proof of water station installation), please note that if you send pictures of individuals, you must 

have consent to use the picture of the individual; 
● Pre and post survey results of participants in Self-Management Programs; 
● Attendance/participation sheet for chronic disease self-management programs; 
● Communication plan or materials used for any public awareness campaigns; 
● Reporting of process or intermediate performance measures related to the activity within the strategic area(s); 
● Partner list or partner meeting agendas; 
● Completed Assessments; and 
● Developed Action Plans for implementation. 

 
Teen Pregnancy Prevention (TPP) 

 

● Certificates of Completion. 
● Parent nights/health fairs: Flier signed by authorized representative of event and/or County Program Supervisor 
● Instead of submitting attendance records as proof of services performed, counties will submit the TPP Verification 

of Curriculum Delivery Form. The Teen Pregnancy Prevention Program Manager will access the delivery of 
curriculum form to verify the classes provided are reflective of the narrative in the quarterly reports.  

● Teen Pregnancy Prevention Work Summary Report Form (for COVID-19 reassignments.  
Please Note: If TPP staff has been reassigned, make sure to include a separate Labor Activity Report and 
General Ledger, clearly indicating a breakdown of FTE percentages applied to TPP State Lottery dollars and 
another funding source.  
 
See below for further clarification: 
 

● TPP Lottery funds cannot be used to pay for staff temporarily reassigned to the COVID-19 emergency response. 
However, TPP staff can be reassigned for COVID-19 related activities by using another funding source. Within the 
TPP Action Plan and Quarterly Narrative Reports, counties should indicate whether service activities have been 
provided and include any updates. If TPP services have not been provided, note the following, “Services have not 
been conducted within the period of (insert dates). TPP staff have been temporarily reassigned to COVID-19 
activities using a different funding source.” If staff have been partially assigned to TPP and COVID-19 activities, 
include the FTE breakdown in the quarterly report as well.  



 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

 

Amendment  

 
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH SERVICES 
150 18th Ave Suite 530 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

 

Contract No.: CTR055335 Amendment No: 2 Procurement Officer: 
Kristine Newton 

 

22 
 

● For CERs, provide Year to Date expenses of what was actually incurred; do not bill for the full fixed price amount. 
When submitting supporting documentation, during Quarters 2 and 4 only, submit the corresponding Labor Activity 
Reports and General Ledgers as supporting documentation to illustrate what the TPP staff have been working on. 

 
Teen Pregnancy Prevention (TPP) Youth Mental Health First Aid Initiative 
 
● Participant sign-in sheet (if in person) that includes organization’s name, date, and name of the educator, or 
● “Chat Box” sign-in sheet (if virtual) that includes the organization's name, date, and name of the educator. 

 Please note: Stipends can only be billed for training(s) conducted during the quarter. 
 

Suicide Mortality Review 
 
● A sign in sheet and agenda for all review meetings 
● Annual Report 

 



























































































   
ARF-7401   Regular Agenda Item     3. C.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/20/2022  
Submitted For: Bradley Beauchamp, County Attorney 
Submitted By: Athena Gooding, Legal Secretary, Lead
Department: County Attorney
Fiscal Year: 2023 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2022, to June
30, 2023

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

Yes Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Drug, Gang, and Crime Control
Grant Agreement No. DC-23-023

Background Information
Grant Agreement No. DC-23-023 - This grant has been in effect for 36
years and it is also known as the Byrne Prosecution Grant. This grant
assists with funding a full-time prosecutor for drug and violent crime
prosecution.

The total to be paid by the Commission under this Grant Agreement shall
not exceed:

State: $36,887.04
Federal: $31,932.07
Match: $22,939.70
Grand Total: $91,758.81

This grant requires a match in the amount of $22,939.70 which will come
from the County's General Fund.

Evaluation
Grant Agreement No. DC-23-023 - The Drug, Gang, and Crime Control



Grant Agreement No. DC-23-023 - The Drug, Gang, and Crime Control
Grant is essential to provide funding for the salary and benefits of a
prosecutor who works in tandem with the Gila County Narcotics Task
Force.

Conclusion
Grant Agreement No. DC-23-023 - The Drug, Gang, and Crime Control
Program allows state, county, local and tribal governments to support
activities that combat drugs, gangs, and violent crime. This grant provides
a significant portion of the funding for a full-time prosecutor to work in
tandem with the Gila County Narcotics Task Forces in an effort to curb
crime in Gila County through investigation, arrest, and prosecution.

Recommendation
Grant Agreement No. DC-23-023 - That the Gila County Board of
Supervisors approves the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Drug,
Gang, and Crime Control Grant Agreement in the amount of $91,758.81.
The Chairman's electronic signature is required.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action for the Board Chairman to electronically
sign Arizona Criminal Justice Commission FY 2023 Drug, Gang, and
Crime Control Grant Agreement No. DC-23-023 in the amount of
$91,758.81 for the period of July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2023. (Jessica
Scibelli)

Attachments
DC-23-023 Award Letter
DC-23-023 Grant Agreement
DocuSign Instructions



























































   
ARF-7567   Regular Agenda Item     3. D.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/20/2022  
Submitted For: Mary Springer, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Mary Springer, Finance Director
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: FY22-24 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

08012022-06302024 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement No. 08302022 with Central
Arizona Governments to provide financial assistance in the amount of
$33,279.78 to continue the regional public transportation authority
project.

Background Information
Over the past several years the public transportation operating within Gila
County has been delineated between the north and the south and does
not function as a County-wide public transportation service to support
the residents of all Gila County communities. Current funding for both
public transportation services is also left to public entities and private
non-profit entities who are willing to participate. In an effort to provide a
regional public transportation solution that is efficient and cost-effective,
Central Arizona Governments (CAG) has engaged a consulting firm
AECOM, to develop the creation of a regional public transportation
authority. Central Arizona Governments is requesting the County's
financial support to continue with this effort.

Evaluation
A regional public transportation plan that is efficient, cost-effective, and
provides for a funding mechanism that supports transportation for Gila
County communities is the desired outcome of the project.

Conclusion
In order to complete the regional public transportation authority plan, it



In order to complete the regional public transportation authority plan, it
is in the best interest of residents within Gila County to fund the project.

Recommendation
Staff recommends approval of Intergovernmental Agreement No.
08302022 to fund the Regional Public Transportation Authority Project.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Intergovernmental Agreement
No. 08302022 with Central Arizona Governments to fund the Regional
Public Transportation Authority Project in the amount of $33,279.78.
(Mary Springer)

Attachments
IGA 08302022 CAG



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 08302022 

BETWEEN  

CENTRAL ARIZONA GOVERNMENTS 

AND GILA COUNTY 

PERTAINING TO CREATION OF AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL PUBLIC TRANSIT 
AUTHORITY, A SEPARATE LEGAL ENTITY 

 This Intergovernmental Agreement is made and entered into by and between CENTRAL 
ARIZONA GOVERNMENTS, a regional planning organization serving Gila and Pinal Counties in the State 
of Arizona, and GILA COUNTY (“County”), a political subdivision of the State of Arizona, hereinafter 
collectively referred to as “the Parties.” 

R E C I T A L S 

 WHEREAS, this Intergovernmental Agreement (“IGA) is authorized pursuant to A.R.S. §§ 11-951, 
et seq., A.R.S. § 11-254.04.; and, 

 WHEREAS, the Parties have a mutual interest in creating a regional intergovernmental public 
transportation authority in Gila County; and, 

 WHEREAS, Gila County residents are in need of a public transit authority that will support public 
transit throughout Gila County that will provide access to reliable public transportation in the 
communities within Gila County; and, 

WHEREAS, Central Arizona Governments has engaged AECOM a company contracted to develop 
the regional intergovernmental public transportation authority plan; and, 

 WHEREAS, the Parties have a mutual interest in working towards developing the regional 
intergovernmental public transportation authority to support social, economic and workforce resiliency 
for Gila County residents; and, 

WHEREAS, in order to move forward with the development of the regional intergovernmental 
public transportation authority plan it is necessary to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement.  

 WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors has determined that exploring the creation of a 
regional intergovernmental public transportation authority will otherwise improve or enhance the 
economic welfare of the inhabitants of the County. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the 
Parties agree as follows: 

I. County agrees to financially assist with the cost of exploring the creation the regional 
intergovernmental public transportation authority plan. 

II. The amount of financial assistance required to complete project is: 
a. AECOM $27,279.78 
b. CAG $5,000.00 



Intergovernmental Agreement 
Gila County and Central Arizona Governments 
Page 2 of 6 
 

 
 
 

c. Total amount of financial assistance provided by Gila County $33,279.78 
 
 

 
III. The term of this agreement shall be from 8/1/2022 through 6/30/2024.   
 
IV. Representatives of the Parties: 

 
The Gila County Manager and the Central Arizona Governments Transportation Director, 
or their designee, shall serve as their entity’s respective representative. 
 

V. General Provisions: 
 
a. Should a dispute arise regarding the interpretation of this IGA, the Representatives 

of the Parties shall attempt to resolve the same within five (5) days.  If unable to do 
so, the Chairman of the County Board of Supervisors and the Central Arizona 
Governments Director shall make such efforts, as necessary, to resolve any such 
dispute.  The terms of a resolution to any dispute arising out of this IGA shall be 
substantiated in writing. 
 

b. Any dispute not resolved pursuant to paragraph (1) of this Section shall be 
submitted to arbitration as set forth I A.R.S. §12-1518. 

 
c. This IGA may be terminated in accordance with the provisions of A.R.S. §38-511. 

Either Party may terminate this Agreement by providing a 30-day written notice to 
the other Party.  
 

d. All notices or demands upon the Parties shall be in writing and delivered to: 
 

Central Arizona Governments   Gila County               
2540 W Apache Trail Suite #108   1400 E. Ash Street 
Apache Junction, Arizona  85120   Globe, AZ  85501 
   

e. Attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference is the determination of each 
Party’s legal counsel of their respective authority to enter into this IGA and, further, 
that the IGA is in proper form. 

f. Non-Appropriation: The Parties are both governmental entities, and the contract 
validity is based upon the availability of public funding under its authority.  In the 
event that public funds are unavailable and not appropriated for the performance of 
either Party’s obligations under this contract, then this contract shall automatically 
expire without penalty to either Party after written notice to the other Party of the 
unavailability and non-appropriation of public funds.  It is expressly agreed that both 
Parties shall only activate this non-appropriation provision as an emergency fiscal 



Intergovernmental Agreement 
Gila County and Central Arizona Governments 
Page 3 of 6 
 

 
 
 

measure.  Neither Party shall activate this non-appropriation provision for its 
convenience or to circumvent the requirements of this contract. 

g. Indemnification: To the fullest extent permitted by law, each Party (as “Indemnitor”) 
agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the other Party, its departments, 
officers, officials, agents, and employees (collectively “Indemnitee”) without 
limitation from and against any and all claims, damages, losses, liabilities, fees, fines, 
costs, or expenses (including, but not limited to, attorney fees, court costs, and cost 
of appellate proceedings) relating to, arising from, resulting from or alleged to have 
arisen from or resulted from this Agreement. Indemnitor’s duty to defend, 
indemnify, and hold harmless Indemnitee shall arise in connection with any and all 
claims, damages, losses, liabilities, fees, fines, or expenses, that are attributable to 
bodily injury, personal injury, sickness, disease, death, or damage to, or destruction 
of tangible or intangible property including the loss of use therefrom caused in 
whole or in part by any act, error, mistake or omission of Indemnitor, its 
departments, officers, officials, employees, agents, vendors, subcontractors or 
anyone for whose acts Indemnitor may be liable. Indemnitor agrees to waive all 
rights of subrogation against Indemnitee. The obligations under this Paragraph shall 
survive the termination of this Agreement.   

h. Anti-Terrorism Warranty:  Pursuant to A.R.S. §§ 35-391.06(A) and 35-393.06(B), the 
Parties certify that they do not have scrutinized business operations in Iran or Sudan 
and that they are in compliance with the Export Administration Act and not on the 
Excluded Parties List. 
 

i. Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance:  The County hereby warrants that it will at 
all times during the life of this Contract comply with all federal immigration laws 
applicable to the employment of their employees, and with the requirements of 
A.R.S. §23-214(A) (together with the “State and Federal Immigration Laws”).  The 
County shall further ensure that each subcontractor who performs any work for the 
County under this contract likewise complies with the State and Federal 
Immigration Laws. 

The County shall the right at any time to inspect the books and records of any 
subcontractor in order to verify such party’s compliance with the State and Federal 
Immigration Laws.  Any breach of the County’s or any subcontractor’s warranty of 
compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws , or of any other provision 
of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this Contract.  If the 
breach is by a subcontractor, and the subcontract is suspended or terminated as a 
result, the County shall be required to take such steps as may be necessary to either 
self-perform the services that would have been provided under the subcontract or 
retain a replacement subcontractor as soon as possible so as not to delay project 
completion.  The County shall advise each subcontractor of the County’s rights, and 
the subcontractor’s obligations, under this Article by including a provision in each 
subcontract substantially in the following form: “Subcontractor hereby warrants 



Intergovernmental Agreement 
Gila County and Central Arizona Governments 
Page 4 of 6 
 

 
 
 

that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all federal 
immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor’s employees, and with the 
requirements of A.R.S. §23-214(A).  Subcontractor further agrees that the County 
may inspect the Subcontractor’s books and records to insure that the Subcontractor 
is in compliance with these requirements.  Any breach of this paragraph by 
Subcontractor will be deemed to be a material breach of this contract subjecting 
Subcontractor to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this 
contract.” 
 
J. CERTIFICATION NO FORCED LABOR 
 
Certification of No Forced Labor: The Company does not currently, and agrees for 
the duration of this Agreement that the Company will not use: 
1. The forced labor of Ethnic Uyghurs in the People’s Republic of China; 
2. Any goods or services produced by the forced labor of Ethnic Uyghurs in the 
People’s Republic of China; and, 
3. Any Vendors, subcontracts, or suppliers that use the forced labor or any goods 
or services produced by the forced labor of Ethnic Uyghurs in the People’s Republic 
of China.  
 
The Company further agrees that if the Company becomes aware, during the term 
of the Agreement, that the Company is not in compliance with this Certification, the 
Company shall notify the County within 5 business days after becoming aware of the 
non-compliance. If the Company does not remedy the non-compliance within 180-
days after sending notice of non-compliance, this Agreement shall automatically 
terminate. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



Intergovernmental Agreement 
Gila County and Central Arizona Governments 
Page 5 of 6 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this IGA this ____ day of ___________, 2022. 

CENTRAL ARIZONA GOVERNMENTS GILA COUNTY 

By: ______________________________ By: ______________________________ 
Title: Andrea Robles, Executive Director Title: Woody Cline, Chairman 

Board of Supervisors 

Date: ______________________________ Date: ______________________________ 

ATTEST: ATTEST: 

____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
NAME – TITLE  James Menlove, Clerk of the Board 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
DETERMINATION 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §11-952, the foregoing Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with CENTRAL 
ARIZONA GOVERNMENTS has been submitted to the undersigned as attorney for GILA COUNTY.  The 
undersigned County Attorney has determined that said IGA is in proper form and is within the powers 
and authority granted under the laws of the State of Arizona to GILA COUNTY. 

DATED this _____ day of ________, 2022. 

By:_____________________________ 
Gila County Attorney’s Office 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
DETERMINATION 

09/02/2022





   
ARF-7574   Regular Agenda Item     3. E.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/20/2022  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Steve Sanders, Director
Department: Public Works Division: Administration
Fiscal Year: FY 22/23 Budgeted?: No
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

10/4/22 thru
12/31/2023

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of USDA Forest Service Road Project Agreement No.
22-RO-11031200-232 for the cooperation in the Four Forest Restoration
Initiative Control Road Surfacing

Background Information
Gila County entered into a Forest Road Cooperative Agreement (Coop
Agreement) on February 5, 2020, in order to plan, survey, design,
construct, reconstruct, improve and maintain listed forest service roads.
Schedule A, which is attached to the Coop Agreement, identifies the
maintenance responsibilities of the parties.

The Coop Agreement allows for specific Project Agreements between the
parties with the intent of completing work as expeditiously as available
funds or work opportunities allow.

Evaluation
The scope of work for this agreement is for the design and construction
associated with the paving of a section of Forest Service Road (FSR) 64
from its intersection with FSR 199 moving west to its intersection with
FSR 32 (approximately 0.65 miles) and moving east to its intersection
with FSR 1190 (approximately 0.48 miles). The total paving of FSR 64
from FSR 32 to FSR 1190 is, therefore, roughly 1.03 miles.

Conclusion
This surfacing project is intended to reduce dust for all homes in the area,



This surfacing project is intended to reduce dust for all homes in the area,
improve the road infrastructure and enhance public health and safety.

Recommendation
The Public Works Department recommends approval of the USDA Forest
Service Road Project Agreement No. 22-RO-11031200-232 for the
cooperation in the Four Forest Restoration Initiative Control Road
Surfacing.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the USDA Forest Service Road
Project Agreement No. 22-RO-11031200-232 for the cooperation in the
Four Forest Restoration Initiative Control Road Surfacing in the
amount of $1,500,000. (Steve Sanders)

Attachments
22-RO-11031200-232 Road Project Agreement
2020 Coop FS Master Agreement



USDA, Forest Service OMB 0596-0217 
FS-1500-9A

Page 1 of 7          (Rev. 11-13) 

 FS Agreement No. 22-RO-11031200-232
Cooperator Agreement No. 

ROAD PROJECT AGREEMENT 
Between 

GILA COUNTY 
And The 

USDA, FOREST SERVICE, TONTO NATIONAL FOREST 

This Project Agreement (agreement) is hereby made and entered into by and between Gila 
County, hereinafter referred to as “Gila County,” and the USDA, Forest Service, Tonto National 
Forest, hereinafter referred to as the “U.S. Forest Service,” as specified under the authority and 
provisions of the Cooperative Forest Road Agreement #20-RO-11031200-003 executed between 
the parties on 02/05/2020.

Project Title: Four Forest Restoration Initiative Control Road Surfacing 

I. BACKGROUND: 

The parties entered into a Forest Road Cooperative Agreement (Coop Agreement) on 
02/05/202 .  This Coop Agreement allows for the parties to cooperate in the planning, survey, 
design, construction, reconstruction, improvement, and maintenance of certain forest roads.  The 
Schedule A, which is attached to the Coop Agreement, identifies the 
maintenance responsibilities of the parties to the specific road systems and may be revised as 
necessary. The process of revising the Schedule A can be labor intensive and time consuming 
due to requiring extensive valuations and several levels of formal review.  Accordingly, formal 
revision of the Schedule A does not readily lend itself to rapid response times, adjusting to 
limited funding opportunities and a high degree of site condition specificity. 

The Coop Agreement allows for specific Project Agreements between the parties with the intent 
of completing work as expeditiously as available funds or work opportunities allow. 

The Coop Agreement identifies numerous requirements for the development of Project 
Agreements.  These requirements include but are not limited to: 

The specific project (road) must be included in an approved U.S. Forest Service –
Cooperator plan (Schedule A).
Mutual approval.
The cost to be borne by each party.
The amount of cooperative funds as set forth in the Project Agreement shall be the
maximum commitment of either party unless changed by a formal modification prior to
incurring any expense.
Work must be completed in accordance with agreed upon standards.



 USDA, Forest Service OMB 0596-0217 
FS-1500-9A 

 

Page 2 of 7                                                                (Rev. 11-13) 

 
II.  PURPOSE: 
 
The purpose of this Project Agreement (agreement) is to document the parties’ cooperation in the 
Four Forest Restoration Initiative Control Road Surfacing.  The work is as described in the 
hereby incorporated Operating Plan, Financial Plan, and Map attached as Attachment A, B, and 
C respectively. 
 
III.  THE COOPERATOR SHALL: 
 

A. Perform in accordance with the Operating Plan and Financial Plan, Attachment A and B, 
respectively. 
 

B. Bill the U.S. Forest Service for actual costs incurred, not to exceed $1,500,000.00. 
 
IV.  THE U.S. FOREST SERVICE SHALL: 
 

A. Perform in accordance with the Operating Plan and Financial Plan, Attachment A and B, 
respectively. 
 

B. PAYMENT/REIMBURSEMENT.  The U.S. Forest Service shall reimburse Gila County 
for the U.S. Forest Service’s share of actual expenses incurred, not to exceed 
$1,500,000.00, as shown in the Financial Plan.  The U.S. Forest Service shall make 
payment upon receipt of Gila County’s quarterly  invoice.  Each invoice from Gila County 
must display the total project costs for the billing period.  
 
Each invoice must include, at a minimum: 

1) Gila County’s name, address, and telephone number 
2) U.S. Forest Service agreement number 
3) Invoice date 
4) Performance dates of the work completed (start and end) 
5) Total invoice amount for the billing period 
 

The invoice must be forwarded to: 
    U.S. Forest Service 
    Albuquerque Service Center 

   Payments – Grants & Agreements 
   101B Sun Ave NE 
   Albuquerque, NM 87109 
 

   EMAIL:  SM.FS.ASC_GA@USDA.GOV 
   FAX:  877-687-4894  

 
Send a copy to:  Cory Brunsting, electronically at cory.brunsting@usda.gov 
 



 USDA, Forest Service OMB 0596-0217 
FS-1500-9A 

 

Page 3 of 7                                                                (Rev. 11-13) 

V.  IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED AND UNDERSTOOD BY AND BETWEEN THE 
PARTIES THAT: 
 

A. PRINCIPAL CONTACTS. Individuals listed below are authorized to act in their respective 
areas for matters related to this agreement. 
 

Principal Cooperator Contacts:   
 

Cooperator Program Contact Cooperator Administrative Contact 
Steve Sanders 
745 N Rose Mofford Way 
Globe, AZ 85501 
Telephone: 928-402-8530 
Email: ssanders@gilacountyaz.gov 

Steve Sanders 
745 N Rose Mofford Way 
Globe, AZ 85501 
Telephone: 928-402-8530 
Email: ssanders@gilacountyaz.gov 

 
Principal U.S. Forest Service Contacts: 

 
U.S. Forest Service Program Manager 

Contact 
U.S. Forest Service Administrative 

Contact 
Cory Brunsting 
2324 E McDowell Road 
Phoenix, AZ 85006 
Telephone: 602-762-3220 
Email: cory.brunsting@usda.gov 

Brian Speeg 
333 Broadway Blvd SE 
Albuquerque, NM 87102 
Telephone:  
Email: brian.speeg@usda.gov 

 
B. ASSURANCE REGARDING FELONY CONVICTION OR TAX DELINQUENT 

STATUS FOR CORPORATE ENTITIES.  This agreement is subject to the provisions 
contained in the Department of Interior, Environment, and Related Agencies 
Appropriations Act, 2012, P.L. No. 112-74, Division E, Section 433 and 434  as 
continued by Consolidated and Further Continuing Appropriations Act, 2013, P.L. No. 
113-6, Division F, Title I, Section 1101 (a)(3) regarding corporate felony convictions 
and corporate federal tax delinquencies. Accordingly, by entering into this agreement 
Gila County  acknowledges that it: 1) does not have a tax delinquency, meaning that it 
is not subject to any unpaid Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all 
judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted or have lapsed, and that is not 
being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible 
for collecting the tax liability, and (2) has not been convicted (or had an officer or agent 
acting on its behalf convicted) of a felony criminal violation under any Federal law 
within 24 months preceding the agreement, unless a suspending and debarring official 
of the United States Department of Agriculture has considered suspension or debarment 
is not necessary to protect the interests of the Government.  If Gila County fails to 
comply with these provisions, the U.S. Forest Service will annul this agreement and 
may recover any funds Gila County has expended in violation of sections 433 and 434. 

 



 USDA, Forest Service OMB 0596-0217 
FS-1500-9A 

 

Page 4 of 7                                                                (Rev. 11-13) 

C. In the event of a conflict between this Project Agreement and the Coop Agreement, the 
latter shall take precedence. 

 
D. FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT (FOIA).  Public access to award or agreement 

records must not be limited, except when such records must be kept confidential and 
would have been exempted from disclosure pursuant to Freedom of Information 
regulations (5 USC 552). Requests for research data are subject to 2 CFR 215.36. 

 
Public access to culturally sensitive data and information of Federally-recognized Tribes 
may also be explicitly limited by P.L. 110-234, Title VIII Subtitle B §8106 (2008 Farm 
Bill). 

 
E. TEXT MESSAGING WHILE DRIVING.  In accordance with Executive Order (EO) 

13513, “Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving,” any and all 
text messaging by Federal employees is banned: a) while driving a Government owned 
vehicle (GOV) or driving a privately owned vehicle (POV) while on official 
Government business; or b) using any electronic equipment supplied by the 
Government when driving any vehicle at any time. All Cooperatives, their Employees, 
Volunteers, and Contractors are encouraged to adopt and enforce policies that ban text 
messaging when driving company owned, leased or rented vehicles, POVs or GOVs 
when driving while on official Government business or when performing any work for 
or on behalf of the Government.

 
F. FUNDING EQUIPMENT.  Federal funding under this agreement is not available for 

reimbursement of Gila County’s purchase of equipment. Equipment is defined as 
having a fair market value of $5,000 or more per unit and a useful life of over 1 year.

 
G. PARTICIPATION IN SIMILAR ACTIVITIES.  This agreement in no way restricts the 

U.S. Forest Service or Gila County from participating in similar activities with other 
public or private agencies, organizations, and individuals. 

 
H. ENDORSEMENT.  Any of Gila County’s contributions made under this agreement do 

not by direct reference or implication convey U.S. Forest Service endorsement of Gila 
County’s products or activities. 

 
I. ALTERNATE DISPUTE RESOLUTION.  In the event of any issue of controversy 

under this agreement, the parties may pursue Alternate Dispute Resolution procedures 
to voluntarily resolve those issues.  These procedures may include, but are not limited 
to, conciliation, facilitation, mediation, and fact finding. 

 
J.  PROHIBITION AGAINST INTERNAL CONFIDENTIAL AGREEMENTS:  All non 

federal government entities working on this agreement will adhere to the below 
provisions found in the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2016, Pub. L. 114-113,    
relating to reporting fraud, waste and abuse to authorities: 

 



USDA, Forest Service OMB 0596-0217 
FS-1500-9A

Page 5 of 7          (Rev. 11-13) 

(a) The recipient may not require its employees, contractors, or
subrecipients seeking to report fraud, waste, or abuse to sign or
comply with internal confidentiality agreements or statements
prohibiting or otherwise restricting them from lawfully reporting that
waste, fraud, or abuse to a designated investigative or law
enforcement representative of a Federal department or agency
authorized to receive such information.

(b) The recipient must notify its employees, contractors, or subrecipients
that the prohibitions and restrictions of any internal confidentiality
agreements inconsistent with paragraph (a) of this award provision are
no longer in effect.

(c) The prohibition in paragraph (a) of this award provision does not
contravene requirements applicable to any other form issued by a
Federal department or agency governing the nondisclosure of 
classified information. 

(d) If the Government determines that the recipient is not in compliance
with this award provision, it: 

(1) Will prohibit the recipient's use of funds under this award, in accordance
with sections 743, 744 of Division E of the Consolidated 
Appropriations Act, 2016, (Pub. L. 114-113) or any successor provision of law; 
and 

(2) May pursue other remedies available for the recipient's material
failure to comply with award terms and conditions. 

K. MODIFICATION.  Modifications within the scope of this agreement must be made by
mutual consent of the parties, by the issuance of a written modification signed and 
dated by all properly authorized, signatory officials, prior to any changes being 
performed.  Requests for modification should be made, in writing, at least 30 days prior 
to implementation of the requested change.  The U.S. Forest Service is not obligated to 
fund any changes not properly approved in advance. 

L. TERMINATION.  Either party, in writing, may terminate this agreement in whole, or
in part, at any time before the date of expiration.  Neither party shall incur any new
obligations for the terminated portion of this agreement after the effective date and shall
cancel as many obligations as possible.  Full credit shall be allowed for each party’s
expenses and all non-cancelable obligations properly incurred up to the effective date
of termination. (Excess funds must be refunded within 60 days after the effective date,
OR Excess funds must be refunded in accordance with the REFUND provision of the
agreement).



USDA, Forest Service OMB 0596-0217 
FS-1500-9A

Page 6 of 7          (Rev. 11-13) 

M. COMMENCEMENT/EXPIRATION DATE.  This agreement is executed as of the date
of last signature and is effective through two years from the date of last signature at
which time it will expire. The expiration date is the final date for completion of all
work activities under this agreement.



USDA, Forest Service OMB 0596-0217 
FS-1500-9A

Page 7 of 7          (Rev. 11-13) 

N. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES.  By signature below, the parties certify that the
individuals listed in this document as representatives of each party are authorized to act
in their respective areas for matters related to this agreement.

This agreement shall be effective as of the date herein written and shall supersede all prior 
existing agreements, if any, for the same roads. 

WOODY CLINE, Chairman 
Gila County, Board of Supervisors 

Date 

NEIL BOSWORTH, Forest Supervisor 
U.S. Forest Service, Tonto National Forest  

Date 

JAMES MENLOVE 
Gila County, Clerk of the Board 

Date 

The authority and format of this agreement have been reviewed and approved for 
signature. 
                                                                                                   
KAREN DYCKES Y MONTANO 
U.S. Forest Service Grants Management Specialist 
Agreement No. 22-RO-11031200-232 

Date 

Burden Statement 

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, an agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to a collection of information 
unless it displays a valid OMB control number.  The valid OMB control number for this information collection is 0596-0217.  The time required to complete this 
information collection is estimated to average 4 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and 
maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. 

In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and 
employees, and institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, 
gender identity (including gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/parental status, income derived from a public assistance 
program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all bases apply to all 
programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or incident.  

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, 
etc.) should contact the responsible Agency or USDA's TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service 
at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program information may be made available in languages other than English.  

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at How to File a Program 
Discrimination Complaint and at any USDA office or write a letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form. To 
request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or letter to USDA by: (1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture, Office of 
the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights, 1400 Independence Avenue, SW, Washington, D.C. 20250-9410; (2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or (3) email: 
program.intake@usda.gov. USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender. 

Karen Dyckes y Montaño Digitally signed by Karen Dyckes y Montaño 
Date: 2022.09.07 15:01:28 -06'00'



Agreement No. 
22-RO-11031200-232

STATEMENT OF WORK 
Four Forest Restoration Initiative Control Road Surfacing 

Gila County Public Works & Tonto National Forest Engineering 

I. BACKGROUND

Forest Service Road (FSR) 64, Control Road, is a 2-lane, native surface, arterial road and 
main corridor through the Tonto National Forest as well as Gila County, Arizona. This 
road provides access to numerous residential communities north of Payson and below the 
Mogollon Rim. The road is also a connector between SR-87 and SR-260.  

FSR 64 is located within the Four Forest Restoration Initiative (4FRI) area.  4FRI is a 
collaborative, landscape-scale initiative designed to restore fire-adapted ecosystems, 
which includes, among other goals, reducing fuels through timber harvesting and thus, 
helping to reduce the risk of unnaturally severe wildfires.  FSR 64 is a primary route for 
transporting harvested timber associated with the 4FRI project. 

Whispering Pines is a subdivision located off of FSR 64 at the intersection with FSR 199, 
Houston Mesa Road.  Paving to the east and west of this intersection along FSR 64 for a 
total length of approximately 1.03 miles has been identified as a high priority Gila 
County transportation need.  Road paving would reduce particulate matter (dust) for all 
homes in the area, particularly from logging trucks transporting timber.  In addition to 
improving air quality, paving the road segment would improve system efficiency, 
preserve the existing infrastructure, and improve visibility, thereby enhancing safety for 
the travelling public and providing safer access to residential communities in the area. 

The Tonto National Forest is supportive of these actions to meet the transportation needs 
of Gila County and the public that they serve. 

II. SCOPE OF WORK

This agreement is for a Road Project Agreement underneath the Cooperative Road 
Maintenance Agreement that is in place with Gila County, Agreement Number: 20-RO-
11031200-003. Gila County has a vested interest in paving a section of FSR 64 at the 
intersection with FSR 199 due to the presence of the Whispering Pines community that 
currently contends with poor air quality and substantial dust produced from logging 
trucks and other motorized vehicles.  

The scope of work for this road project agreement with Gila County is for the design and 
construction associated with paving a section of FSR 64 from its intersection with FSR 
199 moving west to its intersection with FSR 32 (approximately 0.65 miles) and moving 
east to its intersection with FSR 1190 (approximately 0.48 miles).  Total paving of FSR 
64 from FSR 32 to FSR 1190 is therefore, roughly 1.03 miles.   



Agreement No. 
22-RO-11031200-232 Attachment A 

The Forest Service will provide Gila County (cooperator) with $1.5M to fund one 
contract that will cover all construction work associated with this project, including 
paving the 1.03-mile section of FSR 64, incorporating new stormwater features and/or re-
establishing existing features necessary for effectively managing stormwater runoff, 
ensuring shoulders and embankments are stabilized, restoring the roadbed in preparation 
for surfacing, installing traffic signs and other traffic control devices, and implementing 
other best management practices necessary for promoting road user safety.  

Gila County surveyors will perform surveying and staking of the proposed road  
paving, and Gila County engineers will develop engineered drawings, specifications, and 
other related plans for in-house design (e.g. Temporary traffic control plan, erosion and 
sediment control plan, etc.). Gila County engineers will also conduct project management 
and contract administration for in-house design and contracted construction.  None of the 
earmarked funds from the Forest Service will pay for Gila County staff or services. 

Forest Service Engineering staff will review Gila County’s engineered drawings, 
specifications, and other related plans (e.g. Temporary traffic control plan, erosion and 
sediment control plan, etc.), perform inspections of the project construction and 
implementation, and conduct close-out and post-construction tasks (e.g. Update ArcGIS, 
NRM, Travel Management, etc.). 

This surfacing project is intended to reduce dust for all homes in the area, improve the 
road infrastructure, and enhance public health and safety. 

III. DEFINITIONS

Not applicable. 

IV. GOVERNMENT FURNISHED MATERIALS

No Federal Government furnished materials will be supplied as part of this agreement. 
Only funding is being provided under this road project agreement. 

V. RECIPIENT FURNISHED ITEMS/SERVICES

Gila County will be providing the design and construction associated with paving a 1.03-
mile segment of FSR 64 from FSR 32 to FSR 1190 as well as the completion of other 
accompanying tasks outlined in this document and in the project agreement.  All work 
will conform to current design and construction standards and specifications. 

Gila County will be responsible for coordinating any necessary reviews by other entities 
outside of Gila County and the Tonto National Forest. Gila County will also be 
responsible for obtaining any necessary signatures on this document. 



Agreement No. 
22-RO-11031200-232 Attachment A 

VI. TIMEFRAME

The timeframe to complete items captured in this statement of work will be a maximum 
of two years from the final signature being obtained on the agreement documents. 

VII. DELIVERABLES

Engineered drawings and specifications
Project schedule
Soil test results (e.g. density, compaction, etc.) for backfill material (per Section
209 of FP-14) if required.
Certification for asphalt concrete composition of mix (per Section 403 of FP-14).
Aggregate test results (e.g. gradation, etc.) for base and surface course.
Aggregate shall be obtained from an approved source, certified weed free.
Sign plan (per MUTCD and FS Sign Guidelines, EM-7100-15)
Temporary traffic control plan (per Sections 156 and 635 of FP-14).
Erosion and sediment control plan (per Section 157 of FP-14).

IX. QUALITY ASSURANCE

Quality Assurance reviews of revised/updated information used for this project
shall be completed by Gila County. These reviews shall be coordinated with
Tonto National Forest as for concurrence/approvals of the changes made.

X. POINTS OF CONTACT

Gila County Public Works – Steve Sanders, (928) 402-8530,
ssanders@gilacountyaz.gov
Tonto National Forest Engineering – Cory Brunsting, (602) 762-3220,
cory.brunsting@usda.gov
Tonto National Forest Grants & Agreements – Tammi Banks, (480) 640-6342,
tammi.banks@usda.gov



U.S. Forest Service OMB 0596-0217
FS-1500-17B

Attachment: B
USFS Agreement No.: Mod. No.:

Cooperator Agreement No.:

Financial Plan Matrix: Note: All columns may not be used. Use depends on source and type of contribution(s).

(a) (b) (c) (d)

Cash
COST ELEMENTS Noncash to Noncash In-Kind 
Direct Costs Cooperator
Salaries/Labor $8,100.00 $0.00 $27,000.00 $0.00 $35,100.00
Travel $514.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $514.00
Equipment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Supplies/Materials $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Printing $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Other $0.00 $1,500,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,500,000.00
Other $0.00
Subtotal $8,614.00 $1,500,000.00 $27,000.00 $0.00 $1,535,614.00
Coop Indirect Costs $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
FS Overhead Costs $1,119.82 $1,119.82
Total $9,733.82 $1,500,000.00 $27,000.00 $0.00

$1,536,733.82

(a+b) ÷ (e) = (f)
Total Cooperator Share
(c+d) ÷ (e) = (g)
Total (f+g) = (h)

Total Project Value:

(e)
Total

1.76%

Agreements Financial Plan (Short Form)

22-RO-11031200-232

Note:   This Financial Plan may be used when:
(1) No program income is expected and
(2) The Cooperator is not giving cash to the FS and
(3) There is no other Federal funding

FOREST SERVICE CONTRIBUTIONS COOPERATOR CONTRIBUTIONS

100.00%
(h)

(g)

Matching Costs Determination
Total Forest Service Share = (f)

98.24%

Page 3



Standard Calculation
Job Description Cost/Day # of Days Total

Forest Service engineering 
staff to review engineered 
drawings, specifications, and 
other related plans (e.g. 
Temporary traffic control 
plan, erosion and sediment 
control plan, etc.) $450.00 10.00 $4,500.00
Forest Service engineering 
staff to perform inspections 
of project construction and 
implementation. $450.00 6.00 $2,700.00

Forest Service engineering 
staff to conduct close-out 
and post-construction tasks 
(e.g. Update ArcGIS, NRM, 
Travel Management, etc.) $450.00 2.00 $900.00

Total Salaries/Labor $8,100.00

Standard Calculation
Travel Expense Employees Cost/Trip # of Trips Total

Mileage from Tonto SO to 
Control Road (102 miles one 
way) for FS engineering staff 
to conduct field inspections 
(GSA - $0.22/mile)
(Fuel cost - $0.20/mile) 1.5 $85.68 4.00 $514.00

Total Travel $514.00

Current Overhead Rate Total
13.00% $1,119.82

Total FS Overhead Costs $1,119.82

$8,614.00

Subtotal Direct Costs

Forest Service Overhead Costs

FS Non-Cash Contribution Cost Analysis, Column (a)

TOTAL COST $9,733.82

Subtotal Direct Costs

Travel

Salaries/Labor

$8,614.00

WORKSHEET FOR



Item # of Units Cost/Unit Total
Earmarked Funding under 
annual budget 
authorizations for one 
contract that covers  
construction work along 
FSR 64.* Contract 1.00 $1,500,000.00 $1,500,000.00

Total Other $1,500,000.00

Current Overhead Rate Total
$0.00
$0.00

Cooperator elects not to assess an indirect cost rate.

TOTAL COST $1,500,000.00

$1,500,000.00

Total Coop. Indirect Costs

Other Expenses

Subtotal Direct Costs
Cooperator Indirect Costs

Subtotal Direct Costs
$1,500,000.00

*County’s estimate is based on market research and costs from other construction
contracts for similar work

WORKSHEET FOR

Standard Calculation

FS Cash to the Cooperator Cost Analysis, Column (b)



Job Description Cost/Day # of Days Total
County surveyors to perform 
surveying and staking of 
proposed road 
paving $450.00 10.00 $4,500.00

County engineers to develop 
engineered drawings, 
specifications, and other 
related plans (e.g. 
Temporary traffic control 
plan, erosion and sediment 
control plan, etc.) $450.00 20.00 $9,000.00

County engineers to conduct 
project management and 
contract administration for in-
house design and 
contracted construction. $450.00 30.00 $13,500.00

Total Salaries/Labor $27,000.00

Current Overhead Rate Total
$0.00
$0.00

Cooperator elects not to assess an indirect cost rate.

TOTAL COST $27,000.00

$27,000.00

Total Coop. Indirect Costs

Subtotal Direct Costs

Cooperator Indirect Costs

Subtotal Direct Costs
$27,000.00

WORKSHEET FOR

Cooperator Non-Cash Contribution Cost Analysis, Column (c)
Salaries/Labor

Standard Calculation



Third
Crossing

Arizona Cactus-Pine
Girl Scout Camp

FDR1178

SH
AD

O
W

R
IM

 C
AM

P

FDR 1565

FD
R

12
03

A
FD

R 
15

73

C
H

ASE

C
R

EEK

FDR 1569

FD
R 1

36
0

FDR 1564

FDR 1182

FDR 1182A

FDR 1570

FD
R

 1183

DU
DE

 C
RE

EK

FDR 1562

NORTH SYCAMORE CR FDR 1203

FDR 1563

FD
R

 1
51

9

HOUSTON M
ESA

VE
RD

E 
G

LE
N 

NO
RT

H

W
AS

H
IN

G
TO

N
 P

AR
K

CONTROL ROAD

Legend
Control Road (FSR 64) Surfacing

Forest Service Road

Perennial

Intermittent

4FRI Tonto Control Road Surfacing Location Map

±

0 0.25 0.5 0.75 10.125
Miles

Project Location Description

Project Beginning - Intersection with Washington Park Road (FSR 32)
Project Ending - Intersection with Verde Glen North Road (FSR 1190)



























   
ARF-7559   Regular Agenda Item     3. F.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/20/2022  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Shannon Boyer, Executive Administrative Asst.
Department: Public Works

Information
Request/Subject
Adopt Resolution No. 22-09-06 for the extinguishment of a utility
easement

Background Information
Alhambra Heights, Plat No. 333 Gila County Records was recorded in
1966. Streets and easements were dedicated to the public. The plat
included a sixteen-foot wide utility easement between lots 1-16. Utilities
were located in the streets and not in the easement. Over time homes were
built over the easement.

Evaluation
Utilities are located in the streets making the platted easement no longer
necessary.

Conclusion
Extinguishing the existing utility easement, it will allow property owners
to maximize their lots.

Recommendation
The Public Works Department recommends extinguishing the sixteen-foot
wide utility easement shown on the plat of Alhambra Heights, Official
Map Number 333, Gila County Records.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 22-09-06 for the
extinguishment of that sixteen-foot wide utility easement shown on the
map of Alhambra Heights, Official Map Number 333, Gila County
Records. (Steve Sanders)



Attachments
Resolution No. 22-09-06
Exhibit A



Resolution 22-09-06  Page 1 of 2 
  
 
 

When recorded please send to 
Melissa Henderson, BOS 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-09-06 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS FOR THE EXTINGUISHMENT OF AN EASEMENT 
PURSUANT TO ARIZONA REVISED STATUTE (A.R.S.) § 28-7214 
AND SHOWN ON EXHIBIT “A” ATTACHED HERETO AND BY 
THIS REFERENCE MADE A PART HEREOF. 

 
WHEREAS, A.R.S. §28-7214 authorizes the Gila County Board of Supervisors to extinguish by 
resolution easements that are no longer necessary for public use; and, 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of Gila County to extinguish a sixteen-foot wide utility 
easement shown on the Plat of Alhambra Heights, Official Map Number 333, Gila County 
Records, Gila County, AZ; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the sixteen-foot wide utility easement to be extinguished is more particularly 
shown on the attached Exhibit “A”; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Gila County Board of Supervisors that Gila 
County’s rights and interest in the sixteen-foot wide utility easement described above be 
extinguished. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of September 2022, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 
 
Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
_______________________________ __________________________________ 
James Menlove, Clerk of the Board  Woody Cline, Chairman 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
_______________________________ 
The Gila County Attorney’s Office 



Resolution 22-09-06  Page 2 of 2 
  
 
 

 
 

 



(928) 402-8899745 N. Rose Mofford Way
Globe, AZ 85501 FAX (928) 425-8104

Gila County Public Works

STEVE  SANDERS,  DIRECTOR

EXHIBIT  "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Gila County Recorded Plat 333

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALHAMBRA  HEIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.S. HWY. 70

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALHAMBRA

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
E DAOU

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
E MONTECITO

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S MONTEREY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S ARCADIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
S ARCADIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
37

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
38

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
39

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
E. MONTECITO

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION 35

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC UTILITIES EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTINGUISHMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALHAMBRA HEIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
16' WIDE PUBLIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITIES EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO BE EXTINGUISHED



   
ARF-7546   Regular Agenda Item     3. G.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/20/2022  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Public Works
Fiscal Year: FY2023 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

09-06-22 to 09-05-23 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Award Contract in Response to Invitation for Bids (IFB) No.
060322-On-Call Pavement Markings

Background Information
In the past, Public Works requested roadway striping as a roadway project
was completed or with an informal bid for a few roads at a time. In order
to facilitate pavement marking on a regular basis, Public Works is
requesting a potentially larger contract that has the opportunity for
renewal.

On July 5, 2022, the Board approved to advertise IFB No. 060322 
On-Call Pavement Marking and it was advertised by the Silver Belt on
July 13, 2022, and July 20, 2022. The bids were due August 16, 2022, at
3:00 pm to the Gila County Finance Department. Four sealed bids were
received and the pricing was discussed among Public Works staff before
sending in an agenda item to Finance for the contract award.

Evaluation
The prices from the lowest to the second highest was a great amount and
it was determined that only one bidder be considered for the contract as
the other 3 were considerably higher. The lowest price bidder has worked
with Gila County before and the work was always acceptable and
professional. The paint for this type of striping is not the high-end heated
paint that the Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT) uses on its
primary roads. Public Works will bid for a specialty specification should a



need arise for that type of marking.

Conclusion
With the difference in pricing, we wouldn’t have much need for the second
highest priced company. Rarely do the Consolidated Roads need
emergency striping for the maintained roads. The plan for road marking is
made well in advance. Instead of contracting with 2 companies as first
thought, Gila County will use only one contractor.

This contract will have the option of three (3) one (1) year extensions if
agreed by both parties.

Recommendation
The Public Works Department Director and staff request the award to
Traffic Safety, Inc., for IFB No. 060322 On-Call Pavement Markings. The
current FY2023 budget calls for $90,000 in pavement marking out of the
Consolidated Roads budget. In subsequent years Public Works may ask
for more or less, depending upon what has been budgeted.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Invitation
for Bids No. 060322 for On-Call Pavement Marking; award contract to
the lowest, most responsive, responsible, and qualified bidder to Traffic
Safety, Inc. for a not to exceed the amount of $90,000 for a period of one
year with the option of three one-year renewals. (Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Invitation for Bids No. 060322 with Award Contract
Addendum 1
As Read Bid Results
Franklin Striping-Sealed Bid
Hulxe Construction Services-Sealed Bid
Pavement Marking-Sealed Bid









































































INVITATION FOR BIDS NO. 060322 
ADDENDUM #1 

 

 

 

  

 

 

GILA COUNTY 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) NO. 060322 

ON-CALL PAVEMENT MARKINGS 

 

ADDENDUM #1:   

DATE: 08/10/2022 

 

CLARIFICATIONS: 

 

Question:  The County is requesting a bid bond of 10% for the total sum of this proposal 

but there are no quantities and therefore have no total. 

Answer: The ceiling amount per FY2023 budget to pay on pavement marking is $88,500. 

See the attachment A for Quantities. 

 





































































































































   
ARF-7547   Regular Agenda Item     3. H.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/20/2022  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Public Works
Fiscal Year: 2023 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

10-18-22 to 06-30-23 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Request to Advertise Invitation for Bids No. 082122-One (1) New Ford
F350 Super Cab 4x4 Cab and Chassis

Background Information
The advertisement for one (1) New Ford F-350 Super Cab 4X4 Cab and
Chassis w/ Steel Crane Body would allow the County General Services
Division the ability to receive proposals from automotive supplies and
have the option to purchase this vehicle during this fiscal year.

The vehicle mentioned in this agenda request would be a better-suited
and equipped vehicle to be used for field repairs as well as make for a
more effective Emergency Response vehicle. This vehicle would replace
(C-083) a 2001 Dodge 1 Ton Flatbed which is 21 years of age with 55,000
miles on it. With the low miles, C-083 could be re-purposed into another
department that would better suit their needs or would be sold at auction.

Evaluation
It is the intent of this solicitation to use HURF funds to establish the
purchase of one (1) New Ford F-350 Super Cab 4X4 Cab and Chassis, 11’
Steel Crane Body with equipment including a 16,000 FT/LB C/S
mounted crane, Lincoln Ranger 305 G EFI engine driven welder R/S
mounted on top of rear Compartment and Belaire 12-hp 30-gallon two
stage truck mount Air Comp. with Honda electric start engine-mounted
front of crane body for General Services Globe Shop use.



Conclusion
The vehicle that will be purchased from this Invitation for Bid will be
assigned to be used in/out of the Public Works General Services Globe
Shop location and will replace a vehicle that exceeds 21 years of age and
inadequately suits the Globe shop’s current needs.

Recommendation
The Public Works Department Director recommends that the Board of
Supervisors approve the advertisement of Invitation for Bids No. 082122
for the purchase of One (1) new Ford F350 Super Cab 4x4 Cab and
Chassis with Upfitting as outlined in the solicitation.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of
Invitation for Bids No. 082122 for the purchase of One (1) new Ford F350
Super Cab 4x4 Cab and Chassis. (David LaForge)

Attachments
Request to Advertise
IFB No. 082122



  

Bids X Proposals
     

      

 
FUNDING Approx $105,000 PROJECTS:

Fund 6500 Dept No. 341 Program 527 Location 000 Account

INTENT

with Honda electric start engine-mounted front of crane

Signed:  Date

DATE Department Receipt Placed on Agenda

Presented to Board Approved to Call

Delivered to Paper Paper Name

Advertised          From To

Closing Date Bid Award Date

Awarded To Pre-Bid Meeting Date
  

Department Name:

Date

Department Name:

Date

Finance Director Signature Date

Department Head Signature

IV.  APPROVED 

III.  OTHER APPROVAL:     Only as necessary

Department Head Signature

 

Payson Roundup

9/20/2022

10/18/20229/27/2022

All departments procuring purchases in excess of $50,000 that requires advertising for bids must follow the Procurement Procedures and 

must complete Item "I" of this form prior to such purchase.  The requesting department is responsible for writing necessary specifications

and routing them, including this form and completed Bid Request Form to the Purchasing Department.  This Form must be completed and

have a copy of the specifications attached before routing begins.  All Requests and Specifications will be in accordance with the Arizona

Revised Statutes and the latest version of the Gila County Purchasing Policy and Procedures.

9/13/2022

9/6/2022

Purchase a One (1) New Ford F-350 4X4 Cab and Chassis, 11’ Steel Crane Body with equipt. including Lincoln Ranger 305 G EFI
engine driven welder R/S mounted on top of rear Compartment and Belaire 12-hp 30-gallon two stage truck mount Air Comp. 

Elected Official or Department Head

II.  DEPARTMENTAL INFORMATION ONLY:    Action Dates

I.  DESCRIPTION:    List item(s) to be purchased, purpose, specific summary, estimated cost and funding  source.  

4500.50

EXHIBIT "H"
GILA COUNTY DEPARTMENTAL REQUEST TO ADVERTISE FOR BIDS

Qualifications

REQUEST NUMBER

(For Procurement Use Only)

IS THIS A REQUEST FOR         Check one



 

 

 

 
 

GILA COUNTY 
 

NOTICE OF INVITATION FOR BID 
 
 

BID NO. 082122 
 
 

One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Cab 4x4 Cab and Chassis 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

*BOARD OF SUPERVISORS* 
Woody Cline, Chairman 

Steve Christensen, Vice Chairman 
Tim Humphrey, Member 

 
 
 

*COUNTY MANAGER* 
James Menlove 

 

 

 

 

 



1 

 

 

GILA COUNTY 
PROCUREMENT GROUP 

NOTICE OF INVITATION FOR BID 
 

SOLICITATION NUMBER 
082122 

1400 E. Ash Street 
Globe, Arizona 

85501 
 

 
BID DUE DATE:      Tuesday, September 27, 2022                             TIME:  1:00 PM 
 
DESCRIPTION:      One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Cab 4x4 Cab and Chassis 
                                 
 
Bid Opening Location:  GILA COUNTY FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
    ATTN: BETTY HURST 
    COPPER BUILDING  
    1350 EAST MONROE GLOBE, ARIZONA  85501 
 
Bid Submittal Location:  GILA COUNTY FINANCE DEPARTMENT, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ  85501 
     
Invitation for Bid for the materials and services specified will be received by the Gila County Procurement 
Group at the above specified location until the time and date cited. 
 
Request for submittals after the specified date and time to the Procurement Group shall not be considered.  
To receive bid documents, contact the Procurement Group at (928) 402-4355 or click on the following link to 
the County website. http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php  
 
Additional instructions for preparing a bid are provided on pages 4-6 of the bid documents to Offerors as 
contained within the solicitation. 
 
The Board of Supervisors reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, or to accept any proposal, or to 
waive any informality in any proposal, or to withhold the award if deemed in the best interest of Gila County.   
 
All procurement activities conducted by Gila County are in conformance with the rules and regulations of the 
Gila County Procurement Group Statement of Procedures.  A copy of the Gila County Procurement Group 
Statement of Procedures is available for review in the Deputy Clerk of the Board’s office, Globe, AZ. 
 
Arizona Silver Belt advertisement dates:   September 13, 2022, and September 20, 2022.  

BIDDERS ARE STRONGLY ENCOURAGED TO CAREFULLY READ THE ENTIRE SOLICITATION. 
 
Designated Department:        Gila County Fleet Management 
Type of contract: Term 
Term of Contract: Twelve Months  
Phone Number: (928) 402-8525 
 

 
Signed:  _____________________________________________________ Date:  ________________ 
 Woody Cline, Chairman, Board of Supervisors 

 
Signed:  _____________________________________________________ Date:  ________________  
              The Gila County Attorney’s Office 
 

http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php


2 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 

     CONTENT           PAGE 

 
Solicitation ............................................................................................................................. 1 

Scope of Work ........................................................................................................................ 3 

Exhibit “A” Instructions to Vendors ...................................................................................... 4-6 

 Preparation of Sealed Bid ........................................................................................................... 4 
 Amendments ........................................................................................................................... 4-5 
 Inquiries ...................................................................................................................................... 5 
 Late Bids ..................................................................................................................................... 5 
 Submittal Bid Format ............................................................................................................... 5-6 

General Terms and Conditions ............................................................................................. 7-8 

 Award of Contract ...................................................................................................................... 7 
 Protests ....................................................................................................................................... 7 
 Laws & Ordinances ..................................................................................................................... 8 

Exhibit “B” Contract Award Agreement ............................................................................... 8-10 

 Overcharges by Antitrust Violations ........................................................................................... 8 
 Authority to Contract ................................................................................................................. 8 
 Contract Amendments ............................................................................................................... 8 
 Contract Default ......................................................................................................................... 9 
 Right of Assurance ...................................................................................................................... 9 
 Costs & Payments ....................................................................................................................... 9 
 Co-op Intergovernmental Purchasing Agreement ..................................................................... 9 
 Cancellation of County Contracts ............................................................................................... 9 
 Termination of Contract ............................................................................................................. 9 

  Indemnification Clause ............................................................................................................ 10   

Exhibit “C” Minimum Product Specifications and Information ........................................... 11-12 

 Section 1.0 General Purpose .................................................................................................... 11 
 Section 2.0 Bid Pricing .............................................................................................................. 11 
 Section 3.0 Order and Delivery ................................................................................................. 12 

Price Sheet ....................................................................................................................... 13-15 

Exhibit “D” Qualification and Certification Form ..................................................................... 16 

No Collusion Affidavit ............................................................................................................ 17 

       Certification Regarding Debarment………………………………………………………………………….......……….18 

Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance .................................................................................. 19 

Israel Boycott Certification……………………………………………………………………………………………………. 20 

Certification of No. Forced Labor………………………………………………………………………………………….. 21 

Bidders Checklist and Addenda Acknowledgment .................................................................. 22 

Offer Page  ............................................................................................................................ 23 

Acceptance of Offer Page  ...................................................................................................... 24 



3 

 

 
 

BID NO. 082122 
One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Cab 4x4 Cab and Chassis  

 

GENERAL SCOPE  

 
It is the intent of this solicitation to award a contract for the One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Cab 4x4 Cab and 
Chassis for the Fleet Management in Gila County.  
 
The County may choose to award this contract, or make multiple awards, depending on what is deemed to 
be in the County’s best interest considering price, specifications, and delivery date.  The request for price of 
an item does not guarantee a purchase but merely provides the County with the option if the need arises. 
 
See attached:  Exhibit “C” Pages 13, and Page 14-15 as specified on Price Sheet for total price being 
proposed. 
 
Vendors who agree to provide the Minimum Bid Specifications for this Invitation for Bid shall be considered 
for award. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 

 

BID NO. 082122 
One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Cab 4x4 Cab and Chassis   

 
INSTRUCTIONS TO VENDORS 

 
IMPORTANT:  EXHIBIT “A”, INSTRUCTIONS TO VENDORS AND EXHIBIT “B”, VENDORS AWARD AGREEMENT 
ARE BASIC CONTENT TO GILA COUNTY BID PACKAGES.  INDIVIDUAL BIDS MAY REQUIRE DIFFERENT 
LANGUAGE FOR INSTRUCTIONS AND AWARD AGREEMENTS.  WHERE APPLICABLE, SUCH CHANGES WILL 
APPEAR IN EXHIBIT “C”, MINIMUM PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS AND INFORMATION AND TAKE PRECEDENCE 
OVER THE LANGUAGE APPEARING IN EXHIBITS “A” & “B”. 
 
EXHIBIT “A” INSTRUCTIONS TO VENDORS 
 
Preparation of Sealed Bid 

A. Sealed Bids will be received by the Gila County Finance Department, from vendors, to deliver the 
product(s), goods and services contained to establish a contract for specified locations within Gila 
County.  The County seeks sealed bids only from qualified, experienced vendors able to provide 
services which are, in all respects, responsive to the specifications.  All bids shall be on the forms 
provided in this Invitation for Bid package.  It is permissible to copy these forms if required.  

 
B. Before submitting its bid, each vendor shall familiarize itself with the Scope of Work, laws, 

regulations and other factors affecting performance of work.  It shall carefully correlate its 
observations with requirements of the Contract and otherwise satisfy itself of the expense and 
difficulties attending the performance of the work.  The submission of a bid will constitute a 
representation of compliance by the vendor.  There will be no subsequent financial adjustment, 
other than that provided for by the Contract, for lack of such familiarization. 

 
C. Vendors must complete all forms provided in this Invitation for Bid package in full, original 

signature in ink, by the person(s) authorized to sign the Bid and to be submitted at the time of bid 
and made a part of this contract.  The County will use the Bid, and Qualification and Certification 
Form, in evaluating the capacity of vendor(s) to perform the Scope of Services as set forth in the 
Contract.  Failure of any Vendor to complete and submit the Price Sheet and Signature and Offer 
Page at time and place of opening may be grounds for automatic disqualification of the vendor(s) 
from further consideration. 

 
D. The names of all persons authorized to sign the Bid must also be legibly printed below the 

signature. Evidence of the authority of the person signing shall be furnished. 
 

E. The full name of each person or company interested in the Invitation for Bids shall be listed on the 
Bid. 

 
F. No alterations in Bids, or in the printed forms therefore, by erasures, interpolations, or otherwise 

will be acceptable unless each such alteration is signed or initialed by the vendor; if initialed, the 
County may require the vendor to identify any alteration so initialed. 

 
Amendments 

Any addendum issued as a result of any change in this Invitation for Bids must be acknowledged by all 
Vendors in the following manner: 
 

1. Completion of the Bidder Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment form, page 23. 
            



5 

 

 
BID NO. 082122 

One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Cab 4x4 Cab and Chassis 

Instructions to Vendors continued… 

 
 
Failure to indicate receipt of addenda in the above manner may result in a bid being rejected as non-
responsive. If no addenda have been issued, please indicate so by writing “Not Applicable” in the space 
provided under #1. The Vendor Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment form must be signed and dated. 
 

Inquiries 

Any questions related to this IFB must be directed to those whose names appear on the Notice.  Questions 
should be submitted in writing when time permits.  The Gila County Supervisors, at their sole discretion, may 
require all questions be submitted in writing.  Any correspondence related to an Invitation for Bids should 
refer to the appropriate Invitation for Bids number, page, and paragraph number.  However, the Vendor(s) 
must not place the IFB number on the outside of an envelope containing questions since such an envelope 
may be identified as a sealed Bid and may not be opened until after the official IFB due date and time.  
Questions received less than five (5) working days prior to the date for opening Bids will be answered only if 
time permits.   Only questions answered by formal written addenda will be binding.  Oral and other 
interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. 
 
 
Late Bids 

Any bid received later than the date and time specified on Notice for Sealed Bids shall not be considered.   
 
 
Submittal Bid Format: 

It is requested that One (1) Original and One (1) copy (2 TOTAL) with original signatures on both sets of the 
Qualification and Certification Form, Price Sheets, No Collusion Form, Certification Regarding Debarment, 
Legal AZ Workers Act Compliance Form, Bidders Checklist and Addenda Acknowledgment Form, and Offer 
Page shall be submitted on the forms and in the format specified in the Invitation for Bid.  The County will 
not be liable for any cost incident to the preparation of Bid, materials, reproductions, presentations, copy-
right infringements, etc.  It is permissible to copy these forms if required.  Facsimiles or mailgrams shall not 
be considered. 
 
1. By signature in the offer section of the Offer and Acceptance page, Vendor certifies: 
 

A. The submission of the offer did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive practices. 
B. The Vendor has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter, any 

economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, or 
service to a public servant in connection with the submitted offer. 

C. In order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs, improve timely acquisition and cost of 
supplies and to improve efficiency and economy of procurement, any political subdivision, State, 
County, City, Town, etc., of the State of Arizona, will be allowed by the Vendor(s) awarded the 
contract to provide the same services, at the same prices stated in the bid.  Delivery charges may 
differentiate depending on geographical location. 

 
 
 
 
 



6 

 

 
BID NO. 082122 

One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Cab 4x4 Cab and Chassis 

Instructions to Vendors continued… 

 
2. Bids submitted early may be modified or withdrawn by notice to the party receiving bids at the place 

and prior to the time designated for receipts of Bids. 
 
3. The County is not responsible for any Vendor’s errors or omissions.  Negligence in preparing an offer 

confers no right to the Vendor unless the Vendor discovers and corrects such errors prior to the Bid 
deadline. 

 

All bids shall be submitted in a sealed envelope: 

• Minimum of Two (2) copies with original signatures shall be provided by the Vendor; 
 

• The words “Invitation for Bid” with Title “One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Cab 4x4 Cab and Chassis”, 
“Bid No. 082122”, “September 27, 2022” and “1:00 PM” shall be written on the face of the 
envelope; 
 

• The Vendor shall assume full responsibility for timely delivery at the location designated in the 
Notice; 
 

• No bids will be accepted after 1:00 PM. AZ Time, Tuesday, September 27, 2022. Bids will be opened 
at 1:00 PM., Tuesday, September 27, 2022. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7 

 

 
 

BID NO. 082122 
One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Cab 4x4 Cab and Chassis 

 

 
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
Award of Contract 

1. The Gila County Board of Supervisors reserves the right to award any Bid by individual line item, by 
group of line items or as total, or any part thereof, whichever is deemed to be in the best interest, 
most advantageous of the County of Gila. 

 
a.   Notwithstanding any or other provisions of the Bid, the County reserves the right to:  

1.   Waive any immaterial defects or informalities; or 
2.   Reject any or all Bids; or portions thereof; or 
3.   Reissue a Request for Bid. 

 
2. It is the responsibility of the Gila County Board of Supervisors to let the County contracts to the 

lowest responsive and responsible Vendor(s).  To ensure that all Vendors are experienced, 
reasonably equipped and adequately financed to meet their contractual obligations, a determination 
of responsibility shall be made by the Gila County Board of Supervisors prior to contract award. 

 
3. Further, the County reserves the right to reject the Bid of any Vendor(s) who has previously failed to 

perform adequately after having once been awarded a prior Bid for furnishing and installing 
materials similar in nature. 

 
4. All submitted forms provided in this Invitation for Bids will be reviewed by the Gila County Board of 

Supervisors. 
 

5. Those Vendor(s) who, in the opinion of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, are best qualified and 
whose Bids are most advantageous to the County may be invited to appear before the Board for an 
oral review. 

 
6. The apparent successful Vendor(s) shall sign and file with the County, within ten (10) days after 

Notice of Intent to Award, all documents necessary to successfully execute the contract. 
 
Protests 

Only other Vendors who have submitted a bid under this IFB have the right to protest.  A protest of an award 
must be filed within ten (10) days after the award by the Board of Supervisors.  A protest must be in writing 
and must include the following: 
 

A. Name, address and telephone number of the protester. 
B. Signature of the protester or its representative, and evidence of authority to sign. 
C. Identification of the contract and the solicitation or contract number. 
D. Detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of protest including copies of relevant 

documents. 
E. The form of relief requested. 

 
All protests shall be sent to the attention of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, 1400 East Ash Street, 
Globe, Arizona 85501. 



8 

 

 
 

BID NO. 082122 
One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Cab 4x4 Cab and Chassis  

General Terms & Conditions continued… 

 

Laws and Ordinances 

This agreement shall be enforced under the laws of the State of Arizona and Gila County.  Firm shall maintain 
in current status all Federal, State and Local licenses and permits required for the operation of the business 
conducted by the Firm.  The Firm shall comply with the applicable provisions of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) and applicable federal regulations under the act. 
 
EXHIBIT “B” CONTRACT AWARD AGREEMENT 

This exhibit shall serve as the contract agreement to any Vendor, their agents, subcontractors or 
representatives, awarded this or any portion of this contract by the County, by submitting Bids to this or any 
other solicitation requiring sealed bids, does hereby agree to the following provisions.  Proof of acceptance 
of these provisions will be the Vendor’s signature(s) appearing on page 20, Vendors Offer Page, and Exhibit 
“D” Vendors Qualification and Certification form page 14.  This Contract shall include the Invitation for Bids 
No. 082122 and all exhibits attached to it, including but not limited to the Qualification and Certification 
Form, Price Sheets, No Collusion Affidavit, Legal AZ Workers Act Compliance Form, Bidders Checklist and 
Addenda Acknowledgment Form, and Offer Page which are all incorporated into this agreement by this 
reference. 

 
Overcharges by Antitrust Violations 

The County maintains that, in actual practice, overcharges resulting from antitrust violations are borne by the 
purchaser.  Therefore, to the extent permitted by law, the Vendor hereby assigns to the County any and all 
claims for such overcharges as to the goods or services used to fulfill the contract. 
 
Authority to Contract 

This contract shall be based upon the Invitation for Bids No. 082122, issued by the County, and the offer 
submitted by the Vendor in response to the IFB.  The offer shall substantially conform to the terms, 
conditions, specifications and other requirements set forth within the text of the IFB which is incorporated by 
this reference into this agreement. The county reserves the right to clarify any contractual terms with the 
concurrence of the Vendor; however, any substantial non-conformity in the offer, as determined by the 
County Attorney, shall be deemed non-responsive and the offer rejected.  The contract shall contain the 
entire agreement between Gila County and the Vendor relating to these requirements. The Contract shall 
prevail over any and all previous agreements, contracts, bids, negotiations, purchase orders, or master 
agreement in any form.  The contract activity is issued under the authority of the Gila County Manager, after 
the Gila County Board of Supervisors approves the award.  No alteration of any portion of the contract, any 
items or services awarded, or any other agreement that is based upon this contract may be made without 
express written approval of the Gila County Board of Supervisors in the form of an official contract 
amendment.  Any attempt to alter any documents on the part of the Vendor or any agency is a violation of 
the Gila County Procurement Group Statement of Procedures.  Any such action is subject to the legal and 
contractual remedies available to the County inclusive, but not limited to, contract cancellation, suspension 
or debarment of the Vendor. 

 
Contract Amendments 

The contract shall be modified only by a written contract amendment signed by the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors and persons duly authorized to enter into contracts on behalf of the Vendor. 
 

 



9 

 

 
 

BID NO. 082122 
One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Cab 4x4 Cab and Chassis  

Exhibit “B” Contract Award Agreement continued… 
 
 

Contract Default 

 

A. The County, by written notice of default to the Vendor, may terminate the whole or any part of this 
contract in any one of the following circumstances:  
1. If the Vendor fails to make delivery of the supplies or to perform the services within the times 

specified; or 
 

2. If the Vendor fails to perform any of the other provisions of this contract; and fails to remedy 
the situation within a period of ten (10) days after receipt of notice. 

 
B. In the event the County terminates this contract in whole or part, the County may procure supplies 

or services similar to those terminated, and the Vendor shall be liable to the County for any excess 
costs for such similar supplies or services. 

 
Right to Assurance 

Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other party’s intent to perform, 
the other party may demand that the other party give a written assurance of this intent to perform.  In the 
event that a demand is made, and no written assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party 
may treat this failure as an anticipatory repudiation of this contract. 
 

Costs and Payments 

Payments shall comply with the requirements of A.R.S. Title 35 and 41, Net 30 days.  Upon receipt and 
acceptance of goods and services, the Vendor shall submit a complete and accurate invoice for payment.  
 
IRS W9 Form:  In order to receive payment, the Vendor shall have a current IRS W9 Form on file with the 
County unless not required by law. 
 
Co-op Use of Contract – Intergovernmental Purchasing 

Gila County has entered into an active purchasing agreement with other political subdivisions, cities, and 
towns of the State of Arizona in order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs and improve timely 
acquisition and cost of supplies, equipment and services.  The vendor(s) to whom this contract is awarded 
may be requested by other parties of said interactive purchasing agreements to extend to those parties the 
right to purchase supplies, equipment and services provided by the vendor under this contract, pursuant to 
the terms and conditions stated herein.  Any such usage by other entities must be in accord with the rules 
and regulations of the respective entity and the approval of the Vendor. 
 
Cancellation of County Contracts 

This contract is subject to the cancellation provisions of A.R.S. §38-511. 
 
Termination of Contract 

The County, with or without cause, may terminate this contract at any time, or by giving thirty (30) days 
written notice to you.  The County at its convenience, by written notice, may terminate this contract, in 
whole or in part.  If this contract is terminated, the County shall be liable only for payment under the 



10 

 

payment provisions of this contract for the services rendered and accepted material received by the County 
before the effective date of termination. 
 

BID NO. 082122 
One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Cab 4x4 Cab and Chassis   

Exhibit “B” Contract Award Agreement continued… 

 
 
The County reserves the right to cancel the whole or any part of this contract due to failure of the Vendor(s) 
to carry out any term, promise, or condition of the contract.  The County will issue a written ten (10) day 
notice of default to Vendor for acting or failing to act as in any of the following: 
 

1. In the opinion of the County, the Vendor fails to perform adequately the stipulations, conditions or   
services and specifications required in the contract. 

2. In the opinion of the County, the Vendor attempts to impose on the County material products, or 
workmanship, which is of unacceptable quality.  

3. Vendor fails to furnish the required service or product within the time stipulated in the contract. 
4. In the opinion of the County, the Vendor fails to make progress in the performance of the 

requirements of the contract or give the County a positive indication that Vendor will not, or cannot, 
perform to the requirements of the contract. 

 
Each payment obligation of the County created hereby is conditioned upon the availability of County, State 
and Federal funds, which are appropriated or allocated for the payment of such an obligation.  If funds are 
not allocated by the County and available for the continuance of service herein contemplated, the contract 
period for the service may be terminated by the County at the end of the period for which funds are 
available.  The County shall notify the Vendor at the earliest possible time which service may be affected by a 
shortage of funds.  No penalty shall accrue to the County in the event this provision is exercised, and the 
County shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments due or for any damages as a result of 
termination under this paragraph. 
 
General 

After receipt of all bids, each submittal shall be screened to determine if any shall be deemed non-
responsive.  Unsigned bids, unacknowledged Addenda, incomplete bids, non-conformance with mandatory 
requirements, etc., may result in the determination of non-responsive. 
 
Indemnification Clause 

Vendor shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the County of Gila and its officers, officials, agents, 
and employees (hereinafter referred to as “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, actions, 
liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses (including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim processing, 
investigation and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) for bodily injury or personal injury (including 
death), or loss or damage to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in 
part, by the negligent or willful acts or omissions of Vendor or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, 
employees or Subcontractors.  This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under 
the Workers’ Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of such Vendor to conform to any federal, state 
or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree.  It is the specific intention of the parties that 
the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or 
omissions of the Indemnitee, be indemnified by Vendor from and against any and all claims.  It is agreed that 
the Vendor will be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs. 
 
 



11 

 

 

 
 

BID NO. 082122 
One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Cab 4x4 Cab and Chassis   

 

MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS 
 

EXHIBIT “C” MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS FOR:   082122 

Purpose:  It is the intent of Gila County to establish, by this Invitation for Bids, a contract to One (1) New Ford 
F-350 Super Cab 4x4 Cab and Chassis. This Invitation for Bid No. 082122 including the Qualification and 
Certification Form, Price Sheets, No Collusion Form, Legal AZ Workers Act Compliance Form, Certification 
Regarding Debarment, Checklist and Addenda Acknowledgment Form, and Offer Page constitutes the entire 
Bid package and by this reference is hereby incorporated into this agreement. 
 
SECTION 1.0 

General:   

1.1 All product specifications are minimum.  Vendor must provide product specification sheet. 
1.2 Vendor should have adequate manufacturing / stock facilities to serve the needs of Gila County. 

1.3 All proposals must represent the entire package.   

1.4 The parties specifically understand and agree that the quantities used for bidding purposes are 

estimates of County needs and in no event shall the County be obligated to purchase the exact 

quantities of any item set forth in the proposal.  The County does not guarantee any maximum or 

minimum amounts of purchase. 

 

SECTION 2.0 

Bid Pricing: 

2.1 The Vendor shall submit the bid in the form of a firm unit price for the contract period.  Initial 

contract period is through June 30, 2023.  Vendor shall incorporate all freight, profit, and discount 

into their price.   

2.2 The term of the contract shall commence upon award and shall remain in effect through June 30, 

2023, unless terminated, cancelled or extended as otherwise provided herein.   

 

SECTION 3.0 

Ordering and Delivery: 

3.1 ORDERING:  Gila County does not warrant the order quantity of any item prior to actual need.  Gila 

County may re-order item as it becomes necessary or based on the required needs within the 

County during the term of this contract. 

 

3.2 PRODUCT DELIVERY Location:  Gila County Shop, 1001 W. Besich Blvd, Globe, AZ.  The Board of 

Supervisors may designate other or alternate delivery sites at any time during the term of the 

contract.  These needs may be based on, but not limited to, seasonal, emergency, historical usage 

data.  

 
 
 



12 

 

 
 
 
 

BID NO. 082122 
One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Cab 4x4 Cab and Chassis 

Exhibit “C” Minimum Specifications continued… 

 
       3.3     DELIVERY TIME: Vehicles must be delivered no later than June 30, 2023. Failure to provide delivery 

within this time period may result in termination of this contract and award to the next lowest, 

responsible bidder. If vendor sends County Procurement written documentation from the 

manufacturer Forty-Five (45) days prior to the delivery date, Gila County may choose to extend the 

contract up to six (6) months. 

 

       3.4   Vendor shall retain title and control of all goods until they are delivered, and the contract of   

coverage has been completed.  All risks of transportation and all related charges shall be the 

responsibility of the Vendor.  All claims for visible or concealed damage shall be filed by the 

Vendor.  The County will assist the Vendor in arranging for inspection. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



13 

 

 
 
 

SPECIFICATION/PRICE SHEET 
 

Complete and Return this form for the total price being proposed.  Attach any pertinent cost 

breakdowns, subtotals of component costs, etc. to this proposal-pricing page. 

 

Vendor Name:  ____________________________ Phone No._____ _________________ 

Vehicle Year, Make, & Model:  _________________________________________________ 
 

MINIMUM 

SPECIFICATIONS 

2023 Ford F-350 4x4 Cab and Chassis  

MEETS 

MINIMUM 

SPECIFICATIONS 

YES NO Cab: Super Cab  

 

  

Rear Wheel: (DRW) Dual Rear Wheels   
Wheelbase: 168”   

  Exterior Paint: Oxford White   
  Powertrain: Engine: 6.7L 4 Valve OHV Power stroke Diesel   

  Transmission: Automatic   
4.10 Limited Slip Axle   
Trailer Tow Package   
Alternator Upgrade - 397 Amp Dual   
Engine Block Heater   
Exterior Back Up Alarm   
Rear View Camera and Prep Kit   

  Qty: (1) Spare Tire & Wheel, and Jack (4 ton)   
All Terrain 10 Ply Tires   
Interior: Medium Earth Gray   
Operator Commanded Regeneration (OCR)   
Trailer Brake Controller   

  HD Vinyl 40/20/40 split bench, Rr bench Seat 
 

  
Carpet Delete   
AM/FM Radio   
3 Additional Keys/Fobs Required: Qty (5) total     

Outfitting Required:  
 

  

                               SUB – TOTAL AMOUNT           $ 

                            OTHER COSTS          $ 

                            SALES TAX          $ 

 
TOTAL AMOUNT OF DELIVERED VEHICLE 

 
$ 

  Delivery Location:  Gila County Globe Shop - 1001 E. Besich Blvd Globe, Az___________ 
  

   Estimated Date of Delivery:   __      ________________ 

 

 

Vendor Name & Phone Number:  _________________________________________________ 

 



14 

 

 
 
 

OUTFITTING SPECIFICATION/PRICE SHEET 
 

Complete and Return this form for the total price being proposed.  Attach any pertinent cost 

breakdowns, subtotals of component costs, etc. to this proposal-pricing page. 

 

Vendor Name:  ____________________________ Phone No._____ _________________ 

Vehicle Year, Make, & Model:  _________________________________________________ 
 

MINIMUM 

SPECIFICATIONS 

11’ Steel Crane Body 

MEETS 

MINIMUM 

SPECIFICATIONS 

YES NO – 132” L x 93.25” (ID) – 95.25” W (OD) 50” W Cargo area. 

 

  

21.5” deep compartments, 24” H Front bulkhead.   
40” High sides – R/S & C/S. Toolbox/drawer insert in front   
R/S vertical compartment, (2) Adj shelves in other vertical comp-   

  artments R/C & C/S. 1 Adj shelf in horizontal compartments –    
  R/S & C/S. C/S Reinforcement for crane mounting. 1/8” Treadpl-   
ate floor with (4) tie-downs. Slam action rear tailgate.   
-LED S/T/T. Marker lights & reflectors   
-Sprayliner applied to inside of bed and workbench bumper   
-Workbench bumper, HR steel w/ flush mount 2” receiver   

  5/15 Vise mount   
  -Both sides, dual steps with yellow painted grab handles   
-Manual crank outriggers 
 

  
  -Mud flaps   
-7/4-way trailer receptacle   
-Back up alarm   

 
See additional Equipment on other Spec sheet 

  

   
     

                               SUB – TOTAL AMOUNT           $ 

                            OTHER COSTS          $ 

                            SALES TAX          $ 

 
TOTAL AMOUNT OF DELIVERED VEHICLE 

 
$ 

 

 
Delivery Location:   

 

 
 

    Estimated Date of Delivery:   __      ____ 

 

     

     Vendor Name & Phone Number:  _______________________________________________ 

 
 



15 

 

 
 
 

OUTFITTING SPECIFICATION/PRICE SHEET 
 

Complete and Return this form for the total price being proposed.  Attach any pertinent cost 

breakdowns, subtotals of component costs, etc. to this proposal-pricing page. 

 

Vendor Name:  ____________________________ Phone No._____ _________________ 

Vehicle Year, Make, & Model:  _________________________________________________ 
 

MINIMUM 

SPECIFICATIONS 

Equipment for 11’ Steel Crane Body 

MEETS 

MINIMUM 

SPECIFICATIONS 

YES NO  - Ele/Hyd Telescopic crane w/ 16,000 FT/LB crane rating, 4000 #  

 

  

max capacity @ 4’. 16’max horizontal reach. 17’ 4” max vertical   
Lift. Four function radio remote standard. 12v electric planetary   

  winch with 16’min/max single line speed, double acting cylinders    
  with integral counterbalance valves, gear bearing rotation systems   
  and double boom design – Installed C/S rear compartment.   
-Additional leaf spring to support weight of crane.   
-Adjustable boom support   
   
-Lincoln Ranger 305 G EFI engine driven welder R/S mount-   
ed on top of rear compartment    

   
-BELAIRE 13-hp 30-gallon two stage truck mount Air Comp.   
w/ Honda electric start engine – Mounted front of crane body   
   
 
 

  

   
   

     

                               SUB – TOTAL AMOUNT           $ 

                            OTHER COSTS          $ 

                            SALES TAX          $ 

 
TOTAL AMOUNT OF DELIVERED VEHICLE 

 
$ 

 

 
Delivery Location:   

 

 
 

    Estimated Date of Delivery:   __      ____ 

 

     

     Vendor Name & Phone Number:  _______________________________________________ 

 
 



16 

 

 
 

QUALIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION FORM 
 

EXHIBIT “D” VENDORS QUALIFICATION AND REFERENCE LIST 
 
PURPOSE 
This exhibit shall serve as a requirement to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of 
Vendors under consideration for final award.  The information may or may not be a determining factor in 
award. 
CONTACT NUMBER 082122 One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Cab 4x4 Cab and Chassis 
The applicant submitting this Bid warrants the following: 
 

1. Name, Address, and Telephone Number of Principal Vendor: 

________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

2. Has Vendor (under its present or any previous name) ever failed to complete a contract? 
________ Yes   ________No.  If “Yes”, give details including the date, the contracting agency, and 
the reason Vendor failed to perform in the narrative part of this Contract. 

 
3. Has Vendor (under its present or any previous name) ever been disbarred or prohibited from 

competing for a contract?  ________ Yes   ________ No.  If “Yes”, give details, including the date, the 
contracting agency, the reasons for the Vendors disqualifications, and whether this disqualification 
remains in effect in the narrative part of this Contract. 

 
4. Has a contracting agency ever terminated a contract with the Vendor (under your firm’s present or 

any previous name) prior to end of contract period?  ________ Yes   ________No.  If “Yes”, give 
details including the date, the contracting agency, and the reasons offer was terminated in the 
narrative part of this Contract. 

 
5. Vendor must also provide at least the following information: 

a. A Cost Bid shall be submitted on the Price Sheet, attached hereon and made a full part of this 
contract by this reference. 

b. Gila County reserves the right to request additional information. 
 

___________________________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Person to Sign 
 

___________________________________________ 
Printed Name 

 
___________________________________________ 
Title 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



17 

 

AFFIDAVIT BY VENDOR 
CERTIFYING THAT THERE WAS NO COLLUSION 

IN BIDDING FOR CONTRACT 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 

)ss 
COUNTY OF:   ) 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________                                                                                  
(Name of Individual) being first duly sworn, deposes and says: 

 
That he is 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                (Title)  

of____________________________________________________________________________   and 
                                                                          (Name of Business) 

 
 

That he is bidding on Gila County Bid No. 082122 - One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Cab 4x4 Cab and 
Chassis and, 
 
 

That neither he nor anyone associated with the said ________________________________  

__________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                     (Name of Business) 

 
has, directly or indirectly entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion or otherwise 
taken any action in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with the above-mentioned 
project. 

 

 

        ___________________________________ 
Name of Business 

 
___________________________________  
By 

 
___________________________________ 
Title 

 

 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this ____________ day of _________________________, 2022. 

 
 
_______________________________________________________               My Commission expires: 
Notary Public                
              ______________________________ 

 
 
 



18 

 

BID NO. 082122 
One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Cab 4x4 Cab and Chassis 

 
 
 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER 
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS 

 
The prospective participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals: 
 

(a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency; 

(b) Have not within a three year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a 
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, 
or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State 
antitrust statutes or commission or embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

(c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government 
entity (Federal, State, or local with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 
paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and 

(d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more 
public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default 

 
I understand that a false statement on this certification may be grounds for rejection of this proposal 
or termination of the award.  IN addition, under 18 USC Sec. 1001, a false statement may result in a 
fine of up to $10,000 or imprisonment for up to 5 years, or both. 
 
 
 

Typed Name and Title of Authorized Representative 
 
 
 
 

Signature of Authorized Representative 
 

 ............................................ I am unable to certify the above statements.  My explanation is attached 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



19 

 

BID NO. 082122 
One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Cab 4x4 Cab and Chassis 

 
LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE 

 
Vendor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this Contract comply with all federal immigration laws 
applicable to Vendor’s employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A) (together the 
“State and Federal Immigration Laws”).  Vendor shall further ensure that each Subcontractor who performs any work 
for Vendor under this contract likewise complies with the State and Federal Immigration Laws. 
  
County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of Vendor and any Subcontractor in order to 
verify such party’s compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws.   
 
 Any breach of Vendor’s or any Subcontractor’s warranty of compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws, or 
of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this Contract subjecting Vendor to 
penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this Contract. If the breach is by a Subcontractor, and the 
subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, and Gila County elects to continue the contract with the Vendor, 
Vendor shall be required to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services that would have 
been provided under the subcontract or retain a replacement Subcontractor, as soon as possible so as not to delay 
project completion.   
 
 Vendor shall advise each Subcontractor of County’s rights, and the Subcontractor’s obligations, under this Article by 
including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the following form: 
 “Subcontractor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all federal 
immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor’s employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A). 
Subcontractor further agrees that County may inspect the Subcontractor’s books and records to ensure that 
Subcontractor is in compliance with these requirements.  Any breach of this paragraph by Subcontractor will be deemed 
to be a material breach of this contract subjecting Subcontractor to penalties up to and including suspension or 
termination of this contract.”  
  
Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall be the responsibility of 
Vendor.  In the event that remedial action under this Article results in delay to one or more tasks on the critical path of 
Vendor’s approved construction or critical milestones schedule, such period of delay shall be deemed excusable delay 
for which Vendor shall be entitled to an extension of time, but not costs. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 

 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 

 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Title 

    
 
 
 
 
 
 



20 

 

 
 

ISRAEL BOYCOTT CERTIFICATION 
 
 

Contractor hereby certifies that it is not currently engaged in and will not, for the duration of this agreement, 
engage in a boycott of Israel as defined by A.R.S. § 35-393.01. Violation of this certification by Contractor may result 
in action by County up to and including termination of this agreement. 
 

 

 

       
Date:  __________________________  

 
 

_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 

 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Printed Name 

 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Title 

       

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Unless and until the District Court's injunction in Jordahl is stayed or lifted, the Anti-Israel Boycott Provision 
(A.R.S. §35-393.01 (A)) is unenforceable and the State will take no action to enforce it. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



21 

 

 

Certification of No Forced Labor: 

 

The Company does not currently, and agrees for the duration of this Agreement that the 

Company will not use: 
1. The forced labor of Ethnic Uyghurs in the People’s Republic of China; 
2. Any goods or services produced by the forced labor of Ethnic Uyghurs in the People’s 

Republic of China; and, 
3. Any contractors, subcontracts, or suppliers that use the forced labor or any goods or services 

produced by the forced labor of Ethnic Uyghurs in the People’s Republic of China.  
 

The Company further agrees that if the Company becomes aware, during the term of the 

Agreement, that the Company is not in compliance with this Certification, the Company shall 

notify the County within 5 business days after becoming aware of the non-compliance. If the 

Company does not remedy the non-compliance within 180-days after sending notice of non-

compliance, this Agreement shall automatically terminate.  
 

 

 
  

  Date:  __________________________________________  
 
 
      Vendor ______________________________________ 
 
 

_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 

 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Printed Name 

 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Title 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



22 

 

BID NO. 082122 
One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Cab 4x4 Cab and Chassis 

 

BIDDERS CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that all Bid Documents shall be completed, executed, and submitted with this IFB.  
If bidder fails to complete or execute any portion of the Bid Documents, this IFB will be determined to be 
“non-responsive” and rejected. 
 
 
CHECKLIST: 
 

REQUIRED DOCUMENT                    COMPLETED AND EXECUTED 
 

QUALIFICATION & CERTIFICATION FORM    ___________ 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT    ___________ 

PRICE SHEETS       ___________ 

NO COLLUSION AFFADAVIT     ___________ 

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKS ACT COMPLIANCE    ___________ 

BIDDERS CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGEMENT  ___________ 

OFFER PAGE       ___________ 

 

 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDA:       
 
                        #1                #2                  #3                       #4                           #5 
Initials  __________          __________          __________          __________          __________  
 
Date  __________          __________          __________          __________          __________         

 
 
 

Signed and dated this _________ day of _____________________, 2022 

 
 
 

           __________________________________________________ 
                                                   VENDOR: 
 

           __________________________________________________ 
                                                    BY: (Signature) 
 

 
 
Each bid shall be sealed in an envelope addressed to the Gila County Procurement Group and bearing the following 
statement on the outside of the envelope:  Invitation for Bids:  Bid No. 082122 One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Cab 4x4 
Cab and Chassis.  All bids shall be filed with the Gila County Finance Department at the Copper Building, 1400 E. Ash St., 
Globe, AZ on or before September 27, 2022, 1:00 PM. 
 

 



23 

 

BID NO. 082122 
One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Cab 4x4 Cab and Chassis 

 
OFFER PAGE  

 
TO GILA COUNTY: 

The undersigned hereby offers and agrees to furnish the material or service in compliance with all terms and conditions, 
instruction, specifications, and any amendments contained in this Invitation for bids. 
 
Signature also certifies the Vendors bid is genuine, and is not in any way collusive or a sham; that the bid is not made 
with the intent to restrict or prohibit competition; that the Vendor submitting the bid has not revealed the contents of 
the bid to, or in any way colluded with, any other Vendor which may compete for the contract; and that no other 
Vendor which may compete for the contract has revealed the contents of a bid to, or in any way colluded with, the 
Vendor submitting this bid. 
 

 

 

CONTRACT NUMBER:  082122 One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Cab 4x4 Cab and Chassis 

 
 
Firm Submitting Bid:     For clarification of this offer, contact: 

 
 
________________________________________ Name:  __________________________________ 
Company Name 

 
________________________________________ Phone No.:  ______________________________ 
Address   

       Fax   ____________________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
City                                State                                Zip  Email:  __________________________________ 
       
 
 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Signature of Authorized Person to Sign 

 
       ______________________________________ 
       Printed Name 

 
       ______________________________________ 
       Title 

 
 
 
 
Bid must be signed by a duly authorized officer(s) eligible to sign contract documents for the Firm. 
 

 



24 

 

BID NO. 082122 
One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Cab 4x4 Cab and Chassis 

 

 
ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER 

(For Gila County use only) 
 
 
 

The Offer is hereby Accepted: 
 

The Vendor                       is now bound to provide the materials or services listed in 

Invitation for Bid No.: 082122 including all terms and conditions, specifications, amendments, etc. and the 

Vendor’s Offer as accepted by County entity. 

 

The contract shall henceforth be referenced to as     Contract No. 082122. The Vendor has been cautioned not 

to commence any billable work or to provide any material or service under this Contract until Vendor 

receives written notice to proceed from Gila County. 

 
 
 
Awarded this _________________ day of ________________________________, 2022 

 
 

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS: 
 

 

 __________________________________________________ 
 Woody Cline, Chairman, Board of Supervisors 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 

 

 __________________________________________________ 
 James Menlove, Clerk of the Board 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

 __________________________________________________ 
 The Gila County Attorney’s Office 

 



   
ARF-7551   Regular Agenda Item     3. I.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/20/2022  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Public Works
Fiscal Year: 2023 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

09-20-22 to 06-30-23 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Request to Advertise Invitation for Bids No. 082222-One (1) New Ford
F250 Super Duty XL 4x4 with Transfer Tank Toolbox combo and
Snowplow

Background Information
The advertisement for One (1) New Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 with
Transfer Tank Toolbox combo and snowplow would allow the Gila County
Public Works Roads department the ability to receive proposals from
automobile suppliers and have the option to purchase this new vehicle,
during this fiscal year.

It is the intent of this solicitation to establish the purchase of One (1) New
Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 with Transfer Tank Toolbox Combo and
Snowplow for Gila County Public Works Roads to be purchased using the
HURF Fund.

Evaluation
The vehicle mentioned in the agenda request will be needed for the roads
department to help maintain and repair county roads and assist in snow
removal during winter events. We would be replacing B-078 a 1997 Ford
3/4T 4x4 that is 25 years of age and has 144k mi and is costing the
County a lot of money in maintenance and repairs. B-078 will be traded
in and prepped for auction.

Conclusion



The vehicle that will be purchased with this solicitation will be used by
the Gila County Roads Department and replace an older vehicle that has
met one requirement and is close to meeting the other requirements of the
Gila County recommended replacement intervals.

Recommendation
The Public Works Department Director recommends that the Board of
Supervisors approve the advertisement of Invitation for Bids No. 082222
for the purchase of One (1) New Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 with
Transfer Tank Toolbox combo and snowplow as outlined in the solicitation.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of
Invitation for Bid No. 082222 to purchase One (1) New Ford F-250 Super
Duty XL 4x4 with Transfer Tank Toolbox combo and snowplow as
outlined in the solicitation. (David LaForge)

Attachments
Request to Advertise
IFB No. 082222



  

Bids X Proposals
     

      

 
FUNDING Approx $105,000 PROJECTS:

Fund 6500 Dept No. 341 Program 527 Location 000 Account

INTENT

with Honda electric start engine-mounted front of crane

Signed:  Date

DATE Department Receipt Placed on Agenda

Presented to Board Approved to Call

Delivered to Paper Paper Name

Advertised          From To

Closing Date Bid Award Date

Awarded To Pre-Bid Meeting Date
  

Department Name:

Date

Department Name:

Date

Finance Director Signature Date

Department Head Signature

IV.  APPROVED 

III.  OTHER APPROVAL:     Only as necessary

Department Head Signature

 

Payson Roundup

9/20/2022

10/18/20229/27/2022

All departments procuring purchases in excess of $50,000 that requires advertising for bids must follow the Procurement Procedures and 

must complete Item "I" of this form prior to such purchase.  The requesting department is responsible for writing necessary specifications

and routing them, including this form and completed Bid Request Form to the Purchasing Department.  This Form must be completed and

have a copy of the specifications attached before routing begins.  All Requests and Specifications will be in accordance with the Arizona

Revised Statutes and the latest version of the Gila County Purchasing Policy and Procedures.

9/13/2022

9/6/2022

Purchase a One (1) New Ford F-350 4X4 Cab and Chassis, 11’ Steel Crane Body with equipt. including Lincoln Ranger 305 G EFI
engine driven welder R/S mounted on top of rear Compartment and Belaire 12-hp 30-gallon two stage truck mount Air Comp. 

Elected Official or Department Head

II.  DEPARTMENTAL INFORMATION ONLY:    Action Dates

I.  DESCRIPTION:    List item(s) to be purchased, purpose, specific summary, estimated cost and funding  source.  

4500.50

EXHIBIT "H"
GILA COUNTY DEPARTMENTAL REQUEST TO ADVERTISE FOR BIDS

Qualifications

REQUEST NUMBER

(For Procurement Use Only)

IS THIS A REQUEST FOR         Check one



 

 

 

 
 

GILA COUNTY 
 

NOTICE OF INVITATION FOR BID 
 
 

BID NO. 082222 
 
 

One (1) New Ford F-250 Super Duty 4x4 with Transfer Toolbox combo and Snowplow 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

*BOARD OF SUPERVISORS* 
Woody Cline, Chairman 

Steve Christensen, Vice Chairman 
Tim Humphrey, Member 

 
 
 

*COUNTY MANAGER* 
James Menlove 

 

 

 

 

 



1 

 

 

GILA COUNTY 
PROCUREMENT GROUP 

NOTICE OF INVITATION FOR BID 
 

SOLICITATION NUMBER 
082222 

1400 E. Ash Street 
Globe, Arizona 

85501 
 

 
BID DUE DATE:      Tuesday, September 27, 2022                             TIME:  2:00 PM 
 
DESCRIPTION:      One (1) New Ford F-250 Super Duty 4x4 with Transfer Toolbox combo and Snowplow 
                                 
 
Bid Opening Location:  GILA COUNTY FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
    ATTN: BETTY HURST 
    COPPER BUILDING  
    1350 EAST MONROE GLOBE, ARIZONA  85501 
 
Bid Submittal Location:  GILA COUNTY FINANCE DEPARTMENT, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ  85501 
     
Invitation for Bid for the materials and services specified will be received by the Gila County Procurement 
Group at the above specified location until the time and date cited. 
 
Request for submittals after the specified date and time to the Procurement Group shall not be considered.  
To receive bid documents, contact the Procurement Group at (928) 402-4355 or click on the following link to 
the County website. http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php  
 
Additional instructions for preparing a bid are provided on pages 4-6 of the bid documents to Offerors as 
contained within the solicitation. 
 
The Board of Supervisors reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, or to accept any proposal, or to 
waive any informality in any proposal, or to withhold the award if deemed in the best interest of Gila County.   
 
All procurement activities conducted by Gila County are in conformance with the rules and regulations of the 
Gila County Procurement Group Statement of Procedures.  A copy of the Gila County Procurement Group 
Statement of Procedures is available for review in the Deputy Clerk of the Board’s office, Globe, AZ. 
 
Arizona Silver Belt advertisement dates:   September 13, 2022, and September 20, 2022.  

BIDDERS ARE STRONGLY ENCOURAGED TO CAREFULLY READ THE ENTIRE SOLICITATION. 
 
Designated Department:        Gila County Fleet Management 
Type of contract: Term 
Term of Contract: Twelve Months  
Phone Number: (928) 402-8525 
 

 
Signed:  _____________________________________________________ Date:  ________________ 
 Woody Cline, Chairman, Board of Supervisors 

 
Signed:  _____________________________________________________ Date:  ________________  
              The Gila County Attorney’s Office 
 

http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php


2 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 

     CONTENT           PAGE 

 
Solicitation ............................................................................................................................. 1 

Scope of Work ........................................................................................................................ 3 

Exhibit “A” Instructions to Vendors ...................................................................................... 4-6 

 Preparation of Sealed Bid ........................................................................................................... 4 
 Amendments ........................................................................................................................... 4-5 
 Inquiries ...................................................................................................................................... 5 
 Late Bids ..................................................................................................................................... 5 
 Submittal Bid Format ............................................................................................................... 5-6 

General Terms and Conditions ............................................................................................. 7-8 

 Award of Contract ...................................................................................................................... 7 
 Protests ....................................................................................................................................... 7 
 Laws & Ordinances ..................................................................................................................... 8 

Exhibit “B” Contract Award Agreement ............................................................................... 8-10 

 Overcharges by Antitrust Violations ........................................................................................... 8 
 Authority to Contract ................................................................................................................. 8 
 Contract Amendments ............................................................................................................... 8 
 Contract Default ......................................................................................................................... 9 
 Right of Assurance ...................................................................................................................... 9 
 Costs & Payments ....................................................................................................................... 9 
 Co-op Intergovernmental Purchasing Agreement ..................................................................... 9 
 Cancellation of County Contracts ............................................................................................... 9 
 Termination of Contract ............................................................................................................. 9 

  Indemnification Clause ............................................................................................................ 10   

Exhibit “C” Minimum Product Specifications and Information ........................................... 11-12 

 Section 1.0 General Purpose .................................................................................................... 11 
 Section 2.0 Bid Pricing .............................................................................................................. 11 
 Section 3.0 Order and Delivery ................................................................................................. 12 

Price Sheet ....................................................................................................................... 13-15 

Exhibit “D” Qualification and Certification Form ..................................................................... 16 

No Collusion Affidavit ............................................................................................................ 17 

       Certification Regarding Debarment………………………………………………………………………….......……….18 

Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance .................................................................................. 19 

Israel Boycott Certification……………………………………………………………………………………………………. 20 

Certification of No. Forced Labor………………………………………………………………………………………….. 21 

Bidders Checklist and Addenda Acknowledgment .................................................................. 22 

Offer Page  ............................................................................................................................ 23 

Acceptance of Offer Page  ...................................................................................................... 24 



3 

 

 
 

BID NO. 082222 
One (1) New Ford F-250 Super Duty 4x4 with Transfer Toolbox combo and Snowplow  

 

GENERAL SCOPE  

 
It is the intent of this solicitation to award a contract for the One (1) New Ford F-250 Super Duty 4x4 with 
Transfer Toolbox combo and Snowplow for the Fleet Management in Gila County.  
 
The County may choose to award this contract, or make multiple awards, depending on what is deemed to 
be in the County’s best interest considering price, specifications, and delivery date.  The request for price of 
an item does not guarantee a purchase but merely provides the County with the option if the need arises. 
 
See attached:  Exhibit “C” Pages 13, and Page 14-15 as specified on Price Sheet for total price being 
proposed. 
 
Vendors who agree to provide the Minimum Bid Specifications for this Invitation for Bid shall be considered 
for award. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 

 

BID NO. 082222 
One (1) New Ford F-250 Super Duty 4x4 with Transfer Toolbox combo and Snowplow   

 
INSTRUCTIONS TO VENDORS 

 
IMPORTANT:  EXHIBIT “A”, INSTRUCTIONS TO VENDORS AND EXHIBIT “B”, VENDORS AWARD AGREEMENT 
ARE BASIC CONTENT TO GILA COUNTY BID PACKAGES.  INDIVIDUAL BIDS MAY REQUIRE DIFFERENT 
LANGUAGE FOR INSTRUCTIONS AND AWARD AGREEMENTS.  WHERE APPLICABLE, SUCH CHANGES WILL 
APPEAR IN EXHIBIT “C”, MINIMUM PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS AND INFORMATION AND TAKE PRECEDENCE 
OVER THE LANGUAGE APPEARING IN EXHIBITS “A” & “B”. 
 
EXHIBIT “A” INSTRUCTIONS TO VENDORS 
 
Preparation of Sealed Bid 

A. Sealed Bids will be received by the Gila County Finance Department, from vendors, to deliver the 
product(s), goods and services contained to establish a contract for specified locations within Gila 
County.  The County seeks sealed bids only from qualified, experienced vendors able to provide 
services which are, in all respects, responsive to the specifications.  All bids shall be on the forms 
provided in this Invitation for Bid package.  It is permissible to copy these forms if required.  

 
B. Before submitting its bid, each vendor shall familiarize itself with the Scope of Work, laws, 

regulations and other factors affecting performance of work.  It shall carefully correlate its 
observations with requirements of the Contract and otherwise satisfy itself of the expense and 
difficulties attending the performance of the work.  The submission of a bid will constitute a 
representation of compliance by the vendor.  There will be no subsequent financial adjustment, 
other than that provided for by the Contract, for lack of such familiarization. 

 
C. Vendors must complete all forms provided in this Invitation for Bid package in full, original 

signature in ink, by the person(s) authorized to sign the Bid and to be submitted at the time of bid 
and made a part of this contract.  The County will use the Bid, and Qualification and Certification 
Form, in evaluating the capacity of vendor(s) to perform the Scope of Services as set forth in the 
Contract.  Failure of any Vendor to complete and submit the Price Sheet and Signature and Offer 
Page at time and place of opening may be grounds for automatic disqualification of the vendor(s) 
from further consideration. 

 
D. The names of all persons authorized to sign the Bid must also be legibly printed below the 

signature. Evidence of the authority of the person signing shall be furnished. 
 

E. The full name of each person or company interested in the Invitation for Bids shall be listed on the 
Bid. 

 
F. No alterations in Bids, or in the printed forms therefore, by erasures, interpolations, or otherwise 

will be acceptable unless each such alteration is signed or initialed by the vendor; if initialed, the 
County may require the vendor to identify any alteration so initialed. 

 
Amendments 

Any addendum issued as a result of any change in this Invitation for Bids must be acknowledged by all 
Vendors in the following manner: 
 

1. Completion of the Bidder Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment form, page 23. 
            



5 

 

BID NO. 082222 
One (1) New Ford F-250 Super Duty 4x4 with Transfer Toolbox combo and Snowplow 

Instructions to Vendors continued… 

 
 
Failure to indicate receipt of addenda in the above manner may result in a bid being rejected as non-
responsive. If no addenda have been issued, please indicate so by writing “Not Applicable” in the space 
provided under #1. The Vendor Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment form must be signed and dated. 
 

Inquiries 

Any questions related to this IFB must be directed to those whose names appear on the Notice.  Questions 
should be submitted in writing when time permits.  The Gila County Supervisors, at their sole discretion, may 
require all questions be submitted in writing.  Any correspondence related to an Invitation for Bids should 
refer to the appropriate Invitation for Bids number, page, and paragraph number.  However, the Vendor(s) 
must not place the IFB number on the outside of an envelope containing questions since such an envelope 
may be identified as a sealed Bid and may not be opened until after the official IFB due date and time.  
Questions received less than five (5) working days prior to the date for opening Bids will be answered only if 
time permits.   Only questions answered by formal written addenda will be binding.  Oral and other 
interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. 
 
 
Late Bids 

Any bid received later than the date and time specified on Notice for Sealed Bids shall not be considered.   
 
 
Submittal Bid Format: 

It is requested that One (1) Original and One (1) copy (2 TOTAL) with original signatures on both sets of the 
Qualification and Certification Form, Price Sheets, No Collusion Form, Certification Regarding Debarment, 
Legal AZ Workers Act Compliance Form, Bidders Checklist and Addenda Acknowledgment Form, and Offer 
Page shall be submitted on the forms and in the format specified in the Invitation for Bid.  The County will 
not be liable for any cost incident to the preparation of Bid, materials, reproductions, presentations, copy-
right infringements, etc.  It is permissible to copy these forms if required.  Facsimiles or mailgrams shall not 
be considered. 
 
1. By signature in the offer section of the Offer and Acceptance page, Vendor certifies: 
 

A. The submission of the offer did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive practices. 
B. The Vendor has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter, any 

economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, or 
service to a public servant in connection with the submitted offer. 

C. In order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs, improve timely acquisition and cost of 
supplies and to improve efficiency and economy of procurement, any political subdivision, State, 
County, City, Town, etc., of the State of Arizona, will be allowed by the Vendor(s) awarded the 
contract to provide the same services, at the same prices stated in the bid.  Delivery charges may 
differentiate depending on geographical location. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



6 

 

BID NO. 082222 
One (1) New Ford F-250 Super Duty 4x4 with Transfer Toolbox combo and Snowplow 

Instructions to Vendors continued… 

 
2. Bids submitted early may be modified or withdrawn by notice to the party receiving bids at the place 

and prior to the time designated for receipts of Bids. 
 
3. The County is not responsible for any Vendor’s errors or omissions.  Negligence in preparing an offer 

confers no right to the Vendor unless the Vendor discovers and corrects such errors prior to the Bid 
deadline. 

 

All bids shall be submitted in a sealed envelope: 

• Minimum of Two (2) copies with original signatures shall be provided by the Vendor; 
 

• The words “Invitation for Bid” with Title “One (1) New Ford F-250 Super Duty 4x4 with Transfer 
Toolbox combo and Snowplow”, “Bid No. 082222”, “September 27, 2022” and “2:00 PM” shall be 
written on the face of the envelope; 
 

• The Vendor shall assume full responsibility for timely delivery at the location designated in the 
Notice; 
 

• No bids will be accepted after 2:00 PM. AZ Time, Tuesday, September 27, 2022. Bids will be opened 
at 2:00 PM., Tuesday, September 27, 2022. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7 

 

BID NO. 082222 
One (1) New Ford F-250 Super Duty 4x4 with Transfer Toolbox combo and Snowplow 

 

 
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
Award of Contract 

1. The Gila County Board of Supervisors reserves the right to award any Bid by individual line item, by 
group of line items or as total, or any part thereof, whichever is deemed to be in the best interest, 
most advantageous of the County of Gila. 

 
a.   Notwithstanding any or other provisions of the Bid, the County reserves the right to:  

1.   Waive any immaterial defects or informalities; or 
2.   Reject any or all Bids; or portions thereof; or 
3.   Reissue a Request for Bid. 

 
2. It is the responsibility of the Gila County Board of Supervisors to let the County contracts to the 

lowest responsive and responsible Vendor(s).  To ensure that all Vendors are experienced, 
reasonably equipped and adequately financed to meet their contractual obligations, a determination 
of responsibility shall be made by the Gila County Board of Supervisors prior to contract award. 

 
3. Further, the County reserves the right to reject the Bid of any Vendor(s) who has previously failed to 

perform adequately after having once been awarded a prior Bid for furnishing and installing 
materials similar in nature. 

 
4. All submitted forms provided in this Invitation for Bids will be reviewed by the Gila County Board of 

Supervisors. 
 

5. Those Vendor(s) who, in the opinion of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, are best qualified and 
whose Bids are most advantageous to the County may be invited to appear before the Board for an 
oral review. 

 
6. The apparent successful Vendor(s) shall sign and file with the County, within ten (10) days after 

Notice of Intent to Award, all documents necessary to successfully execute the contract. 
 
Protests 

Only other Vendors who have submitted a bid under this IFB have the right to protest.  A protest of an award 
must be filed within ten (10) days after the award by the Board of Supervisors.  A protest must be in writing 
and must include the following: 
 

A. Name, address and telephone number of the protester. 
B. Signature of the protester or its representative, and evidence of authority to sign. 
C. Identification of the contract and the solicitation or contract number. 
D. Detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of protest including copies of relevant 

documents. 
E. The form of relief requested. 

 
All protests shall be sent to the attention of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, 1400 East Ash Street, 
Globe, Arizona 85501. 
 

 



8 

 

BID NO. 082222 
One (1) New Ford F-250 Super Duty 4x4 with Transfer Toolbox combo and Snowplow  

General Terms & Conditions continued… 

 

Laws and Ordinances 

This agreement shall be enforced under the laws of the State of Arizona and Gila County.  Firm shall maintain 
in current status all Federal, State and Local licenses and permits required for the operation of the business 
conducted by the Firm.  The Firm shall comply with the applicable provisions of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) and applicable federal regulations under the act. 
 
EXHIBIT “B” CONTRACT AWARD AGREEMENT 

This exhibit shall serve as the contract agreement to any Vendor, their agents, subcontractors or 
representatives, awarded this or any portion of this contract by the County, by submitting Bids to this or any 
other solicitation requiring sealed bids, does hereby agree to the following provisions.  Proof of acceptance 
of these provisions will be the Vendor’s signature(s) appearing on page 20, Vendors Offer Page, and Exhibit 
“D” Vendors Qualification and Certification form page 14.  This Contract shall include the Invitation for Bids 
No. 082222 and all exhibits attached to it, including but not limited to the Qualification and Certification 
Form, Price Sheets, No Collusion Affidavit, Legal AZ Workers Act Compliance Form, Bidders Checklist and 
Addenda Acknowledgment Form, and Offer Page which are all incorporated into this agreement by this 
reference. 

 
Overcharges by Antitrust Violations 

The County maintains that, in actual practice, overcharges resulting from antitrust violations are borne by the 
purchaser.  Therefore, to the extent permitted by law, the Vendor hereby assigns to the County any and all 
claims for such overcharges as to the goods or services used to fulfill the contract. 
 
Authority to Contract 

This contract shall be based upon the Invitation for Bids No. 082222, issued by the County, and the offer 
submitted by the Vendor in response to the IFB.  The offer shall substantially conform to the terms, 
conditions, specifications and other requirements set forth within the text of the IFB which is incorporated by 
this reference into this agreement. The county reserves the right to clarify any contractual terms with the 
concurrence of the Vendor; however, any substantial non-conformity in the offer, as determined by the 
County Attorney, shall be deemed non-responsive and the offer rejected.  The contract shall contain the 
entire agreement between Gila County and the Vendor relating to these requirements. The Contract shall 
prevail over any and all previous agreements, contracts, bids, negotiations, purchase orders, or master 
agreement in any form.  The contract activity is issued under the authority of the Gila County Manager, after 
the Gila County Board of Supervisors approves the award.  No alteration of any portion of the contract, any 
items or services awarded, or any other agreement that is based upon this contract may be made without 
express written approval of the Gila County Board of Supervisors in the form of an official contract 
amendment.  Any attempt to alter any documents on the part of the Vendor or any agency is a violation of 
the Gila County Procurement Group Statement of Procedures.  Any such action is subject to the legal and 
contractual remedies available to the County inclusive, but not limited to, contract cancellation, suspension 
or debarment of the Vendor. 

 
Contract Amendments 

The contract shall be modified only by a written contract amendment signed by the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors and persons duly authorized to enter into contracts on behalf of the Vendor. 
 
 
 
 



9 

 

BID NO. 082222 
One (1) New Ford F-250 Super Duty 4x4 with Transfer Toolbox combo and Snowplow  

Exhibit “B” Contract Award Agreement continued… 
 
 

Contract Default 

 

A. The County, by written notice of default to the Vendor, may terminate the whole or any part of this 
contract in any one of the following circumstances:  
1. If the Vendor fails to make delivery of the supplies or to perform the services within the times 

specified; or 
 

2. If the Vendor fails to perform any of the other provisions of this contract; and fails to remedy 
the situation within a period of ten (10) days after receipt of notice. 

 
B. In the event the County terminates this contract in whole or part, the County may procure supplies 

or services similar to those terminated, and the Vendor shall be liable to the County for any excess 
costs for such similar supplies or services. 

 
Right to Assurance 

Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other party’s intent to perform, 
the other party may demand that the other party give a written assurance of this intent to perform.  In the 
event that a demand is made, and no written assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party 
may treat this failure as an anticipatory repudiation of this contract. 
 

Costs and Payments 

Payments shall comply with the requirements of A.R.S. Title 35 and 41, Net 30 days.  Upon receipt and 
acceptance of goods and services, the Vendor shall submit a complete and accurate invoice for payment.  
 
IRS W9 Form:  In order to receive payment, the Vendor shall have a current IRS W9 Form on file with the 
County unless not required by law. 
 
Co-op Use of Contract – Intergovernmental Purchasing 

Gila County has entered into an active purchasing agreement with other political subdivisions, cities, and 
towns of the State of Arizona in order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs and improve timely 
acquisition and cost of supplies, equipment and services.  The vendor(s) to whom this contract is awarded 
may be requested by other parties of said interactive purchasing agreements to extend to those parties the 
right to purchase supplies, equipment and services provided by the vendor under this contract, pursuant to 
the terms and conditions stated herein.  Any such usage by other entities must be in accord with the rules 
and regulations of the respective entity and the approval of the Vendor. 
 
Cancellation of County Contracts 

This contract is subject to the cancellation provisions of A.R.S. §38-511. 
 
Termination of Contract 

The County, with or without cause, may terminate this contract at any time, or by giving thirty (30) days 
written notice to you.  The County at its convenience, by written notice, may terminate this contract, in 
whole or in part.  If this contract is terminated, the County shall be liable only for payment under the 
payment provisions of this contract for the services rendered and accepted material received by the County 
before the effective date of termination. 
 



10 

 

BID NO. 082222 
One (1) New Ford F-250 Super Duty 4x4 with Transfer Toolbox combo and Snowplow   

Exhibit “B” Contract Award Agreement continued… 

 
 
The County reserves the right to cancel the whole or any part of this contract due to failure of the Vendor(s) 
to carry out any term, promise, or condition of the contract.  The County will issue a written ten (10) day 
notice of default to Vendor for acting or failing to act as in any of the following: 
 

1. In the opinion of the County, the Vendor fails to perform adequately the stipulations, conditions or   
services and specifications required in the contract. 

2. In the opinion of the County, the Vendor attempts to impose on the County material products, or 
workmanship, which is of unacceptable quality.  

3. Vendor fails to furnish the required service or product within the time stipulated in the contract. 
4. In the opinion of the County, the Vendor fails to make progress in the performance of the 

requirements of the contract or give the County a positive indication that Vendor will not, or cannot, 
perform to the requirements of the contract. 

 
Each payment obligation of the County created hereby is conditioned upon the availability of County, State 
and Federal funds, which are appropriated or allocated for the payment of such an obligation.  If funds are 
not allocated by the County and available for the continuance of service herein contemplated, the contract 
period for the service may be terminated by the County at the end of the period for which funds are 
available.  The County shall notify the Vendor at the earliest possible time which service may be affected by a 
shortage of funds.  No penalty shall accrue to the County in the event this provision is exercised, and the 
County shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments due or for any damages as a result of 
termination under this paragraph. 
 
General 

After receipt of all bids, each submittal shall be screened to determine if any shall be deemed non-
responsive.  Unsigned bids, unacknowledged Addenda, incomplete bids, non-conformance with mandatory 
requirements, etc., may result in the determination of non-responsive. 
 
Indemnification Clause 

Vendor shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the County of Gila and its officers, officials, agents, 
and employees (hereinafter referred to as “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, actions, 
liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses (including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim processing, 
investigation and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) for bodily injury or personal injury (including 
death), or loss or damage to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in 
part, by the negligent or willful acts or omissions of Vendor or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, 
employees or Subcontractors.  This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under 
the Workers’ Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of such Vendor to conform to any federal, state 
or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree.  It is the specific intention of the parties that 
the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or 
omissions of the Indemnitee, be indemnified by Vendor from and against any and all claims.  It is agreed that 
the Vendor will be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs. 
 
 

 
 
 



11 

 

BID NO. 082222 
One (1) New Ford F-250 Super Duty 4x4 with Transfer Toolbox combo and Snowplow   

 

MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS 
 

EXHIBIT “C” MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS FOR:   082222 

Purpose:  It is the intent of Gila County to establish, by this Invitation for Bids, a contract to One (1) New Ford 
F-250 Super Duty 4x4 with Transfer Toolbox combo and Snowplow. This Invitation for Bid No. 082222 
including the Qualification and Certification Form, Price Sheets, No Collusion Form, Legal AZ Workers Act 
Compliance Form, Certification Regarding Debarment, Checklist and Addenda Acknowledgment Form, and 
Offer Page constitutes the entire Bid package and by this reference is hereby incorporated into this 
agreement. 
 
SECTION 1.0 

General:   

1.1 All product specifications are minimum.  Vendor must provide product specification sheet. 
1.2 Vendor should have adequate manufacturing / stock facilities to serve the needs of Gila County. 

1.3 All proposals must represent the entire package.   

1.4 The parties specifically understand and agree that the quantities used for bidding purposes are 

estimates of County needs and in no event shall the County be obligated to purchase the exact 

quantities of any item set forth in the proposal.  The County does not guarantee any maximum or 

minimum amounts of purchase. 

 

SECTION 2.0 

Bid Pricing: 

2.1 The Vendor shall submit the bid in the form of a firm unit price for the contract period.  Initial 

contract period is through June 30, 2023.  Vendor shall incorporate all freight, profit, and discount 

into their price.   

2.2 The term of the contract shall commence upon award and shall remain in effect through June 30, 

2023, unless terminated, cancelled or extended as otherwise provided herein.   

 

SECTION 3.0 

Ordering and Delivery: 

3.1 ORDERING:  Gila County does not warrant the order quantity of any item prior to actual need.  Gila 

County may re-order item as it becomes necessary or based on the required needs within the 

County during the term of this contract. 

 

3.2 PRODUCT DELIVERY Location:  Gila County Shop, 1001 W. Besich Blvd, Globe, AZ.  The Board of 

Supervisors may designate other or alternate delivery sites at any time during the term of the 

contract.  These needs may be based on, but not limited to, seasonal, emergency, historical usage 

data.  

 
 
 
 
 
 



12 

 

BID NO. 082222 
One (1) New Ford F-250 Super Duty 4x4 with Transfer Toolbox combo and Snowplow 

Exhibit “C” Minimum Specifications continued… 

 
       3.3     DELIVERY TIME: Vehicles must be delivered no later than June 30, 2023. Failure to provide delivery 

within this time period may result in termination of this contract and award to the next lowest, 

responsible bidder. If vendor sends County Procurement written documentation from the 

manufacturer Forty-Five (45) days prior to the delivery date, Gila County may choose to extend the 

contract up to six (6) months. 

 

       3.4   Vendor shall retain title and control of all goods until they are delivered, and the contract of   

coverage has been completed.  All risks of transportation and all related charges shall be the 

responsibility of the Vendor.  All claims for visible or concealed damage shall be filed by the 

Vendor.  The County will assist the Vendor in arranging for inspection. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



13 

 

SPECIFICATION/PRICE SHEET 
 

Complete and Return this form for the total price being proposed.  Attach any pertinent cost 

breakdowns, subtotals of component costs, etc. to this proposal-pricing page. 

 

Vendor Name:  ____________________________ Phone No._____ _________________ 

Vehicle Year, Make, & Model:  _________________________________________________ 
 

MINIMUM 

SPECIFICATIONS 

2023 Ford F-350 4x4 Cab and Chassis  

MEETS 

MINIMUM 

SPECIFICATIONS 

YES NO Cab: Super Cab  

 

  

Rear Wheel: (DRW) Dual Rear Wheels   
Wheelbase: 168”   

  Exterior Paint: Oxford White   
  Powertrain: Engine: 6.7L 4 Valve OHV Power stroke Diesel   

  Transmission: Automatic   
4.10 Limited Slip Axle   
Trailer Tow Package   
Alternator Upgrade - 397 Amp Dual   
Engine Block Heater   
Exterior Back Up Alarm   
Rear View Camera and Prep Kit   

  Qty: (1) Spare Tire & Wheel, and Jack (4 ton)   
All Terrain 10 Ply Tires   
Interior: Medium Earth Gray   
Operator Commanded Regeneration (OCR)   
Trailer Brake Controller   

  HD Vinyl 40/20/40 split bench, Rr bench Seat 
 

  
Carpet Delete   
AM/FM Radio   
3 Additional Keys/Fobs Required: Qty (5) total     

Outfitting Required:  
 

  

                               SUB – TOTAL AMOUNT           $ 

                            OTHER COSTS          $ 

                            SALES TAX          $ 

 
TOTAL AMOUNT OF DELIVERED VEHICLE 

 
$ 

  Delivery Location:  Gila County Globe Shop - 1001 E. Besich Blvd Globe, Az___________ 
  

   Estimated Date of Delivery:   __      ________________ 

 

 

Vendor Name & Phone Number:  _________________________________________________ 

 
 

 



14 

 

OUTFITTING SPECIFICATION/PRICE SHEET 
 

Complete and Return this form for the total price being proposed.  Attach any pertinent cost 

breakdowns, subtotals of component costs, etc. to this proposal-pricing page. 

 

Vendor Name:  ____________________________ Phone No._____ _________________ 

Vehicle Year, Make, & Model:  _________________________________________________ 
 

MINIMUM 

SPECIFICATIONS 

11’ Steel Crane Body 

MEETS 

MINIMUM 

SPECIFICATIONS 

YES NO – 132” L x 93.25” (ID) – 95.25” W (OD) 50” W Cargo area. 

 

  

21.5” deep compartments, 24” H Front bulkhead.   
40” High sides – R/S & C/S. Toolbox/drawer insert in front   
R/S vertical compartment, (2) Adj shelves in other vertical comp-   

  artments R/C & C/S. 1 Adj shelf in horizontal compartments –    
  R/S & C/S. C/S Reinforcement for crane mounting. 1/8” Treadpl-   
ate floor with (4) tie-downs. Slam action rear tailgate.   
-LED S/T/T. Marker lights & reflectors   
-Sprayliner applied to inside of bed and workbench bumper   
-Workbench bumper, HR steel w/ flush mount 2” receiver   

  5/15 Vise mount   
  -Both sides, dual steps with yellow painted grab handles   
-Manual crank outriggers 
 

  
  -Mud flaps   
-7/4-way trailer receptacle   
-Back up alarm   

 
See additional Equipment on other Spec sheet 

  

   
     

                               SUB – TOTAL AMOUNT           $ 

                            OTHER COSTS          $ 

                            SALES TAX          $ 

 
TOTAL AMOUNT OF DELIVERED VEHICLE 

 
$ 

 

 

Delivery Location:   
 

 
 

    Estimated Date of Delivery:                                                

 

     

     Vendor Name & Phone Number:  _______________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 



15 

 

OUTFITTING SPECIFICATION/PRICE SHEET 
 

Complete and Return this form for the total price being proposed.  Attach any pertinent cost 

breakdowns, subtotals of component costs, etc. to this proposal-pricing page. 

 

Vendor Name:  ____________________________ Phone No._____ _________________ 

Vehicle Year, Make, & Model:  _________________________________________________ 
 

MINIMUM 

SPECIFICATIONS 

Equipment for 11’ Steel Crane Body 

MEETS 

MINIMUM 

SPECIFICATIONS 

YES NO  - Ele/Hyd Telescopic crane w/ 16,000 FT/LB crane rating, 4000 #  

 

  

max capacity @ 4’. 16’max horizontal reach. 17’ 4” max vertical   
Lift. Four function radio remote standard. 12v electric planetary   

  winch with 16’min/max single line speed, double acting cylinders    
  with integral counterbalance valves, gear bearing rotation systems   
  and double boom design – Installed C/S rear compartment.   
-Additional leaf spring to support weight of crane.   
-Adjustable boom support   
   
-Lincoln Ranger 305 G EFI engine driven welder R/S mount-   
ed on top of rear compartment    

   
-BELAIRE 13-hp 30-gallon two stage truck mount Air Comp.   
w/ Honda electric start engine – Mounted front of crane body   
   
 
 

  

   
   

     

                               SUB – TOTAL AMOUNT           $ 

                            OTHER COSTS          $ 

                            SALES TAX          $ 

 
TOTAL AMOUNT OF DELIVERED VEHICLE 

 
$ 

 

 
Delivery Location:   

 

 
 

    Estimated Date of Delivery:   __      ____ 

 

     

     Vendor Name & Phone Number:  _______________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 



16 

 

QUALIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION FORM 
 

EXHIBIT “D” VENDORS QUALIFICATION AND REFERENCE LIST 
 
PURPOSE 
This exhibit shall serve as a requirement to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of 
Vendors under consideration for final award.  The information may or may not be a determining factor in 
award. 
CONTACT NUMBER 082222 One (1) New Ford F-250 Super Duty 4x4 with Transfer Toolbox combo and 
Snowplow 
The applicant submitting this Bid warrants the following: 
 

1. Name, Address, and Telephone Number of Principal Vendor: 

________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

2. Has Vendor (under its present or any previous name) ever failed to complete a contract? 
________ Yes   ________No.  If “Yes”, give details including the date, the contracting agency, and 
the reason Vendor failed to perform in the narrative part of this Contract. 

 
3. Has Vendor (under its present or any previous name) ever been disbarred or prohibited from 

competing for a contract?  ________ Yes   ________ No.  If “Yes”, give details, including the date, the 
contracting agency, the reasons for the Vendors disqualifications, and whether this disqualification 
remains in effect in the narrative part of this Contract. 

 
4. Has a contracting agency ever terminated a contract with the Vendor (under your firm’s present or 

any previous name) prior to end of contract period?  ________ Yes   ________No.  If “Yes”, give 
details including the date, the contracting agency, and the reasons offer was terminated in the 
narrative part of this Contract. 

 
5. Vendor must also provide at least the following information: 

a. A Cost Bid shall be submitted on the Price Sheet, attached hereon and made a full part of this 
contract by this reference. 

b. Gila County reserves the right to request additional information. 
 

___________________________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Person to Sign 
 

___________________________________________ 
Printed Name 

 
___________________________________________ 
Title 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



17 

 

AFFIDAVIT BY VENDOR 
CERTIFYING THAT THERE WAS NO COLLUSION 

IN BIDDING FOR CONTRACT 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 

)ss 
COUNTY OF:   ) 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________                                                                                  
(Name of Individual) being first duly sworn, deposes and says: 

 
That he is 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                (Title)  

of____________________________________________________________________________   and 
                                                                          (Name of Business) 

 
 

That he is bidding on Gila County Bid No. 082222 - One (1) New Ford F-250 Super Duty 4x4 with 
Transfer Toolbox combo and Snowplow and, 
 
 

That neither he nor anyone associated with the said ________________________________  

__________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                     (Name of Business) 

 
has, directly or indirectly entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion or otherwise 
taken any action in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with the above-mentioned 
project. 

 

 

        ___________________________________ 
Name of Business 

 
___________________________________  
By 

 
___________________________________ 
Title 

 

 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this ____________ day of _________________________, 2022. 

 
 
_______________________________________________________               My Commission expires: 
Notary Public                
              ______________________________ 

 
 
 



18 

 

BID NO. 082222 
One (1) New Ford F-250 Super Duty 4x4 with Transfer Toolbox combo and Snowplow 

 
 
 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER 
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS 

 
The prospective participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals: 
 

(a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency; 

(b) Have not within a three year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a 
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, 
or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State 
antitrust statutes or commission or embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

(c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government 
entity (Federal, State, or local with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 
paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and 

(d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more 
public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default 

 
I understand that a false statement on this certification may be grounds for rejection of this proposal 
or termination of the award.  IN addition, under 18 USC Sec. 1001, a false statement may result in a 
fine of up to $10,000 or imprisonment for up to 5 years, or both. 
 
 
 

Typed Name and Title of Authorized Representative 
 
 
 
 

Signature of Authorized Representative 
 

 ............................................ I am unable to certify the above statements.  My explanation is attached 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



19 

 

BID NO. 082222 
One (1) New Ford F-250 Super Duty 4x4 with Transfer Toolbox combo and Snowplow 

 
LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE 

 
Vendor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this Contract comply with all federal immigration laws 
applicable to Vendor’s employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A) (together the 
“State and Federal Immigration Laws”).  Vendor shall further ensure that each Subcontractor who performs any work 
for Vendor under this contract likewise complies with the State and Federal Immigration Laws. 
  
County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of Vendor and any Subcontractor in order to 
verify such party’s compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws.   
 
 Any breach of Vendor’s or any Subcontractor’s warranty of compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws, or 
of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this Contract subjecting Vendor to 
penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this Contract. If the breach is by a Subcontractor, and the 
subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, and Gila County elects to continue the contract with the Vendor, 
Vendor shall be required to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services that would have 
been provided under the subcontract or retain a replacement Subcontractor, as soon as possible so as not to delay 
project completion.   
 
 Vendor shall advise each Subcontractor of County’s rights, and the Subcontractor’s obligations, under this Article by 
including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the following form: 
 “Subcontractor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all federal 
immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor’s employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A). 
Subcontractor further agrees that County may inspect the Subcontractor’s books and records to ensure that 
Subcontractor is in compliance with these requirements.  Any breach of this paragraph by Subcontractor will be deemed 
to be a material breach of this contract subjecting Subcontractor to penalties up to and including suspension or 
termination of this contract.”  
  
Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall be the responsibility of 
Vendor.  In the event that remedial action under this Article results in delay to one or more tasks on the critical path of 
Vendor’s approved construction or critical milestones schedule, such period of delay shall be deemed excusable delay 
for which Vendor shall be entitled to an extension of time, but not costs. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 

 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 

 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Title 

    
 
 
 
 
 
 



20 

 

 
 

ISRAEL BOYCOTT CERTIFICATION 
 
 

Contractor hereby certifies that it is not currently engaged in and will not, for the duration of this agreement, 
engage in a boycott of Israel as defined by A.R.S. § 35-393.01. Violation of this certification by Contractor may result 
in action by County up to and including termination of this agreement. 
 

 

 

       
Date:  __________________________  

 
 

_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 

 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Printed Name 

 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Title 

       

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Unless and until the District Court's injunction in Jordahl is stayed or lifted, the Anti-Israel Boycott Provision 
(A.R.S. §35-393.01 (A)) is unenforceable and the State will take no action to enforce it. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



21 

 

 

Certification of No Forced Labor: 

 

The Company does not currently, and agrees for the duration of this Agreement that the 

Company will not use: 
1. The forced labor of Ethnic Uyghurs in the People’s Republic of China; 
2. Any goods or services produced by the forced labor of Ethnic Uyghurs in the People’s 

Republic of China; and, 
3. Any contractors, subcontracts, or suppliers that use the forced labor or any goods or services 

produced by the forced labor of Ethnic Uyghurs in the People’s Republic of China.  
 

The Company further agrees that if the Company becomes aware, during the term of the 

Agreement, that the Company is not in compliance with this Certification, the Company shall 

notify the County within 5 business days after becoming aware of the non-compliance. If the 

Company does not remedy the non-compliance within 180-days after sending notice of non-

compliance, this Agreement shall automatically terminate.  
 

 

 
  

  Date:  __________________________________________  
 
 
      Vendor ______________________________________ 
 
 

_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 

 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Printed Name 

 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Title 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



22 

 

BID NO. 082222 
One (1) New Ford F-250 Super Duty 4x4 with Transfer Toolbox combo and Snowplow 

 

BIDDERS CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that all Bid Documents shall be completed, executed, and submitted with this IFB.  
If bidder fails to complete or execute any portion of the Bid Documents, this IFB will be determined to be 
“non-responsive” and rejected. 
 
 
CHECKLIST: 
 

REQUIRED DOCUMENT                    COMPLETED AND EXECUTED 
 

QUALIFICATION & CERTIFICATION FORM    ___________ 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT    ___________ 

PRICE SHEETS       ___________ 

NO COLLUSION AFFADAVIT     ___________ 

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKS ACT COMPLIANCE    ___________ 

BIDDERS CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGEMENT  ___________ 

OFFER PAGE       ___________ 

 

 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDA:       
 
                        #1                #2                  #3                       #4                           #5 
Initials  __________          __________          __________          __________          __________  
 
Date  __________          __________          __________          __________          __________         

 
 
 

Signed and dated this _________ day of _____________________, 2022 

 
 
 

           __________________________________________________ 
                                                   VENDOR: 
 

           __________________________________________________ 
                                                    BY: (Signature) 
 

 
 
Each bid shall be sealed in an envelope addressed to the Gila County Procurement Group and bearing the following 
statement on the outside of the envelope:  Invitation for Bids:  Bid No. 082222 One (1) New Ford F-250 Super Duty 4x4 
with Transfer Toolbox combo and Snowplow.  All bids shall be filed with the Gila County Finance Department at the 
Copper Building, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ on or before September 27, 2022, 2:00 PM. 
 

 



23 

 

BID NO. 082222 
One (1) New Ford F-250 Super Duty 4x4 with Transfer Toolbox combo and Snowplow 

 
OFFER PAGE  

 
TO GILA COUNTY: 

The undersigned hereby offers and agrees to furnish the material or service in compliance with all terms and conditions, 
instruction, specifications, and any amendments contained in this Invitation for bids. 
 
Signature also certifies the Vendors bid is genuine, and is not in any way collusive or a sham; that the bid is not made 
with the intent to restrict or prohibit competition; that the Vendor submitting the bid has not revealed the contents of 
the bid to, or in any way colluded with, any other Vendor which may compete for the contract; and that no other 
Vendor which may compete for the contract has revealed the contents of a bid to, or in any way colluded with, the 
Vendor submitting this bid. 
 

 

 

CONTRACT NUMBER:  082222 One (1) New Ford F-250 Super Duty 4x4 with Transfer Toolbox combo and 

Snowplow 

 
 
Firm Submitting Bid:     For clarification of this offer, contact: 

 
 
________________________________________ Name:  __________________________________ 
Company Name 

 
________________________________________ Phone No.:  ______________________________ 
Address   

       Fax   ____________________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
City                                State                                Zip  Email:  __________________________________ 
       
 
 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Signature of Authorized Person to Sign 

 
       ______________________________________ 
       Printed Name 

 
       ______________________________________ 
       Title 

 
 
 
 
Bid must be signed by a duly authorized officer(s) eligible to sign contract documents for the Firm. 
 



24 

 

 

BID NO. 082222 
One (1) New Ford F-250 Super Duty 4x4 with Transfer Toolbox combo and Snowplow 

 

 
ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER 

(For Gila County use only) 
 
 
 

The Offer is hereby Accepted: 
 

The Vendor                       is now bound to provide the materials or services listed in 

Invitation for Bid No.: 082222 including all terms and conditions, specifications, amendments, etc. and the 

Vendor’s Offer as accepted by County entity. 

 

The contract shall henceforth be referenced to as     Contract No. 082222. The Vendor has been cautioned not 

to commence any billable work or to provide any material or service under this Contract until Vendor 

receives written notice to proceed from Gila County. 

 
 
 
Awarded this _________________ day of ________________________________, 2022 

 
 

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS: 
 

 

 __________________________________________________ 
 Woody Cline, Chairman, Board of Supervisors 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 

 

 __________________________________________________ 
 James Menlove, Clerk of the Board 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

 __________________________________________________ 
 The Gila County Attorney’s Office 

 



   
ARF-7558   Regular Agenda Item     3. J.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/20/2022  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Public Works
Fiscal Year: 2023 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

09-20-22 to 06-30-23 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Request to Advertise Invitation for Bids No. 082322 - One (1) New Ford
F-350 Super Duty XL 4x4 Chassis Cab with Dump Bed, Spreader and
Snowplow

Background Information
The advertisement for One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Duty XL 4x4
Chassis Cab with Dump bed, Spreader, and Snowplow would allow the
Gila County Public Works General Services division the ability to receive
proposals from automobile suppliers and have the option to purchase this
new vehicle, during this fiscal year.

It is the intent of this solicitation to establish the purchase of One (1) New
Ford F-350 Super Duty XL 4x4 Chassis Cab with Dump bed, Spreader,
and Snowplow for Gila County Public Works Roads Division to be
purchased using HURF Funds.

Evaluation
The vehicle mentioned in the agenda request will be needed for the Roads
Division to help maintain and repair County roads and assist in snow
removal during winter events. This will would be replacing C-074, a 1993
1T Dump truck that is 29 years of age and has 175,000 miles, and is
costing the County a lot of money in maintenance and repairs. C-074 will
be traded in and prepped for auction.

Conclusion



The vehicle that will be purchased with this solicitation will be used by
the Gila County Roads Division and replace an older vehicle that has met
one requirement and is close to meeting the other requirements of the
Gila County recommended replacement intervals.

Recommendation
The Public Works Department Director recommends that the Board of
Supervisors approve the advertisement of Invitation for Bids No. 082322
for the purchase of One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Duty XL 4x4 Chassis
Cab with Dump Bed, spreader, and snowplow as outlined in the
solicitation.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of
Invitation for Bid No. 082322 to purchase One (1) New Ford F-350 Super
Duty XL 4x4 Chassis and Cab with a Dump Bed, spreader, and snowplow
as outlined in the solicitation. (David LaForge)

Attachments
Request to Advertise
IFB No. 082322



  

Bids X Proposals
     

      

 
FUNDING 80,000 PROJECTS:

Fund 6500 Dept No. 341 Program 510 Location 000 Account

INTENT

Signed:  Date

DATE Department Receipt Placed on Agenda

Presented to Board Approved to Call

Delivered to Paper Paper Name

Advertised          From To

Closing Date Bid Award Date

Awarded To Pre-Bid Meeting Date
  

Department Name:

Date

Department Name:

Date

Finance Director Signature Date

EXHIBIT "H"

GILA COUNTY DEPARTMENTAL REQUEST TO ADVERTISE FOR BIDS

Qualifications

REQUEST NUMBER

(For Procurement Use Only)

IS THIS A REQUEST FOR         Check one

All departments procuring purchases in excess of $50,000 that requires advertising for bids must follow the Procurement Procedures and 

must complete Item "I" of this form prior to such purchase.  The requesting department is responsible for writing necessary specifications

and routing them, including this form and completed Bid Request Form to the Purchasing Department.  This Form must be completed and

have a copy of the specifications attached before routing begins.  All Requests and Specifications will be in accordance with the Arizona

Revised Statutes and the latest version of the Gila County Purchasing Policy and Procedures.

9/13/2022

9/6/2022

It is the intent of this solicitation to establish the purchase of a New Ford F-350 Super Duty XL 4x4 Chassis Cab with Dump 
bed, Saltdogg spreader and snowplow with controllers to be used for Public Works Roads department.

Elected Official or Department Head

II.  DEPARTMENTAL INFORMATION ONLY:    Action Dates

I.  DESCRIPTION:    List item(s) to be purchased, purpose, specific summary, estimated cost and funding  source.  

4500.40

 

Payson Roundup

9/20/2022

10/18/20229/27/2022

Department Head Signature

IV.  APPROVED 

III.  OTHER APPROVAL:     Only as necessary

Department Head Signature



 

 

 

 
 

GILA COUNTY 
 

NOTICE OF INVITATION FOR BID 
 
 

BID NO. 082322 
 
 

One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Duty XL 4x4 Chassis Cab with Dump Bed, Spreader and 
Snowplow 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

*BOARD OF SUPERVISORS* 
Woody Cline, Chairman 

Steve Christensen, Vice Chairman 
Tim Humphrey, Member 

 
 
 

*COUNTY MANAGER* 
James Menlove 

 

 

 

 

 



1 

 

 

GILA COUNTY 
PROCUREMENT GROUP 

NOTICE OF INVITATION FOR BID 
 

SOLICITATION NUMBER 
082322 

1400 E. Ash Street 
Globe, Arizona 

85501 
 

 
BID DUE DATE:      Tuesday, September 27, 2022                             TIME:  2:00 PM 
 
DESCRIPTION:      One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Duty XL 4x4 Chassis Cab with Dump Bed, Spreader and Snowplow 

                                 
 
Bid Opening Location:  GILA COUNTY FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
    ATTN: BETTY HURST 
    COPPER BUILDING  
    1350 EAST MONROE GLOBE, ARIZONA  85501 
 
Bid Submittal Location:  GILA COUNTY FINANCE DEPARTMENT, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ  85501 
     
Invitation for Bid for the materials and services specified will be received by the Gila County Procurement 
Group at the above specified location until the time and date cited. 
 
Request for submittals after the specified date and time to the Procurement Group shall not be considered.  
To receive bid documents, contact the Procurement Group at (928) 402-4355 or click on the following link to 
the County website. http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php  
 
Additional instructions for preparing a bid are provided on pages 4-6 of the bid documents to Offerors as 
contained within the solicitation. 
 
The Board of Supervisors reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, or to accept any proposal, or to 
waive any informality in any proposal, or to withhold the award if deemed in the best interest of Gila County.   
 
All procurement activities conducted by Gila County are in conformance with the rules and regulations of the 
Gila County Procurement Group Statement of Procedures.  A copy of the Gila County Procurement Group 
Statement of Procedures is available for review in the Deputy Clerk of the Board’s office, Globe, AZ. 
 
Arizona Silver Belt advertisement dates:   September 13, 2022, and September 20, 2022.  

BIDDERS ARE STRONGLY ENCOURAGED TO CAREFULLY READ THE ENTIRE SOLICITATION. 
 
Designated Department:        Gila County Fleet Management 
Type of contract: Term 
Term of Contract: Twelve Months  
Phone Number: (928) 402-8525 
 

 
Signed:  _____________________________________________________ Date:  ________________ 
 Woody Cline, Chairman, Board of Supervisors 

 
Signed:  _____________________________________________________ Date:  ________________  
              The Gila County Attorney’s Office 
 

http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php


2 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 

     CONTENT           PAGE 

 
Solicitation ............................................................................................................................. 1 

Scope of Work ........................................................................................................................ 3 

Exhibit “A” Instructions to Vendors ...................................................................................... 4-6 

 Preparation of Sealed Bid ........................................................................................................... 4 
 Amendments ........................................................................................................................... 4-5 
 Inquiries ...................................................................................................................................... 5 
 Late Bids ..................................................................................................................................... 5 
 Submittal Bid Format ............................................................................................................... 5-6 

General Terms and Conditions ............................................................................................. 7-8 

 Award of Contract ...................................................................................................................... 7 
 Protests ....................................................................................................................................... 7 
 Laws & Ordinances ..................................................................................................................... 8 

Exhibit “B” Contract Award Agreement ............................................................................... 8-10 

 Overcharges by Antitrust Violations ........................................................................................... 8 
 Authority to Contract ................................................................................................................. 8 
 Contract Amendments ............................................................................................................... 8 
 Contract Default ......................................................................................................................... 9 
 Right of Assurance ...................................................................................................................... 9 
 Costs & Payments ....................................................................................................................... 9 
 Co-op Intergovernmental Purchasing Agreement ..................................................................... 9 
 Cancellation of County Contracts ............................................................................................... 9 
 Termination of Contract ............................................................................................................. 9 

  Indemnification Clause ............................................................................................................ 10   

Exhibit “C” Minimum Product Specifications and Information ........................................... 11-12 

 Section 1.0 General Purpose .................................................................................................... 11 
 Section 2.0 Bid Pricing .............................................................................................................. 11 
 Section 3.0 Order and Delivery ................................................................................................. 12 

Price Sheet ....................................................................................................................... 13-14 

Exhibit “D” Qualification and Certification Form ..................................................................... 15 

No Collusion Affidavit ............................................................................................................ 16 

       Certification Regarding Debarment………………………………………………………………………….......……….17 

Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance .................................................................................. 18 

Israel Boycott Certification……………………………………………………………………………………………………. 19 

Certification of No. Forced Labor………………………………………………………………………………………….. 20 

Bidders Checklist and Addenda Acknowledgment .................................................................. 21 

Offer Page  ............................................................................................................................ 22 

Acceptance of Offer Page  ...................................................................................................... 23 

 



3 

 

BID NO. 082322 
One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Duty XL 4x4 Chassis Cab with Dump Bed, Spreader and Snowplow  

 

GENERAL SCOPE  

 
It is the intent of this solicitation to award a contract for the One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Duty XL 4x4 
Chassis Cab with Dump Bed, Spreader and Snowplow for the Fleet Management in Gila County.  
 
The County may choose to award this contract, or make multiple awards, depending on what is deemed to 
be in the County’s best interest considering price, specifications, and delivery date.  The request for price of 
an item does not guarantee a purchase but merely provides the County with the option if the need arises. 
 
See attached:  Exhibit “C” Pages 13 and Page 14 as specified on Price Sheet for total price being proposed. 
 
Vendors who agree to provide the Minimum Bid Specifications for this Invitation for Bid shall be considered 
for award. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 

 

BID NO. 082322 
One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Duty XL 4x4 Chassis Cab with Dump Bed, Spreader and Snowplow   

 
INSTRUCTIONS TO VENDORS 

 
IMPORTANT:  EXHIBIT “A”, INSTRUCTIONS TO VENDORS AND EXHIBIT “B”, VENDORS AWARD AGREEMENT 
ARE BASIC CONTENT TO GILA COUNTY BID PACKAGES.  INDIVIDUAL BIDS MAY REQUIRE DIFFERENT 
LANGUAGE FOR INSTRUCTIONS AND AWARD AGREEMENTS.  WHERE APPLICABLE, SUCH CHANGES WILL 
APPEAR IN EXHIBIT “C”, MINIMUM PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS AND INFORMATION AND TAKE PRECEDENCE 
OVER THE LANGUAGE APPEARING IN EXHIBITS “A” & “B”. 
 
EXHIBIT “A” INSTRUCTIONS TO VENDORS 
 
Preparation of Sealed Bid 

A. Sealed Bids will be received by the Gila County Finance Department, from vendors, to deliver the 
product(s), goods and services contained to establish a contract for specified locations within Gila 
County.  The County seeks sealed bids only from qualified, experienced vendors able to provide 
services which are, in all respects, responsive to the specifications.  All bids shall be on the forms 
provided in this Invitation for Bid package.  It is permissible to copy these forms if required.  

 
B. Before submitting its bid, each vendor shall familiarize itself with the Scope of Work, laws, 

regulations and other factors affecting performance of work.  It shall carefully correlate its 
observations with requirements of the Contract and otherwise satisfy itself of the expense and 
difficulties attending the performance of the work.  The submission of a bid will constitute a 
representation of compliance by the vendor.  There will be no subsequent financial adjustment, 
other than that provided for by the Contract, for lack of such familiarization. 

 
C. Vendors must complete all forms provided in this Invitation for Bid package in full, original 

signature in ink, by the person(s) authorized to sign the Bid and to be submitted at the time of bid 
and made a part of this contract.  The County will use the Bid, and Qualification and Certification 
Form, in evaluating the capacity of vendor(s) to perform the Scope of Services as set forth in the 
Contract.  Failure of any Vendor to complete and submit the Price Sheet and Signature and Offer 
Page at time and place of opening may be grounds for automatic disqualification of the vendor(s) 
from further consideration. 

 
D. The names of all persons authorized to sign the Bid must also be legibly printed below the 

signature. Evidence of the authority of the person signing shall be furnished. 
 

E. The full name of each person or company interested in the Invitation for Bids shall be listed on the 
Bid. 

 
F. No alterations in Bids, or in the printed forms therefore, by erasures, interpolations, or otherwise 

will be acceptable unless each such alteration is signed or initialed by the vendor; if initialed, the 
County may require the vendor to identify any alteration so initialed. 

 
Amendments 

Any addendum issued as a result of any change in this Invitation for Bids must be acknowledged by all 
Vendors in the following manner: 
 

1. Completion of the Bidder Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment form, page 21. 
            



5 

 

BID NO. 082322 
One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Duty XL 4x4 Chassis Cab with Dump Bed, Spreader and Snowplow 

Instructions to Vendors continued… 

 
 
Failure to indicate receipt of addenda in the above manner may result in a bid being rejected as non-
responsive. If no addenda have been issued, please indicate so by writing “Not Applicable” in the space 
provided under #1. The Vendor Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment form must be signed and dated. 
 

Inquiries 

Any questions related to this IFB must be directed to those whose names appear on the Notice.  Questions 
should be submitted in writing when time permits.  The Gila County Supervisors, at their sole discretion, may 
require all questions be submitted in writing.  Any correspondence related to an Invitation for Bids should 
refer to the appropriate Invitation for Bids number, page, and paragraph number.  However, the Vendor(s) 
must not place the IFB number on the outside of an envelope containing questions since such an envelope 
may be identified as a sealed Bid and may not be opened until after the official IFB due date and time.  
Questions received less than five (5) working days prior to the date for opening Bids will be answered only if 
time permits.   Only questions answered by formal written addenda will be binding.  Oral and other 
interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. 
 
 
Late Bids 

Any bid received later than the date and time specified on Notice for Sealed Bids shall not be considered.   
 
 
Submittal Bid Format: 

It is requested that One (1) Original and One (1) copy (2 TOTAL) with original signatures on both sets of the 
Qualification and Certification Form, Price Sheets, No Collusion Form, Certification Regarding Debarment, 
Legal AZ Workers Act Compliance Form, Bidders Checklist and Addenda Acknowledgment Form, and Offer 
Page shall be submitted on the forms and in the format specified in the Invitation for Bid.  The County will 
not be liable for any cost incident to the preparation of Bid, materials, reproductions, presentations, copy-
right infringements, etc.  It is permissible to copy these forms if required.  Facsimiles or mailgrams shall not 
be considered. 
 
1. By signature in the offer section of the Offer and Acceptance page, Vendor certifies: 
 

A. The submission of the offer did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive practices. 
B. The Vendor has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter, any 

economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, or 
service to a public servant in connection with the submitted offer. 

C. In order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs, improve timely acquisition and cost of 
supplies and to improve efficiency and economy of procurement, any political subdivision, State, 
County, City, Town, etc., of the State of Arizona, will be allowed by the Vendor(s) awarded the 
contract to provide the same services, at the same prices stated in the bid.  Delivery charges may 
differentiate depending on geographical location. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



6 

 

BID NO. 082322 
One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Duty XL 4x4 Chassis Cab with Dump Bed, Spreader and Snowplow 

Instructions to Vendors continued… 

 
2. Bids submitted early may be modified or withdrawn by notice to the party receiving bids at the place 

and prior to the time designated for receipts of Bids. 
 
3. The County is not responsible for any Vendor’s errors or omissions.  Negligence in preparing an offer 

confers no right to the Vendor unless the Vendor discovers and corrects such errors prior to the Bid 
deadline. 

 

All bids shall be submitted in a sealed envelope: 

• Minimum of Two (2) copies with original signatures shall be provided by the Vendor; 
 

• The words “Invitation for Bid” with Title “One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Duty XL 4x4 Chassis Cab 
with Dump Bed, Spreader and Snowplow”, “Bid No. 082322”, “September 27, 2022” and “2:00 PM” 
shall be written on the face of the envelope; 
 

• The Vendor shall assume full responsibility for timely delivery at the location designated in the 
Notice; 
 

• No bids will be accepted after 2:00 PM. AZ Time, Tuesday, September 27, 2022. Bids will be opened 
at 2:00 PM., Tuesday, September 27, 2022. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7 

 

 
BID NO. 082322 

One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Duty XL 4x4 Chassis Cab with Dump Bed, Spreader and Snowplow 

 

 
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
Award of Contract 

1. The Gila County Board of Supervisors reserves the right to award any Bid by individual line item, by 
group of line items or as total, or any part thereof, whichever is deemed to be in the best interest, 
most advantageous of the County of Gila. 

 
a.   Notwithstanding any or other provisions of the Bid, the County reserves the right to:  

1.   Waive any immaterial defects or informalities; or 
2.   Reject any or all Bids; or portions thereof; or 
3.   Reissue a Request for Bid. 

 
2. It is the responsibility of the Gila County Board of Supervisors to let the County contracts to the 

lowest responsive and responsible Vendor(s).  To ensure that all Vendors are experienced, 
reasonably equipped and adequately financed to meet their contractual obligations, a determination 
of responsibility shall be made by the Gila County Board of Supervisors prior to contract award. 

 
3. Further, the County reserves the right to reject the Bid of any Vendor(s) who has previously failed to 

perform adequately after having once been awarded a prior Bid for furnishing and installing 
materials similar in nature. 

 
4. All submitted forms provided in this Invitation for Bids will be reviewed by the Gila County Board of 

Supervisors. 
 

5. Those Vendor(s) who, in the opinion of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, are best qualified and 
whose Bids are most advantageous to the County may be invited to appear before the Board for an 
oral review. 

 
6. The apparent successful Vendor(s) shall sign and file with the County, within ten (10) days after 

Notice of Intent to Award, all documents necessary to successfully execute the contract. 
 
Protests 

Only other Vendors who have submitted a bid under this IFB have the right to protest.  A protest of an award 
must be filed within ten (10) days after the award by the Board of Supervisors.  A protest must be in writing 
and must include the following: 
 

A. Name, address and telephone number of the protester. 
B. Signature of the protester or its representative, and evidence of authority to sign. 
C. Identification of the contract and the solicitation or contract number. 
D. Detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of protest including copies of relevant 

documents. 
E. The form of relief requested. 

 
All protests shall be sent to the attention of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, 1400 East Ash Street, 
Globe, Arizona 85501. 
 



8 

 

 
BID NO. 082322 

One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Duty XL 4x4 Chassis Cab with Dump Bed, Spreader and Snowplow  

General Terms & Conditions continued… 

 

Laws and Ordinances 

This agreement shall be enforced under the laws of the State of Arizona and Gila County.  Firm shall maintain 
in current status all Federal, State and Local licenses and permits required for the operation of the business 
conducted by the Firm.  The Firm shall comply with the applicable provisions of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) and applicable federal regulations under the act. 
 
EXHIBIT “B” CONTRACT AWARD AGREEMENT 

This exhibit shall serve as the contract agreement to any Vendor, their agents, subcontractors or 
representatives, awarded this or any portion of this contract by the County, by submitting Bids to this or any 
other solicitation requiring sealed bids, does hereby agree to the following provisions.  Proof of acceptance 
of these provisions will be the Vendor’s signature(s) appearing on page 20, Vendors Offer Page, and Exhibit 
“D” Vendors Qualification and Certification form page 14.  This Contract shall include the Invitation for Bids 
No. 082322 and all exhibits attached to it, including but not limited to the Qualification and Certification 
Form, Price Sheets, No Collusion Affidavit, Legal AZ Workers Act Compliance Form, Bidders Checklist and 
Addenda Acknowledgment Form, and Offer Page which are all incorporated into this agreement by this 
reference. 

 
Overcharges by Antitrust Violations 

The County maintains that, in actual practice, overcharges resulting from antitrust violations are borne by the 
purchaser.  Therefore, to the extent permitted by law, the Vendor hereby assigns to the County any and all 
claims for such overcharges as to the goods or services used to fulfill the contract. 
 
Authority to Contract 

This contract shall be based upon the Invitation for Bids No. 082322, issued by the County, and the offer 
submitted by the Vendor in response to the IFB.  The offer shall substantially conform to the terms, 
conditions, specifications and other requirements set forth within the text of the IFB which is incorporated by 
this reference into this agreement. The county reserves the right to clarify any contractual terms with the 
concurrence of the Vendor; however, any substantial non-conformity in the offer, as determined by the 
County Attorney, shall be deemed non-responsive and the offer rejected.  The contract shall contain the 
entire agreement between Gila County and the Vendor relating to these requirements. The Contract shall 
prevail over any and all previous agreements, contracts, bids, negotiations, purchase orders, or master 
agreement in any form.  The contract activity is issued under the authority of the Gila County Manager, after 
the Gila County Board of Supervisors approves the award.  No alteration of any portion of the contract, any 
items or services awarded, or any other agreement that is based upon this contract may be made without 
express written approval of the Gila County Board of Supervisors in the form of an official contract 
amendment.  Any attempt to alter any documents on the part of the Vendor or any agency is a violation of 
the Gila County Procurement Group Statement of Procedures.  Any such action is subject to the legal and 
contractual remedies available to the County inclusive, but not limited to, contract cancellation, suspension 
or debarment of the Vendor. 

 
Contract Amendments 

The contract shall be modified only by a written contract amendment signed by the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors and persons duly authorized to enter into contracts on behalf of the Vendor. 
 
 
 



9 

 

 
BID NO. 082322 

One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Duty XL 4x4 Chassis Cab with Dump Bed, Spreader and Snowplow  

Exhibit “B” Contract Award Agreement continued… 
 
 

Contract Default 

 

A. The County, by written notice of default to the Vendor, may terminate the whole or any part of this 
contract in any one of the following circumstances:  
1. If the Vendor fails to make delivery of the supplies or to perform the services within the times 

specified; or 
 

2. If the Vendor fails to perform any of the other provisions of this contract; and fails to remedy 
the situation within a period of ten (10) days after receipt of notice. 

 
B. In the event the County terminates this contract in whole or part, the County may procure supplies 

or services similar to those terminated, and the Vendor shall be liable to the County for any excess 
costs for such similar supplies or services. 

 
Right to Assurance 

Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other party’s intent to perform, 
the other party may demand that the other party give a written assurance of this intent to perform.  In the 
event that a demand is made, and no written assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party 
may treat this failure as an anticipatory repudiation of this contract. 
 

Costs and Payments 

Payments shall comply with the requirements of A.R.S. Title 35 and 41, Net 30 days.  Upon receipt and 
acceptance of goods and services, the Vendor shall submit a complete and accurate invoice for payment.  
 
IRS W9 Form:  In order to receive payment, the Vendor shall have a current IRS W9 Form on file with the 
County unless not required by law. 
 
Co-op Use of Contract – Intergovernmental Purchasing 

Gila County has entered into an active purchasing agreement with other political subdivisions, cities, and 
towns of the State of Arizona in order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs and improve timely 
acquisition and cost of supplies, equipment and services.  The vendor(s) to whom this contract is awarded 
may be requested by other parties of said interactive purchasing agreements to extend to those parties the 
right to purchase supplies, equipment and services provided by the vendor under this contract, pursuant to 
the terms and conditions stated herein.  Any such usage by other entities must be in accord with the rules 
and regulations of the respective entity and the approval of the Vendor. 
 
Cancellation of County Contracts 

This contract is subject to the cancellation provisions of A.R.S. §38-511. 
 
Termination of Contract 

The County, with or without cause, may terminate this contract at any time, or by giving thirty (30) days 
written notice to you.  The County at its convenience, by written notice, may terminate this contract, in 
whole or in part.  If this contract is terminated, the County shall be liable only for payment under the 
payment provisions of this contract for the services rendered and accepted material received by the County 
before the effective date of termination. 



10 

 

 
BID NO. 082322 

One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Duty XL 4x4 Chassis Cab with Dump Bed, Spreader and Snowplow   

Exhibit “B” Contract Award Agreement continued… 

 
 
The County reserves the right to cancel the whole or any part of this contract due to failure of the Vendor(s) 
to carry out any term, promise, or condition of the contract.  The County will issue a written ten (10) day 
notice of default to Vendor for acting or failing to act as in any of the following: 
 

1. In the opinion of the County, the Vendor fails to perform adequately the stipulations, conditions or   
services and specifications required in the contract. 

2. In the opinion of the County, the Vendor attempts to impose on the County material products, or 
workmanship, which is of unacceptable quality.  

3. Vendor fails to furnish the required service or product within the time stipulated in the contract. 
4. In the opinion of the County, the Vendor fails to make progress in the performance of the 

requirements of the contract or give the County a positive indication that Vendor will not, or cannot, 
perform to the requirements of the contract. 

 
Each payment obligation of the County created hereby is conditioned upon the availability of County, State 
and Federal funds, which are appropriated or allocated for the payment of such an obligation.  If funds are 
not allocated by the County and available for the continuance of service herein contemplated, the contract 
period for the service may be terminated by the County at the end of the period for which funds are 
available.  The County shall notify the Vendor at the earliest possible time which service may be affected by a 
shortage of funds.  No penalty shall accrue to the County in the event this provision is exercised, and the 
County shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments due or for any damages as a result of 
termination under this paragraph. 
 
General 

After receipt of all bids, each submittal shall be screened to determine if any shall be deemed non-
responsive.  Unsigned bids, unacknowledged Addenda, incomplete bids, non-conformance with mandatory 
requirements, etc., may result in the determination of non-responsive. 
 
Indemnification Clause 

Vendor shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the County of Gila and its officers, officials, agents, 
and employees (hereinafter referred to as “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, actions, 
liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses (including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim processing, 
investigation and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) for bodily injury or personal injury (including 
death), or loss or damage to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in 
part, by the negligent or willful acts or omissions of Vendor or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, 
employees or Subcontractors.  This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under 
the Workers’ Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of such Vendor to conform to any federal, state 
or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree.  It is the specific intention of the parties that 
the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or 
omissions of the Indemnitee, be indemnified by Vendor from and against any and all claims.  It is agreed that 
the Vendor will be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs. 
 
 

 
 



11 

 

 
BID NO. 082322 

One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Duty XL 4x4 Chassis Cab with Dump Bed, Spreader and Snowplow   

 

MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS 
 

EXHIBIT “C” MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS FOR:   082322 

Purpose:  It is the intent of Gila County to establish, by this Invitation for Bids, a contract to One (1) New Ford 
F-350 Super Duty XL 4x4 Chassis Cab with Dump Bed, Spreader and Snowplow. This Invitation for Bid No. 
082322 including the Qualification and Certification Form, Price Sheets, No Collusion Form, Legal AZ Workers 
Act Compliance Form, Certification Regarding Debarment, Checklist and Addenda Acknowledgment Form, 
and Offer Page constitutes the entire Bid package and by this reference is hereby incorporated into this 
agreement. 
 
SECTION 1.0 

General:   

1.1 All product specifications are minimum.  Vendor must provide product specification sheet. 
1.2 Vendor should have adequate manufacturing / stock facilities to serve the needs of Gila County. 

1.3 All proposals must represent the entire package.   

1.4 The parties specifically understand and agree that the quantities used for bidding purposes are 

estimates of County needs and in no event shall the County be obligated to purchase the exact 

quantities of any item set forth in the proposal.  The County does not guarantee any maximum or 

minimum amounts of purchase. 

 

SECTION 2.0 

Bid Pricing: 

2.1 The Vendor shall submit the bid in the form of a firm unit price for the contract period.  Initial 

contract period is through June 30, 2023.  Vendor shall incorporate all freight, profit, and discount 

into their price.   

2.2 The term of the contract shall commence upon award and shall remain in effect through June 30, 

2023, unless terminated, cancelled or extended as otherwise provided herein.   

 

SECTION 3.0 

Ordering and Delivery: 

3.1 ORDERING:  Gila County does not warrant the order quantity of any item prior to actual need.  Gila 

County may re-order item as it becomes necessary or based on the required needs within the 

County during the term of this contract. 

 

3.2 PRODUCT DELIVERY Location:  Gila County Shop, 1001 W. Besich Blvd, Globe, AZ.  The Board of 

Supervisors may designate other or alternate delivery sites at any time during the term of the 

contract.  These needs may be based on, but not limited to, seasonal, emergency, historical usage 

data.  

 
 
 
 
 



12 

 

 
BID NO. 082322 

One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Duty XL 4x4 Chassis Cab with Dump Bed, Spreader and Snowplow 

Exhibit “C” Minimum Specifications continued… 

 
       3.3     DELIVERY TIME: Vehicles must be delivered no later than June 30, 2023. Failure to provide delivery 

within this time period may result in termination of this contract and award to the next lowest, 

responsible bidder. If vendor sends County Procurement written documentation from the 

manufacturer Forty-Five (45) days prior to the delivery date, Gila County may choose to extend the 

contract up to six (6) months. 

 

       3.4   Vendor shall retain title and control of all goods until they are delivered, and the contract of   

coverage has been completed.  All risks of transportation and all related charges shall be the 

responsibility of the Vendor.  All claims for visible or concealed damage shall be filed by the 

Vendor.  The County will assist the Vendor in arranging for inspection. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



13 

 

SPECIFICATION/PRICE SHEET 
 

Complete and Return this form for the total de l ivered  price being proposed.  Attach any 
pertinent cost breakdowns, subtotals of component costs, etc. to this proposal-pricing page. 

 

Vendor Name:  ____________________________ Phone No._____ _________________ 

Vehicle Year, Make, & Model:  _________________________________________________ 
 

MINIMUM 

SPECIFICATIONS 

New Ford F-350 Super Duty XL 4x4 Chassis Cab 

MEETS MINIMUM 

SPECIFICATIONS 

YES NO 

Body: Regular / Chassis Cab 

 

  

Wheelbase: 145”   
Rear Wheel Options: (DRW) Dual Rear Wheels   

  Exterior Paint: Oxford White   
  Engine: 6.7L 4 Valve OHV Power stroke V8   
  Drive: 4X4   
Transmission: Ten-Speed Automatic   

  Packages: Snowplow Prep, Trailer Tow, & Power Equip Pkgs   
  Wheel Type: 17” Steel Wheels    
Exterior Options: Engine Block Heater   
                               Exterior Backup Alarm     
                               Full Size Spare Tire, Jack and Jack Tools   

                                 Rear View Camera and Prep Kit 
 

  
                               Factory Skid Plates    

                                 Tire Type: LT 245/75Rx17E BSW A/T Tires   
                                 Platform Running Boards   
Interior: Medium Earth Gray HD Vinyl 40/20/40 Split Bench   

                  Carpet Delete 
 

  

                Operator Commanded Regeneration   
                Trailer Brake Controller     
                AM/FM Radio w/ SYNC      

     3 Additional Keys/Fobs Required: Qty (5) total     

                               SUB – TOTAL AMOUNT           $ 

                            OTHER COSTS          $ 

                            SALES TAX          $ 

 
TOTAL AMOUNT OF DELIVERED VEHICLE 

 
$ 

 

 
Delivery Location:   

 

 
 

    Estimated Date of Delivery:   __      ____                           

 

 Vendor Name & Phone Number:  _______________________________________________ 

 

     

     Vendor Name & Phone Number:  _______________________________________________ 

 



14 

 

OUTFITTING SPECIFICATION/PRICE SHEET 
 

Complete and Return this form for the total price being proposed.  Attach any pertinent cost 

breakdowns, subtotals of component costs, etc. to this proposal-pricing page. 

 

Vendor Name:  ____________________________ Phone No._____ _________________ 

Vehicle Year, Make, & Model:  _________________________________________________ 
 

MINIMUM 

OUTFITTING 

SPECIFICATIONS 

Outfitting Required 

MEETS 

MINIMUM 

SPECIFICATIONS 

YES NO  Bed: Reading Marauder Dump Body 

 

  

 Reading Bumper / 2” Dump Hitch Receiver (14900376)   

 Qty (1) Pair Reading Anti-Sail Mud Flap Brackets (14403133)   
 Qty (1) Pair 24 x 30 Mud Flaps     
 Manual Bed Tarp Cover   
 License Plate Mount w/light   
   
  Stainless 14005 Series SaltDogg Spreader w/ in cab controller   
   
Steel - Western MVP3 Plus 8’ 6” V – Plow Snowplow   
            w/ dash mounted joystick control     
   

   
   
 
 

  
All Items to be installed and working upon delivery.   

   
   

                               SUB – TOTAL AMOUNT           $  

                            OTHER COSTS          $ 

                            SALES TAX          $ 

 
TOTAL AMOUNT OF DELIVERED VEHICLE 

 
$   

 

 
Delivery Location:   

 

 
 

    Estimated Date of Delivery:   __      ____ 

 

     

     Vendor Name & Phone Number:  _______________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 



15 

 

 
 
 

QUALIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION FORM 
 

EXHIBIT “D” VENDORS QUALIFICATION AND REFERENCE LIST 
 
PURPOSE 
This exhibit shall serve as a requirement to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of 
Vendors under consideration for final award.  The information may or may not be a determining factor in 
award. 
CONTACT NUMBER 082322 One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Duty XL 4x4 Chassis Cab with Dump Bed, 
Spreader and Snowplow 
The applicant submitting this Bid warrants the following: 
 

1. Name, Address, and Telephone Number of Principal Vendor: 

________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

2. Has Vendor (under its present or any previous name) ever failed to complete a contract? 
________ Yes   ________No.  If “Yes”, give details including the date, the contracting agency, and 
the reason Vendor failed to perform in the narrative part of this Contract. 

 
3. Has Vendor (under its present or any previous name) ever been disbarred or prohibited from 

competing for a contract?  ________ Yes   ________ No.  If “Yes”, give details, including the date, the 
contracting agency, the reasons for the Vendors disqualifications, and whether this disqualification 
remains in effect in the narrative part of this Contract. 

 
4. Has a contracting agency ever terminated a contract with the Vendor (under your firm’s present or 

any previous name) prior to end of contract period?  ________ Yes   ________No.  If “Yes”, give 
details including the date, the contracting agency, and the reasons offer was terminated in the 
narrative part of this Contract. 

 
5. Vendor must also provide at least the following information: 

a. A Cost Bid shall be submitted on the Price Sheet, attached hereon and made a full part of this 
contract by this reference. 

b. Gila County reserves the right to request additional information. 
 

___________________________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Person to Sign 
 

___________________________________________ 
Printed Name 

 
___________________________________________ 
Title 

 
 
 
 
 
 



16 

 

 

AFFIDAVIT BY VENDOR 
CERTIFYING THAT THERE WAS NO COLLUSION 

IN BIDDING FOR CONTRACT 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 

)ss 
COUNTY OF:   ) 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________                                                                                  
(Name of Individual) being first duly sworn, deposes and says: 

 
That he is 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                (Title)  

of____________________________________________________________________________   and 
                                                                          (Name of Business) 

 
 

That he is bidding on Gila County Bid No. 082322 - One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Duty XL 4x4 
Chassis Cab with Dump Bed, Spreader and Snowplow and, 
 
 

That neither he nor anyone associated with the said ________________________________  

__________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                     (Name of Business) 

 
has, directly or indirectly entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion or otherwise 
taken any action in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with the above-mentioned 
project. 

 

 

        ___________________________________ 
Name of Business 

 
___________________________________  
By 

 
___________________________________ 
Title 

 

 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this ____________ day of _________________________, 2022. 

 
 
_______________________________________________________               My Commission expires: 
Notary Public                
              ______________________________ 

 
 



17 

 

BID NO. 082322 
One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Duty XL 4x4 Chassis Cab with Dump Bed, Spreader and Snowplow 

 
 
 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER 
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS 

 
The prospective participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals: 
 

(a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency; 

(b) Have not within a three year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a 
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, 
or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State 
antitrust statutes or commission or embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

(c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government 
entity (Federal, State, or local with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 
paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and 

(d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more 
public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default 

 
I understand that a false statement on this certification may be grounds for rejection of this proposal 
or termination of the award.  IN addition, under 18 USC Sec. 1001, a false statement may result in a 
fine of up to $10,000 or imprisonment for up to 5 years, or both. 
 
 
 

Typed Name and Title of Authorized Representative 
 
 
 
 

Signature of Authorized Representative 
 

 ............................................ I am unable to certify the above statements.  My explanation is attached 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



18 

 

BID NO. 082322 
One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Duty XL 4x4 Chassis Cab with Dump Bed, Spreader and Snowplow 

 
LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE 

 
Vendor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this Contract comply with all federal immigration laws 
applicable to Vendor’s employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A) (together the 
“State and Federal Immigration Laws”).  Vendor shall further ensure that each Subcontractor who performs any work 
for Vendor under this contract likewise complies with the State and Federal Immigration Laws. 
  
County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of Vendor and any Subcontractor in order to 
verify such party’s compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws.   
 
 Any breach of Vendor’s or any Subcontractor’s warranty of compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws, or 
of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this Contract subjecting Vendor to 
penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this Contract. If the breach is by a Subcontractor, and the 
subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, and Gila County elects to continue the contract with the Vendor, 
Vendor shall be required to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services that would have 
been provided under the subcontract or retain a replacement Subcontractor, as soon as possible so as not to delay 
project completion.   
 
 Vendor shall advise each Subcontractor of County’s rights, and the Subcontractor’s obligations, under this Article by 
including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the following form: 
 “Subcontractor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all federal 
immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor’s employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A). 
Subcontractor further agrees that County may inspect the Subcontractor’s books and records to ensure that 
Subcontractor is in compliance with these requirements.  Any breach of this paragraph by Subcontractor will be deemed 
to be a material breach of this contract subjecting Subcontractor to penalties up to and including suspension or 
termination of this contract.”  
  
Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall be the responsibility of 
Vendor.  In the event that remedial action under this Article results in delay to one or more tasks on the critical path of 
Vendor’s approved construction or critical milestones schedule, such period of delay shall be deemed excusable delay 
for which Vendor shall be entitled to an extension of time, but not costs. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 

 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 

 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Title 

    
 
 
 
 
 
 



19 

 

 
 

ISRAEL BOYCOTT CERTIFICATION 
 
 

Contractor hereby certifies that it is not currently engaged in and will not, for the duration of this agreement, 
engage in a boycott of Israel as defined by A.R.S. § 35-393.01. Violation of this certification by Contractor may result 
in action by County up to and including termination of this agreement. 
 

 

 

       
Date:  __________________________  

 
 

_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 

 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Printed Name 

 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Title 

       

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Unless and until the District Court's injunction in Jordahl is stayed or lifted, the Anti-Israel Boycott Provision 
(A.R.S. §35-393.01 (A)) is unenforceable and the State will take no action to enforce it. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



20 

 

 

Certification of No Forced Labor: 

 

The Company does not currently, and agrees for the duration of this Agreement that the 

Company will not use: 
1. The forced labor of Ethnic Uyghurs in the People’s Republic of China; 
2. Any goods or services produced by the forced labor of Ethnic Uyghurs in the People’s 

Republic of China; and, 
3. Any contractors, subcontracts, or suppliers that use the forced labor or any goods or services 

produced by the forced labor of Ethnic Uyghurs in the People’s Republic of China.  
 

The Company further agrees that if the Company becomes aware, during the term of the 

Agreement, that the Company is not in compliance with this Certification, the Company shall 

notify the County within 5 business days after becoming aware of the non-compliance. If the 

Company does not remedy the non-compliance within 180-days after sending notice of non-

compliance, this Agreement shall automatically terminate.  
 

 

 
  

  Date:  __________________________________________  
 
 
      Vendor ______________________________________ 
 
 

_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 

 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Printed Name 

 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Title 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



21 

 

BID NO. 082322 
One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Duty XL 4x4 Chassis Cab with Dump Bed, Spreader and Snowplow 

 

BIDDERS CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that all Bid Documents shall be completed, executed, and submitted with this IFB.  
If bidder fails to complete or execute any portion of the Bid Documents, this IFB will be determined to be 
“non-responsive” and rejected. 
 
 
CHECKLIST: 
 

REQUIRED DOCUMENT                    COMPLETED AND EXECUTED 
 

QUALIFICATION & CERTIFICATION FORM    ___________ 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT    ___________ 

PRICE SHEETS       ___________ 

NO COLLUSION AFFADAVIT     ___________ 

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKS ACT COMPLIANCE    ___________ 

BIDDERS CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGEMENT  ___________ 

OFFER PAGE       ___________ 

 

 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDA:       
 
                        #1                #2                  #3                       #4                           #5 
Initials  __________          __________          __________          __________          __________  
 
Date  __________          __________          __________          __________          __________         

 
 
 

Signed and dated this _________ day of _____________________, 2022 

 
 
 

           __________________________________________________ 
                                                   VENDOR: 
 

           __________________________________________________ 
                                                    BY: (Signature) 
 

 
 
Each bid shall be sealed in an envelope addressed to the Gila County Procurement Group and bearing the following 
statement on the outside of the envelope:  Invitation for Bids:  Bid No. 082322 One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Duty XL 
4x4 Chassis Cab with Dump Bed, Spreader and Snowplow.  All bids shall be filed with the Gila County Finance 
Department at the Copper Building, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ on or before September 27, 2022, 2:00 PM. 
 

 



22 

 

BID NO. 082322 
One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Duty XL 4x4 Chassis Cab with Dump Bed, Spreader and Snowplow 

 
OFFER PAGE  

 
TO GILA COUNTY: 

The undersigned hereby offers and agrees to furnish the material or service in compliance with all terms and conditions, 
instruction, specifications, and any amendments contained in this Invitation for bids. 
 
Signature also certifies the Vendors bid is genuine, and is not in any way collusive or a sham; that the bid is not made 
with the intent to restrict or prohibit competition; that the Vendor submitting the bid has not revealed the contents of 
the bid to, or in any way colluded with, any other Vendor which may compete for the contract; and that no other 
Vendor which may compete for the contract has revealed the contents of a bid to, or in any way colluded with, the 
Vendor submitting this bid. 
 

 

 

CONTRACT NUMBER:  082322 One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Duty XL 4x4 Chassis Cab with Dump Bed, 

Spreader and Snowplow 

 
 
Firm Submitting Bid:     For clarification of this offer, contact: 

 
 
________________________________________ Name:  __________________________________ 
Company Name 

 
________________________________________ Phone No.:  ______________________________ 
Address   

       Fax   ____________________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
City                                State                                Zip  Email:  __________________________________ 
       
 
 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Signature of Authorized Person to Sign 

 
       ______________________________________ 
       Printed Name 

 
       ______________________________________ 
       Title 

 
 
 
 
Bid must be signed by a duly authorized officer(s) eligible to sign contract documents for the Firm. 
 



23 

 

 

BID NO. 082322 
One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Duty XL 4x4 Chassis Cab with Dump Bed, Spreader and Snowplow 

 

 
ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER 

(For Gila County use only) 
 
 
 

The Offer is hereby Accepted: 
 

The Vendor                       is now bound to provide the materials or services listed in 

Invitation for Bid No.: 082322 including all terms and conditions, specifications, amendments, etc. and the 

Vendor’s Offer as accepted by County entity. 

 

The contract shall henceforth be referenced to as     Contract No. 082322. The Vendor has been cautioned not 

to commence any billable work or to provide any material or service under this Contract until Vendor 

receives written notice to proceed from Gila County. 

 
 
 
Awarded this _________________ day of ________________________________, 2022 

 
 

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS: 
 

 

 __________________________________________________ 
 Woody Cline, Chairman, Board of Supervisors 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 

 

 __________________________________________________ 
 James Menlove, Clerk of the Board 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

 __________________________________________________ 
 The Gila County Attorney’s Office 

 



   
ARF-7560   Regular Agenda Item     3. K.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/20/2022  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Public Works
Fiscal Year: 2023 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

09-20-22 to 06-30-23 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Request to Advertise Invitation for Bids No. 082422-Two (2) New Ford
F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 6.2L

Background Information
The advertisement for Two (2) New Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4, One
(1) F-250 outfitting 85gal L-Shaped Transfer Tank Toolbox Combo with
Fill-Rite 15GPM 12v DC Pump & Fill-Rite 800 C Analog meter, hose, &
nozzle and one (1) F-250 outfitting 85gal L-Shaped Transfer Tank Toolbox
Combo with Fill-Rite 15GPM 12v DC Pump & Fill-Rite 800 C Analog
meter, hose, & nozzle.

It is the intent of this solicitation to allow the Gila County Buckhead Mesa
Landfill the ability to receive proposals from automobile suppliers and
have the option to purchase these new vehicles, during this fiscal year.

Evaluation
The vehicles mentioned in the agenda request will be needed in the
landfill in the coming year for the Buckhead Mesa Landfill. We would be
replacing B-028 a 2002 Chevrolet 1/2T 4x4 that is 20 years of age and
has 119k mi and B-162 a 2007 Ford 1/2T that is 15 years of age and has
112k both are costing the County a lot of money in maintenance and
repairs. B-028 and B-162 will be traded in and prepped for auction.

Conclusion
The vehicles that will be purchased with this solicitation will be used by



The vehicles that will be purchased with this solicitation will be used by
the Gila County Buckhead Mesa Landfill and replace older vehicles that
have met one requirement and are close to meeting the other
requirements of the Gila County recommended replacement intervals.

Recommendation
The Public Works Department Director recommends that the Board of
Supervisors approve the advertisement of Invitation for Bids No. 082422
for the purchase of Two (2) New Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 as
outlined in the solicitation.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of
Invitation for Bids No. 082422 to purchase Two (2) New Ford F-250 Super
Duty XL 4x4 6.2L as outlined in the solicitation. (David LaForge)

Attachments
Request to Advertise
IFB No. 082422



  

Bids  X Proposals
     

      

 
FUNDING 90,000 PROJECTS:

Fund 6850 Dept No. 341 Program 435 Location 000 Account
Fund 6850 Dept No. 341 Program 436 Location 000 Account

INTENT

Signed:  Date

DATE Department Receipt Placed on Agenda

Presented to Board Approved to Call

Delivered to Paper Paper Name

Advertised          From To

Closing Date Bid Award Date

Awarded To Pre-Bid Meeting Date
  

Department Name:

Date

Department Name:

Date

Finance Director Signature Date

EXHIBIT "H"

GILA COUNTY DEPARTMENTAL REQUEST TO ADVERTISE FOR BIDS

Qualifications

REQUEST NUMBER

(For Procurement Use Only)

IS THIS A REQUEST FOR         Check one

 DC Pump & Fill-Rite 800 C Analog Meter, Hose, & Nozzle

4500.50

All departments procuring purchases in excess of $50,000 that requires advertising for bids must follow the Procurement Procedures and 

must complete Item "I" of this form prior to such purchase.  The requesting department is responsible for writing necessary specifications

and routing them, including this form and completed Bid Request Form to the Purchasing Department.  This Form must be completed and

have a copy of the specifications attached before routing begins.  All Requests and Specifications will be in accordance with the Arizona

Revised Statutes and the latest version of the Gila County Purchasing Policy and Procedures.

9/13/2022

9/6/2022

It is the intent of this solicitation to establish the purchase of Two (2) New Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 with Trailer Tow
 and Power Equipment Package, One (1) F-250 outfitting 85gal L-Shaped Transfer Tank Toolbox Combo with Fill-Rite 15GPM 12v

Elected Official or Department Head

II.  DEPARTMENTAL INFORMATION ONLY:    Action Dates

I.  DESCRIPTION:    List item(s) to be purchased, purpose, specific summary, estimated cost and funding  source.  

4500.50

 

Payson Roundup 

9/20/2022

10/18/20229/27/2022

Department Head Signature

IV.  APPROVED 

III.  OTHER APPROVAL:     Only as necessary

Department Head Signature



 

 

 

 
 

GILA COUNTY 
 

NOTICE OF INVITATION FOR BID 
 
 

BID NO. 082422 
 
 

Two (2) New Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 6.2L 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

*BOARD OF SUPERVISORS* 
Woody Cline, Chairman 

Steve Christensen, Vice Chairman 
Tim Humphrey, Member 

 
 
 

*COUNTY MANAGER* 
James Menlove 

 

 

 

 

 



1 

 

 

GILA COUNTY 
PROCUREMENT GROUP 

NOTICE OF INVITATION FOR BID 
 

SOLICITATION NUMBER 
082422 

1400 E. Ash Street 
Globe, Arizona 

85501 
 

 
BID DUE DATE:      Tuesday, September 27, 2022                             TIME:  3:00 PM 
 
DESCRIPTION:      Two (2) New Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 6.2L 
                                 
 
Bid Opening Location:  GILA COUNTY FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
    ATTN: BETTY HURST 
    COPPER BUILDING  
    1350 EAST MONROE GLOBE, ARIZONA  85501 
 
Bid Submittal Location:  GILA COUNTY FINANCE DEPARTMENT, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ  85501 
     
Invitation for Bid for the materials and services specified will be received by the Gila County Procurement 
Group at the above specified location until the time and date cited. 
 
Request for submittals after the specified date and time to the Procurement Group shall not be considered.  
To receive bid documents, contact the Procurement Group at (928) 402-4355 or click on the following link to 
the County website. http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php  
 
Additional instructions for preparing a bid are provided on pages 4-6 of the bid documents to Offerors as 
contained within the solicitation. 
 
The Board of Supervisors reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, or to accept any proposal, or to 
waive any informality in any proposal, or to withhold the award if deemed in the best interest of Gila County.   
 
All procurement activities conducted by Gila County are in conformance with the rules and regulations of the 
Gila County Procurement Group Statement of Procedures.  A copy of the Gila County Procurement Group 
Statement of Procedures is available for review in the Deputy Clerk of the Board’s office, Globe, AZ. 
 
Arizona Silver Belt advertisement dates:   September 13, 2022, and September 20, 2022.  

BIDDERS ARE STRONGLY ENCOURAGED TO CAREFULLY READ THE ENTIRE SOLICITATION. 
 
Designated Department:        Gila County Fleet Management 
Type of contract: Term 
Term of Contract: Twelve Months  
Phone Number: (928) 402-8525 
 

 
Signed:  _____________________________________________________ Date:  ________________ 
 Woody Cline, Chairman, Board of Supervisors 

 
Signed:  _____________________________________________________ Date:  ________________  
              The Gila County Attorney’s Office 
 

http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/finance/procurement/current_bids.php


2 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 

     CONTENT           PAGE 

 
Solicitation ............................................................................................................................. 1 

Scope of Work ........................................................................................................................ 3 

Exhibit “A” Instructions to Vendors ...................................................................................... 4-6 

 Preparation of Sealed Bid ........................................................................................................... 4 
 Amendments ........................................................................................................................... 4-5 
 Inquiries ...................................................................................................................................... 5 
 Late Bids ..................................................................................................................................... 5 
 Submittal Bid Format ............................................................................................................... 5-6 

General Terms and Conditions ............................................................................................. 7-8 

 Award of Contract ...................................................................................................................... 7 
 Protests ....................................................................................................................................... 7 
 Laws & Ordinances ..................................................................................................................... 8 

Exhibit “B” Contract Award Agreement ............................................................................... 8-10 

 Overcharges by Antitrust Violations ........................................................................................... 8 
 Authority to Contract ................................................................................................................. 8 
 Contract Amendments ............................................................................................................... 8 
 Contract Default ......................................................................................................................... 9 
 Right of Assurance ...................................................................................................................... 9 
 Costs & Payments ....................................................................................................................... 9 
 Co-op Intergovernmental Purchasing Agreement ..................................................................... 9 
 Cancellation of County Contracts ............................................................................................... 9 
 Termination of Contract ............................................................................................................. 9 

  Indemnification Clause ............................................................................................................ 10   

Exhibit “C” Minimum Product Specifications and Information ........................................... 11-12 

 Section 1.0 General Purpose .................................................................................................... 11 
 Section 2.0 Bid Pricing .............................................................................................................. 11 
 Section 3.0 Order and Delivery ................................................................................................. 12 

Price Sheet ....................................................................................................................... 13-14 

Exhibit “D” Qualification and Certification Form ..................................................................... 15 

No Collusion Affidavit ............................................................................................................ 16 

       Certification Regarding Debarment………………………………………………………………………….......……….17 

Legal Arizona Workers Act Compliance .................................................................................. 18 

Israel Boycott Certification……………………………………………………………………………………………………. 19 

Certification of No. Forced Labor………………………………………………………………………………………….. 20 

Bidders Checklist and Addenda Acknowledgment .................................................................. 21 

Offer Page  ............................................................................................................................ 22 

Acceptance of Offer Page  ...................................................................................................... 23 



3 

 

 
 

BID NO. 082422 
Two (2) New Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 6.2L  

 

GENERAL SCOPE  

 
It is the intent of this solicitation to award a contract for the Two (2) New Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 6.2L 
for the Fleet Management in Gila County.  
 
The County may choose to award this contract, or make multiple awards, depending on what is deemed to 
be in the County’s best interest considering price, specifications, and delivery date.  The request for price of 
an item does not guarantee a purchase but merely provides the County with the option if the need arises. 
 
See attached:  Exhibit “C” Pages 13 and Page 14 as specified on Price Sheet for total price being proposed. 
 
Vendors who agree to provide the Minimum Bid Specifications for this Invitation for Bid shall be considered 
for award. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 

 

BID NO. 082422 
Two (2) New Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 6.2L   

 
INSTRUCTIONS TO VENDORS 

 
IMPORTANT:  EXHIBIT “A”, INSTRUCTIONS TO VENDORS AND EXHIBIT “B”, VENDORS AWARD AGREEMENT 
ARE BASIC CONTENT TO GILA COUNTY BID PACKAGES.  INDIVIDUAL BIDS MAY REQUIRE DIFFERENT 
LANGUAGE FOR INSTRUCTIONS AND AWARD AGREEMENTS.  WHERE APPLICABLE, SUCH CHANGES WILL 
APPEAR IN EXHIBIT “C”, MINIMUM PRODUCT SPECIFICATIONS AND INFORMATION AND TAKE PRECEDENCE 
OVER THE LANGUAGE APPEARING IN EXHIBITS “A” & “B”. 
 
EXHIBIT “A” INSTRUCTIONS TO VENDORS 
 
Preparation of Sealed Bid 

A. Sealed Bids will be received by the Gila County Finance Department, from vendors, to deliver the 
product(s), goods and services contained to establish a contract for specified locations within Gila 
County.  The County seeks sealed bids only from qualified, experienced vendors able to provide 
services which are, in all respects, responsive to the specifications.  All bids shall be on the forms 
provided in this Invitation for Bid package.  It is permissible to copy these forms if required.  

 
B. Before submitting its bid, each vendor shall familiarize itself with the Scope of Work, laws, 

regulations and other factors affecting performance of work.  It shall carefully correlate its 
observations with requirements of the Contract and otherwise satisfy itself of the expense and 
difficulties attending the performance of the work.  The submission of a bid will constitute a 
representation of compliance by the vendor.  There will be no subsequent financial adjustment, 
other than that provided for by the Contract, for lack of such familiarization. 

 
C. Vendors must complete all forms provided in this Invitation for Bid package in full, original 

signature in ink, by the person(s) authorized to sign the Bid and to be submitted at the time of bid 
and made a part of this contract.  The County will use the Bid, and Qualification and Certification 
Form, in evaluating the capacity of vendor(s) to perform the Scope of Services as set forth in the 
Contract.  Failure of any Vendor to complete and submit the Price Sheet and Signature and Offer 
Page at time and place of opening may be grounds for automatic disqualification of the vendor(s) 
from further consideration. 

 
D. The names of all persons authorized to sign the Bid must also be legibly printed below the 

signature. Evidence of the authority of the person signing shall be furnished. 
 

E. The full name of each person or company interested in the Invitation for Bids shall be listed on the 
Bid. 

 
F. No alterations in Bids, or in the printed forms therefore, by erasures, interpolations, or otherwise 

will be acceptable unless each such alteration is signed or initialed by the vendor; if initialed, the 
County may require the vendor to identify any alteration so initialed. 

 
Amendments 

Any addendum issued as a result of any change in this Invitation for Bids must be acknowledged by all 
Vendors in the following manner: 
 

1. Completion of the Bidder Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment form, page 21. 
            



5 

 

BID NO. 082422 
Two (2) New Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 6.2L 

Instructions to Vendors continued… 

 
 
Failure to indicate receipt of addenda in the above manner may result in a bid being rejected as non-
responsive. If no addenda have been issued, please indicate so by writing “Not Applicable” in the space 
provided under #1. The Vendor Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment form must be signed and dated. 
 

Inquiries 

Any questions related to this IFB must be directed to those whose names appear on the Notice.  Questions 
should be submitted in writing when time permits.  The Gila County Supervisors, at their sole discretion, may 
require all questions be submitted in writing.  Any correspondence related to an Invitation for Bids should 
refer to the appropriate Invitation for Bids number, page, and paragraph number.  However, the Vendor(s) 
must not place the IFB number on the outside of an envelope containing questions since such an envelope 
may be identified as a sealed Bid and may not be opened until after the official IFB due date and time.  
Questions received less than five (5) working days prior to the date for opening Bids will be answered only if 
time permits.   Only questions answered by formal written addenda will be binding.  Oral and other 
interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. 
 
 
Late Bids 

Any bid received later than the date and time specified on Notice for Sealed Bids shall not be considered.   
 
 
Submittal Bid Format: 

It is requested that One (1) Original and One (1) copy (2 TOTAL) with original signatures on both sets of the 
Qualification and Certification Form, Price Sheets, No Collusion Form, Certification Regarding Debarment, 
Legal AZ Workers Act Compliance Form, Bidders Checklist and Addenda Acknowledgment Form, and Offer 
Page shall be submitted on the forms and in the format specified in the Invitation for Bid.  The County will 
not be liable for any cost incident to the preparation of Bid, materials, reproductions, presentations, copy-
right infringements, etc.  It is permissible to copy these forms if required.  Facsimiles or mailgrams shall not 
be considered. 
 
1. By signature in the offer section of the Offer and Acceptance page, Vendor certifies: 
 

A. The submission of the offer did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive practices. 
B. The Vendor has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter, any 

economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, or 
service to a public servant in connection with the submitted offer. 

C. In order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs, improve timely acquisition and cost of 
supplies and to improve efficiency and economy of procurement, any political subdivision, State, 
County, City, Town, etc., of the State of Arizona, will be allowed by the Vendor(s) awarded the 
contract to provide the same services, at the same prices stated in the bid.  Delivery charges may 
differentiate depending on geographical location. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



6 

 

BID NO. 082422 
Two (2) New Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 6.2L 

Instructions to Vendors continued… 

 
2. Bids submitted early may be modified or withdrawn by notice to the party receiving bids at the place 

and prior to the time designated for receipts of Bids. 
 
3. The County is not responsible for any Vendor’s errors or omissions.  Negligence in preparing an offer 

confers no right to the Vendor unless the Vendor discovers and corrects such errors prior to the Bid 
deadline. 

 

All bids shall be submitted in a sealed envelope: 

• Minimum of Two (2) copies with original signatures shall be provided by the Vendor; 
 

• The words “Invitation for Bid” with Title “Two (2) New Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 6.2L”, “Bid 
No. 082422”, “September 27, 2022” and “3:00 PM” shall be written on the face of the envelope; 
 

• The Vendor shall assume full responsibility for timely delivery at the location designated in the 
Notice; 
 

• No bids will be accepted after 3:00 PM. AZ Time, Tuesday, September 27, 2022. Bids will be opened 
at 3:00 PM., Tuesday, September 27, 2022. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7 

 

BID NO. 082422 
Two (2) New Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 6.2L 

 

 
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
Award of Contract 

1. The Gila County Board of Supervisors reserves the right to award any Bid by individual line item, by 
group of line items or as total, or any part thereof, whichever is deemed to be in the best interest, 
most advantageous of the County of Gila. 

 
a.   Notwithstanding any or other provisions of the Bid, the County reserves the right to:  

1.   Waive any immaterial defects or informalities; or 
2.   Reject any or all Bids; or portions thereof; or 
3.   Reissue a Request for Bid. 

 
2. It is the responsibility of the Gila County Board of Supervisors to let the County contracts to the 

lowest responsive and responsible Vendor(s).  To ensure that all Vendors are experienced, 
reasonably equipped and adequately financed to meet their contractual obligations, a determination 
of responsibility shall be made by the Gila County Board of Supervisors prior to contract award. 

 
3. Further, the County reserves the right to reject the Bid of any Vendor(s) who has previously failed to 

perform adequately after having once been awarded a prior Bid for furnishing and installing 
materials similar in nature. 

 
4. All submitted forms provided in this Invitation for Bids will be reviewed by the Gila County Board of 

Supervisors. 
 

5. Those Vendor(s) who, in the opinion of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, are best qualified and 
whose Bids are most advantageous to the County may be invited to appear before the Board for an 
oral review. 

 
6. The apparent successful Vendor(s) shall sign and file with the County, within ten (10) days after 

Notice of Intent to Award, all documents necessary to successfully execute the contract. 
 
Protests 

Only other Vendors who have submitted a bid under this IFB have the right to protest.  A protest of an award 
must be filed within ten (10) days after the award by the Board of Supervisors.  A protest must be in writing 
and must include the following: 
 

A. Name, address and telephone number of the protester. 
B. Signature of the protester or its representative, and evidence of authority to sign. 
C. Identification of the contract and the solicitation or contract number. 
D. Detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of protest including copies of relevant 

documents. 
E. The form of relief requested. 

 
All protests shall be sent to the attention of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, 1400 East Ash Street, 
Globe, Arizona 85501. 
 

 



8 

 

BID NO. 082422 
Two (2) New Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 6.2L  

General Terms & Conditions continued… 

 

Laws and Ordinances 

This agreement shall be enforced under the laws of the State of Arizona and Gila County.  Firm shall maintain 
in current status all Federal, State and Local licenses and permits required for the operation of the business 
conducted by the Firm.  The Firm shall comply with the applicable provisions of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) and applicable federal regulations under the act. 
 
EXHIBIT “B” CONTRACT AWARD AGREEMENT 

This exhibit shall serve as the contract agreement to any Vendor, their agents, subcontractors or 
representatives, awarded this or any portion of this contract by the County, by submitting Bids to this or any 
other solicitation requiring sealed bids, does hereby agree to the following provisions.  Proof of acceptance 
of these provisions will be the Vendor’s signature(s) appearing on page 20, Vendors Offer Page, and Exhibit 
“D” Vendors Qualification and Certification form page 14.  This Contract shall include the Invitation for Bids 
No. 082422 and all exhibits attached to it, including but not limited to the Qualification and Certification 
Form, Price Sheets, No Collusion Affidavit, Legal AZ Workers Act Compliance Form, Bidders Checklist and 
Addenda Acknowledgment Form, and Offer Page which are all incorporated into this agreement by this 
reference. 

 
Overcharges by Antitrust Violations 

The County maintains that, in actual practice, overcharges resulting from antitrust violations are borne by the 
purchaser.  Therefore, to the extent permitted by law, the Vendor hereby assigns to the County any and all 
claims for such overcharges as to the goods or services used to fulfill the contract. 
 
Authority to Contract 

This contract shall be based upon the Invitation for Bids No. 082422, issued by the County, and the offer 
submitted by the Vendor in response to the IFB.  The offer shall substantially conform to the terms, 
conditions, specifications and other requirements set forth within the text of the IFB which is incorporated by 
this reference into this agreement. The county reserves the right to clarify any contractual terms with the 
concurrence of the Vendor; however, any substantial non-conformity in the offer, as determined by the 
County Attorney, shall be deemed non-responsive and the offer rejected.  The contract shall contain the 
entire agreement between Gila County and the Vendor relating to these requirements. The Contract shall 
prevail over any and all previous agreements, contracts, bids, negotiations, purchase orders, or master 
agreement in any form.  The contract activity is issued under the authority of the Gila County Manager, after 
the Gila County Board of Supervisors approves the award.  No alteration of any portion of the contract, any 
items or services awarded, or any other agreement that is based upon this contract may be made without 
express written approval of the Gila County Board of Supervisors in the form of an official contract 
amendment.  Any attempt to alter any documents on the part of the Vendor or any agency is a violation of 
the Gila County Procurement Group Statement of Procedures.  Any such action is subject to the legal and 
contractual remedies available to the County inclusive, but not limited to, contract cancellation, suspension 
or debarment of the Vendor. 

 
Contract Amendments 

The contract shall be modified only by a written contract amendment signed by the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors and persons duly authorized to enter into contracts on behalf of the Vendor. 
 
 
 
 



9 

 

BID NO. 082422 
Two (2) New Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 6.2L  

Exhibit “B” Contract Award Agreement continued… 
 
 

Contract Default 

 

A. The County, by written notice of default to the Vendor, may terminate the whole or any part of this 
contract in any one of the following circumstances:  
1. If the Vendor fails to make delivery of the supplies or to perform the services within the times 

specified; or 
 

2. If the Vendor fails to perform any of the other provisions of this contract; and fails to remedy 
the situation within a period of ten (10) days after receipt of notice. 

 
B. In the event the County terminates this contract in whole or part, the County may procure supplies 

or services similar to those terminated, and the Vendor shall be liable to the County for any excess 
costs for such similar supplies or services. 

 
Right to Assurance 

Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other party’s intent to perform, 
the other party may demand that the other party give a written assurance of this intent to perform.  In the 
event that a demand is made, and no written assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party 
may treat this failure as an anticipatory repudiation of this contract. 
 

Costs and Payments 

Payments shall comply with the requirements of A.R.S. Title 35 and 41, Net 30 days.  Upon receipt and 
acceptance of goods and services, the Vendor shall submit a complete and accurate invoice for payment.  
 
IRS W9 Form:  In order to receive payment, the Vendor shall have a current IRS W9 Form on file with the 
County unless not required by law. 
 
Co-op Use of Contract – Intergovernmental Purchasing 

Gila County has entered into an active purchasing agreement with other political subdivisions, cities, and 
towns of the State of Arizona in order to conserve resources, reduce procurement costs and improve timely 
acquisition and cost of supplies, equipment and services.  The vendor(s) to whom this contract is awarded 
may be requested by other parties of said interactive purchasing agreements to extend to those parties the 
right to purchase supplies, equipment and services provided by the vendor under this contract, pursuant to 
the terms and conditions stated herein.  Any such usage by other entities must be in accord with the rules 
and regulations of the respective entity and the approval of the Vendor. 
 
Cancellation of County Contracts 

This contract is subject to the cancellation provisions of A.R.S. §38-511. 
 
Termination of Contract 

The County, with or without cause, may terminate this contract at any time, or by giving thirty (30) days 
written notice to you.  The County at its convenience, by written notice, may terminate this contract, in 
whole or in part.  If this contract is terminated, the County shall be liable only for payment under the 
payment provisions of this contract for the services rendered and accepted material received by the County 
before the effective date of termination. 
 



10 

 

BID NO. 082422 
Two (2) New Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 6.2L   

Exhibit “B” Contract Award Agreement continued… 

 
 
The County reserves the right to cancel the whole or any part of this contract due to failure of the Vendor(s) 
to carry out any term, promise, or condition of the contract.  The County will issue a written ten (10) day 
notice of default to Vendor for acting or failing to act as in any of the following: 
 

1. In the opinion of the County, the Vendor fails to perform adequately the stipulations, conditions or   
services and specifications required in the contract. 

2. In the opinion of the County, the Vendor attempts to impose on the County material products, or 
workmanship, which is of unacceptable quality.  

3. Vendor fails to furnish the required service or product within the time stipulated in the contract. 
4. In the opinion of the County, the Vendor fails to make progress in the performance of the 

requirements of the contract or give the County a positive indication that Vendor will not, or cannot, 
perform to the requirements of the contract. 

 
Each payment obligation of the County created hereby is conditioned upon the availability of County, State 
and Federal funds, which are appropriated or allocated for the payment of such an obligation.  If funds are 
not allocated by the County and available for the continuance of service herein contemplated, the contract 
period for the service may be terminated by the County at the end of the period for which funds are 
available.  The County shall notify the Vendor at the earliest possible time which service may be affected by a 
shortage of funds.  No penalty shall accrue to the County in the event this provision is exercised, and the 
County shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments due or for any damages as a result of 
termination under this paragraph. 
 
General 

After receipt of all bids, each submittal shall be screened to determine if any shall be deemed non-
responsive.  Unsigned bids, unacknowledged Addenda, incomplete bids, non-conformance with mandatory 
requirements, etc., may result in the determination of non-responsive. 
 
Indemnification Clause 

Vendor shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the County of Gila and its officers, officials, agents, 
and employees (hereinafter referred to as “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, actions, 
liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses (including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim processing, 
investigation and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) for bodily injury or personal injury (including 
death), or loss or damage to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in 
part, by the negligent or willful acts or omissions of Vendor or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, 
employees or Subcontractors.  This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under 
the Workers’ Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of such Vendor to conform to any federal, state 
or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree.  It is the specific intention of the parties that 
the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or 
omissions of the Indemnitee, be indemnified by Vendor from and against any and all claims.  It is agreed that 
the Vendor will be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs. 
 
 

 
 
 



11 

 

BID NO. 082422 
Two (2) New Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 6.2L   

 

MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS 
 

EXHIBIT “C” MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS FOR:   082422 

Purpose:  It is the intent of Gila County to establish, by this Invitation for Bids, a contract to Two (2) New Ford 
F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 6.2L. This Invitation for Bid No. 082422 including the Qualification and Certification 
Form, Price Sheets, No Collusion Form, Legal AZ Workers Act Compliance Form, Certification Regarding 
Debarment, Checklist and Addenda Acknowledgment Form, and Offer Page constitutes the entire Bid 
package and by this reference is hereby incorporated into this agreement. 
 
SECTION 1.0 

General:   

1.1 All product specifications are minimum.  Vendor must provide product specification sheet. 
1.2 Vendor should have adequate manufacturing / stock facilities to serve the needs of Gila County. 

1.3 All proposals must represent the entire package.   

1.4 The parties specifically understand and agree that the quantities used for bidding purposes are 

estimates of County needs and in no event shall the County be obligated to purchase the exact 

quantities of any item set forth in the proposal.  The County does not guarantee any maximum or 

minimum amounts of purchase. 

 

SECTION 2.0 

Bid Pricing: 

2.1 The Vendor shall submit the bid in the form of a firm unit price for the contract period.  Initial 

contract period is through June 30, 2023.  Vendor shall incorporate all freight, profit, and discount 

into their price.   

2.2 The term of the contract shall commence upon award and shall remain in effect through June 30, 

2023, unless terminated, cancelled or extended as otherwise provided herein.   

 

SECTION 3.0 

Ordering and Delivery: 

3.1 ORDERING:  Gila County does not warrant the order quantity of any item prior to actual need.  Gila 

County may re-order item as it becomes necessary or based on the required needs within the 

County during the term of this contract. 

 

3.2 PRODUCT DELIVERY Location:  Gila County Shop, 1001 W. Besich Blvd, Globe, AZ.  The Board of 

Supervisors may designate other or alternate delivery sites at any time during the term of the 

contract.  These needs may be based on, but not limited to, seasonal, emergency, historical usage 

data.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

BID NO. 082422 



12 

 

Two (2) New Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 6.2L 

Exhibit “C” Minimum Specifications continued… 

 
       3.3     DELIVERY TIME: Vehicles must be delivered no later than June 30, 2023. Failure to provide delivery 

within this time period may result in termination of this contract and award to the next lowest, 

responsible bidder. If vendor sends County Procurement written documentation from the 

manufacturer Forty-Five (45) days prior to the delivery date, Gila County may choose to extend the 

contract up to six (6) months. 

 

       3.4   Vendor shall retain title and control of all goods until they are delivered, and the contract of   

coverage has been completed.  All risks of transportation and all related charges shall be the 

responsibility of the Vendor.  All claims for visible or concealed damage shall be filed by the 

Vendor.  The County will assist the Vendor in arranging for inspection. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



13 

 

 

SPECIFICATION/PRICE SHEET 
 

Complete and Return this form for the total de l ivered  price being proposed.  Attach any 
pertinent cost breakdowns, subtotals of component costs, etc. to this proposal-pricing page. 

 

Vendor Name:  ____________________________ Phone No._____ _________________ 

Vehicle Year, Make, & Model:  _________________________________________________ 
 

MINIMUM 

SPECIFICATIONS 

2023 Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4  

MEETS MINIMUM 

SPECIFICATIONS 

YES NO 

Body: Crew Cab w/ 6-3/4’ Bed 

 

  

Wheelbase: 160”   
Rear Wheel Options: (SRW) Single Rear Wheel   

  Exterior Paint: Oxford White   
  Engine: 6.2L 2-valve SOHC   
  Drive: 4x4   
Transmission: Automatic   

  Packages: Trailer Tow & Power Equip Packages   
  Wheel Type: 17” Inch Steel Wheel   
  Exterior Options: Full Size Spare Tire, Jack and Jack Tools   
                                 Factory Skid Plates   
                               LT 265/70 R 17 All Terrain Tires   
                               Bed Mat   
                               Platform Running Boards   
Interior: Medium Earth Gray   

                  HD Vinyl 40/20/40 split bench, Rr bench Seat 
 

  
                Carpet Delete   
                Trailer Brake Controller   
                AM/FM Radio w/ SYNC   
                3 Additional Keys/Fobs Required: Qty (5) total     

    

                               SUB – TOTAL AMOUNT           $ 

                            OTHER COSTS          $ 

                            SALES TAX          $ 

 
TOTAL AMOUNT OF DELIVERED VEHICLE 

 
$ 

 

 
Delivery Location:   

 

 
 

    Estimated Date of Delivery:   __      ____ 

 

     

     Vendor Name & Phone Number:  _______________________________________________ 

 
 
 



14 

 

 
 
 

OUTFITTING SPECIFICATION/PRICE SHEET 
 

Complete and Return this form for the total price being proposed.  Attach any pertinent cost 

breakdowns, subtotals of component costs, etc. to this proposal-pricing page. 

 

Vendor Name:  ____________________________ Phone No._____ _________________ 

Vehicle Year, Make, & Model:  _________________________________________________ 
 

MINIMUM 

OUTFITTING 

SPECIFICATIONS 

Outfitting Required 

MEETS 

MINIMUM 

SPECIFICATIONS 

YES NO White - 85 Gallon L-Shaped Transfer Tank Toolbox Combo   

w/ Fill-Rite 15 GPM 12v DC Pump &   

Fill-Rite Series 800C Analog Meter, Hose, & nozzle   
     
     

   
   
   
   
   
   

   
 
 

  
   
   

All Items to be installed and working upon delivery.   

                               SUB – TOTAL AMOUNT           $  
                            OTHER COSTS          $  

                            SALES TAX          $  

 
TOTAL AMOUNT OF DELIVERED VEHICLE 

 
$   

  

  

 

 
Delivery Location:   

 

 
 

    Estimated Date of Delivery:   __      ____ 

 

     

     Vendor Name & Phone Number:  _______________________________________________ 

 



15 

 

 
QUALIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION FORM 

 
EXHIBIT “D” VENDORS QUALIFICATION AND REFERENCE LIST 
 
PURPOSE 
This exhibit shall serve as a requirement to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of 
Vendors under consideration for final award.  The information may or may not be a determining factor in 
award. 
CONTACT NUMBER 082422 Two (2) New Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 6.2L 
The applicant submitting this Bid warrants the following: 
 

1. Name, Address, and Telephone Number of Principal Vendor: 

________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 

2. Has Vendor (under its present or any previous name) ever failed to complete a contract? 
________ Yes   ________No.  If “Yes”, give details including the date, the contracting agency, and 
the reason Vendor failed to perform in the narrative part of this Contract. 

 
3. Has Vendor (under its present or any previous name) ever been disbarred or prohibited from 

competing for a contract?  ________ Yes   ________ No.  If “Yes”, give details, including the date, the 
contracting agency, the reasons for the Vendors disqualifications, and whether this disqualification 
remains in effect in the narrative part of this Contract. 

 
4. Has a contracting agency ever terminated a contract with the Vendor (under your firm’s present or 

any previous name) prior to end of contract period?  ________ Yes   ________No.  If “Yes”, give 
details including the date, the contracting agency, and the reasons offer was terminated in the 
narrative part of this Contract. 

 
5. Vendor must also provide at least the following information: 

a. A Cost Bid shall be submitted on the Price Sheet, attached hereon and made a full part of this 
contract by this reference. 

b. Gila County reserves the right to request additional information. 
 

___________________________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Person to Sign 
 

___________________________________________ 
Printed Name 

 
___________________________________________ 
Title 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



16 

 

 

AFFIDAVIT BY VENDOR 
CERTIFYING THAT THERE WAS NO COLLUSION 

IN BIDDING FOR CONTRACT 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 

)ss 
COUNTY OF:   ) 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________                                                                                  
(Name of Individual) being first duly sworn, deposes and says: 

 
That he is 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                (Title)  

of____________________________________________________________________________   and 
                                                                          (Name of Business) 

 
 

That he is bidding on Gila County Bid No. 082422 - Two (2) New Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 6.2L 
and, 
 
 

That neither he nor anyone associated with the said ________________________________  

__________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                     (Name of Business) 

 
has, directly or indirectly entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion or otherwise 
taken any action in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with the above-mentioned 
project. 

 

 

        ___________________________________ 
Name of Business 

 
___________________________________  
By 

 
___________________________________ 
Title 

 

 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this ____________ day of _________________________, 2022. 

 
 
_______________________________________________________               My Commission expires: 
Notary Public                
              ______________________________ 

 
 



17 

 

 
BID NO. 082422 

Two (2) New Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 6.2L 

 
 
 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER 
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS 

 
The prospective participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals: 
 

(a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency; 

(b) Have not within a three year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a 
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, 
or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State 
antitrust statutes or commission or embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

(c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government 
entity (Federal, State, or local with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 
paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and 

(d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more 
public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default 

 
I understand that a false statement on this certification may be grounds for rejection of this proposal 
or termination of the award.  IN addition, under 18 USC Sec. 1001, a false statement may result in a 
fine of up to $10,000 or imprisonment for up to 5 years, or both. 
 
 
 

Typed Name and Title of Authorized Representative 
 
 
 
 

Signature of Authorized Representative 
 

 ............................................ I am unable to certify the above statements.  My explanation is attached 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



18 

 

 
BID NO. 082422 

Two (2) New Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 6.2L 

 
LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE 

 
Vendor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this Contract comply with all federal immigration laws 
applicable to Vendor’s employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A) (together the 
“State and Federal Immigration Laws”).  Vendor shall further ensure that each Subcontractor who performs any work 
for Vendor under this contract likewise complies with the State and Federal Immigration Laws. 
  
County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of Vendor and any Subcontractor in order to 
verify such party’s compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws.   
 
 Any breach of Vendor’s or any Subcontractor’s warranty of compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws, or 
of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this Contract subjecting Vendor to 
penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this Contract. If the breach is by a Subcontractor, and the 
subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, and Gila County elects to continue the contract with the Vendor, 
Vendor shall be required to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services that would have 
been provided under the subcontract or retain a replacement Subcontractor, as soon as possible so as not to delay 
project completion.   
 
 Vendor shall advise each Subcontractor of County’s rights, and the Subcontractor’s obligations, under this Article by 
including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the following form: 
 “Subcontractor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all federal 
immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor’s employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A). 
Subcontractor further agrees that County may inspect the Subcontractor’s books and records to ensure that 
Subcontractor is in compliance with these requirements.  Any breach of this paragraph by Subcontractor will be deemed 
to be a material breach of this contract subjecting Subcontractor to penalties up to and including suspension or 
termination of this contract.”  
  
Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall be the responsibility of 
Vendor.  In the event that remedial action under this Article results in delay to one or more tasks on the critical path of 
Vendor’s approved construction or critical milestones schedule, such period of delay shall be deemed excusable delay 
for which Vendor shall be entitled to an extension of time, but not costs. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 

 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 

 
      _____________________________________________ 
      Title 

    
 
 
 
 
 



19 

 

 
 
 

ISRAEL BOYCOTT CERTIFICATION 
 
 

Contractor hereby certifies that it is not currently engaged in and will not, for the duration of this agreement, 
engage in a boycott of Israel as defined by A.R.S. § 35-393.01. Violation of this certification by Contractor may result 
in action by County up to and including termination of this agreement. 
 

 

 

       
Date:  __________________________  

 
 

_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 

 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Printed Name 

 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Title 

       

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Unless and until the District Court's injunction in Jordahl is stayed or lifted, the Anti-Israel Boycott Provision 
(A.R.S. §35-393.01 (A)) is unenforceable and the State will take no action to enforce it. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



20 

 

 
 

Certification of No Forced Labor: 

 

The Company does not currently, and agrees for the duration of this Agreement that the 

Company will not use: 
1. The forced labor of Ethnic Uyghurs in the People’s Republic of China; 
2. Any goods or services produced by the forced labor of Ethnic Uyghurs in the People’s 

Republic of China; and, 
3. Any contractors, subcontracts, or suppliers that use the forced labor or any goods or services 

produced by the forced labor of Ethnic Uyghurs in the People’s Republic of China.  
 

The Company further agrees that if the Company becomes aware, during the term of the 

Agreement, that the Company is not in compliance with this Certification, the Company shall 

notify the County within 5 business days after becoming aware of the non-compliance. If the 

Company does not remedy the non-compliance within 180-days after sending notice of non-

compliance, this Agreement shall automatically terminate.  
 

 

 
  

  Date:  __________________________________________  
 
 
      Vendor ______________________________________ 
 
 

_____________________________________________ 

      Signature of Authorized Representative 

 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Printed Name 

 

 

      _____________________________________________ 

      Title 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



21 

 

 
BID NO. 082422 

Two (2) New Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 6.2L 

 

BIDDERS CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that all Bid Documents shall be completed, executed, and submitted with this IFB.  
If bidder fails to complete or execute any portion of the Bid Documents, this IFB will be determined to be 
“non-responsive” and rejected. 
 
 
CHECKLIST: 
 

REQUIRED DOCUMENT                    COMPLETED AND EXECUTED 
 

QUALIFICATION & CERTIFICATION FORM    ___________ 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT    ___________ 

PRICE SHEETS       ___________ 

NO COLLUSION AFFADAVIT     ___________ 

LEGAL ARIZONA WORKS ACT COMPLIANCE    ___________ 

BIDDERS CHECKLIST & ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGEMENT  ___________ 

OFFER PAGE       ___________ 

 

 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDA:       
 
                        #1                #2                  #3                       #4                           #5 
Initials  __________          __________          __________          __________          __________  
 
Date  __________          __________          __________          __________          __________         

 
 
 

Signed and dated this _________ day of _____________________, 2022 

 
 
 

           __________________________________________________ 
                                                   VENDOR: 
 

           __________________________________________________ 
                                                    BY: (Signature) 
 

 
 
Each bid shall be sealed in an envelope addressed to the Gila County Procurement Group and bearing the following 
statement on the outside of the envelope:  Invitation for Bids:  Bid No. 082422 Two (2) New Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 
4x4 6.2L.  All bids shall be filed with the Gila County Finance Department at the Copper Building, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, 
AZ on or before September 27, 2022, 3:00 PM. 
 



22 

 

 
BID NO. 082422 

Two (2) New Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 6.2L 

 
OFFER PAGE  

 
TO GILA COUNTY: 

The undersigned hereby offers and agrees to furnish the material or service in compliance with all terms and conditions, 
instruction, specifications, and any amendments contained in this Invitation for bids. 
 
Signature also certifies the Vendors bid is genuine, and is not in any way collusive or a sham; that the bid is not made 
with the intent to restrict or prohibit competition; that the Vendor submitting the bid has not revealed the contents of 
the bid to, or in any way colluded with, any other Vendor which may compete for the contract; and that no other 
Vendor which may compete for the contract has revealed the contents of a bid to, or in any way colluded with, the 
Vendor submitting this bid. 
 

 

 

CONTRACT NUMBER:  082422 Two (2) New Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 6.2L 

 
 
Firm Submitting Bid:     For clarification of this offer, contact: 

 
 
________________________________________ Name:  __________________________________ 
Company Name 

 
________________________________________ Phone No.:  ______________________________ 
Address   

       Fax   ____________________________________ 
_________________________________________ 
City                                State                                Zip  Email:  __________________________________ 
       
 
 
 
       ______________________________________ 
       Signature of Authorized Person to Sign 

 
       ______________________________________ 
       Printed Name 

 
       ______________________________________ 
       Title 

 
 
 
 
Bid must be signed by a duly authorized officer(s) eligible to sign contract documents for the Firm. 
 



23 

 

 

BID NO. 082422 
Two (2) New Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 6.2L 

 

 
ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER 

(For Gila County use only) 
 
 
 

The Offer is hereby Accepted: 
 

The Vendor                       is now bound to provide the materials or services listed in 

Invitation for Bid No.: 082422 including all terms and conditions, specifications, amendments, etc. and the 

Vendor’s Offer as accepted by County entity. 

 

The contract shall henceforth be referenced to as     Contract No. 082422. The Vendor has been cautioned not 

to commence any billable work or to provide any material or service under this Contract until Vendor 

receives written notice to proceed from Gila County. 

 
 
 
Awarded this _________________ day of ________________________________, 2022 

 
 

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS: 
 

 

 __________________________________________________ 
 Woody Cline, Chairman, Board of Supervisors 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 

 

 __________________________________________________ 
 James Menlove, Clerk of the Board 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

 __________________________________________________ 
 The Gila County Attorney’s Office 

 



   
ARF-7565   Consent Agenda Item     4. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/20/2022  
Submitted For: Eric Mariscal, Director 
Submitted By: Erin Miller, Elections Assistant
Department: Elections

Information
Request/Subject
Order to cancel elections and appoint governing board members for
certain County fire districts, improvement districts, sanitary districts,
vocational technology districts, school districts, and provisional college
districts.

Background Information
Water districts, wastewater districts, and sanitary districts are collectively
known as county improvement districts. County improvement districts are
covered in Title 48 of the Arizona Revised Statutes. School Districts and
provisional college districts are covered in Title 15. Elections are covered
in Title 16.

Arizona Revised Statute §16-410 provides for the cancelation of elections
and the appointment of governing board members for the fire districts,
water, and wastewater improvement districts, sanitary districts, and
vocational technology districts. Further, this statute provides that
canceled elections shall not appear on any ballot.

Arizona Revised Statute §15-424 (D) and §15-1442, in conjunction with
A.R.S. §16-410, provide for the cancelation of elections and the
appointment of governing board members for school districts and college
districts.

Evaluation
The ability to cancel elections and appoint board members under these
circumstances results in a significant cost savings for each of the special
districts, school districts, and the County. The districts do not have to
pay the County for the election and the County does not have to include
these candidates on a ballot where they would have been automatically
elected. Additionally, the County is not required to create numerous
different ballot styles for each of these individual districts.



Conclusion
Arizona Revised Statutes provide for the cancelation of elections and the
appointment of board members for the County improvement districts, fire
districts, water, and wastewater improvement districts, sanitary districts,
vocational technology districts, school districts, and provisional college
districts; and appointing governing board members to those districts as
listed on Attachments A through E of this Order. The implementation of
the Order to cancel and appoint results in cost savings for the taxpayers
of Gila County.

Recommendation
The Elections Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors adopt
the Order to cancel the regularly scheduled November 8, 2022, governing
board elections for fire districts, water, and wastewater improvement
districts, sanitary districts, vocational technology districts, school
districts, and provisional college districts as listed on Attachments A
through E.

Suggested Motion
Adoption of an Order to cancel November 8, 2022, governing board
elections for certain fire districts, water, and wastewater improvement
districts, sanitary districts, vocational technology districts, school
districts, and provisional college districts; and appoint governing board
members to those districts as listed on Attachments A through E of the
Order.

Attachments
Order
ARS 16-410
ARS 15-1442



 
 

 

 
 

ORDER 

 

AN ORDER OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS CANCELLING 

ELECTIONS AND APPOINTING GOVERNING BOARD MEMBERS TO FIRE 

DISTRICTS; WATER AND WASTEWATER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS; 

SANITARY DISTRICTS; TECHNOLOGICAL DISTRICTS; AND, SCHOOL 

DISTRICTS. 

 

 

WHEREAS, A.R.S. §16-410(A) states, “Notwithstanding any other law, in any election that is 

to be held pursuant to title 15, title 48 or section 16-822, if the total of the number of persons 

who file a nomination petition for a candidate and the number of persons who file a nomination 

paper for a write-in candidate as prescribed by chapter 3, articles 2 and 3 of this title is less than 

or equal to the number of positions to be filled at the election for which the nomination petition 

or nomination paper is filed, the county board of supervisors may cancel the election no earlier 

than one hundred five days before the election and appoint the person or persons who filed the 

nomination petition or nomination paper to fill the position for the term of office for which the 

candidate was nominated by the qualified electors;”  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors does hereby cancel 

the November 8, 2022, governing board elections and appoints the persons listed on Attachment A to the 

respective fire district governing boards; the persons listed on Attachment B to the respective water and 

wastewater improvement district governing boards; the persons listed on Attachment C to the respective 

sanitary district governing boards; the persons listed on Attachment D to the respective technological 

district governing boards; and, the persons listed in Attachment E to the respective school district 

governing boards. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of September 2022, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 

 

Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

 

_______________________________ _______________________________ 

James Menlove, Clerk of the Board  Woody Cline, Chairman    

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

The Gila County Attorney’s Office 

 

  



 
 

 

 

Attachment A 

  

FIRE DISTRICTS 

Governing Board Member Appointments 2022 - 2026 

  

District Governing Board Member 

Christopher-Kohl's Fire District Frenz, Douglas 

  Kotnik, Ronald 

   

   

East Verde Park Fire District Eckhardt, Douglas 

   

   

Gisela Valley Fire District Latham, Scott 

  Wild, Cynthia 

   

Hellsgate Fire District No Candidates 

   

   

Houston Mesa Fire District Otte, Jonathan                       

  Wilson, Cheryl 

   

   

Pine-Strawberry Fire District Ackerman, Charles 

  Burkhart, David 

   

   

Round Valley/Oxbow Estates Fire District No Candidates 

   

Tonto Basin Fire District Lingenfelter, Steve 

  Morris, Debbie 

   

  

Tri-City Fire District DalMolin, Frankie S. 

 Guthrey, Daniel 

  Malkovich, Mitchell 

   

Water Wheel Fire District Caldwell, Geoffrey 

  Kendall, Henry (Al) 

 Oberg, Christopher 

  



 
 

 

 
Attachment B 

  
WATER AND WASTEWATER DISTRICTS 

Governing Board Member Appointments 2023 - 2026 

  

District Governing Board Member 

   

Beaver Valley DWID Harpster, Richard 

  Johnson, Randy M 

   

Canyon DWID Barcón, Fred 

  Bernstein, Sarah Anna 

  Bronson, Robert 

  

Little Creek Land Company DWID No Candidates 

    

Pine Creek Canyon DWID Johnson, Allan 

 Karr, David 

  McClung, William 

    

Pine-Strawberry WID Childers, Roger 

  Hillman, Sharon 

  Reski, Thomas 

   

    

Pine Water Association DWID Clement, Melvin 

  Hutson, Vincent 

   

Solitude Trails DWID Miotto, Roger 

 Stowe, Jeffrey 

   

Strawberry Hollow DWID Hewlett, Gail 

  Peterson, Loren 

  

Strawberry Hollow Wastewater Imp District Hewlett, Gail 

  Peterson, Loren 

  

Sunflower Mesa DWID No Candidates 

   

Tonto Village DWID Hampton, Danny 

  Myers, Peggy 

   

Whispering Pines DWID Manthe, Don 

  Tan, Lisa 

   



 
 

 

  
 

Attachment C 

  

SANITARY DISTRICTS 

Governing Board Member Appointments 2023 - 2026 

  

District Governing Board Member 

Green Valley Water Haws, Dallin 

  Muhr, Jim 

   

Tri-City Regional Sanitary District Buzan, Duane 

  Buzan, Malissa 

 Farr, Cameron 

  
  



 
 

 

Attachment D 

  

TECHNOLOGY DISTRICTS & GILA COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Governing Board Member Appointments 2022- 2026 

  

District Governing Board Member 

    

Cobre Valley Institute   

     of Technology Term Ends 2026 

Globe (4 Year Term) Fane, Michael 

    

Miami (4 Year Term) Gregovich-Benton, Franceen 

    

    

Gila Community College Term Ends 2028 

GCC # 3 (6 Year Term) Shipley, Fernando 

    

  



 
 

 

Attachment E 

SCHOOL DISTRICTS 

Governing Board Member Appointments 2022 - 2026 

  

District Governing Board Member 

    

Globe Unified School District Term Ends 2026 

 DalMolin, Frankie  

 Grice, Frank 

  

Hayden Winkelman Unified School District Term Ends 2026 

  

  

    

    

Pine Strawberry School District (4 Year Term) Term Ends 2026 

  Zimmerman, Jennifer 

   

  

San Carlos Unified School District Term Ends 2026 

 Harris, Sherrie 

 Reede, David 

  Talkalai, Katrina 

  

Tonto Basin (4 Year Term) Term Ends 2026 

 Cline, Jarrett 

  

 







   
ARF-7568   Consent Agenda Item     4. B.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/20/2022  
Submitted For: Mary Springer, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Mary Springer, Finance Director
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: FY22-23 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

07-19-2022 -
9-30-2022

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Service Agreement No. 07052022 for an
additional amount of $810 to cover the sales tax increase that went into
effect after the contract award for ground preparation and installation of a
portable roping arena at the Gila County Fairgrounds.

Background Information
A portable roping arena is one of the improvements that was added to the
Gila County Fairgrounds. Fill material and sand were hauled in and the
ground preparation was completed and a new arena was installed. Bids
were solicited for ground preparation and roping arena installation. Four
bids were received for the ground preparation and two bids were received
for the arena installation. Convenient Mobile Services, LLC completed the
project. There was a sales tax increase that went into effect on August 1,
2022, and this was not included as part of the bid price. Amendment No.
1 provides the increase to cover the additional tax amount.

Evaluation
Tax rates were increased after the bid award so the contractor had no
control over this increase in the price of the contract.

Conclusion
Staff recommends approving Amendment No. 1 for an increase of $810 to
the service agreement.

Recommendation



Staff recommends approval of Amendment No. 1 of the increase of $810.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Service Agreement No. 07052022 to
Convenient Mobile Services, LLC in the amount of $810, increasing the
total amount of the agreement to $89,019 for the hauling of fill material
and sand, the ground preparation, and portable arena installation at the
Gila County Fairgrounds.

Attachments
Agreement 07052022
Amendment 1



















   
ARF-7532   Consent Agenda Item     4. C.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/20/2022  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Shannon Coons, Fiscal Services Manager
Department: Public Works Division: Auto Shop
Fiscal Year: FY2023 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

10/30/2022 to
10/31/2023

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Approval to renewal software from Agile Fleet, Inc. under Sourcewell
Contract No. 020221-AAC

Background Information
General Services currently tracks the maintenance and fuel consumption
of approximately 630 pieces of equipment (not all rolling stock). The daily
tracking of maintenance is improving our data collection.

The Agile FleetCommander program can provide a lot of vehicle &
equipment information with daily input and comprehensive reports.

We are relying on monthly fuel purchases at Gila County depots to
capture mileage along with scheduled maintenance intervals. The
maintenance must now be timed by monthly schedules and thirty-day-old
mileage data rather than relying on current mileage data that used to be
provided by GPS. The mileage data is uploaded monthly into
FleetCommander by MegaTrak software when fuel billing occurs or when
a vehicle obtains maintenance or repair. This may not be ideal for many of
the higher utilization vehicles as they regularly accumulate enough miles
to require service every 30 days or those that accrue high mileage
intermittently due to the nature of their utilization. This is a shortfall of
data as a result of GPS data elimination. When utilized with automatically
emailed maintenance reminders, GPS would provide real-time mileage
data reducing but not eliminating excessive mileage between services. It is
still the responsibility of the issued vehicle operator or Department Head
to schedule vehicle services and presents a vehicle in a timely manner.



to schedule vehicle services and presents a vehicle in a timely manner.

Evaluation
General Services has been able to build comprehensive reports with the
Agile FleetCommander program, on the latest vehicle usage and
maintenance costs. The mechanic's notes, parts list, and price, mileage,
and fuel consumption are among the consistent information in one
program.

The utilization of the kiosk system for the motor pool has been helpful in
determining which vehicles need to be replaced or reassigned. Motor Pool
usage has increased from 2020 and the Agile Kiosk System has proven to
be more accurate and efficient utilization than paper methods of tracking.
Sharing vehicles through the motor pool will save money for those
Departments that don’t require special equipment on the vehicles to do
their work. Gila County has 2 kiosks in Globe and 1 in Payson. This
makes it easier for those in Payson to obtain a vehicle without having to
drive to the Star Valley yard.

Conclusion
Agile FleetCommander software has helped General Services gather the
true data of our fleet use and has assisted in reducing our fleet size and
maintenance costs. The data shows all of the vehicles not being used to
their full potential and how, with a little planning, the sharing of newer
vehicles should become the way to do business.

The Sourcewell agreement with Agile Fleet has standard escalators each
year of the agreement, and the pricing is based on those escalators. Fleet
Management also purchased a new kiosk for the Tommie Martin Cline
building so Payson employees can utilize motor pool cars without having
to drive to Star Valley.

Recommendation
The Public Works Department Director and the General Services Division
Manager recommend that the Board approve the continued use of the
Agile Fleet, Inc., for the FleetCommander software program and obtain a
discount under the Sourcewell Cooperative Contract No. 020221-AAC for
another year.

Suggested Motion
Approval to renew Agile Fleet Inc. Customer Purchase Agreement under
Sourcewell Contract No. 020221-AAC in the amount of $53,281.97.



Attachments
Agile Fleet Contract
Sourcewell-Agile Fleet Contract 020221
Agile Fleet Proposal



CONTRACT AGREEMENT 
 
 

 
Contract Name:    

 
   Agile Fleet, Inc. FleetCommander Program  

 
Contract No.:   Sourcewell #020221-AAC 

 
  

 
Statement of Purpose and Need (3-5 Sentences) Public Works General Services division is requesting the Board of 
Supervisors’ approval to renew software and support from November 1, 2022 to October 31, 2023 with Agile Fleet, Inc., 
FleetCommander under Sourcewell cooperative Contract No. 020221-AAC. This program is used to record maintenance of 
vehicles and equipment and has a reservation module for Motor Pool and Lease.  All Documents executed by Sourcewell 
on Contract No. 020221-AAC apply to this procurement between Gila County and Agile Fleet, Inc. 

 
INDEMNIFICATION: Contractor shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the County of Gila and its officers, 

officials, agents, and employees (hereinafter referred to as “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, actions, 
liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses (including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim processing, 
investigation and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) for bodily injury or personal injury (including 
death), or loss or damage to tangible or intangible property to the extent caused by the negligent or willful acts or 
omissions of Contractor or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, employees or subcontractors. This indemnity 
includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under the Workers’ Compensation Law or arising out of the 
failure of such contractor to conform to any federal, state or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court 
decree. It is the specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising 
solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the Indemnitee, be indemnified by Contractor from and 
against any and all claims. It is agreed that Contractor will be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and 
judgment costs where this indemnification is applicable. In consideration of the award of this contract, the Contractor 
agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against the County, its officers, officials, agents and employees for losses 
arising from the work performed by the Contractor for the County. 

 
IMMIGRATION LAW COMPLIANCE WARRANTY: As required by A.R.S. § 41-4401, Contractor hereby warrants its 
compliance with all federal immigration laws and regulations that relate to its employees and A.R.S. § 23-214(A). 
Contractor further warrants that after hiring an employee, it verifies the employment eligibility of the employee 
through the e-verify program. If Contractor uses any subcontractors in performance of the Agreement, 
subcontractors shall warrant their compliance with all federal immigration laws and regulations that relate to its 
employees and A.R.S. § 23-214(A), and subcontractors shall further warrant that after hiring an employee, such 
subcontractor verifies the employment eligibility of the employee through the e-verify program. A breach of this 
warranty shall be deemed a material breach of the Agreement subject to penalties up to and including termination of 
this Agreement. Contractor shall not be deemed in material breach if it and its subcontractors establish compliance 
with the employment verification provisions of Sections 274A and 274B of the federal Immigration and Nationality 
Act and the e-verify requirements contained in A.R.S. § 23-214(A). The County retains the legal right to inspect the 
papers of the Contractor and its subcontractors engaged in performance of this Agreement to ensure that the 
Contractor and its subcontractors are complying with the warranty. Any inspection will be conducted after 
reasonable notice and at reasonable times. If state law is amended, the parties may modify this paragraph consistent 
with state law. 

 
Cancellation for Conflict of Interest. This Agreement is subject to cancellation for conflict of interest as provided 
in A.R.S. § 38-511, which is hereby fully incorporated herein by this reference as if the same as if fully set forth in this 
contract. 
 
Certification of No Forced Labor: The Company does not currently, and agrees for the duration of this Agreement 
that the Company will not use: 
1.      The forced labor of Ethnic Uyghurs in the People’s Republic of China; 
2.      Any goods or services produced by the forced labor of Ethnic Uyghurs in the People’s Republic of China; and, 
3.      Any contractors, subcontracts, or suppliers that use the forced labor or any goods or services produced by the 
forced labor of Ethnic Uyghurs in the People’s Republic of China. 
The Company further agrees that if the Company becomes aware, during the term of the Agreement, that the 
Company is not in compliance with this Certification, the Company shall notify the County within 5 business days 
after becoming aware of the non-compliance. If the Company does not remedy the non-compliance within 180-days 
after sending notice of non-compliance, this Agreement shall automatically terminate. 
 

 
 



Contract End Date:    October 31, 2023  Renewal Option:  Yes 
    No 

Maximum Dollar Limit:    $53,281.97     
 
 

Contract Information 
 
 

Firm Name:    Agile Fleet, Inc.  Contact Person:  Michelle DeLuca    

Address:   14101 Willard Rd., STE A   Phone No:    (571) 498-7555 Ext. 516  

City: Chantilly  State: Virginia  20151   Fax: Email: mdeluca@agilefleet.co
  

 
 

 
Authorization to use a Cooperative Purchasing Agreement with Sourcewell No. 020221-AAC, for fleet a management 
program. 

 
Renewal of Contract approved this     20th day of    September . 2022. 

 
 
 

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
 
 

Woody Cline, Board of Supervisors 
 
 

ATTEST 
 
 
 
 

James Menlove, Clerk of the Board 
 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
 
 

The Gila County Attorney’s Office 

Special Notes:  Gila County is a member of Sourcewell Cooperative and takes advantage of vendor discounts. Sourcewell procures 
contracts in a manner acceptable to Arizona State Statutes and Gila County policy.  Gila County saves money when using Sourcewell for 
the Fleet Management Technologies with Related Software Solutions. This contract with Sourcewell expires March 26, 2025.  



020221-AAC 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           1 
 

 
 

Solicitation Number: 020221 
 

CONTRACT 
 
 
This Contract is between Sourcewell, 202 12th Street Northeast, P.O. Box 219, Staples, MN 
56479 (Sourcewell) and Agile Fleet, Inc., 14101 Willard Road, Suite A, Chantilly, VA  20151 
(Vendor). 

  
Sourcewell is a State of Minnesota local government agency and service cooperative created 
under the laws of the State of Minnesota (Minnesota Statutes Section 123A.21) that offers 
cooperative procurement solutions to government entities. Participation is open to federal, 
state/province, and municipal governmental entities, higher education, K-12 education, 
nonprofit, tribal government, and other public entities located in the United States and Canada. 
Sourcewell issued a public solicitation for Fleet Management Technologies with Related 
Software Solutions from which Vendor was  awarded a contract.     

  
Vendor desires to contract with Sourcewell to provide equipment, products, or services to 
Sourcewell and the entities that access Sourcewell’s cooperative purchasing contracts 
(Participating Entities).  

 
1. TERM OF CONTRACT 

 
A. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Contract is effective upon the date of the final signature below.  
 
B. EXPIRATION DATE AND EXTENSION. This Contract expires March 26, 2025, unless it is 
cancelled sooner pursuant to Article 22. This Contract may be extended up to one additional 
one-year period upon request of Sourcewell and with written agreement by Vendor. 
 
C. SURVIVAL OF TERMS. Articles 11 through 14 survive the expiration or cancellation of this 
Contract.  
 

2. EQUIPMENT, PRODUCTS, OR SERVICES 
 
A. EQUIPMENT, PRODUCTS, OR SERVICES. Vendor will provide the Equipment, Products, or 
Services as stated in its Proposal submitted under the Solicitation Number listed above. 
Vendor’s Equipment, Products, or Services Proposal (Proposal) is attached and incorporated 
into this Contract.    
 



020221-AAC 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           2 
 

All Equipment and Products provided under this Contract must be new/current model.  Vendor 
may offer close-out or refurbished Equipment or Products if they are clearly indicated in 
Vendor’s product and pricing list. Unless agreed to by the Participating Entities in advance, 
Equipment or Products must be delivered as operational to the Participating Entity’s site.     
 
This Contract offers an indefinite quantity of sales, and while substantial volume is anticipated, 
sales and sales volume are not guaranteed.   
 
B. WARRANTY. Vendor warrants that all Equipment, Products, and Services furnished are free 
from liens and encumbrances, and are free from defects in design, materials, and workmanship. 
In addition, Vendor warrants the Equipment, Products, and Services are suitable for and will 
perform in accordance with the ordinary use for which they are intended. Vendor’s dealers and 
distributors must agree to assist the Participating Entity in reaching a resolution in any dispute 
over warranty terms with the manufacturer.  Any manufacturer’s warranty that is effective past 
the expiration of the Vendor’s warranty will be passed on to the Participating Entity.   
 
C. DEALERS, DISTRIBUTORS, AND/OR RESELLERS. Upon Contract execution, Vendor will 
make available to Sourcewell a means to validate or authenticate Vendor’s authorized dealers, 
distributors, and/or resellers relative to the Equipment, Products, and Services related to this 
Contract. This list may be updated from time-to-time and is incorporated into this Contract by 
reference. It is the Vendor’s responsibility to ensure Sourcewell receives the most current 
version of this list.  
 

3. PRICING 
 
All Equipment, Products, or Services under this Contract will be priced as stated in Vendor’s 
Proposal.  
 
When providing pricing quotes to Participating Entities, all pricing quoted must reflect a 
Participating Entity’s total cost of acquisition. This means that the quoted cost is for delivered 
Equipment, Products, and Services that are operational for their intended purpose, and 
includes all costs to the Participating Entity’s requested delivery location.   
 
Regardless of the payment method chosen by the Participating Entity, the total cost associated 
with any purchase option of the Equipment, Products, or Services must always be disclosed in 
the pricing quote to the applicable Participating Entity at the time of purchase.   
 
A. SHIPPING AND SHIPPING COSTS. All delivered Equipment and Products must be properly 
packaged. Damaged Equipment and Products may be rejected. If the damage is not readily 
apparent at the time of delivery, Vendor must permit the Equipment and Products to be 
returned within a reasonable time at no cost to Sourcewell or its Participating Entities. 
Participating Entities reserve the right to inspect the Equipment and Products at a reasonable 



020221-AAC 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           3 
 

time after delivery where circumstances or conditions prevent effective inspection of the 
Equipment and Products at the time of delivery. 
   
Vendor must arrange for and pay for the return shipment on Equipment and Products that arrive 
in a defective or inoperable condition.  
 
Sourcewell may declare the Vendor in breach of this Contract if the Vendor intentionally 
delivers substandard or inferior Equipment or Products. In the event of the delivery of 
nonconforming Equipment and Products, the Participating Entity will notify the Vendor as soon 
as possible and the Vendor will replace nonconforming Equipment and Products with 
conforming Equipment and Products that are acceptable to the Participating Entity. 
 
B. SALES TAX. Each Participating Entity is responsible for supplying the Vendor with valid tax-
exemption certification(s). When ordering, a Participating Entity must indicate if it is a tax-
exempt entity.  
 
C. HOT LIST PRICING. At any time during this Contract, Vendor may offer a specific selection 
of Equipment, Products, or Services at discounts greater than those listed in the Contract. 
When Vendor determines it will offer Hot List Pricing, it must be submitted electronically to 
Sourcewell in a line-item format. Equipment, Products, or Services may be added or removed 
from the Hot List at any time through a Sourcewell Price and Product Change Form as defined 
in Article 4 below.   
 
Hot List program and pricing may also be used to discount and liquidate close-out and 
discontinued Equipment and Products as long as those close-out and discontinued items are 
clearly identified as such. Current ordering process and administrative fees apply. Hot List 
Pricing must be published and made available to all Participating Entities. 
 

4. PRODUCT AND PRICING CHANGE REQUESTS 
 

Vendor may request Equipment, Product, or Service changes, additions, or deletions at any 
time. All requests must be made in writing by submitting a signed Sourcewell Price and Product 
Change Request Form to the assigned Sourcewell Contract Administrator. This form is available 
from the assigned Sourcewell Contract Administrator. At a minimum, the request must:  
 

 Identify the applicable Sourcewell contract number; 
 Clearly specify the requested change; 
 Provide sufficient detail to justify the requested change; 
 Individually list all Equipment, Products, or Services affected by the requested change, 

along with the requested change (e.g., addition, deletion, price change); and 
 Include a complete restatement of pricing documentation in Microsoft Excel with the 

effective date of the modified pricing, or product addition or deletion. The new pricing 



020221-AAC 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           4 
 

restatement must include all Equipment, Products, and Services offered, even for those 
items where pricing remains unchanged. 

 
A fully executed Sourcewell Price and Product Request Form will become an amendment 
to this Contract and be incorporated by reference.  

 
5. PARTICIPATION, CONTRACT ACCESS, AND PARTICIPATING ENTITY REQUIREMENTS 

  
A. PARTICIPATION. Sourcewell’s cooperative contracts are available and open to public and 
nonprofit entities across the United States and Canada; such as federal, state/province, 
municipal, K-12 and higher education, tribal government, and other public entities.   
 
The benefits of this Contract should be available to all Participating Entities that can legally 
access the Equipment, Products, or Services under this Contract. A Participating Entity’s 
authority to access this Contract is determined through its cooperative purchasing, interlocal, 
or joint powers laws. Any entity accessing benefits of this Contract will be considered a Service 
Member of Sourcewell during such time of access. Vendor understands that a Participating 
Entity’s use of this Contract is at the Participating Entity’s sole convenience and Participating 
Entities reserve the right to obtain like Equipment, Products, or Services from any other source. 
 
Vendor is responsible for familiarizing its sales and service forces with Sourcewell contract use 
eligibility requirements and documentation and will encourage potential participating entities 
to join Sourcewell.  Sourcewell reserves the right to add and remove Participating Entities to its 
roster during the term of this Contract.   
 
B. PUBLIC FACILITIES. Vendor’s employees may be required to perform work at government-
owned facilities, including schools. Vendor’s employees and agents must conduct themselves in 
a professional manner while on the premises, and in accordance with Participating Entity 
policies and procedures, and all applicable laws.   
 

6. PARTICIPATING ENTITY USE AND PURCHASING 
 
A. ORDERS AND PAYMENT. To access the contracted Equipment, Products, or Services under 
this Contract, a Participating Entity must clearly indicate to Vendor that it intends to access this 
Contract; however, order flow and procedure will be developed jointly between Sourcewell and 
Vendor. Typically, a Participating Entity will issue an order directly to Vendor. If a Participating 
Entity issues a purchase order, it may use its own forms, but the purchase order should clearly 
note the applicable Sourcewell contract number. All Participating Entity orders under this 
Contract must be issued prior to expiration of this Contract; however, Vendor performance, 
Participating Entity payment, and any applicable warranty periods or other Vendor or 
Participating Entity obligations may extend beyond the term of this Contract.  
 



020221-AAC 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           5 
 

Vendor’s acceptable forms of payment are included in Attachment A.  Participating Entities will 
be solely responsible for payment and Sourcewell will have no liability for any unpaid invoice of 
any Participating Entity.   
 
B. ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS/PARTICIPATING ADDENDUM. Additional terms and 
conditions to a purchase order, or other required transaction documentation, may be 
negotiated between a Participating Entity and Vendor, such as job or industry-specific 
requirements, legal requirements (e.g., affirmative action or immigration status requirements), 
or specific local policy requirements. Some Participating Entitles may require the use of a 
Participating Addendum; the terms of which will be worked out directly between the 
Participating Entity and the Vendor.  Any negotiated additional terms and conditions must 
never be less favorable to the Participating Entity than what is contained in this Contract. 
 
C. SPECIALIZED SERVICE REQUIREMENTS. In the event that the Participating Entity requires 
service or specialized performance requirements (such as e-commerce specifications, 
specialized delivery requirements, or other specifications and requirements) not addressed in 
this Contract, the Participating Entity and the Vendor may enter into a separate, standalone 
agreement, apart from this Contract. Sourcewell, including its agents and employees, will not 
be made a party to a claim for breach of such agreement.   
 
D. TERMINATION OF ORDERS. Participating Entities may terminate an order, in whole or 
in part, immediately upon notice to Vendor in the event of any of the following events:   
 

1. The Participating Entity fails to receive funding or appropriation from its governing body 
at levels sufficient to pay for the goods to be purchased; 
2. Federal,  state, or provincial laws or regulations prohibit the purchase or change the 
Participating Entity’s requirements; or 
3. Vendor commits any material breach of this Contract or the additional terms agreed to 
between the Vendor and a Participating Entity. 

 
E. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE. The governing law and venue for any action related to a 
Participating Entity’s order will be determined by the Participating Entity making the purchase.   
 

7. CUSTOMER SERVICE 
 
A. PRIMARY ACCOUNT REPRESENTATIVE. Vendor will assign an Account Representative to 
Sourcewell for this Contract and must provide prompt notice to Sourcewell if that person is 
changed. The Account Representative will be responsible for: 
  

 Maintenance and management of this Contract; 
 Timely response to all Sourcewell and Participating Entity inquiries; and 
 Business reviews to Sourcewell and Participating Entities, if applicable. 



020221-AAC 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           6 
 

 
B. BUSINESS REVIEWS. Vendor must perform a minimum of one business review with 
Sourcewell per contract year. The business review will cover sales to Participating Entities, 
pricing and contract terms, administrative fees, supply issues, customer issues, and any other 
necessary information.  
 

8. REPORT ON CONTRACT SALES ACTIVITY AND ADMINISTRATIVE FEE PAYMENT 
 
A. CONTRACT SALES ACTIVITY REPORT. Each calendar quarter, Vendor must provide a contract 
sales activity report (Report) to the Sourcewell Contract Administrator assigned to this 
Contract. A Report must be provided regardless of the number or amount of sales during that 
quarter (i.e., if there are no sales, Vendor must submit a report indicating no sales were made).  
 
The Report must contain the following fields: 
 

 Customer Name (e.g., City of Staples Highway Department); 
 Customer Physical Street Address; 
 Customer City; 
 Customer State/Province; 
 Customer Zip Code; 
 Customer Contact Name; 
 Customer Contact Email Address; 
 Customer Contact Telephone Number; 
 Sourcewell Assigned Entity/Participating Entity Number; 
 Item Purchased Description; 
 Item Purchased Price;  
 Sourcewell Administrative Fee Applied; and 
 Date Purchase was invoiced/sale was recognized as revenue by Vendor. 

 
B. ADMINISTRATIVE FEE. In consideration for the support and services provided by Sourcewell, 
the Vendor will pay an administrative fee to Sourcewell on all Equipment, Products, and 
Services provided to Participating Entities. The Administrative Fee must be included in, and not 
added to, the pricing. Vendor may not charge Participating Entities more than the contracted 
price to offset the Administrative Fee. 
 
The Vendor will submit payment to Sourcewell for the percentage of administrative fee stated 
in the Proposal multiplied by the total sales of all Equipment, Products, and Services purchased 
by Participating Entities under this Contract during each calendar quarter. Payments should 
note the Vendor’s name and Sourcewell-assigned contract number in the memo; and must be 
mailed to the address above “Attn: Accounts Receivable” or remitted electronically to 
Sourcewell’s banking institution per Sourcewell’s Finance department instructions. Payments 
must be received no later than 45 calendar days after the end of each calendar quarter. 



020221-AAC 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           7 
 

 
Vendor agrees to cooperate with Sourcewell in auditing transactions under this Contract to 
ensure that the administrative fee is paid on all items purchased under this Contract. 

 
In the event the Vendor is delinquent in any undisputed administrative fees, Sourcewell 
reserves the right to cancel this Contract and reject any proposal submitted by the Vendor in 
any subsequent solicitation. In the event this Contract is cancelled by either party prior to the 
Contract’s expiration date, the administrative fee payment will be due no more than 30 days 
from the cancellation date.  
 

9. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
 
Sourcewell's Authorized Representative is its Chief Procurement Officer.   

 
Vendor’s Authorized Representative is the person named in the Vendor’s Proposal. If Vendor’s 
Authorized Representative changes at any time during this Contract, Vendor must promptly 
notify Sourcewell in writing. 

 
10. AUDIT, ASSIGNMENT, AMENDMENTS, WAIVER, AND CONTRACT COMPLETE 

 
A. AUDIT. Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Section 16C.05, subdivision 5, the books, records, 
documents, and accounting procedures and practices relevant this Agreement are subject to 
examination by Sourcewell or the Minnesota State Auditor for a minimum of six years from the 
end of this Contract. This clause extends to Participating Entities as it relates to business 
conducted by that Participating Entity under this Contract. 
 
B. ASSIGNMENT. Neither the Vendor nor Sourcewell may assign or transfer any rights or 
obligations under this Contract without the prior consent of the parties and a fully executed 
assignment agreement. Such consent will not be unreasonably withheld.     
 
C. AMENDMENTS. Any amendment to this Contract must be in writing and will not be effective 
until it has been fully executed by the parties.   
 
D. WAIVER. If either party fails to enforce any provision of this Contract, that failure does not 
waive the provision or the right to enforce it. 
 
E. CONTRACT COMPLETE. This Contract contains all negotiations and agreements between 
Sourcewell and Vendor. No other understanding regarding this Contract, whether written or 
oral, may be used to bind either party. For any conflict between the attached Proposal and the 
terms set out in Articles 1-22, the terms of Articles 1-22 will govern. 
 
F. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES. The relationship of the parties is one of independent 
contractors, each free to exercise judgment and discretion with regard to the conduct of their 



020221-AAC 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           8 
 

respective businesses. This Contract does not create a partnership, joint venture, or any other 
relationship such as master-servant, or principal-agent.  

 
11. LIABILITY 

  
Vendor must indemnify, save, and hold Sourcewell and its Participating Entities, including their 
agents and employees, harmless from any claims or causes of action, including attorneys’ fees, 
arising out of the performance of this Contract by the Vendor or its agents or employees; this 
indemnification includes injury or death to person(s) or property alleged to have been caused 
by some defect in the Equipment, Products, or Services under this Contract to the extent the 
Equipment, Product, or Service has been used according to its specifications. 

 
12. GOVERNMENT DATA PRACTICES 

 
Vendor and Sourcewell must comply with the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, 
Minnesota Statutes Chapter 13, as it applies to all data provided by or provided to Sourcewell 
under this Contract and as it applies to all data created, collected, received, stored, used, 
maintained, or disseminated by the Vendor under this Contract.  
 
If the Vendor receives a request to release the data referred to in this article, the Vendor must 
immediately notify Sourcewell and Sourcewell will assist with how the Vendor should respond 
to the request. 
 

13. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY, PUBLICITY, MARKETING, AND ENDORSEMENT 
 

A. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 
1. Grant of License. During the term of this Contract: 

a. Sourcewell grants to Vendor a royalty-free, worldwide, non-exclusive right and 
license to use theTrademark(s) provided to Vendor by Sourcewell in advertising and 
promotional materials for the purpose of marketing Sourcewell’s relationship with 
Vendor. 
b. Vendor grants to Sourcewell a royalty-free, worldwide, non-exclusive right and 
license to use Vendor’s Trademarks in advertising and promotional materials for the 
purpose of marketing Vendor’s relationship with Sourcewell. 

2. Limited Right of Sublicense. The right and license granted herein includes a limited right 
of each party to grant sublicenses to its and their respective distributors, marketing 
representatives, and agents (collectively “Permitted Sublicensees”) in advertising and 
promotional materials for the purpose of marketing the Parties’ relationship to Participating 
Entities. Any sublicense granted will be subject to the terms and conditions of this Article. 
Each party will be responsible for any breach of this Article by any of their respective 
sublicensees.  
3. Use; Quality Control.  



020221-AAC 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           9 
 

a. Sourcewell must not alter Vendor’s Trademarks from the form provided by 
Vendor and must comply with Vendor’s removal requests as to specific uses of its 
trademarks or logos.   
b. Vendor must not alter Sourcewell’s Trademarks from the form provided by 
Sourcewell and must comply with Sourcewell’s removal requests as to specific uses 
of its trademarks or logos.   
c. Each party agrees to use, and to cause its Permitted Sublicensees to use, the 
other party’s Trademarks only in good faith and in a dignified manner consistent 
with such party’s use of the Trademarks. Upon written notice to the breaching party, 
the breaching party has 30 days of the date of the written notice to cure the breach 
or the license will be terminated.  

4. As applicable, Vendor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Sourcewell and its 
Participating Entities against any and all suits, claims, judgments, and costs instituted or 
recovered against Sourcewell or Participating Entities by any person on account of the use 
of any Equipment or Products by Sourcewell or its Participating Entities supplied by Vendor 
in violation of applicable patent or copyright laws. 
5. Termination. Upon the termination of this Contract for any reason, each party, including 
Permitted Sublicensees, will have 30 days to remove all Trademarks from signage, websites, 
and the like bearing the other party’s name or logo (excepting Sourcewell’s pre-printed 
catalog of vendors which may be used until the next printing).  Vendor must return all 
marketing and promotional materials, including signage, provided by Sourcewell, or dispose 
of it according to Sourcewell’s written directions. 

 
B. PUBLICITY. Any publicity regarding the subject matter of this Contract must not be released 
without prior written approval from the Authorized Representatives. Publicity includes notices, 
informational pamphlets, press releases, research, reports, signs, and similar public notices 
prepared by or for the Vendor individually or jointly with others, or any subcontractors, with 
respect to the program, publications, or services provided resulting from this Contract. 
 
C. MARKETING. Any direct advertising, marketing, or offers with Participating Entities must be 
approved by Sourcewell. Materials should be sent to the Sourcewell Contract Administrator 
assigned to this Contract.   
 
D. ENDORSEMENT. The Vendor must not claim that Sourcewell endorses its Equipment, 
Products, or Services. 

 
14. GOVERNING LAW, JURISDICTION, AND VENUE 

 
Minnesota law governs this Contract. Venue for all legal proceedings out of this Contract, or its 
breach, must be in the appropriate state court in Todd County or federal court in Fergus Falls, 
Minnesota.  
 



020221-AAC 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           10 
 

15. FORCE MAJEURE 
 
Neither party to this Contract will be held responsible for delay or default caused by acts of God 
or other conditions that are beyond that party’s reasonable control. A party defaulting under 
this provision must provide the other party prompt written notice of the default. 
 

16. SEVERABILITY 
 
If any provision of this Contract is found to be illegal, unenforceable, or void then both 
Sourcewell and Vendor will be relieved of all obligations arising under such provisions. If the 
remainder of this Contract is capable of performance, it will not be affected by such declaration 
or finding and must be fully performed. 
 

17. PERFORMANCE, DEFAULT, AND REMEDIES 
 
A. PERFORMANCE. During the term of this Contract, the parties will monitor performance and 
address unresolved contract issues as follows:  
 

1. Notification. The parties must promptly notify each other of any known dispute and 
work in good faith to resolve such dispute within a reasonable period of time. If necessary, 
Sourcewell and the Vendor will jointly develop a short briefing document that describes the 
issue(s), relevant impact, and positions of both parties.  
2. Escalation. If parties are unable to resolve the issue in a timely manner, as specified 
above, either Sourcewell or Vendor may escalate the resolution of the issue to a higher 
level of management. The Vendor will have 30 calendar days to cure an outstanding issue.  
3. Performance while Dispute is Pending. Notwithstanding the existence of a dispute, the 
Vendor must continue without delay to carry out all of its responsibilities under the 
Contract that are not affected by the dispute. If the Vendor fails to continue without delay 
to perform its responsibilities under the Contract, in the accomplishment of all undisputed 
work, any additional costs incurred by Sourcewell and/or its Participating Entities as a result 
of such failure to proceed will be borne by the Vendor. 

 
B. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES. Either of the following constitutes cause to declare this Contract, 
or any Participating Entity order under this Contract, in default:   

 
1. Nonperformance of contractual requirements, or  
2. A material breach of any term or condition of this Contract.   

 
Written notice of default and a reasonable opportunity to cure must be issued by the party 
claiming default. Time allowed for cure will not diminish or eliminate any liability for liquidated 
or other damages. If the default remains after the opportunity for cure, the non-defaulting 
party may: 
 



020221-AAC 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           11 
 

 Exercise any remedy provided by law or equity, or 
 Terminate the Contract or any portion thereof, including any orders issued against the 

Contract. 
 

18. INSURANCE 
  
A. REQUIREMENTS. At its own expense, Vendor must maintain insurance policy(ies) in effect at 
all times during the performance of this Contract with insurance company(ies) licensed or 
authorized to do business in the State of Minnesota having an “AM BEST” rating of A- or better, 
with coverage and limits of insurance not less than the following:  

 
1. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability.  
Workers’ Compensation: As required by any applicable law or regulation.  
Employer's Liability Insurance: must be provided in amounts not less than listed below: 

Minimum limits: 
$500,000 each accident for bodily injury by accident 
$500,000 policy limit for bodily injury by disease 
$500,000 each employee for bodily injury by disease 

  
2. Commercial General Liability Insurance. Vendor will maintain insurance covering its 
operations, with coverage on an occurrence basis, and must be subject to terms no less 
broad than the Insurance Services Office (“ISO”) Commercial General Liability Form 
CG0001 (2001 or newer edition), or equivalent. At a minimum, coverage must include 
liability arising from premises, operations, bodily injury and property damage, 
independent contractors, products-completed operations including construction defect, 
contractual liability, blanket contractual liability, and personal injury and advertising 
injury. All required limits, terms and conditions of coverage must be maintained during 
the term of this Contract. 

 Minimum Limits:  
$1,000,000 each occurrence Bodily Injury and Property Damage 
$1,000,000 Personal and Advertising Injury 
$2,000,000 aggregate for Products-Completed operations  
$2,000,000 general aggregate 

 
3. Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance. During the term of this Contract, Vendor 
will maintain insurance covering all owned, hired, and non-owned automobiles in limits 
of liability not less than indicated below. The coverage must be subject to terms no less 
broad than ISO Business Auto Coverage Form CA 0001 (2010 edition or newer), or 
equivalent. 

 Minimum Limits: 
$1,000,000 each accident, combined single limit 

 



020221-AAC 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           12 
 

4. Umbrella Insurance. During the term of this Contract, Vendor will maintain umbrella 
coverage over Workers’ Compensation, Commercial General Liability, and Commercial 
Automobile. 

 Minimum Limits: 
$2,000,000  

 
5. Network Security and Privacy Liability Insurance. During the term of this Contract, 
Vendor will maintain coverage for network security and privacy liability. The coverage 
may be endorsed on another form of liability coverage or written on a standalone 
policy. The insurance must cover claims which may arise from failure of Vendor’s 
security resulting in, but not limited to, computer attacks, unauthorized access, 
disclosure of not public data – including but not limited to, confidential or private 
information, transmission of a computer virus, or denial of service.  

 Minimum limits:  
$2,000,000 per occurrence 
$2,000,000 annual aggregate 

 
Failure of Vendor to maintain the required insurance will constitute a material breach entitling 
Sourcewell to immediately terminate this Contract for default.  
 
B. CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE. Prior to commencing under this Contract, Vendor must furnish 
to Sourcewell a certificate of insurance, as evidence of the insurance required under this 
Contract. Prior to expiration of the policy(ies), renewal certificates must be mailed to 
Sourcewell, 202 12th Street Northeast, P.O. Box 219, Staples, MN 56479 or sent to the 
Sourcewell Contract Administrator assigned to this Contract. The certificates must be signed by 
a person authorized by the insurer(s) to bind coverage on their behalf. 
 
Failure to request certificates of insurance by Sourcewell, or failure of Vendor to provide 
certificates of insurance, in no way limits or relieves Vendor of its duties and responsibilities in 
this Contract. 
 
C. ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT AND PRIMARY AND NON-CONTRIBUTORY 
INSURANCE CLAUSE. Vendor agrees to list Sourcewell and its Participating Entities, including 
their officers, agents, and employees, as an additional insured under the Vendor’s commercial 
general liability insurance policy with respect to liability arising out of activities, “operations,” or 
“work” performed by or on behalf of Vendor, and products and completed operations of 
Vendor. The policy provision(s) or endorsement(s) must further provide that coverage is 
primary and not excess over or contributory with any other valid, applicable, and collectible 
insurance or self-insurance in force for the additional insureds.   
 
D. WAIVER OF SUBROGATION. Vendor waives and must require (by endorsement or 
otherwise) all its insurers to waive subrogation rights against Sourcewell and other additional 
insureds for losses paid under the insurance policies required by this Contract or other 



020221-AAC 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           13 
 

insurance applicable to the Vendor or its subcontractors. The waiver must apply to all 
deductibles and/or self-insured retentions applicable to the required or any other insurance 
maintained by the Vendor or its subcontractors. Where permitted by law, Vendor must require 
similar written express waivers of subrogation and insurance clauses from each of its 
subcontractors.   
 
E. UMBRELLA/EXCESS LIABILITY/SELF-INSURED RETENTION. The limits required by this 
Contract can be met by either providing a primary policy or in combination with 
umbrella/excess liability policy(ies), or self-insured retention. 
 

19. COMPLIANCE 
 
A. LAWS AND REGULATIONS. All Equipment, Products, or Services provided under this 
Contract must comply fully with applicable federal laws and regulations, and with the laws in 
the states and provinces in which the Equipment, Products, or Services are sold.  
 
B. LICENSES. Vendor must maintain a valid and current status on all required federal, 
state/provincial, and local licenses, bonds, and permits required for the operation of the 
business that the Vendor conducts with Sourcewell and Participating Entities. 

 
20. BANKRUPTCY, DEBARMENT, OR SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION 

 
Vendor certifies and warrants that it is not in bankruptcy or that it has previously disclosed in 
writing certain information to Sourcewell related to bankruptcy actions. If at any time during 
this Contract Vendor declares bankruptcy, Vendor must immediately notify Sourcewell in 
writing. 
 
Vendor certifies and warrants that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, 
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from programs 
operated by the State of Minnesota; the United States federal government or the Canadian 
government, as applicable; or any Participating Entity. Vendor certifies and warrants that 
neither it nor its principals have been convicted of a criminal offense related to the subject 
matter of this Contract. Vendor further warrants that it will provide immediate written notice 
to Sourcewell if this certification changes at any time. 
 

21. PROVISIONS FOR NON-UNITED STATES FEDERAL ENTITY PROCUREMENTS UNDER 
UNITED STATES FEDERAL AWARDS OR OTHER AWARDS 

 
Participating Entities that use United States federal grant or FEMA funds to purchase goods or 
services from this Contract may be subject to additional requirements including the 
procurement standards of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, 2 C.F.R. § 200. Participating Entities may also require 
additional requirements based on specific funding specifications. Within this Article, all 



020221-AAC 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           14 
 

references to “federal” should be interpreted to mean the United States federal government. 
The following list only applies when a Participating Entity accesses Vendor’s Equipment, 
Products, or Services with United States federal funds. 
 
A. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY. Except as otherwise provided under 41 C.F.R. § 60, all 
contracts that meet the definition of “federally assisted construction contract” in 41 C.F.R. § 60-
1.3 must include the equal opportunity clause provided under 41 C.F.R. §60-1.4(b), in 
accordance with Executive Order 11246, “Equal Employment Opportunity” (30 FR 12319, 
12935, 3 C.F.R. §, 1964-1965 Comp., p. 339), as amended by Executive Order 11375, “Amending 
Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,” and implementing 
regulations at 41 C.F.R. § 60, “Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal 
Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor.” The equal opportunity clause is incorporated 
herein by reference. 
 
B. DAVIS-BACON ACT, AS AMENDED (40 U.S.C. § 3141-3148). When required by federal 
program legislation, all prime construction contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by non-
federal entities must include a provision for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. § 
3141-3144, and 3146-3148) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. § 5, 
“Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted 
Construction”). In accordance with the statute, contractors must be required to pay wages to 
laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage 
determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be required to pay 
wages not less than once a week. The non-federal entity must place a copy of the current 
prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation. The 
decision to award a contract or subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of the 
wage determination. The non-federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to 
the federal awarding agency. The contracts must also include a provision for compliance with 
the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (40 U.S.C. § 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor 
regulations (29 C.F.R. § 3, “Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work 
Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States”). The Act provides that 
each contractor or subrecipient must be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person 
employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the 
compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The non-federal entity must report 
all suspected or reported violations to the federal awarding agency. Vendor must be in 
compliance with all applicable Davis-Bacon Act provisions. 
 
C. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT (40 U.S.C. § 3701-3708). Where 
applicable, all contracts awarded by the non-federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve 
the employment of mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 
U.S.C. §§ 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. § 5). 
Under 40 U.S.C. § 3702 of the Act, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of 
every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess 
of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of 



020221-AAC 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           15 
 

not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 
hours in the work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. § 3704 are applicable to construction 
work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or 
under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements 
do not apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the 
open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence. This provision is 
hereby incorporated by reference into this Contract. Vendor certifies that during the term of an 
award for all contracts by Sourcewell resulting from this procurement process, Vendor must 
comply with applicable requirements as referenced above. 
 
D. RIGHTS TO INVENTIONS MADE UNDER A CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT. If the federal award 
meets the definition of “funding agreement” under 37 C.F.R. § 401.2(a) and the recipient or 
subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization 
regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, 
developmental, or research work under that “funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient 
must comply with the requirements of 37 C.F.R. § 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit 
Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative 
Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency. Vendor 
certifies that during the term of an award for all contracts by Sourcewell resulting from this 
procurement process, Vendor must comply with applicable requirements as referenced above. 
 
E. CLEAN AIR ACT (42 U.S.C. § 7401-7671Q.) AND THE FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL 
ACT (33 U.S.C. § 1251-1387). Contracts and subgrants of amounts in excess of $150,000 require 
the non-federal award to agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations 
issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. § 7401- 7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution 
Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. § 1251- 1387). Violations must be reported to the Federal 
awarding agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). Vendor 
certifies that during the term of this Contract will comply with applicable requirements as 
referenced above. 
 
F. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (EXECUTIVE ORDERS 12549 AND 12689). A contract award 
(see 2 C.F.R. § 180.220) must not be made to parties listed on the government wide exclusions 
in the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 C.F.R. 
§180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 C.F.R. § 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 
C.F.R. § 1989 Comp., p. 235), “Debarment and Suspension.” SAM Exclusions contains the names 
of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared 
ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549. Vendor 
certifies that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for 
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation by any federal 
department or agency. 
 
G. BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING AMENDMENT, AS AMENDED (31 U.S.C. § 1352). Vendors must file 
any required certifications. Vendors must not have used federal appropriated funds to pay any 



020221-AAC 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           16 
 

person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 
agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member 
of Congress in connection with obtaining any federal contract, grant, or any other award 
covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Vendors must disclose any lobbying with non-federal funds that 
takes place in connection with obtaining any federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded 
from tier to tier up to the non-federal award. Vendors must file all certifications and disclosures 
required by, and otherwise comply with, the Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. § 
1352). 
 
H. RECORD RETENTION REQUIREMENTS. To the extent applicable, Vendor must comply with 
the record retention requirements detailed in 2 C.F.R. § 200.333. The Vendor further certifies 
that it will retain all records as required by 2 C.F.R. § 200.333 for a period of 3 years after 
grantees or subgrantees submit final expenditure reports or quarterly or annual financial 
reports, as applicable, and all other pending matters are closed. 
 
I. ENERGY POLICY AND CONSERVATION ACT COMPLIANCE. To the extent applicable, Vendor 
must comply with the mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are 
contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy 
and Conservation Act. 
 
J. BUY AMERICAN PROVISIONS COMPLIANCE. To the extent applicable, Vendor must comply 
with all applicable provisions of the Buy American Act. Purchases made in accordance with the 
Buy American Act must follow the applicable procurement rules calling for free and open 
competition. 
 
K. ACCESS TO RECORDS (2 C.F.R. § 200.336). Vendor agrees that duly authorized 
representatives of a federal agency must have access to any books, documents, papers and 
records of Vendor that are directly pertinent to Vendor’s discharge of its obligations under this 
Contract for the purpose of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. The right 
also includes timely and reasonable access to Vendor’s personnel for the purpose of interview 
and discussion relating to such documents. 
 
L. PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS (2 C.F.R. § 200.322). A non-federal entity that is 
a state agency or agency of a political subdivision of a state and its contractors must comply 
with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation 
and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in 
guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 C.F.R. § 247 that contain the 
highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a 
satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the 
value of the quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000; procuring 
solid waste management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; 
and establishing an affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered materials 
identified in the EPA guidelines.  



020221-AAC 
 

Rev. 10/2020                           17 
 

 
22. CANCELLATION 

 
Sourcewell or Vendor may cancel this Contract at any time, with or without cause, upon 60 
days’ written notice to the other party. However, Sourcewell may cancel this Contract 
immediately upon discovery of a material defect in any certification made in Vendor’s Proposal.  
Cancellation of this Contract does not relieve either party of financial, product, or service 
obligations incurred or accrued prior to cancellation. 
 
 

Sourcewell Agile Fleet, Inc. 
 
 

By: __________________________ By: __________________________ 
Jeremy Schwartz Edwin E. Smith 

Title: Chief Procurement Officer Title: President 
 
Date: ________________________ 

 
Date: ________________________ 

Approved:  
  

By: __________________________ 
 

Chad Coauette  
Title: Executive Director/CEO  
 
Date: ________________________ 

 

 
 



Bid Number: RFP 020221 Vendor Name: Agile Fleet, Inc



Bid Number: RFP 020221 Vendor Name: Agile Fleet, Inc



Bid Number: RFP 020221 Vendor Name: Agile Fleet, Inc



Bid Number: RFP 020221 Vendor Name: Agile Fleet, Inc



Bid Number: RFP 020221 Vendor Name: Agile Fleet, Inc



Bid Number: RFP 020221 Vendor Name: Agile Fleet, Inc



Bid Number: RFP 020221 Vendor Name: Agile Fleet, Inc



Bid Number: RFP 020221 Vendor Name: Agile Fleet, Inc



Bid Number: RFP 020221 Vendor Name: Agile Fleet, Inc



Bid Number: RFP 020221 Vendor Name: Agile Fleet, Inc



Bid Number: RFP 020221 Vendor Name: Agile Fleet, Inc



Bid Number: RFP 020221 Vendor Name: Agile Fleet, Inc



Bid Number: RFP 020221 Vendor Name: Agile Fleet, Inc



Bid Number: RFP 020221 Vendor Name: Agile Fleet, Inc



Bid Number: RFP 020221 Vendor Name: Agile Fleet, Inc



Bid Number: RFP 020221 Vendor Name: Agile Fleet, Inc



Bid Number: RFP 020221 Vendor Name: Agile Fleet, Inc



Bid Number: RFP 020221 Vendor Name: Agile Fleet, Inc



Bid Number: RFP 020221 Vendor Name: Agile Fleet, Inc



Make Checks Payable to: Agile Fleet, Inc. 
 

Tax ID: 77-0553957

Agile Fleet, Inc.

14101 Willard Rd, Suite A
Chantilly, VA  20151
(571) 498-7555
www.agilefleet.com

Estimate
ADDRESS

Gila County
745 N. Rose Mofford
Globe, AZ 85501
scoons@gilacountyaz.gov

ESTIMATE # 20220801m15
DATE 08/30/2022

  

ITEM DESCRIPTION QTY
UNIT 

PRICE
EXTENDED 

PRICE

FCP FleetComander SaaS License 1 50,217.05 50,217.05

HW Maintenance Hardware Warranty 1 3,262.76 3,262.76

HW Maintenance Hardware Warranty - 16 key key box purchased 
in 2021. $7,864.80*.15=$1,179.72

1 1,179.72 1,179.72

KIW Kiosk warranty - (1) Kiosk purchased in Nov. 
2021

1 465.00 465.00

KIW Kiosk warranty - (2) Kiosks purchased in April 
2022. Pro-rated warranty  May 2023 - Oct 2023.  
$1,629.08/6 months = $814.54 for (2) kiosks

2 407.27 814.54

FCCSD Sourcewell  Discount. 1 -2,657.10 -2,657.10

Service dates:  November  1, 2022 - October 31, 
2023

0.00

 

TOTAL $53,281.97

Accepted By Accepted Date



   
ARF-7562   Consent Agenda Item     4. D.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/20/2022  
Submitted For: Bradley Beauchamp, County Attorney 
Submitted By: Athena Gooding, Legal Secretary, Lead
Department: County Attorney
Fiscal Year: 2023 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2022 - June
30, 2023

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of FY 2023 Victims' Rights Program Award Agreement No.
2023-004 with the Office of the Attorney General.

Background Information
Monies are distributed and received by the Attorney General pursuant to
A.R.S. §41-2401 and A.R.S. §8-418 and constitute a continuing
appropriation. These monies are also subject to legislative appropriation.
The allocated funding received from the Attorney General's Office provides
for the salary and employee-related expenses of a full-time
Victim-Advocate/Notification Clerk within the Gila County Attorney's
Office. FY 2023 award in the amount of $19,000 has no financial impact
on Gila County and requires no matched funds from the County.

Evaluation
The award of $19,000 is used to cover existing employee salaries and
employee-related expenses commencing July 1, 2022, and terminating on
June 30, 2023. The funding agreement is used to support the costs of
implementing victims' rights laws mandated by the provisions of Arizona
Revised Statutes Title 13, Crime Victims' Rights, and Title 8, Victims'
Rights for Juvenile Offenses.

Conclusion
The intent of the program funds is two-fold: 1) To provide financial



The intent of the program funds is two-fold: 1) To provide financial
support to the Gila County Attorney's Office charged with performing the
duties under A.R.S. Title 13 and A.R.S. Title 8, and 2) to encourage
efficient and effective use of resources to meet statutory requirements
aimed at ensuring victims' rights and access to justice. Mandated services
provided to victims include, but are not limited to notification of all court
hearings, court escorts, victim compensation, providing emotional
support, assisting in transportation, scheduling interviews with
prosecutors, and assisting with any other social service needs. These
funds are essential to carrying out these duties.

Recommendation
The Gila County Attorney recommends that the Board accept and approve
the FY 2023 Victims' Rights Program Award Agreement No. AG No.
2023-004 in the amount of $19,000 for the salary/benefits of a full-time
Victim Advocate in the County Attorney's Office.

Suggested Motion
Approval of FY 2023 Victims' Rights Program Award Agreement No. AG
No. 2023-004 between the Gila County Attorney's Office and the Arizona
Attorney General's Office in the amount of $19,000 to cover the existing
salary and employee-related expenses for a full-time advocate for the
period July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2023.

Attachments
FY 2023 Victims' Rights Program



State of Arizona

Office of the Attorney General

FY 2023 Victims' Rights Program

AWARD AGREEMENT

A.G. #: 2023-004 

RECIPIENT

Name:

Contact:

Address:

Award Amount:

Purpose:

I. The Contractor agrees:

Award funds will not be used to supplant state, local and federal funds that would otherwise be available to provide services to victims of crime as mandated by A .R.S. Title 13, 

Chapter 40 and Title 8, Chapter 3, Article 7

A.

Gila County Attorney's Office

Debra  Blair

1400 East Ash Street-Guerrero Building, Globe, AZ 85501

$19,000.00

To support the direct costs of implementing victims' rights laws pursuant to those provisions of Arizona Revised Statutes Title 13, Chapter 40 and Title 

8, Chapter 3, Article 7 impacting County Attorney as an entity type.

B. Award funds will be used only for allowable costs that can be proven necessary and essential to effect the direct provision or performance of those statutorily mandated victims ' rights 

duties (services), as described in the Victims' Rights Program Guidelines - Section IV Allowable and Non-Allowable Costs, and as specified in Contractor's approved $19,000.00 

award budget as follows:

ERE/Benefits:$19,000.00 $

This AGREEMENT is made this first day of July 2022, by and between the Arizona Attorney General , and the Gila County Attorney's Office, the "Contractor", to commence on July 1, 2022 and 

terminate June 30, 2023. The Attorney General, having been satisfied as to the qualifications of Contractor, agrees to pay Contractor the above shown $19,000.00 subject to Contractor's agreement 

as follows:

Monies having been deposited and received by the Attorney General pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes § 41-2401, § 8-418 and legislative appropriations, this AGREEMENT is made under 

the authority of the Attorney General pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes § 41-191.08 -- Victims' Rights Fund.

Personnel:

Title: Percent:Legal Secretary/Victim Advocate 57.8%

II. It is further agreed between the parties as follows:

A.

B.

C.

D.

E.

To use arbitration in the event of disputes to the extent required by A .R.S. § 12-1518.

Except as provided in paragraph C below, if the Attorney General finds that the Contractor has not complied with the requirements of this agreement , the Contractor will receive a 

notice which identifies the area(s) of non-compliance and the appropriate corrective action to be taken. If the Contractor does not respond within thirty calendar days to this notice, or 

does not provide sufficient information concerning the steps which are being taken to correct the problem , the Attorney General may terminate the contract and require the return of all 

funds which are found to have been spent in violation of this agreement.

The parties agree to meet and confer in good faith to resolve disputes before commencing formal proceedings of any nature.

The Attorney General may reduce or discontinue funding to the Contractor in subsequent fiscal years , at the Attorney General's discretion, for the Contractor's failure to complete and 

submit, on or before August 11, 2023, the report that is required pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-191.08(F) or for other reasons such as available funding.

Every payment obligation of the Attorney General under this Agreement is conditioned upon the availability of funds appropriated or allocated for the payment of such obligation . If 

funds are not allocated and available for the continuance of this Agreement , this Agreement may be terminated by the Attorney General at the end of the period for which funds are 

available. No liability shall accrue to the Attorney General in the event this provision is exercised , and the Attorney General shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments or 

for any damages as a result of termination under this paragraph.

Consulting:

Operating:

Equipment:

C. To complete and submit, on or before August 11, 2023, an annual report to the Attorney General as prescribed in A .R.S. § 41-191.08(F).

D. To comply with FY 2023 Victims' Rights Program Guidelines, as well as the applicable provisions of A.R.S. Title 13, Chapter 40 and A.R.S. Title 8, Chapter 3, Article 7.

E. To allow (a) representative(s) of the Attorney General to complete program and financial audits as the Attorney General believes necessary to ensure Contractor compliance with this 

agreement and with State law.

F. To retain all records relating to the agreement, and performance under the agreement, for a period of five years after the completion of the project, and to allow inspection and audit of all 

such documents at reasonable times, pursuant to A.R.S. §§ 38-214 and 38-215.

G. To comply with all applicable nondiscrimination requirements of A .R.S. § 41-1463, Arizona State Executive Order 2009-09, and all other applicable state and federal civil rights laws.

H. Each party hereby warrants its compliance with all federal immigration laws and regulations that relate to its employees and A .R.S. § 23-214(A).  If either party uses any 

subcontractors in performance of this contract, subcontractors shall warrant their compliance with all federal immigration laws and regulations that relate to its employees and A .R.S. § 

23-214(A).  A breach of this warranty shall be deemed a material breach of the contract subject to penalties up to and including termination of this contract .  Each party retains the legal 

right to inspect the papers of the other party and its subcontractors who work on the contract to ensure that the other or subcontractors are complying with this warranty.

I. To retain ownership interest in all equipment acquired with VRP funds (or in the proceeds resulting from the sale of such equipment) provided that: (1) the equipment purchase was not 

in violation of the VRP Award Agreement; and (2) the useful life of the equipment in question has not elapsed.

$0.00 N/A

$0.00

$0.00

N/A

N/A

Any and all award funds not expended by June 30, 2023, will be returned to the Attorney General.F.

This agreement is subject to cancellation pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-511.G.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have made and executed this AGREEMENT on the day and year first above written .

FOR THE ATTORNEY GENERAL:
Jerry Connolly, Procurement Manager Date:

FOR THE CONTRACTOR:

Clerk of the Governing Board (if applicable) Legal Counsel (if applicable)Date: Date:

Authorized Signature Printed Name and TitleDate:

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:



   

ARF-7581   Consent Agenda Item     4. E.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/20/2022  

Submitted For: Paula Horn, Deputy Director of Health 
Submitted By: Paula Horn, Deputy Director of Health
Department: Health & Emergency Management Division: Health Services

Information
Request/Subject
Acknowledgment of the Annual Immunization Report for 2021-2022.

Background Information
This is the first time the health department has submitted a quality management
report, immunization report, and immunization action plan to the Gila County Board
of Supervisors for acknowledgment.

To ensure compliance with Arizona Administrative Code Article R9-10-1004 outpatient
Treatment Centers rules and regulations a Quality Management Report must be
submitted to the Board of Supervisors annually. The report must include the
identification of each concern about the delivery of services related to patient care, any
change made or action was taken as a result of the identification of concern about the
delivery of services related to patient care, and the report and supporting
documentation are maintained for at least 12 months after the date the report is
submitted to the governing authority.

Evaluation
Acknowledgment of the Annual Immunization Report for 2021-2022.

Conclusion
Acknowledgment of the Annual Immunization Report for 2021-2022.

Recommendation
To Acknowledge the 2021-2022 Immunization reports submitted by Gila County
Health Department per Arizona Administrative Code R9-10-1004.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the 2021-2022 Annual Immunization Reports submitted by Gila
County Health Department per Arizona Administrative Code R9-10-1004 for licensing
rules and regulations.

Attachments
Quality Management Report
Immunization report 2021-2022



Immunization Action Plan
Arizona Administrative Code R9-10-1004





















   
ARF-7584   Consent Agenda Item     4. F.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/20/2022  
Reporting
Period:

August 2, 2022, August 15, 2022, and August 30, 2022

Submitted By: Melissa Henderson, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board

Information
Subject
Board of Supervisors' August 2, 2022, August 15, 2022, and August 30,
2022, Meeting Minutes.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the Board of Supervisors' August 2, 2022, August 15, 2022,
and August 30, 2022, meeting minutes.

Attachments
08-02-22 Meeting Minutes
08-15-22 Meeting Minutes
08-30-22 Meeting Minutes



Page 1 of 16 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  August 2, 2022 

 
WOODY CLINE       JAMES MENLOVE 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 

 
STEVE CHRISTENSEN       By: Marian Sheppard 
Vice-Chairman 

                                                             
TIM R. HUMPHREY      Gila County Courthouse 

Member         Globe, Arizona                        
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

PRESENT:  Woody Cline, Chairman; Steve Christensen, Vice-Chairman; and 
Tim R. Humphrey, Member 

 
STAFF PRESENT:  W. James Menlove, County Manager; Jefferson Dalton, 
Deputy Gila County Attorney and Civil Bureau Chief; Jessica Scibelli, Senior 

Civil Deputy County Attorney; and Melissa Henderson, Chief Deputy Clerk of 
the Board 
 

Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – INVOCATION 
 

Chairman Cline called the Regular Meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. this date in 
the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  David LaForge led the Pledge of 
Allegiance and Tim McDonald of the Church for the Nations of Payson delivered 

the invocation. 

Item 2 – PRESENTATIONS: 

A.  Update on the activities of the County Supervisors Association (CSA) 
by Craig Sullivan, CSA Executive Director, including a discussion of 

recent legislative activities.  
 
Craig Sullivan, CSA Executive Director, introduced Jacob Emnett, CSA 

Legislative Liaison, who attended the Gila County Board of Supervisors’ 
meeting for the first time.  Mr. Sullivan thanked the Board of Supervisors for 
their involvement in CSA and he also thanked James Menlove, County 

Manager, and his staff for always providing information to CSA for its research 
projects.  He briefly reviewed the purpose and core goals of CSA for those 

present who weren’t familiar with the organization.  He talked about the forums 
that have been held over the past year by CSA and he highlighted some of the 
forums’ notable speakers and county roundtable topics.  

 



Page 2 of 16 

 

Mr. Sullivan talked about the research and data development that has been 
compiled by the CSA team over the years.  He referred to CSA’s “County 

Encyclopedia” which provides data relating to Arizona county finances, 
demographics, districts, courts, and some statewide and municipal information 

as well. This interactive document allows the user to search, manipulate and 
interact with the information that CSA has collected and analyzed. Mr. Sullivan 
stated that County Managers routinely reference this information, and he 

encouraged the Supervisors to also view it. 
 
He talked about the lengthy 2022 legislative session which resulted in 1,851 

bills being introduced of which 392 passed, 208 were county relevant, 4 were 
vetoed, 1 was a line-item veto, and 388 that were signed resulting in a 21% 

enacted rate.  This data was provided by Mr. Sullivan as of July 7, 2022.  He 
provided some highlights of the State’s FY 2023 budget.  Of significance is that 
the State put aside $50M for SMART grants for rural counties to help with 

grant writing. Mr. Sullivan proceeded to talk about specific State budget items 
that affect Arizona counties.  He talked about the bills that were introduced at 

the state legislature by CSA.  Four of six adopted CSA legislative priorities 
passed relating to medical examiners, county improvement districts, and the 
juvenile dependency program.  A bill for the local authority for transient 

lodging assessments and another bill for procurement contract modifications 
did not go forward; however, Mr. Sullivan expects them to come back this 
coming year.  He also touched on CSA reactive advocacy areas that the CSA 

team will be working on for the next legislative session.  Mr. Sullivan reviewed 
the effects of some select bills to include elections, COVID-19 and emergency 

response, general government, criminal justice, water, planning and zoning, tax 
policy, and pensions.   
 

Each Supervisor made some comments on the information that was presented 
and thanked Mr. Sullivan. 
 

Item 3 – PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

A.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 22-08-01, 
which approves Gila County Planning and Zoning Department Case No. 
CUPP2202-001, an application submitted by Terrea Lea Brownlee & Levi 

Brownlee (Owners), and Little Stinker Septic, LLC (Applicant) for a 
Conditional Use Permit on Assessor's Tax Parcel Number 304-36-001L 

located at 3056 South Forest Service Road 184, Rye, Arizona, to allow up 
to 100 clean portable toilets and two clean pumper trucks to be stored 
outside upon a portion of this parcel of land, subject to the adherence of 

the conditions of approval as outlined in the Resolution. 
 
Randy Pluimer, Community Development Department Director, presented the 

following information which is contained in the staff report for this item, as 
follows:  The applicant, Little Stinker Septic, LLC, is proposing to utilize a portion 



Page 3 of 16 

 

of the subject property owned by Terrea Lea Brownlee and Levi Brownlee for the 
proposed storage of up to 100 clean portable toilets and two clean pumper 
trucks. The subject property per the Gila County Assessor is 29.77 acres in size 
with the request to utilize ½ acre for storage. The storage area is for overflow 
from the business site located in Payson, Arizona. Little Stinker Septic, LLC 
stated the storage area will be unmanned with the owners or employees coming 
to the subject property to drop off or pick up portable toilets as needed. The 
normal hours of operation will be from dawn to dusk; however, the business 
does provide emergency portable toilets during fire season which may increase 
operations to and from the subject property. 
 
On June 16, 2022, the Planning and Zoning (P&Z) Commission voted 4-3 to 
recommend approval of the application, subject to the adherence of the conditions 
of approval: 

1. Gila County Conditional Use Permit CUPP2202-001 shall be granted for a 
period of two (2) years on a non-transferable basis. It is effective on the 
date approved by the Gila County Board of Supervisors and automatically 
terminates at 12:00 p.m. on the same date two years afterwards. 

2. The storage area shall be in conformance with the Gila County Conditional 
Use Permit application in this case dated on January 7, 2022, and revised 
narrative dated May 15, 2022. This includes, but is not limited to, the 
storage area being limited to one-half acre and located as described in the 
application. 

3. All lighting shall comply with the Gila County Outdoor Light Control 
Ordinance. 

4. Ingress and Egress to the subject property shall be off Forest Service Road 
184 via Gisela Road. Ingress and Egress from State Route 188 shall be 
utilized in the event of an emergency only within the confinements of the 
road and bridge specifications. 

5. The owner must abide by all other state, federal, and local regulations that 
may be applicable. The owner must obtain any state, federal, and local 
permits that are required. 

6. All equipment stored shall be clean and empty of any sewage. 
7. Storage area must be fenced with a 6-foot opaque fence. 
8. A Development Plan Application shall be submitted, reviewed, and 

approved for all commercial uses on APN (Assessor’s Parcel Number): 304-
36-001L. 

In addition, a public participation meeting (citizen review process) was held on 
May 14, 2022, with 12 individuals in attendance. 
 
The concerns were about the current conditions of the road, i.e., road dust, traffic 
and speeding vehicles and passing in some areas, how many portable restrooms 
will be on site, and how the portable restrooms will be stored (clean and empty) 
and picked up (type of vehicle), fire-wise protection of and around the storage 



Page 4 of 16 

 

area, spilling raw sewage and locating the entire business to the subject 
property. 
 
Chairman Cline asked Supervisors Christensen and Humphrey if they had any 

questions or comments before he opened the public hearing.  Supervisor 
Humphrey inquired as to the present location of the portable toilets and 
pumper trucks.  Mr. Pluimer replied that to his knowledge. they are stored at 

the company’s location in Payson as they had to be off the property in Pine, but 
he does not know the number of portable toilets being stored.  Vice-Chairman 
Christensen inquired about the one citizen who submitted a letter in favor of 

the Board approving this request.  Mr. Pluimer clarified that a letter was not 
submitted by anyone, but rather it was someone who spoke at the P&Z 

Commission hearing, and he did not know that person’s name.  Vice-Chairman 
Christensen advised that he met with 9 people, and he has received notification 
from a total of 12 people who are not in favor of this request.  For cases such 

as this one, Chairman Cline inquired if the members of the P&Z Commission 
are knowledgeable about the subject area, applicants, etc.  Mr. Pluimer replied 

that information pertaining to the case is electronically transmitted to each 
Commission member approximately 2 weeks before the Commission’s hearing 
so that they can ask staff questions, if needed.  He added that some members 

may drive to the subject area to become familiar.   
 
Chairman Cline opened the public hearing. Mr. Troy Neal, who has resided for 

39 years at the 76 Ranch, spoke against the Board approving this request.  His 
concern is the poor condition of the road and increased traffic.  He also 

mentioned that there is a bus stop for children in the area and with increased 
road traffic, it causes him concern there would be an accident.  Ms. Terrea 
Brownlee, one of the trustees of the trust that owns the subject property, spoke 

in favor of approving this request. She advised that there is a need to have 
property for the overflow of portable toilets and trucks.  She stated, “We had to 
be off the property in Pine because the owner of Little Stinkers did not sell the 

property, only the business.  We finally found a location on Highway 260 for 
the business; however, it is not large enough for all the portable toilets…”  She 

added that the portable toilets to be stored at the Rye location are overflow for 
use by the Forest Service when there are fires, so they won’t go in and out of 
the property daily.  She anticipates moving them no more than 6 times per 

year.  She agreed that the road is not in good shape; however, she anticipates 
there is only a temporary need to use the subject property.  Teresa Arnstein, 

one of the owners of Little Stinker Septic, LLC, also spoke in favor of the Board 
approving this request.  She said that a pickup truck would haul a trailer that 
contains 10 or 18 portable toilets, so she doesn’t anticipate that much driving 

back and forth on the road.  She also stated that she spoke with property 
owners living along the road and they have no problem with this request 
because the property would be fenced.  She advised that all portable toilets and 

pump trucks to be stored would not be filled with waste; they would be clean.  



Page 5 of 16 

 

There weren’t any other comments, so Chairman Cline closed the public 
hearing. 

 
Vice-Chairman Christensen thanked those people that made comments.  

James Menlove, County Manager, reiterated Mr. Pluimer’s comment that the 
vote of the Board members must be unanimous.   
 

Supervisor Humphrey made a motion to not adopt Resolution No. 22-08-01, 
which was seconded by Vice-Chairman Christensen.  By a unanimous vote of 
the Board, Resolution No. 22-08-01 was not adopted; therefore, Gila County 

Planning and Zoning Department Case No. CUPP2202-001 was not approved. 
 

B.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Ordinance No. 2022-06 - Gila 
County Street Naming and Property Numbering.  
 

Tom Homan, GIS System Supervisor, explained that it has been an arduous 
task to update Ordinance No. 11-03 from the 2011 version, especially 

addressing of vacant land and street naming workflow improvements.  He 
advised that some changes included changing Division to Department and 
Department to Division because the Board of Supervisors previously changed 

the County’s organizational structure.  He talked about significant changes to 
Section 713 of the Ordinance.  Under this revised section, an address may be 
assigned to vacant, undeveloped property.   

 
Below is an excerpt of the staff report for this item which aptly explains some 

specific reasons for addressing vacant land, as follows:  Addressing vacant land 
has been a significant request area that has been restricted by the previous 
revision of the ordinance. By enabling a vacant land address option, a path 
forward is created. Similarly, the naming of streets has been contentious when 
the constituent petition does not rise above a seventy-five percent (75%) threshold 
creating an iterative process that has no end. This change creates a single 
petition response before advancing to the Board of Supervisors for decision if the 
75% agreement threshold is not met. As an illustration of this problem, there is a 
street naming in El Capitan that has been ongoing since late 2021.  It has had 5 
separate mailing cycles, and a consensus still cannot be reached due either to 
non-response or conflicting suggestions. 
 
Mr. Homan proceeded to review the other changes.  He also addressed changes 

to the fee schedule.  The fee to name an unnamed street has gone from “no 
charge” to $50, and the fee to address vacant land is $200. 
 

Mr. Homan added that the Town of Payson and the City of Globe are their own 
addressing authorities, so this ordinance does not impact those entities.   

 
 
 



Page 6 of 16 

 

Chairman Cline opened the public hearing.  There weren’t any comments, so 
he closed the public hearing and asked for a Board motion. 

 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Christensen, seconded by Supervisor 

Humphrey, the Board unanimously adopted Ordinance No. 2022-06. (A copy 
of the ordinance is attached to these minutes and is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 

 
Item 4 - REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the purchase of eight (8) 
Expeditions (3 from the FY2022 budget which was already approved, and 

5 from the FY2023 budget) with upfitting at the quoted price from the 
dealer when the ordering window opens on August 15, 2022. The expected 
price for the 2023 model is estimated to be $80,000 each which includes 

the upfitting per the Sheriff’s Office Specifications. The vehicles will be 
purchased from San Tan Partners, LLC. State Contract No. CTR059323.  

 
David LaForge, Vehicle & Equipment Maintenance Supervisor, presented this 
item.  The following is an excerpt from the staff report:  Last fiscal year, 3 
Sheriff’s Office patrol vehicles were publicly bid and awarded to McSpadden 
Ford. When the dealer went to place the order with the factory, they were told 
the ordering window had closed and they were not able to place the order. The 
ordering cycle for the Ford Expeditions opens on August 15, 2022, and will close 
when a limited number of vehicles have been ordered. The dealer is not able to 
provide the quote until the ordering window opens on August 15th, therefore, to 
be able to secure the 8 patrol vehicles (3 from the FY2022 budget, which was 
already approved, and 5 from the FY2023 budget) for the Sheriff’s Office, it may 
be necessary to authorize additional funds to cover the cost of the total quote for 
the vehicles. The price for the Expeditions from last year was $73,000 each. The 
expected price for the 2023 model is estimated to be $80,000 each which 
includes the upfitting per the Sheriff’s Office specifications. This request is to 
purchase a total of 8 Ford Expeditions with upfitting at the quoted price from the 
dealer when the ordering window opens on August 15, 2022. 
 
He further advised that these 8 vehicles will replace 8 vehicles in the County’s 

fleet of vehicles which are near or have 200,000 miles and are over 10 years 
old.   

 
Upon motion by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by Vice-Chairman 
Christensen, the Board unanimously approved the purchase of eight (8) Ford 

Expeditions (3 from the FY2022 budget, which was already approved, and 5 
from the FY2023 budget) with upfitting at the quoted price from the dealer 

when the ordering window opens on August 15, 2022. 
 



Page 7 of 16 

 

B.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Funding Agreement No. 
100-23 between Gila County for G.I.L.A. House Inc. Transitional Shelter 

Facility and the Arizona Department of Housing to receive CDBG-CV 
Grant funds in the amount of $650,000 for the period of July 1, 2022, 

through July 31, 2023, for the proposed Transitional Housing Project in 
Gila County.  
 

Malissa Buzan, Community Services Department Director, advised that Gila 
County will be the pass-through agency for this Funding Agreement.   
 

Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Christensen, seconded by Supervisor 
Humphrey, the Board unanimously approved Funding Agreement No. 100-23.  

 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to award Request for Proposals No. 
031422 to Community Bridges, Inc. for Pre-Petition Screening & Court 

Ordered Evaluation Services for the contracted rate amounts of $900 per 
day for bed space, and $300 for two psychological evaluations for 

inpatient court-ordered evaluations, per occurrence for a one-year 
contract term with three additional one-year contract renewal options. 
 

Mary Springer, Finance Department Director, advised that per state statute, it 
is the County’s responsibility to pay for the cost of pre-petition screening and 
court-ordered evaluation.  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is responsible for 

administering the court-ordered evaluation portion of Title 36, Chapter 5, 
Article 4 (A.R.S. § 36-520 et. seq.).  She stated that Community Bridges, Inc. 

was the only bidder and she recommended awarding a contract to that 
company. 
 

Upon motion by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by Vice-Chairman 
Christensen, the Board unanimously awarded a contract (Contract No. 031422) 
to Community Bridges, Inc. to provide the work as outlined in Request for 

Proposals No. 031422. 
 

D.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize Notice of Invitation for 
Sealed Proposals No. 07182022 for Permit Management Software Solution 
for the Community Development Department. 

 
Ms. Springer advised that for the Community Development Department to 

streamline processes, utilize digitized records, and improve overall efficiency 
and customer service, moving to a software permit management solution is in 
the best interest of the County.  The current Trackit system is not flexible and 

does not offer a complete workflow solution that a software solution can 
provide.  

 



Page 8 of 16 

 

Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Christensen, seconded by Supervisor 
Humphrey, the Board unanimously authorized the advertisement of Notice of 

Invitation for Sealed Proposals No. 07182022. 
 

E.  Information/Discussion/Action to award Service Agreement No. 
07132022 to Sunland Asphalt and Construction, Inc. in the amount of 
$262,974.54 for the removal and installation of new asphalt around the 

main grandstand area at the Gila County Fairgrounds. 
 
Ms. Springer stated that Steve Sanders, Public Works Department Director, 

took representatives from Sunland Asphalt and Construction, Inc. to the 
Fairgrounds to view the property and proposed scope of work.  Sunland is 

available to perform the work in the timeframe necessary prior to the Gila 
County Fair in September 2022 to ensure safe walking areas in the main 
grandstand area.   

 
Sunland Asphalt and Construction, Inc.'s contract was competitively bid by the 

City of Buckeye and allows for other public entities to utilize the contract for 
project work.  
 

Vice-Chairman Christensen stated that there have been conversations at 
previous Board of Supervisors’ meetings regarding future events and 
improvements to the Fairgrounds.  He inquired if the proposed work being 

done under this contract might affect those future improvements.  Ms. Springer 
replied that all work being currently done at the Fairgrounds is for planned 

events.  She added that as conversations continue, there may be opportunities 
for additional work as approved by the Board.  Mr. Menlove explained that 
some ARPA (American Rescue Plan Act) will be allocated for this project.  He 

added that Ms. Springer will be presenting the ARPA Allocation Plan to the 
Board in approximately one month.  Chairman Cline asked where this 
company is located.  Ms. Springer replied that the company is in Phoenix and 

works throughout the state.  Chairman Cline inquired if any local contractors 
submitted bids.  Ms. Springer stated that a Call for Bids was not advertised for 

this project because there wouldn’t be enough time to get the work completed 
prior to the start of the Gila County Fair.  
 

Upon motion by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by Vice-Chairman 
Christensen, the Board unanimously awarded Service Agreement No. 

07132022 to Sunland Asphalt and Construction, Inc. as presented. 
 
F.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 1 to State 

Contract No. CTR050894 with Jani-Serv to extend the term of the 
contract for an additional year to June 30, 2023; increases the contract 
amount by $2,286.40 for a not to exceed contract amount of 

$206,503.15; and adds the clause: Certification of No Forced Labor to the 
contract. 



Page 9 of 16 

 

 
Ms. Springer presented this item.  On August 3, 2021, the Board of 

Supervisors approved State Contract No. CTR050894 with Jani-Serv, Inc., 
whereby Jani-Serv provided janitorial services for northern and southern Gila 

County.  The contract provides a renewal option for up to three additional one-
year periods. The original contract was executed for a not to exceed without 
written authorization amount of $204,216.73. 

 
Supervisor Humphrey inquired as to the last time this contract was advertised 
for bids.  Ms. Springer could not recall the date; however, she stated that next 

year she could advertise a request for proposals should the Board so choose. 
Supervisor Humphrey acknowledged that, at times, there is only one bidder, 

but he would like to give other companies an opportunity to bid.  Chairman 
Cline agreed with Supervisor Humphrey’s recommendation to go out for bid 
next year. 

 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Christensen, seconded by Supervisor 

Humphrey, the Board unanimously approved Amendment No. 1 to State 
Contract No. CTR050894 with Jani-Serv, Inc. as presented. 
 

G.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize advertisement for 
Request for Proposals No. 07122022 On-call Road Maintenance and 
Heavy Equipment Services. 

 
An excerpt of the staff report for this item aptly explains the reason for this 

request as presented by Ms. Springer, as follows:  Gila County has experienced 
catastrophic wildfire destruction and post-fire flood damage to roadways, 
drainage areas, water courses, and property within the county. In the past, each 
year, Gila County has had to locate and hire contractors to assist with clean-up 
efforts caused by wildfire and post-wildfire flooding. In anticipation of continued 
support needed with issues caused by the Woodbury, Bush, Telegraph, and 
Mescal fires and post-fire flooding, the County is issuing a Requests for 
Proposals (RFP) seeking proposals from qualified, licensed firms (Contractors) 
interested in providing on-call road maintenance and heavy equipment services. 
Many roadways and low water crossings were destroyed due to post-wildfire 
flooding, and it is critical to have on-call services to be able to open access for 
residents to travel safely. The solicitation intends to review proposals submitted 
by qualified contractors and award contracts to four contractors based on 
qualifications, experience, geographic areas served, and pricing. Soliciting for the 
on-call service prior to an emergency is in the best interest of Gila County to be 
prepared when emergency situations arise. 
 
Ms. Springer advised that hopefully no more than 5 contracts will be awarded 

by the Board of Supervisors. Supervisor Humphrey posed the question if 10 
contractors bid on this contract.  Ms. Springer reiterated that the County is 
looking to only award up to 5 contracts, so it would be a competitive process 



Page 10 of 16 

 

based on the hourly rate and the geographical area that the company could 
service.  Chairman Cline inquired if the contractors would be able to provide 

services for the entire County.  Ms. Springer replied that is the reason for 
awarding up to 5 contracts in hopes that the entire County would be covered.  

 
Supervisor Humphrey made a motion to authorize the advertisement of 
Request for Proposals No. 07122022, which was seconded by Vice-Chairman 

Christensen.  The motion passed with a 2 to 1 vote with Supervisor Humphrey 
voting against the motion. 
 

H.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the amended Statement of 
Understanding from Atlas Technical Consultant and accept the 

clarification to the contract for the Copper Corridor Blight Busters 
Brownfields Coalition Assessment Grant Consultant for a not-to-exceed 
amount of $480,000 for a period of three years. 

 
Ms. Springer advised that this is an amendment to the contract to reduce the 

amount of the contract from a not to exceed amount of $600,000 to $480,000.   
 
Atlas previously stated verbally that it would work with the County to align the 

reduced budget with an effective and beneficial outcome. The technical tasks 
defined within the original scope will remain the same. The difference will be 
the number of properties and to what extent each will be assessed. Atlas stated 

it would communicate frequently with the County to determine current 
priorities and how best to deploy its technical efforts. The $480,000 is a time 

and material not-to-exceed budget. Atlas agreed and wrote up a Statement of 
Understanding to be approved by the Board of Supervisors.  Atlas Technical 
Consultants will fulfill the technical tasks as laid out in the Scope of Work in 

the Copper Corridor Blight Busters Brownfields Coalition Assessment contract. 
As written in the Statement of Understanding dated June 21, 2022, the County 
and Atlas will work together to align the budget with the number of petroleum 

and hazardous substance assessments. This contract is for a period of three 
years, and it is not to exceed the amount of $480,000, exclusive of pre-

approved expenses without the prior written approval of the Board of 
Supervisors. 
 

Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Christensen, seconded by Supervisor 
Humphrey, the Board unanimously approved the amended Statement of 

Understanding from Atlas Technical Consultant and accept the clarification to 
the contract for the Copper Corridor Blight Busters Brownfields Coalition 
Assessment Grant Consultant as presented. 

 
I.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Treasurer's Office to 
abate the taxes, interest, and fees on 17 properties, and authorize the 

Chairman's signature on each of the related Certificates of Removal and 
Abatement of Tax and Certificates of Clearance. 



Page 11 of 16 

 

 
Monica Wohlforth, Gila County Treasurer, read aloud Arizona Revised Statute 

§42-19118: Clearing uncollectible tax.  She stated that her request is to have 
these 17 properties deactivated from the tax rolls.  She added that the required 

affidavits for each of the properties are attached to the agenda item.  
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Humphrey, Seconded by Vice-Chairman 

Christensen, the Board unanimously authorized the Treasurer's Office to abate 
the taxes, interest, and fees on 17 properties and authorized the Chairman's 
signature on each of the related Certificates of Removal and Abatement of Tax 

and Certificates of Clearance. 
 

J.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of 
Request for Proposals No. 062222 - Security Service for Globe 
Courthouse, Payson Courthouse, and Tommie Cline Martin Complex.  

 
Khristina Knox, Executive Administrative Assistant, advised that Gila County 

currently has a security contract with CBI Security which expires on July 9, 
2022. Gila County has had the contract since 2018 and it is up for renewal and 
subject to the County’s bid process. The Globe and Payson Courthouses, as 

well as the Tommie Martin Cline Complex in Payson, require security at the 
entrances. This bid will ask for proposals to support two armed guards at 
primary locations and an option to support a third location on a case-by-case 

requirement. 
 

Supervisor Humphrey asked if providing security at the Globe Courthouse and 
the Payson Courthouse was a state requirement to which Ms. Knox affirmed 
that was correct.  Vice-Chairman Christensen commented that he does not see 

a need to have security daily at the County’s Tommie Cline Martin Complex.  
Ms. Knox replied that, to her understanding, the Tommie Cline Martin Complex 
would only be used by the Courts if there was an overflow from jury trials, so it 

was decided to have security also at that Complex.  Vice-Chairman Christensen 
reiterated that he is agreeable to having security at the Complex when needed, 

but not all the time.  Chairman Cline inquired if other elected officials who 
utilize the Complex have concerns for security.  Ms. Knox replied that she has 
not spoken with anyone except for some people who work for the Courts.  

Jonathan Bearup, Superior Court Administrator, stated that when he spoke 
with Joseph Dickison, Facilities and Land Management Department Director, it 

was about providing security at the Complex only for jury trial sessions.  Mr. 
Menlove agreed with Vice-Chairman Christensen that security for the Complex 
should be on an as-needed basis, so he recommended that language be 

included in Request for Proposals No. 062222.  Chairman Cline and Supervisor 
Humphrey agreed with Mr. Menlove’s suggestion.   
 

Vice-Chairman Christensen made a motion to authorize the advertisement of 
Request for Proposals (RFP) No. 062222 with the language being amended in 



Page 12 of 16 

 

the RFP regarding security at the Tommie Cline Martin Complex as discussed, 
which was seconded by Supervisor Humphrey.  The motion passed with a 

unanimous vote of the Board. 
 

K.  Information/Discussion/Action to award Invitation for Bids No. 
052422 to Perkins Cinders, Inc. in the amount of $9.95 per ton.  
 

Ms. Springer advised that 2 bids were submitted in response to Invitation for 
Bids No. 052422.  Both bidders, Perkins Cinders, Inc. and Dixon Rock and 
Materials, submitted a quote of $9.95 per ton.  Representatives from Perkins 

Cinders, Inc. and Dixon Rock and Materials appeared in person at Gila County 
for a coin toss to determine the company that would be awarded the contract.  

Perkins Cinders, Inc. won the coin toss, so the staff is recommending awarding 
a contract to that company.  
 

Mr. Menlove asked the location of both companies.  Ms. Springer replied that 
Perkins Cinders, Inc. is in Navajo County and Dixon Rock and Materials is in 

Gila County.  Mr. Menlove advised that there is a difference in the price that 
the County will pay for the product because the County pays sales tax on it.  
He suggested that the Board table this matter until he could investigate the 

matter.  Chairman Cline agreed with Mr. Menlove’s suggestion.   
 
Supervisor Humphrey made a motion to table this agenda item to a future 

Board meeting.  Vice-Chairman Christensen asked Jessica Scibelli, Senior Civil 
Deputy County Attorney, her opinion considering both company 

representatives agreed to the coin toss.  Ms. Scibelli replied that if the Board 
chose to table this item, that would allow her time to look further into the 
matter.  Vice-Chairman Christensen seconded the motion.  There was further 

discussion between Chairman Cline and Mr. Menlove.  Chairman Cline asked 
for the motion again.  Supervisor Humphrey restated his motion to table this 
item to a future Board meeting, which was seconded by Vice-Chairman 

Christensen.  The motion passed with a unanimous vote of the Board.   
 

L.  Information/Discussion/Action to acknowledge the resignation of 
Dorothy Little, Payson Justice of the Peace, effective September 30, 
2022; consider accepting nominations from Board members or other 

County officials or accept letters of interest or applications for the 
position; and appoint a candidate to fill the unexpired term of Dorothy 

Little through December 31, 2022.  
 
Mr. Bearup advised that Judge Dorothy Little submitted her letter of 

resignation to the Board of Supervisors to be effective September 30, 2022.  Mr. 
Bearup stated, “Judge Little, in her resignation letter, recommended the 
appointment of Donald Garvin.  He is qualified, familiar with the courts, and 

the recommendation is supported by the Superior Court…”  Mr. Bearup further 
advised that Mr. Garvin is running unopposed for this elected office.  



Page 13 of 16 

 

 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Christensen, seconded by Supervisor 

Humphrey, the Board unanimously appointed Donald Garvin as Payson 
Justice of the Peace effective September 30, 2022, through December 31, 2022. 

 
M.  Information/Discussion/Action to consider a sealed bid for the 
purchase of Assessor's tax parcel number 202-04-003L and, if accepted, 

authorize the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed. 
 
Melissa Henderson, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board, presented this item.  She 

advised that on October 4, 2021, the Gila County Treasurer Deeded Assessor’s 
tax parcel number 202-04-003L to the State of Arizona c/o Board of 

Supervisors because the previous owner did not pay taxes on the subject 
property for 7 consecutive years. This parcel was determined to be a parcel that 
had been left off a land purchase belonging to Koby and Cassandra Fewell and 

was not transferred during the purchase of the property. It was placed in a 
moratorium during the Board of Supervisors’ online auction that was held by 

Public Surplus on March 28, 2022, to April 11, 2022.  Mr. and Mrs. Fewell own 
adjoining parcel number parcel number 202-04-003Q and the subject property 
contains the Fewell’s septic tank.  The total lien amount on this parcel is 

$596.63. 
 
Chairman Cline asked Ms. Henderson to open and read aloud the sealed bid.  

Ms. Henderson advised that Koby and Cassandra Fewell submitted a bid in the 
amount of $50 for the purchase of the subject property.   

 
Upon motion by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by Vice-Chairman 
Christensen, the Board unanimously accepted a bid from Koby and Cassandra 

Fewell in the amount of $50 for the purchase of Assessor’s tax parcel number 
202-04-003L. 
 

N.  Information/Discussion/Action to consider a sealed bid for the 
purchase of Assessor's tax parcel number 101-02-012X and, if accepted, 

authorize the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed. 
 
Ms. Henderson presented this item.  She advised that on October 4, 2021, the 

Gila County Treasurer Deeded Assessor’s tax parcel number 101-02-012X to 
the State of Arizona c/o Board of Supervisors because the previous owner did 

not pay taxes on the subject property for 7 consecutive years. This parcel was 
determined to split from the owner's property due to a road easement that 
never occurred by a lot line adjustment.  The owner of the property is 

requesting that it be reincorporated back into the original parcel.  It was placed 
in a moratorium during the Board of Supervisors’ online auction that was held 
by Public Surplus on March 28, 2022, to April 11, 2022.  This property is 

located next to Assessor's tax parcel numbers 101-02-012W and 101-02-
012Y which are owned by John Chris Lorenzen.  The total lien amount on this 



Page 14 of 16 

 

parcel is $504.75. 
 

Chairman Cline asked Ms. Henderson to open and read aloud the sealed bid.  
Ms. Henderson advised that John Chris Lorenzen submitted a bid in the 

amount of $10 for the purchase of the subject property. 
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Christensen, seconded by Supervisor 

Humphrey, the Board unanimously accepted a bid from John Chris Lorenzen 
in the amount of $10 for the purchase of Assessor’s tax parcel number 101-02-
012X. 

 
Chairman Cline addressed item 5.  He advised that there was one item that 

was requested to be tabled (at the request of the County Attorney’s Office).  
Chairman Cline moved item 5B to the Regular Agenda and asked for a motion.  
 

B.  Approval for the Board Chairman to electronically sign Arizona 
Criminal Justice Commission (ACJC) Victims' Rights Program Award 

Agreement, FY2023 No. VC-2023-004 in the amount of $55,633 to cover 
the existing salary and employee-related expenses for a full-time advocate 
for the period July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2023.  

 
Upon motion by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by Vice-Chairman 
Christensen, the Board unanimously voted to table item 5B to a future agenda. 

 
Chairman Cline asked for a motion on Consent Agenda items 5A through 5K 

except for 5B. 
 
5.  CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS: (Any matter on the Consent 

Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  

 
A.  Approval of the Public Health Applied Practice Experience Agreement 

between Midwestern University and the Gila County Health and 
Emergency Management Department to Support the Workforce 
Development Initiative.   

 
B.  Approval for the Board Chairman to electronically sign Arizona 

Criminal Justice Commission (ACJC) Victims' Rights Program Award 
Agreement, FY2023 No. VC-2023-004 in the amount of $55,633 to cover 
the existing salary and employee-related expenses for a full-time advocate 

for the period July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2023. This item was moved 
to the Regular Agenda for a separate Board action (see above). 
 

C.  Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by 
Rim Country Friends of Tonto Natural Bridge State Park to serve liquor at 



Page 15 of 16 

 

the Lodge at Tonto Natural Bridge State Park located 10 miles North of 
Payson, Az for a special event to be held on September 17, 2022.  

 
D.  Approval of a Special Event Liquor License Application submitted by 

the Isabelle Hunt Memorial Public Library to serve liquor at 6124 W. 
Randall Place in Pine for a special event to be held on October 15, 2022.  
 

E.  Approval of the Board of Supervisors' June 21, 2022, and June 28, 
2022, meeting minutes.  
 

F.  Acknowledgment of the June 2022 monthly activity report and the 
Fiscal year report for 2022 submitted by the Globe Regional Constable's 

Office.  
 
G.  Acknowledgment of the June 2022 monthly activity report and the 

Fiscal year report for 2022 submitted by the Payson Regional Constable's 
Office.  

 
H.  Acknowledgment of the June 2022 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.  

 
I.  Acknowledgment of the June 2022 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.  

 
J.  Acknowledgment of the June 2022 monthly activity report submitted 

by the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.  
 
K.  Acknowledgment of the June 2022 monthly activity report submitted 

by the Recorder's Office.  
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Christensen, seconded by Supervisor 

Humphrey, the Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda items 5A 
through 5K except for item 5B. 

 
Item 6 - CALL TO THE PUBLIC:   A call to the public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 

issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 

Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 

addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date.  

There were no comments from the public. 



Page 16 of 16 

 

 
Item 7 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-

431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 

on the information presented.  
 
Each Supervisor provided a summary of current events.   

 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Cline adjourned the meeting at 12:01 p.m.  

 
APPROVED: 

 
_____________________________________ 
Woody Cline, Chairman 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 

James Menlove, Clerk of the Board 



Page 1 of 22 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  August 15, 2022 

 
WOODY CLINE       JAMES MENLOVE 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 

 
STEVE CHRISTENSEN       By: Marian Sheppard 
Vice-Chairman 

                                                             
TIM R. HUMPHREY      Gila County Courthouse 

Member         Globe, Arizona                        
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

PRESENT:  Woody Cline, Chairman; Steve Christensen, Vice-Chairman; and 
Tim R. Humphrey, Member (via phone) 

 
STAFF PRESENT:  W. James Menlove, County Manager and Clerk of the Board; 
Jessica Scibelli, Senior Civil Deputy County Attorney; and Melissa Henderson, 

Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board 
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – INVOCATION 

 
Chairman Cline called the Regular Meeting to order at 10:01 a.m. this date in 

the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room. Steve Christensen led the Pledge of 
Allegiance and James Menlove delivered the invocation.  Chairman Cline asked 
for a moment of silence in memory of David Shaw, an employee of Gila County 

who recently passed away. 
 
Item 2 – PRESENTATIONS: 

 
A.  Presentation by the Office of the Arizona Auditor General of the 

FY2021 Financial and Single Audit results and findings.   
 
Stephanie Gerber, Director of the Financial Audit Division, and Don Bohart, 

Audit Manager of the Financial Audit Division, presented information to the 
Board regarding the County’s FY 2021 Financial and Single Audit results and 

findings.   Ms. Gerber advised that Mr. Bohart is the Audit Manager for Gila 
County’s audits.  She provided some history and purpose of the Arizona 
Auditor General’s Office and added that Office reports directly to the Joint 

Legislative Audit Committee (JLAC).  Gila County’s FY 2021 financial statement 
and federal compliance audits were completed, and reports were issued in May 
2022, and July 2002, respectively.  She proceeded to briefly explain the 

requirements that are followed when audits are conducted by the Auditor 
General’s Office.   



Page 2 of 22 

 

 
Mr. Bohart reviewed a summary of the County’s FY 2021 audit findings and 

the related correction measures that should be taken, as follows: 
 

2021-01 – Economic Development Awards  
The County awarded $145,612 in economic development monies to various 
organizations without requiring documentation showing the money was used to 

benefit the public.  
 
The County should strengthen its policies/procedures to: 

• Include detailed recipient guidelines and requirements  

• Ensure committee evaluation and Board approval prior to award  

• Require recipients to report and certify how monies were spent 

• Require recipients to return misspent or unspent monies 
 

2021-02 – Purchasing Cards 
The County did not ensure $48,598 of public monies spent with purchasing 

cards were for authorized County purposes. 
 
The County should:  

• Update its policies and procedures over purchasing cards  

• Require proper approval of purchases and travel prior to paying for them  

• Monitor compliance with these updated policies  

• Train cardholders and approvers on policies and procedures 
 

2021-03 – Financial Statement Preparation  
The County’s financial statements contained misstatements and 
misclassifications, causing delays in issuance. 

 
The County should:  

• Develop and implement policies and procedures to reconcile financial 
statements to its subsystems, prepare year-end adjustments to the 

financial statements, and review draft financial statements in detail  

• Train staff on obtaining financial information to complete supporting 
schedules and meet statutory deadlines 

• Require management to thoroughly review and correct financial 
statements prior to providing them for audit 

 
2021-04 – Capital Asset Inventory 

The County lacked inventorying and recordkeeping of nearly $14.1 million of 
capital assets. 
 

The County should:  

• Perform a complete inventory of capital assets and reconcile the results 
to its records  



Page 3 of 22 

 

• Develop policies and procedures and train staff on performing the 
physical inventory and reconciling the results to its records 

 
2021-05 – County IT Risk Assessment  

The County’s process for managing and documenting IT risks was insufficient. 
 

The County should:  

• Allocate resources to implement critical controls 

• Involve all applicable departments in the risk assessment process 

• Perform an annual entity-wide IT risk assessment 

• Evaluate and manage the risks of holding sensitive information 
 

2021-06 – IT Controls  
The County’s controls over its IT systems and data were not sufficient. 

 
The County should:  

• Develop comprehensive written IT policies and procedures  

• Restrict access to its IT systems  

• Manage system configuration and changes  

• Secure systems and data 
 
At the conclusion of the presentation, the Supervisors, County Manager, and 

Finance Director made some comments.   
 
Vice-Chairman Christensen thanked Ms. Gerber and Mr. Bohart for the 

presentation.  He appreciated their comments that the County is making 
progress, and he complimented the efforts taken by staff thus far to improve 

processes.  Vice-Chairman Christensen asked if the County violated the gift 
clause in any way with regards to economic development awards.  Both Ms. 
Gerber and Mr. Bohart replied that the County didn’t receive any findings 

regarding violating the gift clause in this audit.   
 

Chairman Cline commented that when he took office 5 years ago, the County 
was 4-5 years behind in its audits.  He is proud that County staff have done a 
good job in bringing the audits current and making improvements.  He added 

that there will always be room for improvement. 
 
James Menlove, County Manager, advised that granting economic development 

awards have stopped since June 2022 until a new set of policies are developed 
and adopted by the Board.  He reviewed the processes in place regarding 

purchasing cards.  He acknowledged that capital asset inventory is a problem.  
An outside firm has been hired to work with staff to develop an improved 
process.  Mary Springer, Finance Department Director, added that staff is now 

reconciling the physical inventory of capital assets to the records for capital 
asset inventory.  She stated that in prior years some employees were lax in 



Page 4 of 22 

 

preparing disposal paperwork, so there may be assets on the books that were 
not properly disposed of.  She advised that process is being improved to correct 

those problems. 
 

Mr. Menlove asked about the deadline for issuing the FY 2022 financial 
statement audit and the single audit.  Mr. Bohart replied that the Auditor 
General’s Office needs to issue them by March 31, 2023.  Regarding dates that 

information must be submitted by the County to the Auditor General’s Office 
for the Auditor General’s Office to meet the March 31st deadline, Mr. Bohart 
stated that he would have to refer to his calendar.  Ms. Springer told Mr. 

Menlove that she has the list of the dates, which she would provide to him 
later.  Ms. Springer added that the County is working with the consultant to 

ensure the documents are submitted on time.  She stated that County 
computer-generated reports were previously sent directly to the Auditor 
General’s Office, whereas now County staff first reviews the reports to ensure 

all required data is contained in them.  Mr. Menlove addressed the IT findings.  
He stated that Gila County has invested a lot of money towards improving IT 

security, etc. and the County has been recognized as a model for security by 
the Arizona Counties Insurance Pool.  He added that it is an area that is closely 
monitored. 

 
On behalf of the Board, Chairman Cline thanked Ms. Gerber and Mr. Bohart 
for the presentation. 

 
Item 3 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  

 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to set primary and secondary property 
tax rates for FY 2022-2023 for all taxing jurisdictions within Gila County 

and convey tax rates for all jurisdictions to the County Treasurer; and 
adopt Resolution No. 22-08-02 providing for the collection of taxes for all 
jurisdictions by the County Treasurer for FY 2022-2023. 

 
Ms. Springer advised that the third Monday in August is the last day per 

statute for the Board of Supervisors to set the primary and secondary property 
tax rates for 2022 for all taxing jurisdictions within Gila County and convey tax 
rates for all taxing jurisdictions to the County Treasurer. By adopting 

Resolution No. 22-08-02, it provides for the collection of taxes for all 
jurisdictions by the County Treasurer for FY 2022-2023. 

 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Christensen, seconded by Supervisor 
Humphrey, the Board unanimously set primary and secondary property tax 

rates for FY 2022-2023 for all taxing jurisdictions within Gila County and 
conveyed tax rates for all jurisdictions to the County Treasurer; and adopted 
Resolution No. 22-08-02.  (A copy of the resolution is attached to these 

minutes and is permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 



Page 5 of 22 

 

B.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 3 to 
Contract 040319-Food & Laundry Service for the Gila County Detention 

Center with Trinity Services which extends the term of the contract to 
August 5, 2023; and increases the contract by $40,117 for a new total 

contract amount not to exceed $404,817.  
 
Dennis Newman, Sheriff’s Office Detention Bureau Commander, advised that 

Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 040319 extends the term of the contract for 
an additional year and it increases the contract amount by $40,117 for a new 
total contract amount not to exceed $404,817 due to an 11% increase in the 

Consumer Price Index and an increase on in the wage costs.   
 

Chairman Cline inquired if Trinity Services is the only provider of these 
services.  Commander Newman replied that there are other companies that 
provide the services.  He added that the County will advertise an Invitation for 

Bids next year to award a new contract. 
 

Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Christensen, seconded by Supervisor 
Humphrey, the Board unanimously approved Amendment No. 3 to Contract 
040319 as presented. 

 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to canvass the election results 
contained in the Official Canvass of the Primary Election held on August 

2, 2022, in Gila County, Arizona, and declare the results official. 
 

Eric Mariscal, Elections Department Director, advised that Gila County’s voter 
turnout was 47.17%, which was the second highest turnout in the state for 
this election.  He pointed out that the summary report contains the election 

results at the federal, state, county, and jurisdictional levels, and he named the 
other reports.  Mr. Mariscal commented that 12,768 ballots were submitted by 
mail of which 31 were rejected for various reasons, for a total tabulation of 

12,737.   
 

Chairman Cline asked about the use of ballot drop boxes.  Mr. Mariscal replied 
that there was significant use of them, especially the one at the County’s 
Tommie Cline Martin Complex.  He estimated that between 1,800 to 2,000 

voters used the drop boxes.  
 

Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Christensen, seconded by Supervisor 
Humphrey, the Board unanimously canvassed the election results contained in 
the Official Canvass of the Primary Election held on August 2, 2022, in Gila 

County, Arizona, and declared the results official. 
 
D.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 1 to 

Contract No. 052421-Sub-Grantee for COVID-19 School Wraparound 
Support Services to extend the term of the contract for one additional 



Page 6 of 22 

 

year, to May 31, 2023; decrease the original contract amount by 
$378,927 for an amended contract amount of $450,000; and adds to the 

contract language: Certification of No Forced Labor.  
 

Michael O’Driscoll, Health and Emergency Management Department Director, 
advised that during the COVID-19 pandemic funding was provided to provide 
school wraparound support services.  He stated that this funding allowed the 

County Health Division staff to work with the schools, teachers, and children 
who test positive for COVID.  In doing so, groceries, laundry, housing costs 
recovered, etc. were provided to children with COVID-19 to keep them away 

from other children at school and separate them from their families, if needed.  
He added that these services have been well-received. 

 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Christensen, seconded by Supervisor 
Humphrey, the Board unanimously approved Amendment No. 1 to 

Contract No. 052421 as presented. 
 

E.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 020-2 to 
Contract No. 700518523 with Arizona Public Service Company (APS) for 
Energy Wise Low-Income Weatherization Program Implementation to 

allocate an amount not to exceed $200,000 for the 2022 calendar year. 
 
Malissa Buzan, Community Services Department Director, advised that this 

amendment provides an additional $100,000 to the contract to be spent 
weatherizing limited-income APS customers in Gila County. 

 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Christensen, seconded by Supervisor 
Humphrey, the Board unanimously approved Amendment No. 020-2 to 

Contract No. 700518523 as presented. 
 
F.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 6 to an 

Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. DI20-002263) between the 
Arizona Department of Economic Security and the Gila County 

Community Services Department that includes the total value of the 
Itemized Service Budget to $564,082 for the period of July 1, 2022, 
through June 30, 2023, for the continued provision of Community Action 

Program services.  
 

Ms. Buzan presented this item.  The total value of the budget is $564,082 as 
detailed in the itemized services budget. The amount includes estimated 
carryover funding from State Fiscal Year 2022 in the amount of $39,000. 

 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Christensen, seconded by Supervisor 
Humphrey, the Board unanimously approved Amendment No. 6 to an 

Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. DI20-002263) as presented. 
 



Page 7 of 22 

 

G.  Information/Discussion/Action to acknowledge receipt of the Gila 
County Homeless Task Force Strategic Plan 2023-2026 as submitted by 

the Community Services Department Director and as required by the 
Arizona Department of Housing. 

 
Ms. Buzan advised that the Gila County Homeless Task Force Strategic Plan 
2023-2026 will allow the Homeless Task Force to continue to be eligible for 

Balance of State Continuum of Care funding and move forward with the goals 
to reduce homelessness in Gila County. Per requirements of the Arizona 
Department of Housing, the Board of Supervisors needed to acknowledge 

receipt of this Strategic Plan.  She further advised that two new notices of 
funding availability have been received, which required the Strategic Plan to be 

updated.  That has been done so it was presented to the Board sooner than 
scheduled.  She advised that a new program administrator was hired.  Fifty-
two people, who are homeless or near homeless, are on the list and in the 

state’s database waiting to be helped with housing.  In coordination with 
Community Bridges, Inc., Gila County’s Community Action Program, and other 

programs, housing has been provided to 18 homeless or near homeless in Gila 
County (some are individuals, and some are individuals with families).   
 

Chairman Cline inquired about providing housing in the Payson area.  Ms. 
Buzan replied that not many people are housed in Payson because the rent is 
very high. 

 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Christensen, seconded by Supervisor 

Humphrey, the Board unanimously acknowledged receipt of the Gila County 
Homeless Task Force Strategic Plan 2023-2026 as presented. 
 

H.  Information/Discussion/Action to declare a portion of Quail Drive not 
necessary for public use and direct staff to begin the process to abandon a 
portion of Quail Drive as shown on Sportsmen’s Haven (replatted) Official 

Map No. 311, Gila County Records.  
 

Steve Sanders, Public Works Department Director, advised that this road is in 
Roosevelt Estates and it dead ends at the U.S. Forest Service (USFS) boundary.  
He stated, “The Forest Service was contacted, and they hope it happens.  They 

said it will slow down unauthorized access out into the forest in Pinto Creek.” 
 

Supervisor Humphrey thanked Mr. Sanders for his efforts regarding this road.  
He stated that people are driving their recreational vehicles over the dikes on 
that road to continue to Pinto Creek.  With so much traffic, he said if the creek 

rose, that would be a place the creek would be breached.   
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Christensen, seconded by Supervisor 

Humphrey, the Board unanimously declared a portion of Quail Drive not 



Page 8 of 22 

 

necessary for public use and directed staff to begin the process to abandon the 
portion of Quail Drive as presented.  

 
I.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 22-08-03 

which authorizes the execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement 
No. 21-0008387-I with the Arizona Department of Transportation for the 
Calle De Loma Rail-Highway Safety Improvements at no cost to Gila 

County.  
 
Mr. Sanders presented this item.  In 2010, Calle De Loma railway crossing was 

on one of the top lists for improvement. When Arizona Department of 
Transportation (ADOT) personnel came to visit all railway sights in Gila 

County, it was determined that the Bixby railway crossing would take 
precedence. Since then, federal funding has come about, and now ADOT, a 
federal-aid package, and Arizona Eastern Railroad will fund this improvement 

project. Gila County will not have to pay unless changes are made to benefit 
the County. 

 
The improvements will be to raise the tracks, eliminate one track, and install a 
concrete surface. Installation of automatic warning signals, automatic gate 

arms, pavement markings, and other railings crossing-related appurtenance 
will be done during this project. After completion of the Calle De Loma crossing 
project, the County will continue to maintain the roadway and the railroad will 

continue to maintain the crossing. 
 

Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Christensen, seconded by Supervisor 
Humphrey, the Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 22-08-03.  (A copy 
of the resolution is attached to these minutes and is permanently on file 

in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
J.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Collection Agreement No. 

072522 with the Arizona Game and Fish Department for a not to exceed 
the amount of $230,105 to provide environmental monitoring for 325 

days per Term of Agreement during the construction of the Tonto Creek 
Bridge.  
 

Mr. Sanders presented this item.  The U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service approved 
the updated Environmental Assessment (EA) for the Tonto Creek Bridge 

Project. One of the requirements is that Gila County is responsible for hiring a 
biologist; construction may not commence without a biologist on site. Mr. 
Sanders added that while looking for qualified/certified biologists to employ for 

monitoring and reporting purposes, it was found that very few had the federal 
license needed to monitor the Northern Mexican Garter snake. Those that 
County staff spoke with who have the federal license were not interested in 

committing to the length of time needed for the bridge to be built.  The Arizona 



Page 9 of 22 

 

Game and Fish Department has qualified/certified staff and were receptive to 
an agreement to provide a monitor for the project. 

 
Vice-Chairman Christensen inquired if this funding was budgeted as part of 

the BUILD grant match requirement.  Mr. Sanders replied that hiring a 
biologist was included as a line item in this year’s budget; however, he added 
that there is not enough money to cover all additional items that are required.  

The County recently received notification last week that the Federal Highway 
Administration just added $250,000 to the BUILD funds for the project.  
 

Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Christensen, seconded by Supervisor 
Humphrey, the Board unanimously approved Collection Agreement No. 072522 

as presented. 
 
K.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 1 to 

Contract No. 052022 with Stephen B. Smith for Solid Waste Management 
Services, and an additional cost of $20,875 for a total contract amount of 

$90,875. 
 
Mr. Sanders advised that this contract amendment allows the County to retain 

Mr. Smith’s services until year-end.  He will continue providing monitoring 
services at the Russell Gulch Landfill and Buckhead Mesa Landfill in addition 
to handling the immediate certifications and reporting to the Arizona 

Department of Environmental Quality of the two landfills. 
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Christensen, seconded by Supervisor 
Humphrey, the Board unanimously approved Amendment No. 1 to Contract 
No. 052022 as presented. 

 
L.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 22-08-04 
which authorizes the execution of the budgeted transfer of $970,055 from 

the Transportation Excise Tax and Gila County General Fund to the Tonto 
Creek Bridge Project Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) 

Participant Application from the Office of the State Treasurer of Arizona 
escrow account.  
 

Mr. Sanders presented this item.  Gila County received $21,095,564 in BUILD 
funds and contributed $2,285,000 in local funds for a total amount of 

$23,380,564.  There are sufficient funds to award the project; however, there 
are additional costs outside of the construction associated with the project. 
Specifically, construction engineering in the amount of $2,555,000 and 

construction contingencies in the amount of $1,054,747. These amounts are 
estimates and the actual amount may be more or less when construction is 
complete.  This leaves a shortage of funds in the amount of $970,055 which is 

the responsibility of Gila County.   
 



Page 10 of 22 

 

Gila County raised concerns to the Arizona Department of Transportation 
(ADOT) that since the actual cost is unknown and ADOT is requiring the full 

amount up front, the County should be able to receive the interest these funds 
generate and ADOT has agreed to that request. A Local Government Investment 

Pool escrow account will be set up with the Arizona State Treasurer and the 
funds will be deposited into that account. ADOT will draw on the funds as 
needed and provide Gila County with a monthly accounting of the funds.   

 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Christensen, seconded by Supervisor 
Humphrey, the Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 22-08-04.  (A copy 

of the resolution is attached to these minutes and is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 

 
M.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the use of Cooperative 
Agreements Sourcewell Contract #032119-CAT and Contract #062320-

CAT for heavy equipment purchases, related accessories, attachments, 
parts, supplies, and rentals for the agreement term with the Board of 

Supervisors using Caterpillar, Empire Machinery and Empire Southwest 
LLC from September 7, 2022, to September 6, 2023, with a not to exceed 
amount of $600,000 annually. 

 
Mr. Sanders advised that by using the Sourcewell contract, the County has 
saved up to 30% on some purchases from Caterpillar, Empire Machinery, and 

Empire Southwest, LLC.     
 

Chairman Cline asked if the contract not to exceed amount of $600,000 has 
been in place for the past few years.  Mr. Sanders replied that this is the third 
time the yearly contract has been at a not to exceed amount of $600,000. 

 
Vice-Chairman Christensen made a motion to approve the use of Cooperative 
Agreements Sourcewell Contract #032119-CAT and Contract #062320-CAT for 

heavy equipment purchases, related accessories, attachments, parts, supplies, 
and rentals for the agreement term with the Board of Supervisors using 

Caterpillar, Empire Machinery and Empire Southwest LLC from September 7, 
2022, to September 6, 2023, with a not to exceed amount of $600,000 annually 
at 11:29 a.m.  When Chairman Cline asked for a second on the motion, it was 

discovered that Supervisor Humphrey had dropped from the phone call.  
Chairman Cline seconded the motion which was approved by the Board. 

 
N.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Economic Development 
Grant to the Payson Rodeo Committee, Inc. in the amount of $15,000 

that the Board has determined to be for the benefit of the public.  
 
Ms. Springer advised that the Payson Rodeo Committee, Inc. requested 

$15,000 of County economic development funds.  She added that this 



Page 11 of 22 

 

allocation has been included in this year’s budget under the line item for 
economic development grants.   

 
NOTE:  Supervisor Humphrey resumed phone connection to the meeting at 

11:30 a.m. 
 
Ms. Springer advised that the agreement has been signed by the president of 

the Rodeo Committee.  She added that the statutory requirement regarding the 
gift clause has been addressed as there is a direct benefit to the public.  The 
Rodeo Committee has provided a listing to Gila County of the various radio 

stations and other advertising that will be done regarding Gila County jobs.  
She stated, “We feel that direct benefit is sufficient to move forward with the 

agreement, and we ask the Board to approve the agreement…”   
 
Vice-Chairman Christensen expressed his appreciation for the Board of 

Supervisors’ continued support of this rodeo. 
 

Vice-Chairman Christensen made a motion to approve the economic 
development grant (Agreement No. 07302022) with the Payson Rodeo 
Committee in the amount of $15,000.  Jessica Scibelli, Senior Civil Deputy 

County Attorney, asked Vice-Chairman Christensen to add “for the benefit of 
the public” to his motion.  He restated the motion with the added language as 
stated by Ms. Scibelli.  When Chairman Cline asked for a second on the 

motion, it was discovered that Supervisor Humphrey was disconnected from 
the phone call.  Chairman Cline seconded the motion which was approved by 

the Board. 
 
NOTE:  Supervisor Humphrey was unable to connect to the meeting for the 

remainder of the meeting. 
 
O.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the publication of a 

Notice of Public Sealed Bid Auction to declare the ledger cabinet, file 
cabinet, and exam table as surplus to sell the items through a sealed bid 

process.  
 
Ms. Springer stated that the used items are surplus and are no longer needed 

by County staff.  It was decided to have receive sealed bids because the 
equipment has substantial value.  Each item will be bid on individually. 

 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Christensen, seconded by Chairman Cline, the 
Board authorized the publication of a Notice of Public Sealed Bid Auction to 

declare the ledger cabinet, file cabinet, and exam table as surplus to sell the 
items through a sealed bid process.  
 

P.  Information/Discussion/Action to cancel Contract No. 04292022 with 
the Arizona Silver Belt effective August 15, 2022.  



Page 12 of 22 

 

 
Ms. Springer advised that the Board of Supervisors recently awarded an 

annual contract to the Arizona Silver Belt newspaper to provide all advertising, 
publications, and printing required to be done or made by all departments and 

elected offices of Gila County for fiscal year 2022-2023.  Because the Arizona 
Silver Belt newspaper failed to publish required documents in the newspaper of 
record in the past and the failure resulted in a decrease in revenue and 

additional work on the part of County staff, Ms. Springer contacted the editor, 
Mike Caywood, to explain the importance of ensuring publications are printed 
as requested by County staff to ensure compliance with local, state, and federal 

requirements. Unfortunately, the situation of not publishing required 
notifications occurred again which has left staff with no confidence in the 

Arizona Silver Belt newspaper being able to ensure publications will be printed 
as required.  
 

Chairman Cline commented that the County will now be faced with paying $8 
per column inch to the only other qualified newspaper in the County versus the 

current contract amount of $2.50 per column inch.  He added that there does 
not seem to be another option.  
 

Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Christensen, seconded by Chairman Cline, the 
Board cancelled Contract No. 04292022 with the Arizona Silver Belt newspaper 
effective August 15, 2022.  

 
Q.  Information/Discussion/Action to award Contract No. 04292022B for 

annual publishing and printing services to the Payson Roundup in the 
amount of $8.00 per column inch for the remainder of fiscal year 2022-
2023.  

 
Ms. Springer advised that the Payson Roundup newspaper meets the statutory 
requirements to be the official County newspaper and has agreed to contract 

with the County at a cost of $8.00 per column inch for all advertising, 
publications and printing required to be done or made by all departments and 

elected offices of Gila County for the remainder of fiscal year 2022-2023. 
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Christensen, seconded by Chairman Cline, the 

Board awarded Contract No. 04292022B to the Payson Roundup newspaper to 
provide all advertising, publications and printing required to be done by all 

departments and elected office of Gila County in the amount of $8.00 per 
column inch for the remainder of fiscal year 2022-2023.  
 

R.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve a one-time variance from 
following the State of Arizona General Accounting Office maximum 
allowable in-state lodging rate (referenced in Section 10G of Policy No. 

BOS-FIN-112-Travel) to allow a lodging rate of $96 for non-specific travel 



Page 13 of 22 

 

locations in the state of Arizona for the period of July 1, 2022, through 
June 30, 2023 (FY 2022-23).  

 
James Menlove, County Manager/Clerk of the Board, advised that due to the 

COVID-19 pandemic, hotels in the state of Arizona no longer offer both federal 
and state government lodging rates. For non-specific locations in Arizona, 
hotels are now only offering the federal lodging rate of $96; therefore, for non-

specific travel locations in the state of Arizona, Gila County should adopt an 
allowable lodging rate of $96 for the period July 1, 2022, through June 30, 
2023 (FY 2022-23). He stated that all other aspects of Gila County policy 

number BOS-FIN-112-Travel will remain in effect. This change would be in 
effect for any travel that took place beginning July 1, 2022, through June 30, 

2023. 
 
Vice-Chairman Christensen made a motion to approve a one-time variance 

from following the State of Arizona General Accounting Office maximum 
allowable in-state lodging (referenced in Section 10G of Policy No. BOS-FIN-112-
Travel) to allow a lodging rate of $96 for non-specific travel locations in the 
state of Arizona for the period of July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2023.  Mr. 

Menlove asked Vice-Chairman Christensen to amend the motion “to allow 
County employees to travel using the federal Government General Accounting 
Office hotel rates through the contiguous United States for fiscal year 2022-

2023.”  Vice-Chairman Christensen amended his motion as stated by Mr. 
Menlove.  The motion was seconded by Chairman Cline and approved by the 
Board. 

 
S.  Information/Discussion/Action to re-appoint James Menlove, County 

Manager, as Clerk of the Board of Supervisors.  
 
Mr. Menlove stated that at the end of May 2022 (it was on June 7, 2022) the 

Board of Supervisors appointed him to be the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
until August 31, 2023.  He asked to be re-appointed without a time limit.   

 
Vice-Chairman Christensen stated to Mr. Menlove “…The intention is that we 
will be seeking that position to be filled, and this appointment does not 

increase your wages in any way, and you feel you are capable to serve in this 
way.”  Mr. Menlove replied that he is seeking the position to be filled; his wages 
will not be increased with this added responsibility; and he affirmed that he is 

capable of serving in this additional role. Mr. Menlove stated, “Mr. Chairman, I 
work with Ms. Henderson, and she does a fabulous job.  Ninety-nine percent of 

everything is done by Ms. Henderson in that office and in that role.”  Chairman 
Cline stated that he would like a timeframe to be added to the appointment.  
He asked Vice-Chairman Christensen for his thoughts.  Vice-Chairman 

Christensen asked Mr. Menlove if the position will be advertised.  Mr. Menlove 
replied that the County is in the process of selecting the best candidate for the 

position, so the position will be advertised, and qualified internal and external 



Page 14 of 22 

 

candidates will be considered.  Mr. Menlove stated, “Mr. Chairman, this is by 
statute a required position that is appointed by the Board of Supervisors.  I 

would not be in favor of a putting a date on it because the Board of 
Supervisors, the Chairman in particular, can bring this back at any time and I 

don’t know that it’s going to change the process that we’re going through for 
appointment to the Clerk of the Board full-time or permanently.  It allows us 
flexibility without having to take time coming to a Board meeting to have a 

presentation such as this, so I would not be in favor of a timeframe knowing 
that the Board of Supervisors can call for an appointment, to call for this to 
come to the Board for consideration at any time.”  Mr. Menlove commented 

that he foresees being in this position no longer than six months.   
 

Vice-Chairman Christensen stated, “Mr. Chairman, I move to reappoint James 
Menlove, County Manager, as Clerk of the Board of Supervisors while 
maintaining an advertisement to fill this position going forward.”  Chairman 

Cline seconded the motion which was approved by the Board.  
 

Item 4 - CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS: (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 

Board of Supervisors.)  
 
A.  Approval for the Board Chairman to electronically sign Arizona 

Criminal Justice Commission (ACJC) Victims' Compensation Grant 
Agreement, FY2023 No. VC-2023-004 in the amount of $55,633 for the 

period July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2023.  
 
B.  Approval of a First Amendment to Lease Agreement with Twin Pines, 

LLC to provide office space for the Community Services Department 
Community Action Program and the University of Arizona Cooperative 
Extension Program at the Twin Pines Plaza in Payson at a cost of $1,900 

base rent per month beginning September 15, 2022, to September 14, 
2027, with a base rent adjustment each year of 3% starting in year two of 

the agreement.  
 
C.  Approval of the appointment of Tait Elkie as Justice of the Peace Pro 

Tempore in the Payson Justice Court with his term to expire on December 
31, 2022.  

 
D.  Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. 050420-Pharmacy 
Services for Gila County Detention Medical to extend the term of the 

contract for one additional year, from September 1, 2022, to August 31, 
2023, for a contract amount not to exceed $75,000 and adds to the 
contract language: Certification of No Forced Labor.  

 



Page 15 of 22 

 

E.  Approval of Amendment No. 5 to an Intergovernmental Agreement 
(Contract No. CTR043241) with the Arizona Department of Health 

Services in the amount of $14,459.00 for the Special Project for WIC 
(Women, Infants, and Children) and BFCP (Breastfeeding Peer Counseling) 

services to replace the Globe clinic flooring.  
 
F.  Authorization for the Gila County Animal Care & Control Division to 

submit a grant application to the Arizona Companion Animal Spay and 
Neuter Committee in the amount of $10,000 to expand its discounted 
spay/neuter services in Gila County for a period of one year.  

 
G.  Approval of the monthly activity reports submitted by the Human 

Resources Department for July 2022.  
 
JULY 5, 2022 

 
DEPARTURES: 

1. Angela Anthony – Community Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – 
06/30/22 – DES Community Action Program Fund – DOH 06/21/12 
2. Johnathan Scales – Health and Emergency Services – Administrative Clerk 

Senior – 06/30/22 – Immunization Fund – DOH 10/15/19 
3. Homero Vela – Board of Supervisors – Assistant County Manager – 
07/01/22 – General Fund – DOH 09/17/18 

 
NEW HIRES: 

4. Rodney Ohmart – Payson Justice Court – Bailiff (.48) – 07/05/22 – General 
Fund – Replacing Michael Lorka 
5. Kristy Ulmer – Public Works – Administrative Assistant – 07/18/22 – Public 

Works Fund – Replacing Christine Elmer 
6. Paul Larkin – Globe Justice Court – Judge Pro Tempore – 07/05/22 – 
General Fund – Replacing Linda Shirley 

7. Kyle Lux – Public Works – Automotive Mechanic – 07/05/22 – Fleet 
Management Fund – Replacing John Scott 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
8. Francisca Boltarez – Library District – Summer Youth Participant – 

06/06/22 – Library District Assistance (.41)/General (.59) Funds 
 

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
9. Melissa Baldonado-Bene – County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary – 
05/22/22 – General Fund 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
10. Jessen Gillespie – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 07/04/22 – General 

Fund – Step increase 



Page 16 of 22 

 

11. Janet Ostrom – Community Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – 
07/01/22 – From DES Community Action Program Fund – To Various Funds – 

Change in fund code 
 

REQUEST TO POST: 
12. Public Works – Deputy Director Public Works – Vacated by Steve Sanders 
 

JULY 12, 2022 
 
DEPARTURES: 

1. Lori Goode – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 04/11/22 – General Fund – 
DOH 04/11/22 

2. Esther Canez – Clerk of Superior Court – Chief Deputy Clerk of Court – 
07/12/22 – General Fund – DOH 05/12/97 
3. Gary Frantom – Public Works – Temporary Recycling and Landfill Equipment 

Operator – 07/01/22 – Recycling and Landfill Management Fund – DOH 
06/23/20 

4. Cindie Bright – Public Works – Temporary Scalehouse Attendant – 07/01/22 
– Recycling and Landfill Management Fund – DOH 02/28/22 
 

NEW HIRES: 
5. Kassandra Navarro – Computer Services – Help Desk Support Specialist – 
07/18/22 – General Fund – Replacing Daniel Irish 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 

6. Dwight Payne – Sheriff’s Office – IT Systems Administrator – 07/15/22 – 
General Fund – Change in retirement date from 07/01/22 to 07/15/22 
 

REQUEST TO POST: 
7. Computer Services – Deputy Director Information Technology – Reclassified 
position  

8. Treasurer’s Office – Treasurers Services Supervisor – Vacated by P. Denise 
Cox 

 
JULY 19, 2022 
 

DEPARTURES: 
1. Taylor Wilson – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 07/10/22 – General Fund 

– DOH 05/27/19 
 
NEW HIRES: 

2. Michael Wicks – Public Works – Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance 
Supervisor – 07/18/22 – Fleet Management Fund – Replacing Robert Cizek 
3. Michael Kielsky – County Attorney’s Office – Deputy County Attorney 

Principal – 08/01/22 – General Fund – Replacing Paul Rubin 
 



Page 17 of 22 

 

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
4. Annie Hammer – Finance – Internal Auditor – 07/18/22 – General Fund 

5. Antonella Campos – Community Services – Community Action Program 
Administrator – Various Funds 

6. Karen Pinto – Clerk of Superior Court – Court Clerk – 07/19/22 – General 
Fund  
7. Cynthia Castaneda – Clerk of Superior Court – Court Clerk – 07/25/22 – 

General Fund 
8. Marylyn Branson – Clerk of Superior Court – Court Clerk – 07/19/22 – 
General (.50)/IV-D Child Support (.50) Funds 

9. Samantha Trimble – Recorder’s Office – Voter Outreach Assistant – 
07/31/22 – General Fund 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
10. Amie Jones – Probation – Juvenile Mental Health Therapist – 07/04/22 – 

From JPSF Treatment Fund – To JPSF Treatment (.95)/Superior Court Cost of 
Prosecution (.05) Funds – Change in fund code 

11. Perry Wyrick – Facilities and Land Management – From Temporary Building 
Maintenance Supervisor – To Building Maintenance Technician Senior – 
06/20/22 – Facilities and Land Management Fund – End of temporary 

assignment 
12. Thoreina Hensley – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff Sgt. – 08/02/22 – 
General Fund – Step increase 

13. Marcos Oropeza – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 07/11/22 – General 
Fund – Step increase 

14. Aaron Alderman – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/04/22 – General 
Fund – Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  
15. Debra Archuleta – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/04/22 – General 

Fund – Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  
16. Stephen Armstrong – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/04/22 – 
General Fund – Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  

17. Andrew Bradford – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/04/22 – General 
Fund – Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  

18. Lowell Brown – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer Sgt. – 07/04/22 – 
General Fund – Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  
19. Joshua Burch – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer Sgt. – 07/04/22 – 

General Fund – Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  
20. Dustin Burdess – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/04/22 – General 

Fund – Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  
21. Derryck Courvoisier – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/04/22 – 
General Fund – Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  

22. Anna Cruz – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/04/22 – General Fund 
– Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  
23. Michelle Daly – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer Sgt. – 07/04/22 – 

General Fund – Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  



Page 18 of 22 

 

24. Nicholas Franco – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/04/22 – General 
Fund – Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  

25. April Gates – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/04/22 – General Fund 
– Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  

26. Alyxx Hartmann – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/04/22 – General 
Fund – Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  
27. Wade Haynie – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/04/22 – General 

Fund – Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  
28. Christopher Jones – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/04/22 – 
General Fund – Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  

29. David Kell – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/04/22 – General Fund 
– Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  

30. Brandi Kriley – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer Sgt. – 07/04/22 – 
General Fund – Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  
31. David Levario – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/04/22 – General 

Fund – Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  
32. Rubin Mays – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/04/22 – General 

Fund – Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  
33. Bret McDaniel – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer Sgt. – 07/04/22 – 
General Fund – Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  

34. Jared Osborn – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer Lt. – 07/04/22 – General 
Fund – Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  
35. Nora Palmer – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/04/22 – General 

Fund – Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  
36. Guy Peterson – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/04/22 – General 

Fund – Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  
37. Cindy Roberts – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer Lt. – 07/04/22 – 
General Fund – Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  

38. Robert Schuler – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer Sgt. – 07/04/22 – 
General Fund – Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  
39. Amos Smith – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/04/22 – General 

Fund – Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  
40. Cassidy Smith – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer Sgt. – 07/04/22 – 

General Fund – Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  
41. Don Smith – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/04/22 – General Fund 
– Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  

42. Noah Tassell – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/04/22 – General 
Fund – Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  

43. Thomas Logan – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/04/22 – General 
Fund – Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  
44. Caroline Turner – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/04/22 – General 

Fund – Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  
45. Courtney White – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/04/22 – General 
Fund – Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  

46. Walter Wiley – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer Sgt. – 07/04/22 – General 
Fund – Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  



Page 19 of 22 

 

47. Violeta Worthey – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer Lt.– 07/04/22 – 
General Fund – Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  

 
JULY 26, 2022 

 
DEPARTURES: 
1. Ashley Kelley – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 07/23/22 – General Fund 

– DOH 02/19/22 
2. Rosa Pacheco – Health and Emergency Services – Summer Youth Participant 
– 07/15/22 – Health Service Fund – DOH 06/06/22 

3. Leslie Marquez – Facilities and Land Management – Summer Youth 
Participant – 07/15/22 – Facilities Management Fund – DOH 06/06/22 

4. Francisca Boltarez – Library District – Summer Youth Participant – 
07/15/22 – Library Assistance (.41)/General (.59) Funds – DOH 06/06/22 
5. Zachariah Messenger – Public Works– Summer Youth Participant – 

07/15/22 – Public Works Fund – DOH 06/06/22 
6. Gabriel Gonzales – Public Works – Summer Youth Participant – 07/15/22 – 

Recycling and Landfill Management Fund – DOH 06/06/22 
7. Anasco Escobedo-Sanchez - Public Works – Summer Youth Participant – 
07/15/22 – Recycling and Landfill Management Fund – DOH 06/06/22 

8. Javen Flores – Public Works– Summer Youth Participant – 07/15/22 – 
Public Works Fund – DOH 06/06/22 
9. Lindsee Freeman – Public Works– Summer Youth Participant – 07/15/22 – 

Public Works Fund – DOH 06/06/22 
10. Joshua Graham – Public Fiduciary – Summer Youth Participant – 

07/15/22 – General Fund – DOH 06/06/22 
 
NEW HIRES: 

11. Vise Palmer – Treasurer’s Office – Treasurer Services Specialist – 08/01/22 
– General Fund – Replacing P. Denise Cox 
12. Chassity Morgan – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 07/18/22 – General 

Fund – Replacing Kristina Hernandez 
 

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
13. Juliane DeSpain – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 1 – 07/19/22 – 
Diversion Intake (.50)/Juvenile Intensive Probation Supervision (.50) Funds  

14. Kenneth Dillman Jr. – Probation – Surveillance Officer – 07/19/22 – 
General Fund 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
15. Gabriel Scales – From Computer Services – To Sheriff’s Office – IT Systems 

Administrator – 07/18/22 – General Fund – Replacing Dwight Payne 
16. Carolyn Bartling – Computer Services – From IT Systems Administrator – 
To Deputy Director IT – 08/01/22 – General Fund 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 



Page 20 of 22 

 

17. Crizna Zamora – Probation – Administrative Clerk Specialist – 08/01/22 – 
From General Fund – To Adult Intensive Probation Supervision Fund – Change 

in fund code 
18. Zander Johnson – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/04/22 – General 

Fund - Implementation GCSO Detention Officer Steps Program  
19. Taylor Wilson – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 07/10/22 – General 
Fund – Change in hours and rescinded resignation 

20. Candice Carbajal – Sheriff’s Office – From Accounting Clerk Specialist/911 
Dispatcher – To Accounting Clerk Specialist – 05/17/22 – General Fund – 
Resigned from 911 Dispatcher 

 
H.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the reporting 

period of July 1, 2022. through July 31, 2022.  
 

Approve demands and budget amendments for operating transfers.  Warrant 

numbers 316592 through 316633, 316635 through 316683, 316685 through 

316722, 316724 through 316946, and 316948 through 317104 totaling 

$5,302,013.93 for the period 07-01-22 through 07-31-22.  

 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §11-217(D), the published minutes shall include all 

demands and warrants approved by the Board in excess of one thousand 

dollars except those multiple demands and warrants from a single supplier or 

individual under one thousand dollars whose cumulative total exceeds one 

thousand dollars in a single reporting period shall also be published.  (A 

listing of issued warrants and voided warrants is permanently attached to 

these minutes.) 

 

I.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 
approved by the County Manager for July.  

 

Upon motion by Vice Chairman Christenson, seconded by Chairman Cline, the 
Board approved Consent Agenda items 4A through 4I. 
 

Item 5 - CALL TO THE PUBLIC:   A call to the public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 
issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 

may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 

conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 

matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date.  



Page 21 of 22 

 

There were no comments from the public. 
 

Item 6 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 

may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 
on the information presented.  
 

Supervisors Christensen and Cline, and the County Manager provided a 
summary of current events.   
 

At 12:12 p.m. Chairman Cline announced a short recess.  At 12:30 p.m. he 
reconvened the meeting and addressed agenda item number 7A. 

 
7.  WORK SESSION ITEMS:  

A.  Information/Discussion regarding an update on legislative session 
activities from Policy Development Group. 

 
Andy Jacobs of Policy Development Group advised that he would be providing a 

slide presentation and he commented that Todd Baughman, also of Policy 
Development Group, was present.  Mr. Jacobs stated that a presentation was 
made to the Board of Supervisors last year, and this is the second year having 

a contract with the County.   
 
He reviewed the stakeholders that Policy Development Group works with 

throughout the state.  Mr. Jacobs then reviewed the issues that Policy 
Development Group staff followed during the last year which affect Gila 

County.  
 

• One-time $53.4M Sheriffs’ stipend  

• 20% Superior Court judges' salary increase 

• Budget  
o $1 billion in transportation infrastructure 

o $1 billion in water development / WIFA  

• Proposition 400 (Maricopa County) veto next steps  

• Education 
o Aggregate Expenditure Limit renewed  

o School vouchers expansion 
 
He covered in more detail forest health, and the SRP (Salt River Project) C.C. 

Cragin Watershed Project, and he reviewed the highlights of the 2022 Primary 
Election results.   

 



Page 22 of 22 

 

Mr. Jacobs reviewed the last slide which listed the following areas that Policy 
Development Group would be focusing on behalf of Gila County in the next 

legislative session, as follows:   
 

• Unincorporated areas; transient lodging assessment  

• Forest Health implementation 

• Road and infrastructure opportunities  

• Rural schools funding gap  

• Veterans’ facility 

• Young Road 
 

He asked the Board members for their comments and if there were any other 
areas of concerns.  Vice-Chairman Christensen agreed with the listed topics 
and the work being done by Policy Development Group.  He also thanked Mr. 

Jacobs for the presentation.  Chairman Cline commented that water will be one 
of the most important topics to be discussed during the next legislative session.   

He added that many people in Gila County have their own wells.  In 
conversations he’s had with people, it is Chairman Cline’s understanding that 
those people are adamant that they would not allow a monitor to be placed on 

their well or to be charged for the water they use, which was proposed in the 
1980s and again in the 1990s.  He also talked about forest health being an 

ongoing concern.  Chairman Cline mentioned that mine assessments should be 
watched as it affects funding for schools.  The Supervisors and Mr. Menlove 
discussed contacts to be made and some other details regarding water and 

forest health.  Chairman Cline thanked Mr. Jacobs and Mr. Baughman for the 
presentation.  
 

There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Cline adjourned the meeting at 1:06 p.m.  

 
APPROVED: 
 

_____________________________________ 
Woody Cline, Chairman 

 
ATTEST: 
 

_____________________________________ 
James Menlove, Clerk of the Board 
 



Page 1 of 5 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  August 30, 2022 

 
WOODY CLINE       JAMES MENLOVE 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 

 
STEVE CHRISTENSEN       By: Marian Sheppard 
Vice-Chairman 

                                                             
TIM R. HUMPHREY      Gila County Courthouse 

Member         Globe, Arizona                        
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

PRESENT:  Woody Cline, Chairman; Steve Christensen, Vice-Chairman; and 
Tim R. Humphrey, Member 

 
STAFF PRESENT:  W. James Menlove, County Manager and Clerk of the Board; 
Jessica Scibelli, Senior Civil Deputy County Attorney; and Melissa Henderson, 

Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board 
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
Chairman Cline called the Regular Meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. this date in 

the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room. Cheryl Sluyter led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 

Item 2 – PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to Convene a public hearing to hear 

from citizens on the FY 2022 Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Application for CDBG Regional Account funding in the amount of 

$118,158 that will be used for six proposed CDBG emergency repair 
projects, in Gila County; and authorize the submittal of the Application to 
the State of Arizona Department of Housing. 

 
Malissa Buzan, Community Services Department Director, advised that the 

Community Services Department, Housing Services, applies for CDBG Regional 
Account funding each year.  She explained that the funding allocation became 
less each year, so a couple of years ago Gila County partnered with the City of 

Apache Junction to apply for these grant funds.  It was agreed that Gila 
County would accept the funding for one year and the following year the City of 
Apache Junction would accept it, and so on.  This year Gila County will accept 

the funding which will be used for 6 proposed housing projects.   
 



Page 2 of 5 

 

Chairman Cline inquired about the 6 proposed housing projects.  Ms. Buzan 
explained that the Community Services Department, Housing Services, tries to 

leverage funding from other sources such as weatherization funds.  In this way, 
Housing Services staff goes into a home one time to do all the repairs.  

Chairman Cline asked about the location of the 6 housing projects.  Ms. Buzan 
replied that the homes are in various parts of the County except for tribal 
lands.  She advised that per statutory requirements, two public hearings must 

be held; one public hearing is to obtain input from citizens and one public 
hearing is to be held by the Board of Supervisors.  She further advised that 
Housing Services previously conducted a public hearing and there weren’t any 

comments received. 
 

Chairman Cline opened the public hearing.  There were not any comments, so 
he closed the public hearing and asked for a Board motion. 
 

Upon motion by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by Vice-Chairman 
Christensen, the Board unanimously authorized the submittal of the FY 2022 

CDBG Application, as presented, to the State of Arizona Department of 
Housing. 
 

Item 3 - REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 
A.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve a grant application with 

the United States Forest Service to accept a congressionally directed 
earmark award of $609,000 to be used for maintaining water storage 

systems for wildfire protection in Gila County with the understanding 
that this funding comes with a 1:1 match of $609,000 for Gila County 
that can be in cash, in-kind activities, or a combination of both for the 

period of March 2022 through September 2025. 
 
Michael O'Driscoll, Health and Emergency Management Department Director, 

presented the following information which is contained in the staff report for 
this item.  On March 15, 2022, through Senator Mark Kelly's Office, Gila County 
was awarded $609,000 in Congressionally directed earmark monies to be used 
for maintaining water storage systems for wildfire protection in Gila County. The 
award expires in September 2025.  When the $609,000 was awarded, the funds 
went directly to the USFS (United States Forest Service) for disbursement to Gila 
County. In our discussions with the USFS, it was discovered that since the 
$609,000 was sent directly to USFS any disbursements of these funds must 
follow their grant application process. In further discussion with the USFS, the 
County was informed that this funding has a 1:1 match requirement attached to 
it. This match can be financial, in-kind activities, or a combination of both. The in-
kind match can be contributions consisting of donated time and effort, real 
nonexpendable personal property, and goods and services directly benefiting 
and specifically identifiable to the supported activity or project.  The breakdown 
of this Congressionally directed earmark award would be $609,000 from the 



Page 3 of 5 

 

USFS with a $609,000 match from Gila County (financial, in-kind activities, or a 
combination) for a total of $1,218,000. 
 
Supervisor Humphrey inquired if all $609,000 must be expended.  Mr. 

O’Driscoll replied that not all dollars need to be expended; however, the USFS 
matches dollar for dollar the amount expended by the County.  Supervisor 
Humphrey stated, “I have extreme mixed feelings about spending money to 

store water and it’s just sitting there; it’s not helping wildlife.  In the past, with 
our (water) bladders, I don’t know how much they were ever used for anything.  
Do we have any data of them being used or what they were used for?”  Mr. 

O’Driscoll replied that data was not collected regarding the use of the water 
bladders, but his staff will begin collecting data for the new water storage 

system that will be used.  Supervisor Humphrey inquired if the County was 
responsible for filling the water storage tanks.  Mr. O’Driscoll replied that the 
Public Works Department and local fire districts have joint responsibility for 

filling the water tanks.  Vice-Chairman Christensen advised that the water 
bladders are primarily located in northern Gila County.  He said, “…This is to 

improve the existing system which is aging and deteriorating with a more 
permanent solution that won’t require a lot for decades to come.”  Mr. 
O’Driscoll replied, “Correct…We have large water bladders which Gila County 

got as army surplus and you can’t get them on the market anymore.  We went 
to these 14 sites in last 2 weeks to inventory them.  Some bladders need 
repairs or are black and too old to use.  This money will help us get metal or 

plastic tanks on the site instead of bladders that can deteriorate in the sun 
over time.”  Chairman Cline asked for information on the current 14 sites of 

the water bladders.  Mr. O’Driscoll advised that the first phase of the project 
will be to do an inventory of the water bladders.  Pictures will be taken, and the 
GPS coordinates will be verified for each water bladder.  He advised that 

because this project is moving forward so quickly, his staff came up with a 
temporary budget which most likely will need to be revised and sent to the 
USFS.  The next step would be to meet with Public Works Department staff, 

local fire chiefs, USFS staff, and Emergency Management Division staff to 
determine if all 14 sites are needed.  If there is not a need, some of them may 

be removed.  Chairman Cline agreed with that approach.  He stated that when 
Supervisor Tommie Martin began the endeavor with the Public Works 
Department to implement the water bladders, it was a “shotgun approach.”  He 

didn’t think all 14 water bladders were used.  As suggested by Supervisor 
Humphrey, Mr. O’Driscoll commented that he would reach out to the U.S. 

Game and Fish Department.  Supervisor Humphrey asked if financing is 
available for the match funding requirement.  Mr. O’Driscoll advised that some 
of the match requirements will be met with in-kind services.  He met with 

James Menlove, County Manager, and Mary Springer, Finance Department 
Director, whom both affirmed that there is money available in the County’s 
budget for the match funding requirement.  

 



Page 4 of 5 

 

Vice-Chairman Christensen made a motion to approve a grant application with 
the United States Forest Service to accept a congressionally directed earmark 

award of $609,000 to be used for maintaining water storage systems for 
wildfire protection in Gila County with the understanding that this funding 

comes with a 1:1 match of $609,000 for Gila County that can be in cash, in-
kind activities, or a combination of both for the period of March 2022 through 
September 2025, which was seconded by Supervisor Humphrey.  When 

Chairman Cline called for the vote, it passed 2 to 1 with Supervisor Humphrey 
voting against the motion. 
 

B.  Information/Discussion/Action to Award Invitation for Bids 052422 to 
Perkins Cinders, Inc. in the amount of $9.95 per ton. 

 
Steve Sanders, Public Works Department Director, advised that this agenda 
item was tabled by the Board of Supervisors on August 2, 2022, to conduct 

further research on the issue of having two companies that submitted the same 
quote per ton even though Perkins Cinders, Inc. previously won the coin toss 

between the two companies.  He advised that once a contract has been 
awarded, the work is scheduled to comment the first part of October 2022. 
 

Vice-Chairman Christensen suggested revising the County’s procurement 
policy to state that should the same bid be submitted by more than one 
contractor, a contract would be awarded to the local contractor.  Chairman 

Cline asked Jessica Scibelli, Senior Civil Deputy County Attorney, to comment.  
Ms. Scibelli commented that the procurement policy could be revised to include 

that type of situation.  Any revision to a Board-adopted policy would require 
the Board of Supervisors’ approval.   
 

Upon motion by Supervisor Humphrey, seconded by Vice-Chairman 
Christensen, the Board unanimously awarded a contract (Contract No. 052422) 
to Perkins Cinders, Inc. in the amount of $9.95 per ton. 

 
C.  Information/Discussion to consider draft Human Resources Policy No. 

BOS-HRS-017 and Administrative Procedures HRS-017. 
 
Rick Husk, Human Resources Department Director, presented this policy and 

related procedures for the Board’s consideration.  He advised that the purpose 
of the policy is to outline the rules for use of County-owned vehicles by 

employees for work and take-home commuting.  The policy applies to 
employees of all County departments, elected offices, and all functions under 
the Gila County Superior Court. It does not apply to law enforcement personnel 

and other employees who are assigned emergency response take-home vehicles 
and who have primary responsibility to respond to emergencies which require 
immediate response to protect life or property and cannot use alternate forms 

of transportation to emergencies.  He read aloud the proposed policy and 
procedures.  Mr. Husk stated that the County currently follows this proposed 



Page 5 of 5 

 

policy and procedures; however, it is now in writing.  He stated that if the 
Board agrees with the policy and procedures, he would be placing them on the 

following Board agenda for adoption.   
 

Vice-Chairman Christensen asked, “As we are trimming our fleet, we are 
downsizing some of these vehicles and moving towards a rental ideal.  Is that 
language involved in that policy as well?”  Mr. Husk replied, “We will revisit 

that and create a different policy for limited purposes; this was more for take 
home use.” 
 

Chairman Cline agreed with Mr. Husk’s suggestion to place adoption of the 
policy and procedures on the next Board meeting agenda. 

 
Item 4 - CALL TO THE PUBLIC: A call to the public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 

issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 

Therefore, pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.01(H), at the conclusion of an open 
call to the public, individual members of the Board of Supervisors may 
respond to criticism made by those who have addressed the Board, and 

may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a matter be put on a 
future agenda for further discussion and decision at a future date.  
 

There were not any comments from the public. 
 

Item 5 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 

on the information presented.   
 
Each Supervisor and the County Manager presented a summary of current 

events.   
 

There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Cline adjourned the meeting at 10:47 a.m.  
 

APPROVED: 
 

_____________________________________ 
Woody Cline, Chairman 
 

ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 

James Menlove, Clerk of the Board 
 



   
ARF-7492   Consent Agenda Item     4. G.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/20/2022  
Reporting
Period:

Human Resources Department Monthly Reports for
August 2022

Submitted For: Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant Sr. 
Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant Sr.

Information
Subject
Human Resources Department Monthly Reports for August 2022.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the monthly activity reports submitted by the Human
Resources Department for August 2022. 

Attachments
HR Summary Report
08/02/22 Human Resources Report
08/09/22 Human Resources Report
08/16/22 Human Resources Report
08/23/22 Human Resources Report
08/30/22 Human Resources Report



Summary
Year To 
Date Jan‐22 Feb‐22 Mar‐22 Apr‐22 May‐22 Jun‐22 Jul‐22 Aug‐22 Sep‐22 Oct‐22 Nov‐22 Dec‐22

Human	Resources	Action	Items

DEPARTURES 92 6 8 10 16 12 10 18 12

NEW HIRES REGULAR STATUS 81 9 4 10 17 8 9 9 15

NEW HIRES TEMPORARY STATUS 22 2 1 1 2 1 13 1 1

VOLUNTEERS 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0

END OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD 48 8 13 7 3 5 3 8 1

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS 29 3 5 1 3 3 8 2 4

OTHER ACTIONS 214 33 22 23 46 18 10 44 18

REQUEST TO POST 51 7 5 7 7 9 7 3 6

  Total Transactions 538 68 58 59 94 57 60 85 57 0 0 0 0
 
   

 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
AUGUST 2, 2022 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Michael Kielsky – County Attorney’s Office – Deputy County Attorney Principal – 08/01/22 – General 
Fund – DOH 08/01/22 

2. Gerald Irish – Public Works – Construction Project Manager – 08/12/22 – Public Works Fund – DOH 
12/14/15 

3. Christopher Sanks – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 07/30/22 – General Fund – DOH 07/09/18 
 
NEW HIRES: 
 

4. Vanessa Long – Public Works – Accountant – 08/03/22 – Public Works Fund – Replacing Angela Dude  
5. Kenneth Satathite – Public Works – Road Maintenance and Landfill Equipment Operator – 08/08/22 – 

Public Works Fund – Replacing Russell Heap 
6. Ryan Lafave – Public Works – Road Maintenance and Landfill Equipment Operator – 08/08/22 – Public 

Works Fund – Replacing Jenny Shults 
 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

7. Samuel Bruno – Public Works – From Automotive Mechanic – To Vehicle and Equipment Mechanic – 
08/01/22 – From Fleet Management Fund – To Public Works Fund – Replacing Robert Cizek 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

8. Gabriel Scales – From Sheriff’s Office – To Computer Services – IT Systems Administrator – 07/18/22 
– General Fund – Change of fund code 

9. Jacque Sanders – Board of Supervisors – Deputy County Manager – 07/4/22 – General(.75)/Library 
Assistance(.25) Funds – Grade correction 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

10. Public Works – Construction Project Manager – Vacated by Gerald Irish 
11. Public Works – Automotive Mechanic – Vacated by Samuel Bruno 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
AUGUST 9, 2022 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Debbie Fickel – Community Development – Zoning and Building Inspector – 08/12/22 – General Fund 
– DOH 10/30/95 

 
NEW HIRES: 
 

2. Richard Stone – Community Development – Zoning and Building Inspector – 08/29/22 – General Fund 
– Replacing Debbie Fickel 

3. Deanna Hoffman – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 08/01/22 – General Fund – Replacing Megan 
Cook 

4. Lacey Hamlett – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 08/15/22 – General Fund – Replacing Brooke Ortiz 
5. Michael Howell – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 08/15/22 – General Fund – Replacing Douglas 

Bassler 
6. Teddy Cox – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 08/15/22 – General Fund – Replacing Brandon 

Burgener  
7. William Reynolds – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 08/15/22 – General Fund – Replacing John 

Gonzales 
 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

8. Isaiah Kesterson – Sheriff’s Office – From Deputy Sheriff – To Detention Officer – 07/29/22 – General 
Fund – Replacing Isaiah Kesterson 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

9. John Fischbeck – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 07/19/22 – General Fund – Step increase 
10. Tammie Mounce – Administrative Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – 07/04/22 – General Fund – 

Reclassification 
11. Stevan Williams – Public Works – Engineering Technician – 07/28/22 – Public Works Fund – Special 

assignment 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
AUGUST 16, 2022 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Dora Teresa Salazar – Treasurer’s Office – Accounting Clerk Specialist – 08/11/22 – General Fund – 
DOH 04/25/22 

 
NEW HIRES: 
 

2. Jordan Deatherage – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 08/15/22 – General Fund – Replacing Madeline 
Belling 

3. Holly James – Public Works – Part-Time Scalehouse Attendant – 08/29/22 – Recycling and Landfill 
Management Fund – Replacing Cindie Bright 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
 

4. Michael Swinney – Facilities and Land Management – PT Building Maintenance Technician – 08/15/22 
– Facilities Management Fund  

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

5. Teri Stacey – Assessor’s Office – Property Appraiser 1 – 07/04/22 – General Fund – Salary correction 
 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

6. Treasurer’s Office – Accounting Clerk Specialist – Vacated by Dora Teresa Salazar 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
AUGUST 23, 2022 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Dorothy Little – Payson Justice Court – Justice of the Peace – 09/30/22 – General Fund – DOH 12/07/87 
2. Ethan Morgan – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer II – 08/26/22 – State Aid Enhancement Fund – 

DOH 09/30/19 
3. Scott Sullinger – Public Works – Vehicle and Equipment Mechanic Senior – 08/18/22 – Public Works 

Fund – DOH 04/11/22 
 
NEW HIRES: 
 

4. Donald Garvin – Payson Justice Court – From Judge Pro Tempore – To Justice of the Peace – 10/01/22 
– General Fund – Replacing Dorothy Little 

5. Tait Elkie – Payson Justice Court – Judge Pro Tempore – 8/16/22 – General Fund – Replacing Ronnie 
McDaniel 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

6. Adriean Rutledge – Clerk of Superior Court – Associate Jury Commissioner – 08/16/22 – General Fund 
 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

7. Angelito Beltran – Public Works – From Automotive Service Worker – To Automotive Mechanic – 
08/29/22 – General Fund – Replacing Samuel Bruno 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

8. Ruby Perez – Clerk of Superior Court – Accounting Clerk Specialist – 08/16/22 – General Fund – 
Extending probationary period an additional four months 

9. Donald Garvin – Payson Justice Court – Judge Pro Tempore – 08/15/22 – General Fund – Compliance 
with ASRS 22-122 

10. Sherwood Johnston – Payson Justice Court – Judge Pro Tempore – 08/15/22 – General Fund – 
Compliance with ASRS 22-122 

11. Dan McKeen – Payson Justice Court – Judge Pro Tempore – 08/15/22 – General Fund – Compliance 
with ASRS 22-122 

12. Lorissa Talamantes – Human Resources – From Human Resources Administrative Assistant – To 
Human Resources Assistant Senior – 08/29/22 – General Fund – Reclassification 

13. Erica Raymond – Human Resources – From Human Resources Assistant Senior – To Human Resources 
Analyst – 08/29/22 – General Fund - Reclassification 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

14. Public Works – Automotive Service Worker – Vacated by Angelito Beltran 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
AUGUST 30, 2022 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Mikayla Sheer – Health and Emergency Services – Community Health Policy Analyst – 09/01/22 – 
Teen Pregnancy Prevention Services Fund – DOH 05/23/22 

2. David Shaw Sr. – County Attorney’s Office – Diversion Program Administrator – 08/09/22 – Diversion 
Program CA Fund – DOH 09/10/18 

3. Ruben Casillas – Public Works – Regional Roads Manager – 10/21/22 – Public Works Fund – DOH 
09/01/75 

4. Kaydance Tober – Finance – Summer Youth Participant – 07/15/22 – General Fund – DOH 06/06/22 
 
NEW HIRES: 
 

5. Joshua Crawford – Public Works – Road Maintenance and Landfill Equipment Operator – 08/29/22 – 
Recycling and Landfill Management Fund – Replacing Blake Bassett  

6. Terry Ellicott – Public Works – Construction Project Manager – 09/12/22 – Public Works Fund –
Replacing Christopher Hernandez 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

7. Cutter Burgett – Public Works – From Road Maintenance Worker – To Road Maintenance and Landfill 
Equipment Operator – 08/29/22 – Public Works Fund – Replacing Geoff Little 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

8. Cody Thomason – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 08/25/22 – General Fund – Step increase 
9. Karrie Schaal – Probation – Administrative Clerk Specialist – 08/29/22 – From JCEF ERE Assistant 

Fund – To State Aid Enhancement Fund – Change in fund code 
10. Barbara Romero – Probation – Administrative Clerk Specialist – 08/29/22 – From JCEF ERE Assistant 

Fund – To State Aid Enhancement Fund – Change in fund code 
11. Daniel Lowe – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer IV – 08/29/22 – Various Funds – Change in fund 

code 
12. Jay Boyer – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer IV – 08/29/22 – Various Funds – Change in fund 

code 
13. Steve Lessard – Probation – Chief Probation Officer – 08/29/22 – From General(.91)/JCEF ERE 

Assistant(.09) Funds – To General(.91)/State Aid Enhancement(.09) Funds – Change in fund code 
 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

14. Public Works – Vehicle and Equipment Mechanic Senior – Vacated by Scott Sullinger 
15. Public Works – Regional Roads Manager – Vacated by Ruben Casillas 



   
ARF-7563   Consent Agenda Item     4. H.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/20/2022  
Reporting
Period:

August 1, 2022 - August 31, 2022

Submitted For: Amber Warden, Accounting Manager 
Submitted By: Amber Warden, Accounting Manager

Information
Subject
Finance reports/demands/transfers for the reporting period of August 1,
2022, through August 31, 2022.

Suggested Motion
Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the reporting period of
August 1, 2022, through August 31, 2022.

Attachments
Finance Report 08-01-22 to 08-31-22
Finance Report 08-01-22 to 08-31-22 Voids



Number Date
Transaction 

Amount

317105 08/01/2022 $1,355.43

317106 08/01/2022 $8,439.50

317107 08/01/2022 $480,308.00

317108 08/01/2022 $8,000.00

317109 08/01/2022 $13,440.00

317110 08/01/2022 $2,200.00

317111 08/01/2022 $8,000.00

317112 08/01/2022 $124.63

317113 08/01/2022 $62.30

317114 08/01/2022 $7,840.00

317115 08/01/2022 $37.69

317116 08/01/2022 $166.43

317117 08/01/2022 $370.00

317118 08/01/2022 $72.98

317119 08/01/2022 $3,000.00

317120 08/01/2022 $1,050.00

317121 08/01/2022 $50.73

317122 08/01/2022 $525.00

317123 08/01/2022 $20.25

317124 08/01/2022 $1,331.02

317125 08/01/2022 $28,517.49

317126 08/01/2022 $1,387.50

317127 08/01/2022 $117.78

317128 08/02/2022 $2,507.50

317129 08/02/2022 $106.60

317130 08/02/2022 $1,000.00

317131 08/02/2022 $2.68

317132 08/02/2022 $200.00

317133 08/02/2022 $4,885.79

317134 08/02/2022 $2,500.00Law Offices of Daniel Thulin, LLC 

Gila County Government 

Kesterson, Isaiah 

Konica Minolta Business Solutions U.S.A. Inc.

Cooper Lopez & Associates PLLC 

DJ's Companies, Inc. 

Geiser, PLC, Raymond

Trinity Services Group, Inc.

Tyler Technologies, Inc.

WILLIAMS, DEBRA, L

Service Plus

Sparkletts Water 

Stephen R. Jones Attorney at Law, PLLC 

Law Office of David W Bell LLC 

Law Office of Jerry B Derose, P.C.

McLarty, Robert, G

King, Joanie , S

Language Connection 

Lantz, Mariah

Interstate Copy Shop 

James , Derek, C

Kenz & Leslie of Arizona, Inc. 

Fire Fighters & Police Officers Cancer Insurance 

Geiser, PLC, Raymond

Healthcare Medical Waste Services, Inc.

Community Alliance Consulting

Debrigida Law Offices PLLC 

Dixon Rock & Materials LLC 

JP Morgan AP - JP Morgan Accounts Payable

Check

CenturyLink 

Clark Arizona Legal Services PC 

*****Gila County*****

Payment Register
From Payment Date: 8/1/2022 - To Payment Date: 8/31/2022

Payee Name

 user: Amber T Warden Pages: 1 of 22  Thursday, September 1, 2022



*****Gila County*****

Payment Register
From Payment Date: 8/1/2022 - To Payment Date: 8/31/2022

317135 08/02/2022 $97.26

317136 08/02/2022 $246.44

317137 08/02/2022 $111.92

317138 08/02/2022 $787.61

317139 08/03/2022 $1,006.00

317140 08/03/2022 $16.81

317141 08/03/2022 $800.00

317142 08/03/2022 $120.00

317143 08/03/2022 $600.00

317144 08/03/2022 $1,744.00

317145 08/03/2022 $705.00

317146 08/03/2022 $6,000.00

317147 08/03/2022 $2,795.00

317148 08/03/2022 $7,653.06

317149 08/03/2022 $326.40

317150 08/03/2022 $126.00

317151 08/03/2022 $665.17

317152 08/03/2022 $15,820.92

317153 08/03/2022 $74.88

317154 08/03/2022 $7,579.44

317155 08/03/2022 $13,350.00

317156 08/03/2022 $391.75

317157 08/03/2022 $2,900.00

317158 08/03/2022 $21,550.00

317159 08/03/2022 $200.00

317160 08/03/2022 $6,000.00

317161 08/03/2022 $1,879.00

317162 08/03/2022 $475.00

317163 08/03/2022 $6,111.06

317164 08/03/2022 $127.92

317165 08/03/2022 $80.59

317166 08/03/2022 $30,000.00

317167 08/03/2022 $146.25

317168 08/03/2022 $7,135.00

Haverland, Mike , Lance 

Heinfeld, Meech & Co., P.C.

Griffin's Propane, Inc.

Guevara, Tammy, C

Guild Consulting LLC 

Empire Machinery

Gila Sweeping LLC

GlaxoSmithKline LLC 

Dixon Rock & Materials LLC 

DJ's Companies, Inc. 

Emily Danies Attorney at Law, LLC

CMS Solutions 

Data Storage Centers, Inc. 

Diana G. Montgomery, PLLC 

CenturyLink Business Services 

City of Globe 

City of Globe 

Cardinal Health 110, LLC

Center for Disease Detection

CenturyLink 

Bernays, Michael, B

Bulman Miles Funeral Services 

Canyon Country Design Inc

Banner - University Medical Group 

Banner Payson Medical Center 

BENCH, RIKKI

Alliant Arizona Propane, LLC

Arizona Local Health Officers Association 

Askew, Yvonne

Weaver, Nicole, L

Boltarez, Francisca , F

A P Fire Protection 

UniFirst Corporation

US Imaging Inc.

 user: Amber T Warden Pages: 2 of 22  Thursday, September 1, 2022



*****Gila County*****

Payment Register
From Payment Date: 8/1/2022 - To Payment Date: 8/31/2022

317169 08/03/2022 $337.50

317170 08/03/2022 $760.00

317171 08/03/2022 $16,727.23

317172 08/03/2022 $1,195.00

317173 08/03/2022 $531.19

317174 08/03/2022 $4,629.17

317175 08/03/2022 $152.00

317176 08/03/2022 $600.00

317177 08/03/2022 $55.94

317178 08/03/2022 $385.16

317179 08/03/2022 $3,306.79

317180 08/03/2022 $75.00

317181 08/03/2022 $435.00

317182 08/03/2022 $33.11

317183 08/03/2022 $128.47

317184 08/03/2022 $180.10

317185 08/03/2022 $2,000.00

317186 08/03/2022 $1,081.90

317187 08/03/2022 $410.00

317188 08/03/2022 $208.00

317189 08/03/2022 $850.00

317190 08/03/2022 $5,328.24

317191 08/03/2022 $58.74

317192 08/03/2022 $400.00

317193 08/03/2022 $1,796.23

317194 08/03/2022 $117,767.00

317195 08/03/2022 $956.05

317196 08/03/2022 $160.00

317197 08/03/2022 $180.00

317198 08/03/2022 $343.60

317199 08/03/2022 $424.62

317200 08/03/2022 $25.00

317201 08/03/2022 $12,043.02

317202 08/03/2022 $1,556.21

Tonto Basin Chamber of Commerce 

Town of Miami

Town of Payson 

Swinney, Michael, A

T-Mobile USA Inc.

TDS Telecom

State of Arizona

State of Arizona

STRAIN, EDWIN, H

SCIBELLI, JESSICA

Shaw, Teryn

Southwest Gas

Samaritan Veterinary Center

Sanders Family Transport 

Sanofi Pasteur Inc. 

Razor Thin Media, LLC 

Ripple , Denice

Rohtert, Jannette, C

Pacheco, Joseph, G

Payson Roundup Newspaper

R&S Northeast LLC 

Merck Sharp & Dohme Corp.

Morse, Suzanne, L

Old Main Storage 

LeClair Callhan Advertising, LLC 

MAYNARD, CIRCE

McKesson Medical-Surgical Government Solutions LLC

Johnson Controls Security Solutions LLC 

Konica Minolta Business Solutions U.S.A. Inc.

LBiSat LLC

HonorHealth

Jani-Serv, Inc

JC Wordsmith Translation & Interpretation Inc.

High Country Plumbing, Inc.

 user: Amber T Warden Pages: 3 of 22  Thursday, September 1, 2022



*****Gila County*****

Payment Register
From Payment Date: 8/1/2022 - To Payment Date: 8/31/2022

317203 08/03/2022 $2,575.00

317204 08/03/2022 $24,942.99

317205 08/03/2022 $333.33

317206 08/03/2022 $47.75

317208 08/05/2022 $3,579.42

317209 08/05/2022 $244,382.35

317210 08/05/2022 $193,391.79

317211 08/05/2022 $13.50

317212 08/05/2022 $252.11

317213 08/05/2022 $4,273.17

317214 08/05/2022 $22,209.49

317215 08/05/2022 $469.81

317216 08/05/2022 $46.00

317217 08/05/2022 $7,458.68

317218 08/05/2022 $40.90

317219 08/05/2022 $15,085.98

317220 08/05/2022 $14,155.36

317221 08/05/2022 $65.37

317222 08/05/2022 $437.50

317223 08/05/2022 $144.32

317224 08/05/2022 $1,708.35

317225 08/05/2022 $3,225.39

317226 08/05/2022 $30,164.31

317227 08/05/2022 $81,370.06

317228 08/05/2022 $66,926.56

317229 08/05/2022 $66,926.56

317230 08/05/2022 $15,803.86

317231 08/05/2022 $15,803.86

317232 08/05/2022 $400.00

317233 08/05/2022 $7.17

317234 08/05/2022 $4,268.16

317235 08/05/2022 $3,971.63

317236 08/05/2022 $7,477.93

317237 08/05/2022 $595.00NORTHERN ARIZONA LAW ENFORCEMENT ASSOC

NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTIONS

NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTIONS

NATIONWIDE TRUST Co FBO NRS

JP MORGAN CHASE MEDICARE ER

METLIFE

MODERN WOODMEN OF AMERICA

JP MORGAN CHASE FICA EE

JP MORGAN CHASE FICA ER

JP MORGAN CHASE MEDICARE EE

GILSBAR HSA

JP MORGAN CHASE DOR

JP MORGAN CHASE FEDERAL TAX

FIDUCIARY TRUST COMPANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE

GILSBAR FSA

ELECTED OFFICIALS RETIREMENT PLAN

EORP LEGACY

FABER AND BRAND LLC

CORP Cancer Insurance Program

CORRECTIONS OFFICER RETIREMENT PLAN

ELECTED OFFICIALS DEFINED CONTRIBUTION 
RETIREMENT 

COLONIAL SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE 

CORP - AOC

CORP - DISPATCHER

ARIZONA STATE RETIREMENT SYSTEM

AZCOPS

CHILD SUPPORT SERVICES MONTANA

Wist Office Products Company 

AMERICAN FAMILY LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY

ARIZONA LOCAL GOVT EMPLOYEE BENEFIT TRUST PRE 
TAX

US POSTAL SERVICE POSTAGE BY PHONE

VERIZON WIRELESS

Voakes, Donald, R

 user: Amber T Warden Pages: 4 of 22  Thursday, September 1, 2022



*****Gila County*****

Payment Register
From Payment Date: 8/1/2022 - To Payment Date: 8/31/2022

317238 08/05/2022 $18,234.29

317239 08/05/2022 $2,343.33

317240 08/05/2022 $2,461.02

317241 08/05/2022 $265.97

317242 08/05/2022 $893.85

317243 08/05/2022 $1,171.39

317244 08/05/2022 $5,594.00

317245 08/05/2022 $105.00

317246 08/05/2022 $48.00

317247 08/05/2022 $525.00

317248 08/05/2022 $145.00

317249 08/05/2022 $494,841.85

317250 08/05/2022 $51,274.12

317251 08/05/2022 $10,000.00

317252 08/05/2022 $1,000.00

317253 08/05/2022 $42.17

317254 08/05/2022 $77.00

317255 08/05/2022 $120.00

317256 08/05/2022 $105.00

317257 08/05/2022 $105.00

317258 08/05/2022 $105.00

317259 08/05/2022 $105.00

317260 08/05/2022 $70.40

317261 08/05/2022 $105.00

317262 08/05/2022 $155.00

317263 08/05/2022 $67.20

317264 08/05/2022 $105.00

317265 08/05/2022 $38.40

317266 08/05/2022 $155.00

317267 08/05/2022 $38.40

317268 08/05/2022 $145.00

317269 08/05/2022 $155.00

317270 08/05/2022 $623.04

317271 08/05/2022 $240.00

CenturyLink 

Channell, Regina 

CALLAGHAN, MAX, A

Campos, Antonella

Campos, Patricia, A

BROERE, CLAUDIA

Bryant, Jesse, R

Burnette , Vino

Brewer, Jeralyn

Britain, Rodney

Broeder, Charles

Belcher, Thomas, D

Boone, Cathy, Lou

Boyer, Roland, S

Baer, Jeffrey

Bailey, Randall, A

Barsness, Gregory

Armstrong Land Services Inc

AT&T MOBILITY LLC

Atomic Pest Control LLC 

Arizona Local Government Employee Benefit Trust

Arizona Public Service 

Arizona Supreme Court

Allen, George

Americana Polygraph & Private Investigation Srvs

Ardt, Douglas, M

Affilion of Cobre Valley PLLC

Air Evac Services 

Alden, Susan

SUPPORT PAYMENT CLEARINGHOUSE

WI SCTF

Action Automotive & Towing LLC 

PUBLIC SAFETY PERSONNEL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

SECURITY BENEFIT GROUP

 user: Amber T Warden Pages: 5 of 22  Thursday, September 1, 2022



*****Gila County*****

Payment Register
From Payment Date: 8/1/2022 - To Payment Date: 8/31/2022

317272 08/05/2022 $105.00

317273 08/05/2022 $105.00

317274 08/05/2022 $105.00

317275 08/05/2022 $4,902.64

317276 08/05/2022 $181.39

317277 08/05/2022 $2,781.11

317278 08/05/2022 $155.00

317279 08/05/2022 $155.00

317280 08/05/2022 $25,591.00

317281 08/05/2022 $221.00

317282 08/05/2022 $932.55

317283 08/05/2022 $105.00

317284 08/05/2022 $56,850.00

317285 08/05/2022 $1,080.00

317286 08/05/2022 $860.00

317287 08/05/2022 $105.00

317288 08/05/2022 $105.00

317289 08/05/2022 $105.00

317290 08/05/2022 $105.00

317291 08/05/2022 $105.00

317292 08/05/2022 $600.00

317293 08/05/2022 $105.00

317294 08/05/2022 $105.00

317295 08/05/2022 $41.60

317296 08/05/2022 $105.00

317297 08/05/2022 $105.00

317298 08/05/2022 $105.00

317299 08/05/2022 $105.00

317300 08/05/2022 $105.00

317301 08/05/2022 $155.00

317302 08/05/2022 $105.00

317303 08/05/2022 $120.83

317304 08/05/2022 $110.00

317305 08/05/2022 $324.49

Gale

Garcia, Jose, Luis

Gila County Government 

FLORES, LORI, A

Flowers, Rebecca 

Foster, Rosalie

FELDEN, ALICE

FELIX, GEORGE, FIGUEROA

FELIX, RACHEL

ELIA, KIM

Enders, Melva, J

Ennen, Virginia

EBY, CHARLES, J

Economy Inn

EDWARDS, PAUL, L

Dietrich, Daryl

Downer, Benjamin, E

Dye, Shirley

Dease, Iona

DEMAIO, ANTONIO

Dice, Regina, K

Cordant Health Solutions 

Corvinus, Howard, R

County of Graham 

Cole , Sarah, K

Comfort Systems USA (Southwest) Inc 

Concentra Medical Centers 

Cobre Valley Regional Medical Center 

Cobre Valley Regional Medical Center 

Cockrell, Connie

Clouston, Donald, L

Clouston, Molly, A

Cobre Valley Regional Medical Center 

CHICK, KATHERINE, L

 user: Amber T Warden Pages: 6 of 22  Thursday, September 1, 2022



*****Gila County*****

Payment Register
From Payment Date: 8/1/2022 - To Payment Date: 8/31/2022

317307 08/05/2022 $1,843.53

317308 08/05/2022 $1,350.00

317309 08/05/2022 $38.40

317310 08/05/2022 $155.00

317311 08/05/2022 $780.10

317312 08/05/2022 $105.00

317313 08/05/2022 $105.00

317314 08/05/2022 $105.00

317315 08/05/2022 $11,553.79

317316 08/05/2022 $105.00

317317 08/05/2022 $105.00

317318 08/05/2022 $171.20

317319 08/05/2022 $64.00

317320 08/05/2022 $710.35

317321 08/05/2022 $890.40

317322 08/05/2022 $155.00

317323 08/05/2022 $155.00

317324 08/05/2022 $105.00

317325 08/05/2022 $105.00

317326 08/05/2022 $105.00

317327 08/05/2022 $105.00

317328 08/05/2022 $105.00

317329 08/05/2022 $155.00

317330 08/05/2022 $244.00

317331 08/05/2022 $105.00

317332 08/05/2022 $783.89

317333 08/05/2022 $169.13

317334 08/05/2022 $105.00

317335 08/05/2022 $105.00

317336 08/05/2022 $3,000.00

317337 08/05/2022 $105.00

317338 08/05/2022 $155.00

317339 08/05/2022 $110.00

317340 08/05/2022 $165.10LOWE, KRISTIN

LOVDAHL JR, RICHARD, H

Loving, Valerie

Lovins, MaryAnn

Ladrigan, Richard

Leavens, Jerre, L

LeClair Callhan Advertising, LLC 

KOCH, BETTY, SUZANNE

Konica Minolta Business Solutions U.S.A. Inc.

KS StateBank 

KENYON, CATHERINE, J

Key, Brenda, J

Kirch, Mark

Juniper, Vanessa

KAHN, VERNA, M

Kayson, Marie, A

JONES, DEBORAH, V

Jones, Lois

Jones, Robert

Huggins, Ricki, S

Iron Mountain

JaLin Enterprises Inc. 

HERREN, CYNTHIA

Herzog, Judy, M

Hicks , Shane

HARGIS, SUSAN

Hathaway, James , D

Hawker & Evans Asphalt Inc 

Gooday, Rosie, A

GreatAmerica Leasing Corporation 

Hamill, Peni, L

GlaxoSmithKline LLC 

Globe Mobile Home Park

Gonzales, Joseph, X

 user: Amber T Warden Pages: 7 of 22  Thursday, September 1, 2022



*****Gila County*****

Payment Register
From Payment Date: 8/1/2022 - To Payment Date: 8/31/2022

317341 08/05/2022 $145.00

317342 08/05/2022 $105.00

317343 08/05/2022 $105.00

317344 08/05/2022 $155.00

317345 08/05/2022 $105.00

317346 08/05/2022 $2,485.45

317347 08/05/2022 $120.00

317348 08/05/2022 $51.20

317349 08/05/2022 $51.20

317350 08/05/2022 $64.00

317351 08/05/2022 $540.52

317352 08/05/2022 $46.20

317353 08/05/2022 $105.00

317354 08/05/2022 $44.80

317355 08/05/2022 $44.80

317356 08/05/2022 $105.00

317357 08/05/2022 $9.00

317358 08/05/2022 $105.00

317359 08/05/2022 $105.00

317361 08/05/2022 $70.40

317362 08/05/2022 $105.00

317363 08/05/2022 $105.00

317364 08/05/2022 $105.00

317365 08/05/2022 $1,500.91

317366 08/05/2022 $105.00

317367 08/05/2022 $70.40

317368 08/05/2022 $70.40

317369 08/05/2022 $155.00

317370 08/05/2022 $155.00

317371 08/05/2022 $105.00

317372 08/05/2022 $188.79

317373 08/05/2022 $105.00

317374 08/05/2022 $484.17

317375 08/05/2022 $2,851.20

San Carlos Apache Tribe

Satellite Phone Store 

RUPPVEEUT, PHILIP

Rural Physicians Group - Pannu, PLLC

Ryan, Pamela, C

Rogers, William, Thomas

Rowe, Maryann, L

RUIZ, GLORIA, D

Rim Communications

ROBINSON, MARLANA, AMY

Rogers , Olga

PRESTON, SPENCER, P

Rasmussen, James

Riley, Crystal

PETTET, NANCY, J

Pope, Ubreka

Power , Victor, Owen

Pacheco, Lacey, N

Paulus, Gayle

Payson Justice Court

OffenderWatch

Orear, Frances, L

Pacheco, Joseph, G

Moorhead, Samuel

Mundy, Dixie

ODP Business Solutions, LLC 

Merck Sharp & Dohme Corp.

Modglin, Lisa, M

Moorhead, Judith

Mathis , Sharon, K

McKinney, Michael, Lynn

Medina, Jerri, L

Lupe, Randy

Martin, Christine

 user: Amber T Warden Pages: 8 of 22  Thursday, September 1, 2022



*****Gila County*****

Payment Register
From Payment Date: 8/1/2022 - To Payment Date: 8/31/2022

317376 08/05/2022 $41.60

317377 08/05/2022 $105.00

317378 08/05/2022 $105.00

317379 08/05/2022 $105.00

317380 08/05/2022 $155.00

317381 08/05/2022 $213.60

317382 08/05/2022 $262.42

317383 08/05/2022 $105.00

317384 08/05/2022 $105.00

317385 08/05/2022 $105.00

317386 08/05/2022 $1,270.72

317387 08/05/2022 $38.40

317388 08/05/2022 $148.07

317389 08/05/2022 $60.80

317390 08/05/2022 $105.00

317391 08/05/2022 $25.00

317392 08/05/2022 $105.00

317393 08/05/2022 $105.00

317394 08/05/2022 $105.00

317395 08/05/2022 $229.65

317396 08/05/2022 $6,048.07

317397 08/05/2022 $105.00

317398 08/05/2022 $105.00

317399 08/05/2022 $187.50

317400 08/05/2022 $319.10

317401 08/05/2022 $70.40

317402 08/05/2022 $48.00

317403 08/05/2022 $105.00

317404 08/05/2022 $105.00

317405 08/05/2022 $124.78

317406 08/05/2022 $110.00

317407 08/05/2022 $393.56

317408 08/05/2022 $49.50

317409 08/05/2022 $155.00

Waste Management of Arizona, Inc. 

Waters Sparkletts of Payson, LLC

WATTS, ROSE, A

Via, Harley, J

VM HEALTH INITIATIVES LLC

Waddell, Gloria, A

Uribe, Elijah, K

Valenzuela, Jenny

Van Keuren, Denise, D

TURTCHIN, JOHN, F

Tyler Technologies, Inc.

UniFirst Corporation

Tonto Rim Search & Rescue Squad Inc.

Triplet Mountain Communications, Inc. 

Truax, Larue

Thompson, Catherine, Jean

Thompson, Elton

Tolle, Judith

Speer , Jack

Stroud, Barbara

Thermo-Fluids, Inc. 

Skaggs Public Safety Uniforms & Equipment

Sluyter, Cheryl, L

Sparklight

SHUGART, DOUGLAS, M

SHUGART, TERRY, COLLEEN

Singleton, Crystal

Shafferkoetter, Judy

SHEER, MIKAYLA

Shred-It

Schiedewind , Kathryn

SCHULTZ, ROBERT, JOHN

Schwenk, Lynda

Savage, Debora

 user: Amber T Warden Pages: 9 of 22  Thursday, September 1, 2022



*****Gila County*****

Payment Register
From Payment Date: 8/1/2022 - To Payment Date: 8/31/2022

317410 08/05/2022 $105.00

317411 08/05/2022 $9,595.05

317412 08/05/2022 $105.00

317413 08/05/2022 $105.00

317414 08/05/2022 $67.20

317415 08/05/2022 $101,777.76

317416 08/08/2022 $2,881.27

317417 08/08/2022 $3,740.00

317418 08/08/2022 $1,487.02

317419 08/08/2022 $1,801.56

317420 08/08/2022 $409.20

317421 08/08/2022 $15,191.00

317422 08/08/2022 $2,707.18

317423 08/08/2022 $287,293.35

317424 08/08/2022 $6,000.00

317425 08/08/2022 $422.50

317426 08/08/2022 $435.00

317427 08/08/2022 $82.86

317428 08/08/2022 $632.06

317429 08/08/2022 $1,792.75

317430 08/08/2022 $1,019.92

317431 08/08/2022 $206.08

317432 08/08/2022 $52,991.46

317433 08/08/2022 $1,000.00

317434 08/08/2022 $114.45

317435 08/08/2022 $66.83

317436 08/08/2022 $5,264.65

317437 08/08/2022 $229.60

317438 08/09/2022 $10,000.00

317440 08/09/2022 $43.00

317441 08/09/2022 $21,668.75

317442 08/09/2022 $159,528.97

317443 08/09/2022 $77.91

317444 08/09/2022 $499.23Arizona Public Service 

ADVANCED ACCIDENT RECONSTRUCTION & ANIMATION 
LLCAPIC Solutions, Inc.

Arizona Department of Revenue

Vaishville, Denise, R

Hayes Enterprises, Inc

State of Arizona

Suddenlink

THE ARIZONA REPUBLIC

Tri-City Fire District 

SPOK, Inc.

State of Arizona

Suddenlink

Rives, Larry, Leroy

Salt River Project

Sonoran Radiology Ltd

Language Connection 

Messinger Payson Funeral Home

Pine-Strawberry Water Improvement District

Dollywood Foundation 

Gila County Government 

Jonathan L. Warshaw 

Arizona Supreme Court

Cobre Valley Publishing 

Cobre Valley Regional Medical Center 

Arizona Department of Administration 

Arizona Supreme Court

Arizona Supreme Court

Williams, Eddie

Williams, Stevan

Wowza LLC

Weintraut, Philip

Westwood Pharmacy

WILCOX, DAVID, E

 user: Amber T Warden Pages: 10 of 22  Thursday, September 1, 2022



*****Gila County*****

Payment Register
From Payment Date: 8/1/2022 - To Payment Date: 8/31/2022

317445 08/09/2022 $535.00

317446 08/09/2022 $550.40

317447 08/09/2022 $1,974.77

317448 08/09/2022 $307.20

317449 08/09/2022 $624.43

317450 08/09/2022 $413.96

317451 08/09/2022 $617.43

317452 08/09/2022 $456.51

317453 08/09/2022 $10,000.00

317454 08/09/2022 $259.34

317455 08/09/2022 $15.00

317456 08/09/2022 $217.60

317457 08/09/2022 $120.00

317458 08/09/2022 $205.85

317459 08/09/2022 $110.92

317460 08/09/2022 $2,222.50

317461 08/09/2022 $2,160.00

317462 08/09/2022 $10,181.87

317463 08/09/2022 $773.76

317464 08/09/2022 $773.76

317465 08/09/2022 $770.56

317466 08/09/2022 $8.00

317467 08/09/2022 $30,202.38

317468 08/09/2022 $340.00

317469 08/09/2022 $4.40

317470 08/09/2022 $2,000.00

317471 08/09/2022 $15,615.00

317472 08/09/2022 $99.20

317473 08/09/2022 $38.40

317474 08/09/2022 $140.00

317475 08/09/2022 $773.76

317476 08/09/2022 $3,984.84

317477 08/09/2022 $2,144.54

317478 08/09/2022 $36,393.44

Sanofi Pasteur Inc. 

Senergy Petroleum 

Rogers, David

Rogers, William, Thomas

RWC International, LTD

Pinal County

Porter, Peggy

QUEZADA, DANNY

Ong, Siew, C

Payson Justice Court

Pegboard 

Mundy, Dixie

NORTHSTAR SURVEYING INC

Oddonetto Construction 

Merck Sharp & Dohme Corp.

Moorhead, Judith

Moorhead, Samuel

Language Line Services, Inc.

Law Office of John S. Perlman, LLC 

Maxim Staffing Solutions 

Hamill, Peni, L

Haverland, Mike , Lance 

HealthEquity, Inc 

Gila County Government 

Gila County Government 

Green Valley Water 

CenturyLink 

CenturyLink 

Cobre Valley Publishing 

Brightly Software, Inc. 

Broeder, Charles

Carahsoft Technology Corporation 

Arizona State Prison Globe 

Barefoot, Marion, J

 user: Amber T Warden Pages: 11 of 22  Thursday, September 1, 2022



*****Gila County*****

Payment Register
From Payment Date: 8/1/2022 - To Payment Date: 8/31/2022

317479 08/09/2022 $1,710.00

317480 08/09/2022 $275.20

317481 08/09/2022 $748.26

317482 08/09/2022 $70.40

317483 08/09/2022 $32,423.55

317484 08/09/2022 $8.00

317485 08/09/2022 $1,800.00

317486 08/09/2022 $1,629.61

317487 08/09/2022 $144.00

317488 08/09/2022 $114.42

317489 08/09/2022 $203.21

317490 08/09/2022 $87.07

317491 08/10/2022 $112.50

317492 08/10/2022 $150.20

317493 08/10/2022 $500,067.48

317494 08/10/2022 $179.73

317495 08/10/2022 $4,856.52

317496 08/10/2022 $23,523.90

317497 08/10/2022 $301.98

317498 08/10/2022 $240.00

317499 08/10/2022 $4,200.00

317500 08/10/2022 $1,400.00

317501 08/10/2022 $9,902.61

317502 08/10/2022 $1,397.40

317503 08/10/2022 $890.40

317504 08/10/2022 $1,693.50

317505 08/10/2022 $105.00

317506 08/10/2022 $6,000.00

317507 08/10/2022 $992.80

317508 08/10/2022 $300.00

317509 08/10/2022 $1,081.90

317510 08/10/2022 $16,953.51

317511 08/10/2022 $2,905.42

317512 08/10/2022 $5,500.00

Smith, Stephen, B

Sparklight

State of Arizona

Payson Roundup Newspaper

Prine, Dorine

Ripple , Denice

Jellison Law Offices PLLC 

MOSES, DACEY

Nelson, Timothy

Empire Southwest LLC 

Fiesta Business Products 

JaLin Enterprises Inc. 

Channell, Regina 

City of Globe 

Cobre Valley Publishing 

Canyon Country Design Inc

CDW Government 

CenturyLink 

Action Automotive & Towing LLC 

Arizona Local Government Employee Benefit Trust

Bank of the West 

Waste Management of Arizona, Inc. 

Western Reprographics, LLC 

Haverland, Mike , Lance 

Suddenlink

Swinney, Michael, A

UniFirst Corporation

State of Arizona

State of Arizona

State of Arizona

Singleton, Crystal

Sparklight

Speer, Patrick, A

Sims Mackin LTD

 user: Amber T Warden Pages: 12 of 22  Thursday, September 1, 2022



*****Gila County*****

Payment Register
From Payment Date: 8/1/2022 - To Payment Date: 8/31/2022

317513 08/10/2022 $83.71

317514 08/10/2022 $3,156.14

317515 08/10/2022 $50.22

317516 08/10/2022 $32,909.92

317517 08/10/2022 $36.01

317518 08/10/2022 $60.00

317519 08/11/2022 $490.00

317520 08/11/2022 $13,652.56

317521 08/11/2022 $1,708.28

317522 08/11/2022 $1,377.06

317523 08/11/2022 $210.00

317524 08/11/2022 $1,661.05

317525 08/11/2022 $171.77

317526 08/11/2022 $234.96

317527 08/11/2022 $18.25

317528 08/11/2022 $77.43

317529 08/11/2022 $1,257.72

317530 08/11/2022 $1,160.00

317531 08/11/2022 $22,500.00

317532 08/11/2022 $2,502.04

317533 08/11/2022 $461.19

317534 08/11/2022 $2,331.00

317535 08/11/2022 $151.40

317536 08/11/2022 $159.76

317537 08/11/2022 $617.16

317538 08/11/2022 $6,000.00

317539 08/11/2022 $32.96

317540 08/11/2022 $25.00

317541 08/11/2022 $645.39

317542 08/11/2022 $1,439.38

317543 08/11/2022 $174.78

317544 08/11/2022 $93.78

317545 08/11/2022 $209.59

317546 08/11/2022 $95.23Llewellyn, Lana

Konica Minolta Business Solutions U.S.A. Inc.

Language Line Services, Inc.

LATHROP, KAYLE

Hansen, Rachel

Hernandez, Sylvia , A

HOV Services Inc.

Gila County Government 

Gregan & Associates 

Guevara, Tammy, C

Family Transitions 

FISCHBECK, JOHN

Gerard , Cristie , A

County of Yavapai

CRM of America LLC 

Digital Imaging Systems, LLC

Carlson, Christina 

CenturyLink 

Copper State Sanitation, Inc 

Braddock, Karrol, L

Branson, Timothy

Bryant, Jesse, R

Arizona Public Service 

Atomic Pest Control LLC 

BI Inc 

Advanced Controls Corporation 

Arizona Counties Insurance Pool 

Arizona Department of Revenue

Trinity Services Group, Inc.

UniFirst Corporation

Waters Sparkletts of Payson, LLC

Thermo-Fluids, Inc. 

Thomson Reuters West 

Town of Payson 

 user: Amber T Warden Pages: 13 of 22  Thursday, September 1, 2022



*****Gila County*****

Payment Register
From Payment Date: 8/1/2022 - To Payment Date: 8/31/2022

317547 08/11/2022 $89.69

317548 08/11/2022 $26.17

317549 08/11/2022 $18.42

317550 08/11/2022 $530.60

317551 08/11/2022 $5,000.00

317552 08/11/2022 $20.18

317553 08/11/2022 $7,812.49

317554 08/11/2022 $103.24

317555 08/11/2022 $24,453.00

317556 08/11/2022 $613.97

317557 08/11/2022 $9,835.44

317558 08/11/2022 $72.09

317559 08/11/2022 $103.86

317560 08/11/2022 $461.92

317561 08/15/2022 $225.00

317562 08/15/2022 $1,050.00

317563 08/15/2022 $304.81

317564 08/15/2022 $117.56

317565 08/15/2022 $294.74

317566 08/15/2022 $700.00

317567 08/15/2022 $9,954.00

317568 08/15/2022 $140.00

317569 08/15/2022 $41,515.97

317570 08/15/2022 $6,720.00

317571 08/15/2022 $335.41

317572 08/15/2022 $518.88

317573 08/15/2022 $10,000.00

317574 08/15/2022 $1,490.55

317575 08/15/2022 $400.00

317576 08/15/2022 $18.36

317577 08/15/2022 $3,240.00

317578 08/15/2022 $1,216.33

317579 08/15/2022 $1,091.72

317580 08/15/2022 $15,000.00

Oasis Print Services 

Payson Rodeo Committee, Inc.

Lionbridge Technologies, Inc 

Maxim Staffing Solutions 

Messinger Payson Funeral Home

Hayes Enterprises, Inc

Hot Topic Printing LLC 

Kesterson, Isaiah 

Dixon Rock & Materials LLC 

Fiesta Business Products 

FX Tactical LLC 

Collins & Collins, Attorneys At Law, LLP 

Daisy Flores Law & Associates, P.C.

Dell Marketing LP

Carahsoft Technology Corporation 

CenturyLink 

City of Globe 

Atomic Pest Control LLC 

Banner - University Medical Group 

C&M Communications LLC 

Trimble, Kalen

UniFirst Corporation

Wolak, David

State of Arizona

Thomson Reuters West 

Tioga Solor Gila, LLC 

Romero, Barbara

Sanofi Pasteur Inc. 

Sneezy, Monika, N

Payson Magistrate Court

Pegboard 

Policy Development Group Inc. 

McKesson Medical-Surgical Government Solutions LLC

Pacheco, Joseph, G

 user: Amber T Warden Pages: 14 of 22  Thursday, September 1, 2022



*****Gila County*****

Payment Register
From Payment Date: 8/1/2022 - To Payment Date: 8/31/2022

317581 08/15/2022 $404.30

317582 08/15/2022 $3,100.00

317583 08/15/2022 $33.25

317584 08/15/2022 $2,785.30

317585 08/15/2022 $29.96

317586 08/15/2022 $6,371.33

317587 08/15/2022 $520.45

317588 08/15/2022 $72.09

317589 08/15/2022 $181.25

317590 08/15/2022 $254.12

317591 08/16/2022 $43.00

317592 08/16/2022 $43.00

317593 08/16/2022 $110.64

317594 08/16/2022 $107.63

317595 08/16/2022 $577.50

317596 08/16/2022 $829.28

317597 08/16/2022 $95.00

317598 08/16/2022 $165.00

317599 08/16/2022 $865.00

317600 08/16/2022 $475.00

317601 08/16/2022 $340.00

317602 08/16/2022 $152.75

317603 08/16/2022 $72.10

317604 08/16/2022 $30.00

317605 08/16/2022 $28,600.00

317606 08/16/2022 $340.00

317607 08/16/2022 $120.00

317608 08/16/2022 $11.90

317609 08/16/2022 $477.61

317610 08/16/2022 $175.00

317611 08/16/2022 $342.19

317612 08/16/2022 $25.00

317613 08/16/2022 $243.17

317614 08/16/2022 $480.00

LAFAVE, RYAN

McLarty, Robert, G

Power , Victor, Owen

Kenz & Leslie of Arizona, Inc. 

Kerszykowski, Leonard, G

Konica Minolta Business Solutions U.S.A. Inc.

Guenther, Karol

Haverland, Mike , Lance 

HLP, Inc.

Chambers, Bryan, B

Cobre Valley Regional Medical Center 

County of Yavapai

BLOOD ALCOHOL TESTING & CONSULTING LLC

Boyer, Roland, S

CenturyLink 

Arizona State Prison Globe 

Atomic Pest Control LLC 

Belling, Madeline, M

Tonto Rim Search & Rescue Squad Inc.

Advanced Controls Corporation 

Arizona Public Service 

State of Arizona

State of Arizona

Tonto Rim Search & Rescue Squad Inc.

Trimble, Kalen

UniFirst Corporation

US Imaging Inc.

Southwest Gas

State of Arizona

State of Arizona

Pride Plumbing 

Reyes, Edward, A

Ripple , Denice

Personnel Safety Enterprises, Inc 

 user: Amber T Warden Pages: 15 of 22  Thursday, September 1, 2022



*****Gila County*****

Payment Register
From Payment Date: 8/1/2022 - To Payment Date: 8/31/2022

317615 08/16/2022 $1,370.00

317616 08/16/2022 $8,052.83

317617 08/16/2022 $200.00

317618 08/16/2022 $190.69

317619 08/16/2022 $146.58

317620 08/16/2022 $144.00

317621 08/16/2022 $480.00

317622 08/16/2022 $116.82

317623 08/16/2022 $110.36

317624 08/16/2022 $51.73

317625 08/16/2022 $360.45

317627 08/19/2022 $3,579.42

317628 08/19/2022 $248,619.94

317629 08/19/2022 $194,433.94

317630 08/19/2022 $13.50

317631 08/19/2022 $252.11

317632 08/19/2022 $4,246.29

317633 08/19/2022 $22,211.70

317634 08/19/2022 $469.81

317635 08/19/2022 $50.00

317636 08/19/2022 $7,376.55

317637 08/19/2022 $40.90

317638 08/19/2022 $15,085.98

317639 08/19/2022 $14,155.36

317640 08/19/2022 $65.37

317641 08/19/2022 $437.50

317642 08/19/2022 $144.32

317643 08/19/2022 $1,708.35

317644 08/19/2022 $3,225.39

317645 08/19/2022 $30,954.17

317646 08/19/2022 $84,371.05

317647 08/19/2022 $68,264.51

317648 08/19/2022 $68,264.51

317649 08/19/2022 $16,116.68JP MORGAN CHASE MEDICARE EE

JP MORGAN CHASE FEDERAL TAX

JP MORGAN CHASE FICA EE

JP MORGAN CHASE FICA ER

GILSBAR FSA

GILSBAR HSA

JP MORGAN CHASE DOR

FABER AND BRAND LLC

FIDUCIARY TRUST COMPANY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE

ELECTED OFFICIALS DEFINED CONTRIBUTION 
RETIREMENT ELECTED OFFICIALS RETIREMENT PLAN

EORP LEGACY

CORP - DISPATCHER

CORP Cancer Insurance Program

CORRECTIONS OFFICER RETIREMENT PLAN

CHILD SUPPORT SERVICES MONTANA

COLONIAL SUPPLEMENTAL INSURANCE 

CORP - AOC

ARIZONA LOCAL GOVT EMPLOYEE BENEFIT TRUST PRE 
TAXARIZONA STATE RETIREMENT SYSTEM

AZCOPS

Western Reprographics, LLC 

Wright , Timothy

AMERICAN FAMILY LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY

Tarango, James, G

TDS Telecom

VALGENTO, JESSICA

Sparklight

Suddenlink

Swinney, Michael, A

Samaritan Veterinary Center

Senergy Petroleum 

Shaw, Teryn

 user: Amber T Warden Pages: 16 of 22  Thursday, September 1, 2022



*****Gila County*****

Payment Register
From Payment Date: 8/1/2022 - To Payment Date: 8/31/2022

317650 08/19/2022 $16,116.68

317651 08/19/2022 $400.00

317652 08/19/2022 $7.17

317653 08/19/2022 $4,268.16

317654 08/19/2022 $3,925.00

317655 08/19/2022 $7,858.55

317656 08/19/2022 $577.50

317657 08/19/2022 $18,476.34

317658 08/19/2022 $2,343.33

317659 08/19/2022 $2,107.52

317660 08/19/2022 $690.43

317661 08/19/2022 $265.97

317662 08/17/2022 $320.00

317663 08/17/2022 $430.92

317664 08/17/2022 $79.00

317665 08/17/2022 $542.04

317666 08/17/2022 $1,077.40

317667 08/17/2022 $230.00

317668 08/17/2022 $7,548.40

317669 08/17/2022 $3,800.00

317670 08/17/2022 $13.60

317671 08/17/2022 $138.57

317672 08/17/2022 $177.14

317673 08/17/2022 $150.00

317674 08/17/2022 $3,022.96

317675 08/17/2022 $890.40

317676 08/17/2022 $97.40

317677 08/17/2022 $1,754.64

317678 08/17/2022 $574.01

317679 08/17/2022 $268.72

317680 08/17/2022 $200.00

317681 08/17/2022 $4,102.16

317682 08/17/2022 $183.71

317683 08/17/2022 $419.01

Quadient Leasing USA, Inc.

Quality Pumping

ODP Business Solutions, LLC 

Pontel, Susan, A

ProForce Law Enforcement 

Johnson Controls Security Solutions LLC 

Merck Sharp & Dohme Corp.

Messinger Payson Funeral Home

Golden, Mike

Interior Solutions 

JaLin Enterprises Inc. 

FedEx

Freightliner of Arizona, LLC 

GIBSON, BONITA, OLIVIA

County Supervisors Association of Arizona 

CRM of America LLC 

Dibble Engineering

ASAP Serve LLC 

CenturyLink 

Cobre Village Apartments 

WI SCTF

Apache Mobile Home & RV Park LLC 

Arizona Department of Revenue

SECURITY BENEFIT GROUP

SUPPORT PAYMENT CLEARINGHOUSE

THUNDERBIRD COLLECTION SPEC INC

NATIONWIDE TRUST Co FBO NRS

NORTHERN ARIZONA LAW ENFORCEMENT ASSOC

PUBLIC SAFETY PERSONNEL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

MODERN WOODMEN OF AMERICA

NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTIONS

NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT SOLUTIONS

JP MORGAN CHASE MEDICARE ER

METLIFE

 user: Amber T Warden Pages: 17 of 22  Thursday, September 1, 2022



*****Gila County*****

Payment Register
From Payment Date: 8/1/2022 - To Payment Date: 8/31/2022

317684 08/17/2022 $5,338.86

317685 08/17/2022 $1,275.00

317686 08/17/2022 $7,491.00

317687 08/17/2022 $1,600.00

317688 08/17/2022 $156.43

317689 08/17/2022 $20.00

317690 08/24/2022 $5,281.67

317691 08/24/2022 $469.15

317692 08/24/2022 $200.00

317693 08/24/2022 $100.00

317694 08/24/2022 $66.45

317695 08/24/2022 $11.46

317696 08/24/2022 $75.00

317697 08/24/2022 $7,000.00

317698 08/24/2022 $403.99

317699 08/24/2022 $48.29

317700 08/24/2022 $368.07

317701 08/24/2022 $112,246.40

317702 08/24/2022 $1,323.57

317703 08/24/2022 $16,199.18

317704 08/24/2022 $240.00

317705 08/24/2022 $460.00

317706 08/24/2022 $8,220.00

317707 08/24/2022 $400.00

317708 08/24/2022 $1,550.00

317709 08/24/2022 $40.46

317710 08/24/2022 $2,952.40

317711 08/24/2022 $362.73

317712 08/24/2022 $105.00

317713 08/24/2022 $140.00

317714 08/24/2022 $330.00

317715 08/24/2022 $890.40

317716 08/24/2022 $373.36

317717 08/24/2022 $1,400.36

JaLin Enterprises Inc. 

King, Joanie , S

Konica Minolta Business Solutions U.S.A. Inc.

Haverland, Mike , Lance 

Huddleston, James, E

International Institute of Municipal Clerks 

FedEx

Globe Marketplace LP

Green Valley Water 

Dixon Rock & Materials LLC 

Economy Inn

Family Transitions 

CenturyLink Business Services 

Channell, Regina 

County Supervisors Association of Arizona 

Carlson, Christina 

CDW Government 

CenturyLink 

Bose Public Affairs Group LLC 

C&M Communications LLC 

Cadue, Angela

Arizona Water Company

AT&T

Banner Payson Medical Center 

Arizona Supreme Court

Arizona Supreme Court

Arizona Supreme Court

Tonto Rim Search & Rescue Squad Inc.

Victor, Arlene

Arizona Public Service 

Sanders Family Transport 

Sheppard, Marian, E

Swank Movie Licensing USA

Saguaro Diving & Sports Inc. 

 user: Amber T Warden Pages: 18 of 22  Thursday, September 1, 2022



*****Gila County*****

Payment Register
From Payment Date: 8/1/2022 - To Payment Date: 8/31/2022

317718 08/24/2022 $370.00

317719 08/24/2022 $145.06

317720 08/24/2022 $135.28

317721 08/24/2022 $38.08

317722 08/24/2022 $2,691.85

317723 08/24/2022 $1,700.00

317724 08/24/2022 $170.26

317725 08/24/2022 $35.00

317726 08/24/2022 $10,000.00

317727 08/24/2022 $19.71

317728 08/24/2022 $186.32

317729 08/24/2022 $214.57

317730 08/24/2022 $94.30

317731 08/24/2022 $725.40

317732 08/24/2022 $23.68

317733 08/24/2022 $7,132.08

317734 08/24/2022 $130.00

317735 08/24/2022 $182.75

317736 08/24/2022 $27,228.26

317737 08/24/2022 $29.38

317738 08/24/2022 $168.90

317739 08/24/2022 $355.87

317740 08/24/2022 $15.85

317741 08/24/2022 $1,509.00

317742 08/24/2022 $9.60

317743 08/24/2022 $10.00

317744 08/24/2022 $10.00

317745 08/24/2022 $209.88

317746 08/24/2022 $424.62

317747 08/24/2022 $25.00

317748 08/24/2022 $72.09

317749 08/24/2022 $425.16

317750 08/24/2022 $225.64

317751 08/24/2022 $25,878.41VERIZON WIRELESS

Trimble, Kalen

UniFirst Corporation

US Imaging Inc.

TDS Telecom

TDS Telecom

Tonto Basin Chamber of Commerce 

State of Arizona

State of Arizona

State of Arizona

Sparklight

SPOK, Inc.

Stanley Convergent Security Solutions

Senergy Petroleum 

Southwest Gas

Southwest Gas

Sanofi Pasteur Inc. 

SATATHITE, KENNETH

Segletes, Regina

R&S Northeast LLC 

Ripple , Denice

RUTLEDGE, ADRIEAN

Postnet

Quality Pumping

R&M Repeater 

ODP Business Solutions, LLC 

OffenderWatch

Partly Cloudy LLC 

MCI Communication Services, Inc.

Messinger Payson Funeral Home

Northstar Transport LLC 

Language Connection 

Lantz, Mariah

Larkin, Paul, R

 user: Amber T Warden Pages: 19 of 22  Thursday, September 1, 2022



*****Gila County*****

Payment Register
From Payment Date: 8/1/2022 - To Payment Date: 8/31/2022

317752 08/24/2022 $44.00

317753 08/24/2022 $3,900.00

317754 08/24/2022 $26.51

317755 08/24/2022 $66.92

317756 08/24/2022 $66.92

317757 08/24/2022 $15.65

317758 08/24/2022 $15.65

317759 08/24/2022 $567.50

317760 08/24/2022 $567.50

317761 08/24/2022 $537.50

317762 08/25/2022 $170.00

317763 08/25/2022 $233.60

317764 08/25/2022 $120.00

317765 08/25/2022 $117.29

317766 08/25/2022 $150.00

317767 08/25/2022 $105.54

317768 08/25/2022 $150.00

317769 08/25/2022 $150.00

317770 08/25/2022 $150.00

317771 08/25/2022 $150.00

317772 08/25/2022 $325.46

317773 08/25/2022 $47,000.00

317774 08/25/2022 $1,520.00

317775 08/25/2022 $26,800.00

317776 08/25/2022 $770.00

317777 08/25/2022 $1,690.55

317778 08/25/2022 $5,400.00

317779 08/25/2022 $100.00

317780 08/25/2022 $175.00

317781 08/25/2022 $150.00

317782 08/25/2022 $107.05

317783 08/25/2022 $150.00

317784 08/25/2022 $571.43

317785 08/25/2022 $150.00

Rohtert, Jannette, C

Roosevelt Baptist Church 

Payson First Church of the Nazarene

Ricoh USA, Inc.

Rim View Community Church 

Maxim Staffing Solutions 

Morse, Suzanne, L

Mount Cross Lutheran Church

ICS Jail Supplies Inc 

JW Fansler Resources LLC 

Konica Minolta Business Solutions U.S.A. Inc.

Gale

Gila House Inc

HonorHealth

East Verde Baptist Church

Expedition Church 

FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH OF PINE

Carrizo Apache Assembly of God 

CenturyLink 

Christopher Creek Community Bible Fellowship 

Alliant Arizona Propane, LLC

Askew, Yvonne

C&M Communications LLC 

IVY FUNDS

IVY FUNDS

A Foreign Language Service

JP MORGAN CHASE MEDICARE EE

JP MORGAN CHASE MEDICARE ER

IVY FUNDS

JP MORGAN CHASE DOR

JP MORGAN CHASE FICA EE

JP MORGAN CHASE FICA ER

Waters Sparkletts of Payson, LLC

Western Technologies Inc. 

 user: Amber T Warden Pages: 20 of 22  Thursday, September 1, 2022



*****Gila County*****

Payment Register
From Payment Date: 8/1/2022 - To Payment Date: 8/31/2022

317786 08/25/2022 $73.28

317787 08/25/2022 $1,186.51

317788 08/25/2022 $5,124.51

317789 08/25/2022 $921.00

317790 08/25/2022 $100.00

317791 08/25/2022 $238.91

317792 08/25/2022 $1,656.17

317793 08/25/2022 $15.00

317794 08/25/2022 $245.60

317795 08/26/2022 $49,560.22

317796 08/26/2022 $150.00

317797 08/26/2022 $720.00

317798 08/26/2022 $250,000.00

317799 08/26/2022 $162.63

317800 08/26/2022 $72,438.84

317801 08/26/2022 $294.56

317802 08/26/2022 $4,250.03

317803 08/26/2022 $1,008.73

317804 08/26/2022 $350.00

317805 08/26/2022 $315.64

317806 08/26/2022 $532.44

317807 08/29/2022 $11,041.00

317808 08/29/2022 $2,762.19

317809 08/29/2022 $274.46

317810 08/29/2022 $9,000.00

317811 08/29/2022 $3,128.17

317812 08/29/2022 $1,176.90

317813 08/29/2022 $2,249.72

317814 08/29/2022 $13,393.61

317815 08/29/2022 $105.00

317816 08/29/2022 $1,266.00

317817 08/29/2022 $3,235.25

317818 08/29/2022 $1,792.94

317819 08/29/2022 $90.00

JE Fuller/Hydrology & Geomorphology, Inc

Konica Minolta Business Solutions U.S.A. Inc.

Multitech

Diversified Flooring Services - Phoenix, LLC 

Haverland, Mike , Lance 

HOV Services Inc.

C&M Communications LLC 

CenturyLink 

CenturyLink Business Services 

Arizona Elite Commercial 

Arizona Water Company

Barry A. Standifird P.C.

MTE Communications 

Nader, Emily

Allegiance Builders LLC 

Kimley-Horn & Associates, Inc.

Konica Minolta Business Solutions U.S.A. Inc.

LEGAL AND LIABILITY RISK MANAGEMENT INSTITUTE

Healthcare Medical Waste Services, Inc.

JE Fuller/Hydrology & Geomorphology, Inc

JONES, LINDA , K

Brunson, Jeremy, L

Channell, Regina 

Gila County Community College 

Waters Sparkletts of Payson, LLC

Wisdom, Edward, E

Arizona Public Service 

Tonto Basin Chamber of Commerce 

UniFirst Corporation

VERIZON WIRELESS

Security Transport Services, Inc. 

Skaggs Public Safety Uniforms & Equipment

Sparkletts Water 

Scott, John

 user: Amber T Warden Pages: 21 of 22  Thursday, September 1, 2022



*****Gila County*****

Payment Register
From Payment Date: 8/1/2022 - To Payment Date: 8/31/2022

317820 08/29/2022 $71.07

317821 08/29/2022 $553.90

317822 08/29/2022 $3,044.72

317823 08/29/2022 $37.81

317824 08/29/2022 $300.00

317825 08/29/2022 $785.40

317826 08/29/2022 $24,760.59

317827 08/29/2022 $70.00

317828 08/29/2022 $233.43

317829 08/29/2022 $225.84

317830 08/29/2022 $126.50

317831 08/29/2022 $786.86

317832 08/29/2022 $67.48

317833 08/29/2022 $333.33

317834 08/30/2022 $1,657.75

317835 08/30/2022 $33.64

317836 08/30/2022 $790.00

317837 08/30/2022 $1,200.00

317838 08/30/2022 $150.00

317839 08/30/2022 $1,290.34

317840 08/30/2022 $20.00

317841 08/30/2022 $145.00

317842 08/30/2022 $8,544.30

317843 08/30/2022 $1,840.18

317844 08/30/2022 $63.00

317845 08/30/2022 $27,798.00

317846 08/30/2022 $3,857.30

317847 08/30/2022 $66.06

317848 08/30/2022 $3,600.00

317849 08/31/2022 $65.00

$5,931,165.86Type Check Totals:

T-Mobile USA Inc.

THE OWENS LAW FIRM PLC

Reardon, Jordan

Sparkletts Water 

State of Arizona

Stephen R. Jones Attorney at Law, PLLC 

Porter, Peggy

Sanofi Pasteur Inc. 

Southwest Gas

Globe-Miami Elks #489 

Messinger Payson Funeral Home

Pima County Government

AT&T

Belling, Madeline, M

Fox Law Group PC

UniFirst Corporation

Voakes, Donald, R

Arizona Water Company

State of Arizona

TBS Waste LLC 

Thyssenkrupp Elevator Corporation 

Senergy Petroleum 

Sparkletts Water 

Sparklight

PITNEY BOWES INC

Pleasant Valley Community Medical Center 

Ripple , Denice

ODP Business Solutions, LLC 

Oil Price Information Service, LLC 

Payson Senior Center Inc

 user: Amber T Warden Pages: 22 of 22  Thursday, September 1, 2022



Number Date Status Void Reason
Reconciled/ 
Voided Date

Transaction 
Amount

317207 08/04/2022 Voided Ach Direct Deposit 08/04/2022 $727,808.78

317306 08/05/2022 Voided/Reissued Wrong Address 08/09/2022 $105.00

317360 08/05/2022 Voided Wrong Amount 08/30/2022 $250.00

317439 08/09/2022 Voided Other Void 08/09/2022 $105.00

317626 08/17/2022 Voided Ach Direct Deposit 08/17/2022 $743,219.32

$1,471,488.10Type Check Totals: 5 Transactions

JP Morgan AP - JP Morgan Accounts Payable Totals

Accounts Payable Porter, Peggy

Accounts Payable Givler-Mitchell, Rosanne, A

Accounts Payable JP MORGAN CHASE ACH DEPOSIT

JP Morgan AP - JP Morgan Accounts Payable

Check

Accounts Payable JP MORGAN CHASE ACH DEPOSIT

Accounts Payable GIVLER-MITCHELL, ROSEANNE, A

*****Gila County*****

Payment Register
From Payment Date: 8/1/2022 - To Payment Date: 8/31/2022

Source Payee Name

 user: Amber T Warden Pages: 1 of 1  Thursday, September 1, 2022



   
ARF-7569   Consent Agenda Item     4. I.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/20/2022  
Reporting
Period:

Report for County Manager approved Contracts Under
$50,000 for the month of August

Submitted For: Mary Springer, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Stacey Espinoza, Administrative Assistant

Information
Subject
Report for County Manager approved contracts under $50,000 for the
month of August 2022

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved
by the County Manager for the month of August 2022.

Attachments
County Manager Under $50K for August
Support and Maintenance Agreement 44604CONSVR with HOV
Services
Contract Agreement GSA GS-07F-025DA with Garrett Electronics
Professional Services Agreement 080718-1 with North Country
Healthcare
Service Agreement No. 070622 with Sparky & Sons Electric
Site Lease Agreement No. 062718 with R&M Repeater LLC
Site Lease Agreement No. 052219 with R&M Repeater LLC
Service Agreement No. 030422-1 with C&M Communications, LLC
Contract Agreement NCPA No. 02-127 with Comfort Systems USA,
Inc.
Professional Service Agreement No. 080322 with Rikki Bench, RDH
Service Agreement No. 060122-1 with Cutting Edge Supply
Professional Service Agreement No. 081522 with Conditioned
Response Training, LLC





Contracts  Under $50,000 Signed by 

the County Manager for the month of 

August 2022
Vendor Contract Number  Amount Contract Term Summary Contract Options Contract Cumlative

HOV Services

Support and Maintenance 

Agreement 44604CONSVR  $                                1,370.00 7/19/2022 - 7/18/2023

Support and maintenance agreement for the Minolta RP605Z, Minolta RFC11 Roll 

Film Carrier, and Minolta FC5 Fiche Carrier, a microfilm reader for the Recorder's 

Office Renewal  $                                                                                    1,370.00 

Garrett Electronics GSA Contract GS-07F-025DA  $                                8,644.00 8/8/2022 - 10/31/2022

Purchase of 2 new walk-through metal detectors for the Payson Courthouse and a 

replacement of the wal-through metal detector at the Globe Courthouse.  Funded 

through Court Security Grant to upgrade security measures at Gila County 

Courthouses.  Quote also includes assembly, set up and training.  All documents 

executed by the State of Arizona on Contract No, GS-07F-025DA apply to this 

procurement between Gila County and Garrett Electronics New, no renewals  $                                                                                    8,644.00 

North Country Healthcare, Inc.

Amendment No. 4 to 

Professional Services 

Contract No. 080718-1  $                                4,000.00 7/1/2022 - 6/30/2023

Amendment No. 4 will allow the contract term to be extended from July 1, 2022 to 

June 30, 2023.  Contractor will provide HIV Care and Services for the Payson area

Contract allows 

original term 

beginning 7/1/2022 

through 6/30/2023 

with  five additional 

one year renewal 

periods

 Original Contract - $4,000.00; Amendment No. 1 - 

$4,000.00; Amendment No. 2 -  $4,000.00; Amendment 

No. 3 -  $4,000.00; Amendment No. 4 - $4,000.00 

Sparky & Sons Electric

Service Agreement No. 

070622  $                                6,400.00 8/8/2022 - 12/31/2022

Must have electrical to install internet connection set a 200-amp backboard with a 

receptable underneath and take a pipe to a 'J' box on top of the water tank.  Supply 

and lay conduit in owner supplied ditch.  Owner willl cover and complete 

groundwork New, no renewals  $                                                                                    6,400.00 

R&M Repeaters, LLC

Amendment No. 4 to Lease 

Agreement 062718  $                                3,376.00 7/1/2022 - 6/30/2023

Amendment No. 4 will serve to extend the contract from July 1, 2022 to June 30, 

2023 the renewal includes an annual 4% increase agreed upon in the original 

contract.  Diamond Point is high point in the area for communication towers.  R&M 

has a tower we can rent for our communications for radios and flood control 

transmissions.  Our radio transmitting equipment is on this property and is partially 

managed by C&M Communications

Contract allows 

original term 

beginning 7/1/2022 

through 6/30/2023 

with four additional 

one year renewal 

 Original Contract - $2,485.40; Amendment No. 1 -  

$2,794.00; Amendment No. 2 -  $2,905.76; Amendment 

No. 3 -  $3,021.99; Amendment No. 4 -   $3,376.00 

R&M Repeaters, LLC

Amendment No. 3 to Lease 

Agreement 052219  $                                3,675.00 7/1/2022 - 6/30/2023

Amendment No. 3 will serve  to extend the contract from July 1, 2022 to June 30, 

2023, the renewal includes an annual 4% increase agreed upon in the orginal 

contract.  Diamond Point is high point in the area for communication towers.  R&M 

has a tower we cana rent for our communications for radios and flood control 

transmissions.  Our 800 mhz radio transmitting equipment is on this property and is 

partially managed by C&M Repeaters

Contract allows 

original term 

beginning 7/1/2022 

through 6/30/2023 

with four additional 

one year renewal 

periods

 Original Contract - $2,606.40; Amendment No. 1 - 

$2,710.66; Amendment No. 2 - $2,819.09; Amendment No. 

3 - $3,675.00 

C&M Communications, LLC

Amendment No. 1 to Service 

Agreement No. 030422-1  $                              20,000.00 3/15/2022 - 10/31/2022

Amendment No. 1 will serve to increase the dollar amount of the contract for the 

contract term March 15, 2022 to October 31, 2022, due to new installations of 

radios and the cost of call out work needed.  Dispatch has had significant issues in 

Globe at the dispatch center that need adjustments to the radios and consoles to 

be adjusted quickly.  The Sheriff's Office wishes to have a Blanket Purchase Order in 

place for any future issues that may come up in the future

 Original Contract - $10,000.00; Amendment No. 1 will 

increase amount of $10,000.00 to new amount of 

$20,000.00 

Comfort Systems USA, Inc

Contract Agreement NCPA 

No. 02-127  $                              12,288.00 8/18/2022 - 10/31/2022

Gila County wishes to utilize Comfort Systems USA, Inc. for HVAC Units.  All 

documents executed by the National Cooperative Purchasing Alliance on Contract 

No. 02-127, apply to this procurement between Gila County and Comfort Systems 

USA, Inc New, no renewals  $                                                                                 12,288.00 

Rikki Bench, RDH

Professional Service 

Agreement No. 080322  $                              17,100.00 8/18/2022 - 8/17/2023

Contractor will provide basic oral health screenings on school aged children in Gila 

County through the Dental Seal and Program and other grant funded programs New, no renewals  $60.00 per hour not to exceed $17,100.00 

Cutting Edge Supply

Service Agreement No. 

060122-1  $                                6,000.00 6/1/2022 - 9/30/2022 Lineer replacement for T-004 New, no renewals  $                                                                                    6,000.00 

Conditioned Response Training, LLC

Professional Service 

Agreement No. 081522  $                              19,000.00 9/1/2022 - 8/31/2023

Conditioned Response Training will conduct a block of trainings to include DT 

Instructor, Classification, Report Writing, Inmate Discipline and Grievances, as well 

as a Supervisor School New, no renewals  $                                                                                 19,000.00 






































































































































	Agenda
	Liquor License Application (County No. LL-22-05)-Sagan Lynn Simonis - Stage Coach Bar & Grill
	Att1_Stage Coach Bar and Grill - Recommendation
	Att2_Stage Coach Bar and Grill - Application
	Att3_Stage Coach Bar and Grill-Affidavit of Posting
	Att4_Stage Coach Bar and Grill - Com Service Response
	Att5_Stage Coach Bar and Grill - H_E Response
	Att6_Stage Coach Bar and Grill - Treasurer Response
	FY23 Fill the Gap Grant Application
	Att1_FY23 Fill the Gap Application
	Amendment No.2 for Contract No. CTR055335 - Gila County - Healthy People Healthy Communities
	Att1_CTR055335 Gila A2
	SCOPE OF WORK
	1. Background
	1.1. The vision of the Arizona Department of Health Services (ADHS) is “Health and Wellness for all Arizonans.” In December of 2013, ADHS completed a State Health Assessment (SHA). The SHA utilized Community Health Assessments conducted by local count...
	1.2. These goals and strategies were accomplished through a collaborative approach that engages local, state and national partners to improve the health and well-being of Arizonans. Collectively, evidence-based preventative health strategies were impl...
	1.3. Implementation of the original IGA was completed in three (3) phases that occurred in the first year of the IGA to accommodate funding cycles. Phase I included Tobacco, Chronic Disease, and the Health in Arizona Policy Initiative (HAPI), and bega...
	1.4. In July 2020, the original HPHC IGA was split apart and two (2) separate IGAs were formed; a fixed price contract and a cost-based reimbursement contract. The programs to be included in this fixed price contract are: Tobacco Cessation and Prevent...
	1.5. The Suicide Mortality Review Program is administered by ADHS, who will develop a suicide mortalities data collection system, encourage and assist in the development of local suicide mortality review teams, and provide training and technical assis...
	1.6. Beginning in July 2022, the Public Health Improvement Program, which is funded by the Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant, will move from the HPHC IGA to the Maternal and Child Health (MCH) Healthy Arizona Families (HAF) IGA.
	2. Purpose
	3. Objective
	4. Scope of Service
	6. Approvals:
	7. Tasks
	9. Deliverables and Delivery Schedule
	10. Notices, Correspondence, and Reports
	10.1 Notices, correspondence, reports and invoices/CERs from the County contractor to ADHS shall be sent to:
	10.2 Notices, correspondence, and reports (and payments if sent to same address) from ADHS to the contractor shall be sent to:

	Att2_CTR055335 Gila A1 Executed
	Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control Grant Agreement (ACJC No. DC-23-023)
	Att1_DC-23-023 Award Letter
	Att2_DC-23-023 Grant Agreement
	Att3_DocuSign Instructions
	Approve IGA  No. 08302022 With Central Arizona Governments for Public Transit Authority Project
	Att1_IGA 08302022 CAG
	Approval of USDA Forest Service Road Project Agreement No. 22-RO-11031200-232
	Att1_22-RO-11031200-232 Road Project Agreement
	Att2_2020 Coop FS Master Agreement
	Adopt Resolution No. 22-09-06 for the extinguishment of a utility easement
	Att1_Resolution No. 22-09-06
	Att2_Exhibit A
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	Contract Award in Response to Invitation for Bids (IFB) No. 060322-On-Call Pavement Markings
	Att1_Invitation for Bids No. 060322 with Award Contract
	Att2_Addendum 1
	Att3_As Read Bid Results
	Att4_Franklin Striping-Sealed Bid
	Att5_Hulxe Construction Services-Sealed Bid
	Att6_Pavement Marking-Sealed Bid
	Request to Advertise Invitation for Bids No. 082122-One (1) New Ford F350 Super Cab 4x4 Cab and Chassis
	Att1_Request to Advertise
	Att2_IFB No. 082122
	Request to Advertise Invitation for Bids No. 082222-One (1) New Ford F250 Super Duty XL 4x4 with Transfer Tank Toolbox combo and Snowplow
	Att1_Request to Advertise
	Att2_IFB No. 082222
	Request to Advertise Invitation for Bids No. 082322-One (1) New Ford F-350 Super Duty XL 4x4 Chassis Cab with Dump Bed, Spreader and Snowplow
	Att1_Request to Advertise
	Att2_IFB No. 082322
	Request to Advertise Invitation for Bids No. 082422-Two (2) New Ford F-250 Super Duty XL 4x4 6.2L
	Att1_Request to Advertise
	Att2_IFB No. 082422
	Order to Cancel Special District and School Elections and Appoint Board Members
	Att1_Order
	Att2_ARS 16-410
	Att3_ARS 15-1442
	Approval of Service Agreement 07052022 Amendment No. 1
	Att1_Agreement 07052022
	Att2_Amendment 1
	Renewal of Agile Fleet Inc. under Sourcewell Contract No. 020221-AAC
	Att1_Agile Fleet Contract
	Att2_Sourcewell-Agile Fleet Contract 020221
	Att3_Agile Fleet Proposal
	Victims' Rights Program Award Agreement A.G. 2023-004
	Att1_FY 2023 Victims' Rights Program
	Annual Immunization Report for July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022
	Att1_Quality Management Report
	Att2_Immunization report 2021-2022
	Att3_Immunization Action Plan
	Att4_Arizona Administrative Code R9-10-1004
	August 2, 2022, August 15, 2022, and August 30, 2022
	Att1_08-02-22 Meeting Minutes
	Att2_08-15-22 Meeting Minutes
	Att3_08-30-22 Meeting Minutes
	Human Resources Department Monthly Reports for August 2022
	Att1_HR Summary Report
	Att2_08_02_22 Human Resources Report
	Att3_08_09_22 Human Resources Report
	Att4_08_16_22 Human Resources Report
	Att5_08_23_22 Human Resources Report
	Att6_08_30_22 Human Resources Report
	August 1, 2022 - August 31, 2022
	Att1_Finance Report 08-01-22 to 08-31-22
	Att2_Finance Report 08-01-22 to 08-31-22 Voids
	Report for County Manager approved Contracts Under $50,000 for the month of August
	Att1_County Manager Under $50K for August
	Att2_Support and Maintenance Agreement 44604CONSVR with HOV Services
	Att3_Contract Agreement GSA GS-07F-025DA with Garrett Electronics
	Att4_Professional Services Agreement 080718-1 with North Country Healthcare
	Att5_Service Agreement No. 070622 with Sparky and Sons Electric
	Att6_Site Lease Agreement No. 062718 with RandM Repeater LLC
	Att7_Site Lease Agreement No. 052219 with RandM Repeater LLC
	Att8_Service Agreement No. 030422-1 with CandM Communications, LLC
	Att9_Contract Agreement NCPA No. 02-127 with Comfort Systems USA, Inc.
	Att10_Professional Service Agreement No. 080322 with Rikki Bench, RDH
	Att11_Service Agreement No. 060122-1 with Cutting Edge Supply
	Att12_Professional Service Agreement No. 081522 with Conditioned Response Training, LLC

